


As of and for the Years

Ended December 31 2008 2001 2006

Dollars/n thousands except per share data or as otherwise noted

Total revenues1 $907787 $923185 $868344

Net loss income $928508 $915326 $419651

Total assets $4824399 $5070440 $5317555

Shareholders equity $1278225 $2512962 $3568590

Shares Outstanding

in thousands

Basic at year end 81688 81120 86747

Basic weighted-average 81423 84645 86478

Diluted weighted-average2 81423 84645 92866

Per Share Data

Book value $15.65 $30.98 $41.14

Diluted net loss income $11.40 $10.81 $4.57

Cash dividends declared $0.03 $0.21 $0.21

Due to the sale of PMI Australia and PMI Asia and the merger of PMI Guaranty Co into PMI Mortgage Insurance Co in 2008 their financial results were

reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented and accordingly are not included in total revenues

Due to the net loss in 2008 and 2007 normally dilutive components of shares outstanding such as stock options were not included in fully
diluted shares

outstanding as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive



Dear Sharehders

The operating environment in 2008 was the most cha leng no in

The CMI Group lncs 36year history In spite of these cha lenges

we are able to report significant progress on the plan outlined to

shareholders last
year The CMI tearo has renewed and refined our

commitment to the
five..point plan for progress

Enhance capita ar iqu

mi irs on tire bus nry

Rnnk id nj ht\ sres

Mitioate ossos

Reduce expenses

Our overarching goal in executng this five point plan is to position

the Company to face todayS challenges and bui the fouridatiorr

for the future We will stay focused on our value propositon of

providing liquidity credit piotection capital relef and the expertise

needed to support the rations housirg market Our focus br

homeownership will be on sustainability arid preservaton

Our financia results for 2008 are reflection of the yearS

challengng market conditions in the U.S arid internationally

For the ful year CMI reported consolidated net loss of

$928.5 mi lion or $1 40 per share Losses were driven prirnar ly

by increases in reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses

in our mortgage insurance operations osses in our financia

guaranty operations arid the discontinued operations of CMI

Australia arid CMI Asia

2008 Accomplishments

Hard work by each and every CMI team member was evderrt

with the completion of numerous strategic initiatives inked to our

five point plan for progress

Specfica ly dur ng 2008 we

Completed mhc $920 mirlion sore of CMI Austra ia receiving

$748 million in cash arid note for $187 rn Ili in maturirq

Sep ember 201

Completed the $51.6 mi lion all cash sale of CMI Asia

Repatriated approx mately $152 mllionr of excess capta from

CMI Guaranty of whch $144 million was cortributod to our core

mortgage insurance operations

Initated the osure of our Canadian operatrns and repatriated

$41 mi lion to CM Mortgage Insurance Co

ReconEgurod CMI Europe to reduce expenses and preserve capital

Reregotiated our revolving credit faci ty and borrowed $200 roll on

Rationalized arid realigned our workforce to focus on our core

bus ness

Implemer ted industry leading or ring anrl under writing

guideline changes

led the industry wth format on of our Homeniwnership

Creservat on Init at yes HCII program

Enhance capital and liqwdity

The collective effect of our nancial mit atives inn 2008 strengthened

the Companys quidity by approximate $1 billon As result of

tnese initiatives we endanced tfne aims paying resources in our

U.S mortgage insurance operations and the liquidty of the ho dirng

company We wIl continue to follow our fivwpuint plan and pursue

various capital initiatives Our goal in these efforts is to balance the

needs of key constituents such as shareholders regulators banks

GSEs ratirng agencies and customers as well as to optimize our new

business wr tings



Focus on our core business

Throughout 2008 we repoot oned the Company to focus on our core

mortgage insurance operations of PM1 Mortgage nsurance Co

our affiliated reinsurance companies and CMG Mortgage insurance

Company CMG Ml PMI Mortgage Insurance Co has been coder

and key provider of mortgage insui ance products to the broaler

hous
ng markets foi 36 years CMG Ml is tire leading provider of

pi
vat

mortgage insurance produc and sers ces to the credit union industry

Although it was difficult saying qoodbye to the skilled piofessionals

our international subsidiaries the sales of PMI Austra ia and

PMI Asia represented signif cant lestone in the executiorr of our

five poi it an for progress Given the backdrop of unprecedei ted

upheasal rr the global financial markets
durirrg the executio of

these transactions the va ire ecognized in the sale of these two

concerns is tribute to thoe franchises arid tire hard work arid

talei rs of our PMI team

In our non mortgage insurance operations we designated our FGIC

and RAM Re investments as lion-strategic and their respective

carry ng values on U.S GAAP basis are cuirently oem We could

future pci iods
recognioe aquity came gs from these investments

to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable Our efforts

II be ded cated to realiz ng future value from these rranchises

Book hghquaUty business

During 2006 in response to the challenging environment arid

market conditions PM1 led nbc ndustry in both guideline and

pricoig changes in the mortgage insurance market Our new

rate structure arid underwriting gudelines encourage high quality

business arid provide protection against distribution shifts

The 2006 book of new business was of high quali Our models

indicate that the credit quality of the rrem business writings is

superior to that written in oi het performance years oi the 990s

Mtigate osses

We have niade
gr ificant investment in our people processes

arid platforms to help mitigate losses PMI led the mar ket with

lie development of our Homeowncrship Preservation Initiat yes

HPI proqram to help gener ate more loan workouts on delinquent

PMI nsumed loans In 2006 we saw stiong evidence that these

nrtiatives are workuig HPI loss mitigation programs have crmab ed

appioximatcly 18000 farrrilies to retain their Iron mes and 3400

avo fcieclosure With the rmmomentun established in 2008

we would expect these nLimbers to grow signif cantly in 2009

As we mentioiied last year captive reiimsuiance structures arc

providing meaningfu reinsurance on the primary mortgage

insurance coverage subject to hese agreements As we Irave Inng

adsocated capt ye re nsurar cc significant benefit in reducing

our losses times of stress in the mortgaqe arkcts At year end

we ad approximately $860 Ilior in captive trust balances agaurst

which we reduced our ncurred losses by approximately $500 million

in 2008 We will continue to receive significant benefts from these

programis in 2009

In 2009 tlins riltlt yes when combined with rrdustr-wide efforts

on loan workouts and homeownership preservation could mitigate

our future claim paymernts With regard to claims paid in 2008

our U.S niortgage insurance operation reported full
year pa claims

of approximately $814 rrr II orr dollars result that was favorable to

our expectations of $825 $975 mnlhon as indicated earlier in the year



Board of Directors
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Samurai Surfer GATX Corporation

John Roach14
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Compensation Committee Member
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Reduce expenses contributor to the nabon housing our communities and the

Executior of our five point an requ red that we further reduce our mortgage finance system

expense base and take the necessary steps of rca going the Con pany

for the tutL re In addition to the salc closure and restructunng of the
Thank you for your con idence in PMI as we work through these

internauonal operat uris and the associated reduction in workfor
lifficult times

we also iii tiated measures do estica ly voluntary early retirer icnt

program ar invo unta reduction force were conpleted in ate

2008 hese measures are expected to reduce our operating expenses

by approximate $30 million year

Stepher Smith
While he es still mo to do we made measurable and

Cha rman and Chief Executive Off cci

signif cant progress 2008 towards refocus ng the Company

booking high quality busi iess mitigating losses reducinq expenses

and enhancing the Cornpanys capital and
liquid ty

Althougl there is amp uncertainty in todays market we have

dedicated team of skilled professionals committed to mak ng

the right decisions for today3 env moment Our executive team

on the to efront of evelopments Washington relative to 8SF

conse vatorship hous
rig policy and freasury initiatives Political

economic business ard community eaders are increasingly al gned

on stemming the tide of foreclosures However full recovery is also

dependent on both punlic and private market participants facilitating

iesponsble and sustainable homeownership The mortgage

insurance ndustry is critica component of the recovery and the

sstainabi of brarit housing market

Oespite the current global econom en iditions arid riiarkr

challenges we continue to plan and buld for the future We have

an extraordinary group of professiona dedicated to our mission

sion and va ues We have earned reputat on as an important
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Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Statements we make or incorporate by reference in this and other documents filed with the Securities and

Exchange Commission that are not historical facts that are preceded by followed by or include the words

believes expects anticipates estimates or similar expressions or that relate to future plans events or

performance are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws When

forward-looking statement includes an underlying assumption we caution that while we believe the assumption

to be reasonable and make it in good faith assumed facts almost always vary from actual results and the

difference between assumed facts and actual results can be material Where in any forward-looking statement

we express an expectation or belief as to future results there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief

will result Our actual results may differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements

Forward-looking statements involve number of risks or uncertainties including but not limited to the Risk

Factors addressed in Item 1A below Other risks are referred to from time to time in our periodic filings with the

Securities and Exchange Commission All of our forward-looking statements are qualified by and should be

read in conjunction with our risk disclosures Except as may be required by applicable law we undertake

no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements whether as result of new

information future events or otherwise



PART

ITEM BUSINESS

Overview of Operations

We provide residential mortgage insurance products designed to promote homeownership and strengthen

communities Mortgage insurance provides loss protection to mortgage lenders and investors in the event of

borrower default By protecting lenders and investors from credit losses we help to ensure that mortgages are

available to prospective homebuyers

The significant and continuing weakening of the U.S residential mortgage housing credit and capital

markets negatively affected our financial condition and results of operations in 2008 Our consolidated net loss

was $928.5 million for the year ended December 31 2008 We discuss the impact of the mortgage housing

credit and capital market declines on our operating segments in Items 1B U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations 1C International Operations and 1D Financial Guaranty below Our financial condition and

results of operations for 2008 are discussed on both consolidated and segment basis in Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations below

As part of our response to difficult market conditions we have adopted number of initiatives that affect

the composition of our business In particular we are focusing on our core business U.S mortgage insurance

and in 2008 we completed the sale of our Australian and Asian mortgage insurance operations began the

process of closing our Canadian mortgage insurance subsidiary PMI Canada and completed the runoff activities

of our surety subsidiary PM Guaranty Co PMI Guaranty In addition our European subsidiary PM Europe
has ceased assuming new risk and has reduced staff and offices accordingly In the U.S we have implemented

significant expense reduction initiatives as well as changes to our underwriting and pricing standards that are

discussed below We also are undertaking efforts to mitigate losses including through increased loss mitigation

and loan workout efforts through our Homeownership Preservation and other initiatives As described under

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations we also have

undertaken efforts to reduce
expenses and enhance capital and liquidity

Notwithstanding the above initiatives we continue to face significant challenges and risks Our U.S

mortgage insurance subsidiaries collectively referred to as PM are experiencing higher losses and such losses

are reducing PMIs net assets Unless we raise capital to support PMI its policyholders position will likely

continue to decline and its risk-to-capital ratio will likely increase beyond levels
necessary to meet regulatory

capital adequacy requirements and if we are unsuccessful in renegotiating our revolving credit facility by
April 15 2009 meet certain credit facility financial covenants In response to our capital constraints we are

exploring capital alternatives to enhance our liquidity and capital including potentially obtaining capital or other

relief under U.S Treasurys Financial Stability Plan including the Troubled Asset Relief Program or TARP
obtaining reinsurance for PMIs future book of business other capital relief initiatives at PMI and/or debt or

equity offerings PMI wrote significantly less business in 2008 and in
response to capital constraints will

continue to reduce new insurance written or NIW in 2009 Our holding company also faces significant liquidity

issues See Item IA Risk FactorsCapital and Liquidity Constraints

In 2008 we divided our business into four segmentsU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations International

Operations Financial Guaranty and Corporate and Other The completion of several of the strategic initiatives

described above significantly impacted the composition of our International Operations and Financial Guaranty

business segments

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Our U.S subsidiary PMI Mortgage Insurance Co including its

affiliated U.S companies is U.S residential mortgage insurer PM offers variety of mortgage insurance

products to meet the capital and credit risk mitigation needs of its customers We also own 50% of CMG
Mortgage Insurance Company or CMG MI joint venture that provides mortgage insurance exclusively to

credit unions



International Operations Our International Operations segment consists of the operations of PMI Europe

and PMI Canada To conserve capital PMI Europe has ceased assuming new risk PMI Europe offered mortgage

insurance and mortgage credit enhancement products including primary mortgage insurance structured portfolio

products and reinsurance products tailored primarily to the European mortgage markets We are in the
process

of

closing PMI Canada which began offering residential mortgage insurance products in 2007 Our International

Operations segment also consists of the discontinued operations of our former Australian mortgage insurance

subsidiary PMI Australia and our former Asian mortgage reinsurance subsidiary PMI Asia We completed the

sale of PMI Australia on October 22 2008 and of PM Asia on December 17 2008 Based on these activities in

2008 we do not expect our International Operations to be significant portion of our business in the future

Financial Guaranty Our Financial Guaranty segment includes our investment in RAM Holdings Ltd the

parent company of RAM Reinsurance Company Ltd RAM Re Bermuda-based financial guaranty

reinsurance company and our investment in FGIC Corporation whose wholly-owned subsidiary Financial

Guaranty Insurance Company FGIC is financial guarantor of public finance and structured finance

obligations FGIC has ceased and RAM Re is not currently writing new business The carrying value of our

investments in FGC and RAM Re were zero as of December 31 2008 Effective December 31 2008 PMI

Guaranty was merged into PMI The results of PM Guaranty have been reported as discontinued operations in

our Financial Guaranty segment and in the consolidated statement of operations for all periods presented We do

not expect our Financial Guaranty segment to be significant portion of our business in the future

Corporate and Other Our Corporate and Other segment consists of corporate debt and expenses
of our

holding company The PM Group or TPG contract underwriting operations and equity in earnings or

losses from investments in certain limited partnerships

Financial Strength Ratings Independent rating agencies have assigned our insurance subsidiaries the

insurer financial strength ratings shown in the table below These ratings are based on the rating agencies

assessments of the financial risks associated with historical business activities and new business initiatives In

their assessments the rating agencies model the adequacy of capital to withstand severe loss scenarios and

review among other things corporate strategy operational performance available liquidity the outlook for the

relevant industry and competitive position The rating agencies can change or withdraw their ratings at any time

Insurer Financial Strength Ratings

as of March 15 2009

Standard Poors Moodys Fitch

PMI Mortgage Insurance Co A- Ba3 BBB
PMI Insurance Co A- Ba3 BBB
PM Europe

A- Bi BBB
CMG MI AA- NR AA

FGIC CCC Caal NR

RAM Re Baa3 NR

In 2008 partially in response
to PMIs increased losses and reduced capital each of the above rating

agencies lowered PMI insurer financial strength ratings from AA or equivalent category to the ratings

shown in the table above In the United States two of our largest customers Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac

collectively the GSE5 require mortgage insurers such as PM who have ratings of less than AA- or its

equivalent from at least two of the national rating agencies to submit remediation plans In May 2008 we

submitted remediation plans to the GSEs ouflining among other things the steps we are taking or plan to take to

bolster PM financial strength Each of the GSEs continues to treat PMI as an eligible mortgage insurer

Freddie Mac has stated that its forebearance from enforcing additional insurer requirements
is wholly

discretionary and subject to change and is dependent upon its evaluation of monthly updates regarding PMI

progress in implementing its remediation plan Fannie Mae also requires periodic updates from PMI and we



engage in ongoing discussions with the GSEs regarding our remediation plans See Item IA Risk FactorsThe

exercise of certain rights reserved by the GSEs under eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers could harm

our profitability and reduce our operational flexibility PMI Europe and CMG MI receive capital support from

PMI and are therefore dependent in part upon the financial strength and ratings of PMI Ratings assigned to our

holding company or its debt are set out below

Holding Company Ratings

as of March 152009

Standard Poors Moodys Senior Fitch Senior

Counterparty Unsecured Unsecured

Credit Debt Debt

Rating Rating Rating

The PMI Group Inc BBB- B3 BB

For discussion of recent rating agency actions with respect to our holding companys ratings and

subsidiaries insurer financial strength ratings and risk factors associated with these issues see Item 1A Risk

FactorsWe have been and will continue to be negatively impacted by recent downgrades of PMIs insurer

financial strength ratings and downgrade of our senior unsecured debt ratings could increase our borrowing

costs and therefore adversely affect our liquidity and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of OperationsLiquidity and Capital ResourcesRatings below

As of December 31 2008 our consolidated total assets were $4.8 billion including our investment portfolio

of $2.2 billion and total cash and cash equivalents of $1.5 billion Our consolidated shareholders equity was $1.3

billion as of December 31 2008 See Item Financial Statements and Supplementary DataNote 18 Business

Segments for financial information regarding our business segments

Our website address is http//www.pmi-us.com Information on our website does not constitute part of this

report Our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and
any

amendments to those reports are available free of charge on our website via hyperlink as soon as reasonably

practicable after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange

Commission The PMI Group is Delaware corporation Our principal executive offices are located at 3003

Oak Road Walnut Creek California 94597-2098 and our telephone number is 925 658-7878

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Through PMI we provide residential mortgage insurance products to mortgage lenders and investors

throughout the United States PMI is incorporated in Arizona headquartered in Walnut Creek California and

licensed in all 50 states the District of Columbia Puerto Rico Guam and the Virgin Islands Under its monoline

insurance licenses PMI may only offer mortgage insurance covering first lien one-to-four family residential

mortgages

Residential mortgage insurance protects mortgage lenders and investors in the event of borrower default by

reducing and in some instances eliminating the resulting credit loss to the insured institution By mitigating

losses as result of borrower default residential mortgage insurance facilitates the origination of low down

payment mortgages generally mortgages to borrowers who make down payments of less than 20% of the value

of the homes Mortgage insurance also reduces the capital that financial institutions are required to hold against

insured loans and facilitates the sale of low down payment mortgage loans in the secondary mortgage market

PMIs residential mortgage insurance products typically provide first loss protection on loans originated by

residential mortgage lenders and sold to the GSEs or the agency market and to lesser extent on loans held by

portfolio lenders In 2008 as result of the contraction of the capital and credit markets and our decision to limit

our insurance writings in these markets PMI N1W consisted of significantly less insurance writings from its

structured finance channel through which PMI previously offered first loss and/or mezzanine loss credit



enhancement of mortgage-backed securities MBS issued by capital market participants other than the GSEs

the non-agency market The issuance of non-agency MBS securities came to virtual halt in 2008 and with

little investor demand for these products the non-agency MBS market is not expected to improve in the near

term As result PMI did not participate in the MBS market in 2008 and does not expect to do so in 2009 The

mortgage insurance products PMI offers are described below

In light of market conditions PMI made number of changes to its underwriting guidelines and premium

rates in 2007 and 2008 which had the effect of significantly limiting PMIs new business writings In early 2009

to preserve capital PMI announced additional changes to its underwriting guidelines and adopted customer

management strategies to reduce new business writings Unless additional capital is procured PMI will continue

to limit its new business writings in 2009 Section Risk Management below discusses underwriting guidelines

and pricing changes made by PMI Even with these limitations capital constraints could cause PMI to exceed in

2009 regulatory capital adequacy requirements which could require PMI to cease writing new business See also

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsConditions

and Trends Affecting our BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations and Item Risk FactorsCapital

and Liquidity Constraints below

Products

Primary Mortgage Insurance

Primary insurance provides the insured with first-loss mortgage default protection on individual loans at

specified coverage percentages Our maximum obligation to an insured with respect to claim is generally

determined by multiplying the coverage percentage selected by the insured by the loss amount on the defaulted

loan The loss amount includes any unpaid loan balance delinquent interest and certain expenses associated with

the loans default and property foreclosure In lieu of paying the coverage percentage of the loss amount on

defaulted loan we generally may pay the full loss amount and take title to the mortgaged property or ii in

the event that the property is sold prior to settlement of the claim pay the insureds actual loss up to the

maximum level of coverage

Our core primary mortgage insurance business is offered on loan-by-loan basis to lenders through our

flow channel The majority of our primary insurance written is on loans sold to the GSEs On limited basis in

2008 PMI also offered structured mortgage insurance products to the GSEs and portfolio lenders through its

structured finance channel Prior to 2008 we offered and sold primary mortgage insurance to agency and

non-agency MBS issuers as credit enhancement covering portfolios of loans PMI will not offer primary

mortgage insurance products through its structured finance channel in 2009

PMI primary insurance in force and primary risk in force at December 31 2008 were $124.3 billion and

$30.6 billion respectively Primary insurance in force refers to the current principal balance of all outstanding

mortgage loans with primary insurance coverage as of given date Primary risk in force is the aggregate dollar

amount of each primary insured mortgage loans current principal balance multiplied by the insurance coverage

percentage specified in the policy The chart below shows our U.S primary NIW for the years
ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 NIW refers to the original principal balance of all loans that receive new

primary mortgage insurance coverage during given period

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Flow Channel $22197 98% $37584 81% $23270 72%

Structured Finance Channel 442 2% 8549 19% 8964 28%

Total Primary NIW $22639 100% $46133 100% $32234 100%

PMI total primary NIW decreased significantly in 2008 principally due to changes to PMIs pricing and

underwriting guidelines that limit the types of loans PMI will insure The size of the U.S mortgage origination



market also impacts PMI NIW and is influenced by many economic factors including access to credit markets

unemployment rates interest rates home prices federal and state economic stimulus programs and policies GSE

and lender-specific policies and the availability of mortgage insurance for high-LTV loans The continuing

slowdown in the mortgage origination and non-agency mortgage capital markets and increased competition from

mortgage insurance programs offered by the Federal Housing Authority FHA have also contributed to PMI

declining NIW Notwithstanding these external market pressures market demand for primary mortgage

insurance is higher than PMIs ability to write new insurance business due to capital constraints

Primary Flow Channel Lenders purchase primary mortgage insurance through our flow channel to reduce

losses as result of borrower default to obtain capital relief and most often to facilitate the sale of their low

down payment loans to the GSEs and other investors The GSEs purchase residential mortgages from lenders and

investors as part of their governmental mandate to provide liquidity in the secondary mortgage market As the

GSEs have traditionally been the principal purchasers of conforming mortgage loans mortgage lenders have

typically originated such loans in conformance with GSE guidelines for sellers and servicers These guidelines

reflect the GSEs own charter requirements which among other things allow the GSEs to purchase low down

payment mortgage loans only if the lender secures mortgage insurance on those loans from an eligible

insurer such as PMI or ii retains participation of not less than 10% in the mortgage or iii agrees to

repurchase or replace the mortgage in the event of default under specified conditions If the lender retains

participation in the mortgage or agrees to repurchase or replace the mortgage banking regulations may increase

the level of capital required to be held by the lender to reflect the lenders increased obligations which could in

turn increase the lenders cost of doing business

In September 2008 the U.S Department of the Treasury Treasury placed the GSEs into conservatorship

and appointed the Federal Housing Finance Agency FHFA as their conservator In conservatorship the GSEs

could change their business practices with respect to the mortgage insurance industry or individual mortgage

insurers which could materially impact the quantity and level of mortgage insurance coverage required by the

GSEs on residential mortgage loans or PMIs status as an eligible mortgage insurer Moreover the GSEs
business practices may be impacted by their results of operations as well as legislative or regulatory changes

governing their operations The appointment of conservator increases the likelihood that the U.S Congress will

examine the role and
purpose

of the GSEs in the U.S housing market and potentially propose structural and other

changes to the GSEs New federal legislation could reduce the level of private mortgage insurance coverage used

by the GSEs as credit enhancement or eliminate the requirement altogether See Item 1A Risk FactorsIf the

role of the GSEs in the U.S housing market is changed or if the GSEs change other policies or practices the

amount of insurance that PMI writes could further decrease which could result in decrease of our future

revenue

Under the Treasurys Home Affordable Refinance Program announced on March 2009 certain borrowers

whose loans are owned or guaranteed by the GSEs and have loan-to-value ratios that have risen as result of

declines in home prices may refinance and take advantage of lower interest rates or more stable loan product

The program will be implemented by the GSEs and will be in effect through June 2010 Under this program the

GSEs will not require mortgage insurance as credit enhancement on refinances of mortgages that were originated

at less than 80% LTV but are now greater than 80% LTV For loans that were originated with mortgage

insurance the original policies are generally expected to remain in place on the refinanced loans

The GSEs have established approval requirements for eligible mortgage insurers The approval requirements

cover substantially all areas of PMIs mortgage insurance operations and require disclosure of certain activities

and new products to the GSEs Prior to the suspension of certain eligibility criteria in February 2008 the GSEs

mandated that eligible mortgage insurers maintain at least two of the following three ratings AA- by

Standard Poors SP or Fitch Ratings Fitch or Aa3 by Moodys Investors Service Moodys As

discussed above in Item 1A Overview of OperationsFinancial Strength Ratings in
response to ratings

downgrades of PM below AA- the GSEs required us to submit remediation plans and each GSE has required

regular updates from PMI with respect to the remediation plans See Item lA Risk FactorsWe have been and



will continue to be negatively impacted by recent downgrades of PMIs insurer financial strength ratings and

The exercise of certain rights reserved by the GSEs under eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers could

harm our profitability and reduce our operational flexibility

Lenders that purchase mortgage insurance select specific coverage levels for insured loans As result of

the GSEs coverage requirements lenders generally select coverage percentage that effectively reduces the

ratio of the original loan amount to the value of the property or LTV to not more than 80% We charge higher

premium rates for higher coverage as higher coverage percentages generally result in higher amounts paid per

claim Depending upon the loan the premium payments for flow primary mortgage insurance coverage may

ultimately be borne by the insured Lender Paid MI or by the insureds customer the mortgage borrower

Borrower Paid MI In either case the payment of premiums to us is generally the responsibility of the

insured PMIs primary insurance rates are based on rates that we have filed with the various state insurance

departments To establish these rates we utilize pricing models that allow PMI to assess risk across spectrum of

variables including coverage percentages loan and property attributes and borrower risk characteristics Our

standard Lender Paid MI product offering is priced and filed in the same manner as our standard Borrower Paid

MI rates Custom Lender Paid MI products were designed to meet the needs of lenders particular loan

program Lender Paid MI represented 6.2% of flow NIW in 2008 20.1% in 2007 and 17.5% in 2006 Lender

Paid MI represented lesser percentage of PMIs flow NIW in 2008 than in 2007 primarily as result of

underwriting guideline changes that limit the types of loans PMI will insure

Premium payments may be paid to us on monthly annual or single premium basis Monthly payment

plans represented 94.7% of NIW in 2008 93.5% of NIW in 2007 and 96.4% of NIW in 2006 As of

December 31 2008 monthly plans represented 92.8% of our U.S primary risk in force compared to 92.9% at

December 31 2007 and 93.5% at December 31 2006 Single premium plans represented substantially all of the

remaining NIW and primary risk in force Single premium plan payments may be refundable if coverage is

canceled by the insured which generally occurs when the loan is repaid the loan amortizes to sufficiently low

amount or the value of the property has increased sufficiently

Primary mortgage insurance is renewable at the option of the insured at the premium rate fixed when the

insurance on the loan was initially issued As result increased claims from policies originated in particular

year cannot be offset by renewal premium increases on policies in force We may not cancel mortgage insurance

coverage except in the event of nonpayment of premiums or certain material violations of PMIs master policies

With respect to our flow channel the insured or the loans mortgage servicer generally may cancel mortgage

insurance coverage at any time In addition the GSEs guidelines generally provide that borrowers written

request to cancel Borrower Paid MI should be honored if the borrower has satisfactory payment record and the

principal balance is not greater than 80% of the original value of the property or in some instances the current

value of the property The Homeowners Protection Act of 1998 also provides for the automatic termination of

Borrower Paid MI on most loans when the LTV ratio based upon the loans amortization schedule reaches

78% and provides for cancellation of Borrower Paid MI upon borrowers request when the LTV ratio based

on the original value of the property reaches 80% upon satisfaction of conditions set forth in the statute

Structured Finance Channel PMI is not offering primary mortgage insurance products through its

structured finance channel in 2009 In 2008 with the deterioration in the housing mortgage credit and capital

markets and the near elimination of the non-agency MBS market NIW from PMI structured finance channel

was significantly reduced from prior periods Prior to and on limited basis during 2008 we wrote mortgage

insurance business through our structured finance channel on portfolios of mortgage loans owned by the GSEs or

portfolio investors for capital relief liquidity and default protection Prior to 2008 we sold primary mortgage

insurance to MBS issuers as credit enhancement covering portfolios of loans

While the terms varied our structured finance products generally insured group
of pre-existing loans or

loans that were to be originated in the future whose attributes were to conform to the terms of the negotiated

agreement structured finance product can include primary insurance first loss and/or modified pool



insurance discussed below We utilized risk-based pricing models to establish premium rates for our structured

finance transactions business which considered the requested structure real estate loss scenarios as well as loan

property attributes and borrower risk characteristics Payment of premiums to us is generally the obligation of the

insured

In the future PMIs opportunities to participate in structured finance transactions will be affected by

domestic and international economic and financial conditions including but not limited to levels of liquidity in

the U.S and international capital markets interest rates home price appreciation employment levels and the

relative attractiveness of non-agency MBS compared to other debt securities We will not offer structured finance

products in 2009

The implementation by banks in the United States of Basel II the Basel Committee on Banking

Supervisions proposal to implement new international capital accord has been indefinitely delayed in the

United States although many banks in the United States implemented Basel II in 2008 and others may continue

to implement Basel II in 2009 Basel II affects the capital treatment provided to mortgage insurance by domestic

and international banks in both their origination and securitization activities and the provisions related to

residential mortgages and mortgage insurance could impact the competitive positions of mortgage insurers See

Item 1A Risk FactorsThe implementation of the Basel II Capital Accord may limit the use of mortgage

insurance

Pool Insurance

Modified Pool Insurance Prior to 2008 we offered modified pool insurance products to the GSEs
investors and lenders who sought credit enhancement for MBS transactions and for regulatory capital relief or the

reduction of mortgage default risk Modified pool insurance may be used in tandem with primary mortgage

insurance or may be placed on loans that do not require primary insurance The extent of
coverage

of modified

pool products varies Some products provide first loss protection by covering losses up to loan-level benefit

limit on individual loans held within the pool of insured loans up to stated aggregate loss limit stop loss

limit for the entire pool Some modified pool products offer mezzanine-level coverage by providing for claims

payments only after predetermined cumulative claims level or deductible is reached Such mezzanine-level

coverage generally also includes stop loss limit PMI is not offering modified pool products in 2009

In the past PMI issued modified pool insurance principally to the GSEs as supplemental coverage and to

lenders and other capital markets participants As of December 31 2008 PMI had $2.2 billion of modified pool

risk in force representing 6.7% of PMI total risk in force Unless otherwise noted primary insurance statistics

in this report do not include pool insurance

Other Pool Insurance Prior to 2002 PMI offered certain traditional pool insurance products referred to

principally as GSE Pool or Old Pool to lenders the GSEs and the non-agency market As of December 31 2008

other pool insurance represented 1.5% of PMIs total risk in force and 18.4% of PMIs total pool risk in force

including modified pool

Other Risk-Sharing Products

Prior to 2008 we offered other risk-sharing products including layered co-insurance primary insurance

program under which the insured retains liability for losses between certain levels of aggregate losses Layered

co-insurance was primarily targeted to affordable housing programs

Joint VentureCMG Mortgage Insurance Company

CMG Mortgage Insurance Company and its affiliates collectively CMG MI offer mortgage insurance for

loans originated by credit unions CMG MI is joint venture equally owned by PMI and CUNA Mutual



Investment Corporation CMIC CMIC is part of the CUNA Mutual Group which provides insurance and

financial services to credit unions and their members Both PM and CMIC provide services to CMG MI CMG

MI is USE-eligible mortgage insurer As of December 31 2008 CMG MI had $22.0 billion of primary

insurance in force and $5.5 billion of primary risk in force CMG MIs financial results are reported in our

consolidated financial statements under the equity method of accounting in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles or GAAP CMG MIs operating results are not included in our results shown in

Part of this Report on Form 10-K unless otherwise noted

Under the terms of the restated joint venture agreement effective as of June 2003 CMIC has the right on

September 2015 or earlier under certain limited conditions to require PM to sell and PMI has the right to

require CMIC to purchase PMIs interest in CMG MI for an amount equal to the then current fair market value

of PMI interest PMI and CMIC have also entered into capital support agreement which is subject to certain

limitations for the benefit of CMG MI in order to maintain CMG MIs insurer financial strength rating at AA-

by Standard Poors and AA by Fitch Under the capital support agreement PMI has an obligation under

specified conditions to maintain CMG MIs risk-to-capital ratio at or below 19.0 to CMG MIs risk-to-capital

ratio as of December 31 2008 was 16.2 to PM capital support obligation is limited to an aggregate of

$37.65 million

Competition

U.S Private Mortgage Insurance Industry

The U.S private mortgage insurance industry presently consists of seven active mortgage insurers PM
CMG Mortgage Guaranty Insurance Corporation or MGIC Genworth Mortgage Insurance Corporation an

affiliate of Genworth Financial Inc United Guaranty Residential Insurance Company an affiliate of American

International Group nc Radian Guaranty Inc or Radian and Republic Mortgage Insurance Co an affiliate of

Old Republic International Assured Guaranty Mortgage Insurance Company subsidiary of Assured Guaranty

Ltd is also licensed to offer mortgage insurance in the U.S We believe that at least one additional company is

considering offering mortgage insurance in the United States

U.S and State Government Agencies

PM and other private mortgage insurers compete with federal and state government agencies that sponsor

their own mortgage insurance programs The private mortgage insurers principal government competitor is the

Federal Housing Administration or FHA and to lesser degree the Veterans Administration or VA The

following table shows the relative mortgage insurance market share of FHAIVA and private mortgage insurers

over the past five years

Federal Government and

Private Mortgage Insurance

Market Share Based on NIW

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

FHA/VA 60.3% 20.1% 22.7% 23.5% 32.8%

Private Mortgage Insurance 397% 79% 77.3% 76% 67.2%

Total lOftO% lOftO% lOftO% lOftO% 100%

Source Inside Mortgage Finance based upon primwy NIW but includes certain insurance written that we classfy as pool insurance

In 2008 the FHA substantially increased its market share of the U.S primary mortgage insurance business

In the past FHAs market share predominantly included loans that were ineligible for mortgage insurance from

private mortgage insurer however the expansion of the FHA mortgage insurance program includes greater

percentages of loans that would have been eligible for insurance from private mortgage insurer FHAs market



share is higher as result of mortgage insurance companies adopting tighter underwriting guidelines limiting the

types of loans they will insure and recent Congressional action designed to stabilize the mortgage markets by

broadening the scope of loans eligible for mortgage insurance from the FHA Recently enacted federal legislation

provides the FHA with greater flexibility in establishing new products and temporarily increases the maximum

loan amount that the FHA may insure in some cases up to the GSE limits including up to $729750 in high
cost areas The FHA is also authorized to refinance distressed mortgages in return for lenders and investors

agreeing to write-down the amount of the original mortgage The future size of the FHA market will depend in

large part on whether Congress will permanently keep the FHA maximum loan limit at its current level or adopt

additional increases Any changes expanding the FHA program could cause future demand for private mortgage

insurance to decrease

The size of the private mortgage insurance market is also influenced by GSE conforming loan limits the

maximum loan amount that the GSEs may purchase In February 2008 Congress passed an economic stimulus

package which temporarily raised until December 31 2008 the GSE conforming loan limits for high cost areas

to $729750 The recently enacted American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 extended the 2008 GSE
loan limits through 2009 The increase to the GSE conforming loan limit could increase demand for mortgage

insurance products We and other private mortgage insurers also face competition in several states from state-

supported mortgage insurance funds

Financial institutions and Mortgage Lenders

We and other private mortgage insurers compete with financial institutions primarily commercial banks and

thrifts when they retain risk on all or portion of their high LTV mortgage portfolios rather than obtain

insurance for this risk Our use of captive reinsurance with certain lenders with whom we do business see

Section 9aCaptive Reinsurance below also negatively impacts our premiums earned

Prior to 2008 the private mortgage insurance industry faced significant competition from the home equity

lending operations of financial institutions and other mortgage lenders who originated piggy-back mortgages

that had first mortgage lien with an LTV of 80% and second mortgage lien ranging from 5% to 20% LTV
Since the first mortgage is only an 80% LTV the GSEs did not require mortgage insurance with

respect to either

mortgage when they acquired only the first mortgage even though the combined LTV exceeded 80% The

increased popularity and use of these and other similar products reduced the available market for primary

mortgage insurance until 2007 when origination of these products declined dramatically primarily as result of

the diminished demand in the capital markets for these products and new underwriting standards issued by bank

and thrift regulators The private mortgage insurance industry no longer competes with these second lien

mortgage products as they were virtually absent from the residential mortgage market in 2008

Customers

Our U.S customers are primarily mortgage lenders depository institutions commercial banks and

investors including the GSEs In 2008 PMIs top ten customers generated 49.4% of PMIs premiums earned

compared to 52.0% in 2007 The beneficiary under PMIs master policies is the owner of the insured loan The

GSEs as major purchasers of conventional mortgage loans in the U.S are the primary beneficiaries of PMIs

mortgage insurance coverage In 2008 we received $99.4 million in premium revenue from Fannie Mae which

exceeded 10% of our consolidated revenues

Sales and Product Development

We employ sales force located throughout the U.S to directly sell products and services to lenders Our

U.S sales force is comprised entirely of PMI employees who receive compensation consisting of base salary

and incentive compensation tied to certain performance objectives PMIs product development and marketing

department has primary responsibility for supporting our existing products and the creation of new products
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Business Composition

Primary Risk in Force The composition of PMIs primary risk in force is summarized in the table below

The table is based upon information available to PMI at the date of policy origination

As of December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Primary Risk in Force In millions $30605 $30967 $25711 $24971 $25505

Loan and Borrower Characteristics as Percentages of

Primary Risk in Force

LTV
Above 97.0% LTV 21.5% 24.6% 17.6% 14.3% 11.9%

95.0l%to97.0%LTV 4.1% 3.8% 4.6% 5.3% 6.6%

90.Ol%to95.0%LTV 29.9% 29.5% 31.0% 33.7% 36.4%

85.01% to 90% LTV 37.5% 35.0% 37.9% 37.4% 35.9%

85 .00% LTV and below 7.0% 7.1% 8.9% 9.3% 9.2%

Loan Type
Fixed 89.7% 87.2% 81.3% 80.4% 85.5%

ARMs excluding 2/28 Hybrid ARMs 8.0% 9.5% 12.5% 13.7% 11.7%

2/28 Hybrid ARMs 2.3% 3.3% 6.2% 5.9% 2.8%

Less-than-A Quality less than 620 FICO 7.1% 8.1% 8.0% 9.3% 10.9%

Alt-A 18.8% 22.8% 19.9% 17.2% 12.7%

Interest Only 11.8% 14.2% 9.9% 6.2% n.m

Payment Option ARMs 3.4% 3.8% 4.5% 3.5% n.m

Property Type

Single-family detached 82.1% 82.8% 82.7% 83.8% 84.7%

Condominium townhouse cooperative 13.9% 12.8% 11.9% 11.5% 10.7%

Multi-family dwelling and other 4.0% 4.4% 5.4% 4.7% 4.6%

Occupancy Status

Primary residence 89.3% 88.6% 88.8% 91.0% 93.2%

Second home 4.4% 4.3% 3.9% 3.4% 2.7%

Non-owner occupied
6.3% 7.1% 7.3% 5.6% 4.1%

Loan Amount

$100000 or less 12.3% 14.6% 17.9% 19.5% 20.5%

Over $100000 and up to $250000 52.5% 53.3% 56.4% 59.1% 1.9%

Over $250000 35.2% 32.1% 25.7% 21.4% 17.6%

GSE conforming loans 92.1% 91.7% 91.7% 91.8% 93.3%

Non-conforming loans 7.9% 8.3% 8.3% 8.2% 6.7%

Average primary loan size In thousands 160.2 155.0 142.5 136.0 131.1

Loans types are not mutually exclusive and therefore do not total 100%

GSE conforming loans have
principal

balances that do not exceed the maximum single-family principal
balance loan limit eligible for

purchase by the GSE5 Non-conforming loans have principal
balances that exceed the GSE loan limits

n.m.- not meaningful

High LTV Loans LTV is the ratio of the original loan amount to the value of the property In our

experience as LTV ratios increase the associated default and claim rates generally increase as well In

particular Above-97s mortgages with LTVs exceeding 97% have higher default and claim rates than

mortgages with lower LTVs In 2008 we stopped insuring Above-97s and as of February 2009 we

will not insure loans with LTVs exceeding 95% As of December 31 2008 Above-97s represented
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1.5% of our primary risk in force down from 24.6% of our primary risk in force as of December 31

2007 Above-97s represented 4.8% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to 31.6% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2007

Fixed Adjustable Rate and 2/28 Hybrid Mortgages We consider loan an adjustable rate mortgage

or ARM if its interest rate may be adjusted prior to the loans fifth anniversary Based on our

experience the delinquency and claim rates of ARMs are generally higher than in the case of fixed rate

loans 2/28 Hybrid ARM is loan whose interest rate is fixed for an initial two year period and floats

thereafter PM previously insured 2/28 Hybrid ARMs through its structured finance channel 2/28

Hybrid ARMs have experienced higher default rates than other ARM products As of December 31

2008 2/28 Hybrid ARMs represented 2.3% of our primary risk in force and we believe that

approximately less than one half of 1% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of 2/28 Hybrid ARMs
that will reset in 2009

Less-than-A Quality and Alt-A Loans We previously insured less-than-A quality loans and Alt-A

loans through our primary flow and structured finance channels We define less-than-A quality loans to

include loans with FICO scores generally less than 620 We define Alt-A loans as loans where the

borrowers FICO score is 620 or higher and the borrower requests and is given the option of providing

reduced documentation verifying the borrowers income assets deposit information and/or

employment The default and claim rates of less-than-A quality and Alt-A loans exceed PMIs average

rates In 2008 we eliminated eligibility of less-than-A quality loans for insurance from PM Less-

than-A quality loans represented 1.4% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2008

compared to 10.1% for the year ended December 31 2007 Beginning in 2007 we began tightening our

underwriting guidelines related to Alt-A loans and effective June 2008 we eliminated Alt-A loan

eligibility altogether Alt-A loans represented 5.3% of our total primary NIW for the year ended

December 31 2008 compared to 27.4% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31

2007

Interest Only Loans Interest only loans also known as deferred amortization loans have more

exposure to declining home prices than traditional amortizing loans in part because principal is not

reduced during an initial deferral period usually between two and ten years The significant majority of

interest only loans insured by PMI have initial deferral periods of ten years and the vast majority of

those insured in 2008 are subject to additional underwriting criteria to limit the potential for layered

risk We believe that less than one half of 1% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of interest only

loans whose initial deferral period will end in 2009 Due to the tightening of underwriting guidelines in

2007 and 2008 5.2% of primary NW in 2008 consisted of interest only loans compared to 20.2% in

2007

Payment Option ARMs With payment option ARM borrower generally has the option every

month to make payment consisting of principal and interest interest only or an amount established by

the lender that may be less than the interest owed Depending on prevailing interest rates and payment

amounts monthly payments may not be sufficient to fully cover interest due in which case the shortfall

is added to the principal amount of the loan in manner known as negative amortization While

generally the amount of negative amortization allowed under the loan is capped borrowers with

payment option ARMs may choose not to reduce principal during the early years of the loan resulting

in an increase to the principal amount owed Typically no later than the loans fifth anniversary the loan

is recast as fully-amortizing with loan balance equal to the principal then outstanding Accordingly

like interest only loans payment option ARMs have more exposure to declining home prices than

amortizing loans In addition these loans may have interest rate risks similar to traditional ARMs
Effective April 15 2008 we eliminated future

coverage
of negatively-amortizing ARM products

Payment option ARMs represented 0.2% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31
2008 compared to 2.7% of primary NIW in 2007
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Layered Risk PMI insures loans that may possess one or more of the above characteristics For

example as of December 31 2008

Approximately 2.5% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of Above-97s with FICO scores below

620

Approximately 0.2% of PMI primary risk in force consists of 2/28 Hybrid ARMs that are also

Above-97s

Approximately 0.3% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of 2/28 Hybrid ARMs with FICO

scores below 620

Approximately 2.4% of PMI primary risk in force consists of Alt-A loans that are also Above-97s

Approximately 3.1% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of interest only loans that are also

Above-97s

Approximately 0.1% of PMIs primary risk in force consists of interest only loans with FICO scores

below 620

This layering of risk further increases the risk of borrower default

Average Primary Loan Size As the table above shows our average insured loan size increased each

year since 2004 These increases were primarily caused by home price appreciation As of December 31

2008 the average primary loan size of PMIs California and Florida insured loans were $302198 and

$178709 respectively Because our premium rates are based in part upon the size of the insured loan

higher average
loan sizes favorably impact premiums written and earned Our obligation to an insured

with respect to claim is generally determined by multiplying the stated coverage percentage by the loss

amount which includes any unpaid principal and interest Accordingly higher insured loan balances

negatively affect our average
claim sizes In addition we have to hold more capital against larger

insured loan balances because they represent more risk which negatively impacts our capital position

The recently enacted economic stimulus legislation the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

2009 extended 2008 GSE maximum conforming loan limits from $417000 up $729750 for high cost

areas through 2009 This increase could cause our average loan size to increase in 2009

We believe that the decreases in Above-97 Alt-A and interest only loans as percentages of PMIs risk in

force and NIW in 2008 reflect the changes we made to our pricing and underwriting guidelines and reduced

concentrations of these types of loans as percentages of both the mortgage origination market and the private

mortgage insurance market in 2008 We generally charge higher premium rates on loans with higher expected

default and claim rates such as Above-97 Alt-A and interest only loans In 2008 the percentage of PMIs NIW

consisting of these loans decreased which caused PMI average premium rate in 2008 to decline There can be

no assurance that the premiums earned and the associated investment income will prove adequate to compensate

for future losses from these loans See Item Risk FactorsThe Premiums we charge for mortgage insurance

on insured loans and the associated investment income may not be adequate to compensate for future losses from

these loans
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The following table shows U.S primary risk in force by FICO score

1.8% 2.2% 2.1%

5.2% 5.9% 5.9%

30.8% 33.1% 34.7%

25.1% 25.1% 24.5%

36.1% 32.7% 1.5%

1.0% 1.0% 1.3%

100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Pool Risk in Force The following table shows components of PMI pool risk in force as of December 31

for the last five years

Percentage of Primary Risk

in Force by FICO Score

As of December 31

FICO Score

Less than 575

575619

620679

680719

720 and above

Unreported

Total

2008 2007 2006

Pool Risk in Force In millions

As of December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Modified Pool $2221.5 $2851.9 $2527.0 $1809.6 $1517.1

Old Pool 190.4 277.8 346.7 420.6 501.7

Other Traditional Pool 203.8 225.6 230.6 242.8 266.8

GSE Pool 106.7 109.0 112.2 116.0 122.2

Total Pool Risk in Force $2722.4 $3464.3 $3216.5 $2589.0 $2407.8
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Original Insurance In Force

Current Insurance In Force

Stop Loss Limit

Original Deductible Amount

Stop loss less original deductible amount

Risk In Force

Losses Applicable to Deductible

Current Deductible Balance

Claims Paid to Date

Average Loan Level Coverage Percent

Modified Pool with Deductibles by Book Year

20082 2007 2006 2005 2004 prior

In millions

$9056 $18913 $13234

$7716 $13231 6856

$273 636 367

81 135 78

192 501 289

192 501 289

35 34

78 99 44

N/A 24.0% 24.1% 25.2%

Original Insurance In Force

Current Insurance In Force

Stop Loss Limit

Claims Paid to Date

Stop loss less claims paid

Risk In Force

Average Loan Level Coverage Percent

As of December 31 2008

Modified Pool without Deductibles by Book Year

20082 20072 2006 2005 2004 Prior

In millions

8442 2577

4610 1411

317 54

21 10

296$ 44

296$ 44

N/A N/A 27.2% 24.6%

Some of our modified poo1 products are subject to deductibles and some are not The first table below

presents data for the portion of PMIs modified pooi portfolio that is subject to deductibles The second table

presents similardata for the portion of PMI modified poo1 portfolio that is not subject to deductibles The data

in the tables below are organized by book year the year in which the risk was written and represent in each case

the aggregate of modified pool transactions written during the applicable book year

$35500

7797

1315

266

1049

592

101

164

24.9%

$16375

2402

483

37

447

308

26.1%

Excludes one hybrid transaction in which PMI Guaranty Co also participated and for which PMI has established loss reserves

We did not enter into any modified pool without deductible transactions in the 2007 and 2008 book years In January 2008 PMI

received the final delivery of loans $4.1 million of modified pooi risk under 2007 modified pool with deductible transaction

Although this final delivery of loans was reported as NIW in 2008 the coverage effective date for all loans delivered under the

transaction was December 2007 As result we report the insurance in force for all loans in this transaction in the 2007 book year We

did not enter into any new modified pooi with deductible transactions in the 2008 book year
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The following two tables show the composition of PMIs modified pool portfolio by book year based upon

the effective date of coverage Because modified pool stop loss limits and deductibles operate across pool of

loans we show the composition of PMI modified pool portfolio in the tables below on an insurance in force

hF rather than risk in force basis The table immediately below shows the composition of the portion of

PMI modified pool portfolio that is subject to deductibles

Modified Pool with Deductibles by Book Year

As of December 31 2008

2004

2008 2007 2006 2005 Prior

Modified Pool with Deductibles hF

In millions 7716 13231 6856 7797

Credit Score as percentages of above IIF
Less than 575 N/A 1.8% 0.5% 0.1% 4.2%

575619 N/A 4.1% 1.1% 0.8% 9.0%

620679 N/A 35.0% 38.0% 24.3% 24.1%

680719 N/A 33.7% 33.6% 31.7% 188%

720 and above N/A 25.4% 26.8% 43.0% 43.9%

Loan Type as percentages of above hF

Fixed Rate N/A 93.8% 98.7% 81.6% 94.9%

ARMs N/A 6.2% 1.3% 18.4% 3.0%

2/28 Hybrid ARMs N/A 0.0% n.m n.m 0.0%

Specific Portfolio Characteristics as percentages of

above hF

Alt-A Loans N/A 65.8% 72.3% 69.4% 39.7%

Interest Only Loans N/A 42.6% 37.3% 37.4% 9.4%

California Loans N/A 19.4% 16.3% 18.1% 12.8%

Florida Loans N/A 9.9% 12.0% 13.0% 6.3%

Auto States Loans N/A 9.1% 9.4% 9.4% 13.3%

Above 97s N/A 9.4% 0.4% 0.6% 0.9%

Avg Loan Size N/A $204150 $187982 $175262 $124063

Avg LTV N/A 82% 79% 79% 75%

Avg FICO N/A 686 693 709 691

Specific portfolio characteristics are not necessarily mutually exclusive

Auto States include Michigan Indiana Ohio and Illinois

Total may not add to 100% due to unreported HCO scores

n.m Not material
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The table below shows the composition of the portion of PMIs modified pool portfolio that is not subject to

deductibles

Modified Pool without Deductibles by Book Year

As of December 31 2008

2004

2008 2007 2006 2005 Prior

Modified Pool without Deductibles hF

In millions 4610 1411 2402

Credit Score as percentages of above IIF
Less than 575 N/A N/A 7.9% 0.0% 0.4%

575619 N/A N/A 17.4% 0.4% 1.6%

620679 N/A N/A 43.9% 20.5% 33.6%

680719 N/A N/A 19.9% 29.5% 27.3%

720 and above N/A N/A 10.9% 48.5% 29.1%

Loan Type as percentages of above hF

Fixed Rate N/A N/A 37.8% 98.4% 89.1%

ARMs N/A N/A 61.8% 1.6% 8.6%

2/28 Hybrid ARMs N/A N/A 0.4% 0.0% 0.0%

Specific Portfolio Characteristics as percentages of

above hF

Above 97s N/A N/A 35.6% 0.1% 2.9%

Auto States Loans N/A N/A 15.9% 4.3% 6.4%

California Loans N/A N/A 11.7% 21.5% 20.6%

Florida Loans N/A N/A 10.2% 7.7% 7.5%

Alt-A Loans N/A N/A 7.9% 1.0% 73.7%

Interest Only Loans N/A N/A 7.1% 46.2% 6.7%

Avg Loan Size N/A N/A $157363 $196631 $126654

Avg LTV N/A N/A 93% 76% 78%

Avg FICO N/A N/A 650 718 694

Specific portfolio characteristics are not necessarily mutually exclusive

Auto States include Michigan Indiana Ohio and Illinois

Total may not equal 100% due to unreported FICO scores

We believe that the risk reduction features of our modified pool products which may include deductibles

and stop loss limits mitigate our risk of loss However even with these risk reduction features we are

experiencing accelerated and substantial loss development in our modified pool products as result of

deteriorating market conditions and exposure to Alt-A loans in our modified pool with deductible portfolio

Due to increases in pending delinquencies average loan amounts claim sizes claim rates and severity as of

December 31 2008 we established significant loss reserves with respect to modified pooi with deductibles

Our loss reserve balance for all pool loans increased from $78.8 million as of December 31 2007 to $261.6

million as of December 31 2008 primarily as result of increases to loss reserves on modified pool with

deductible insured loans See Section Defaults and ClaimsPool Claims below

Persistency Policy Cancellations significant percentage of PMIs premiums earned is generated by

insurance policies written in previous years Consequently the level of policy cancellations and resulting

length of time that insurance remains in force are key determinants of PMIs revenue and net income One

measure of the impact of policy cancellations on insurance in force is our persistency rate which is based

upon the percentage of primary insurance in force at the beginning of 12-month period that remains in force
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at the end of that period The following graph and table show average annual mortgage interest rates and

PMIs primary portfolio persistency rates from 1998 to 2008

Persistency and Interest rates

100.0% 10.0%

4-

40.0% 4.0%

20.0% 2.0%
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Persistency
--- -- Interest Rate

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

InterestRate 6.9% 7.4% 8.1% 7.0% 6.5% 5.8% 5.8% 5.9% 6.4% 6.3% 6.0%

Persistency Rate 68.0% 1.9% 80.3% 62.0% 56.2% 44.6% 60.9% 1.9% 69.6% 75.5% 82.2%

Average annual thirty-year fixed mortgage interest rate derived from Freddie Mac data

As shown by the above graph and table low or declining interest rate environments were major factors in

shortening the length of time our primary insurance in force has remained in effect Between 2001 and 2003

declining interest rates resulted in heavy mortgage refinance activity causing PMI policy cancellations to

increase thereby negatively impacting earned premiums during those years From 2004 through 2006 the

persistency rate increased partly as result of stabilizing or rising interest rates In addition to interest rates we

believe that refinance activity is influenced by levels of home price appreciation consumer behavior and the

availability of certain alternative loan products We believe that higher levels of home price appreciation between

2001 and 2006 and increasing consumer acceptance of refinance transactions and alternative loan products such

as interest only loans and payment option ARMs contributed to higher levels of refinance activity during those

years In 2007 and 2008 interest rates began to decline however fewer borrowers refinanced their loans

primarily as result of declining home prices and the diminished availability of loan products To the extent that

home prices continue to decline and residential mortgage refinance activity remains relatively low we expect

that PMI persistency rate will remain high

Under normal market conditions PMI would typically have favorable view of higher persistency rates

which stabilize PMI risk-in-force and premium income stream However in light of PMI capital constraints

higher persistency rates are further constraining PMIs capital position

Risk Management

Risk Management Approach

We utilize our loan level database in addition to proprietary and other statistical models to measure and

predict loan performance based on historical prepayment and loss experience We analyze performance based on

borrower loan and property characteristics along with geographic factors through historic economic and real
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estate cycles We use the results of our analysis of loan behavior in addition to economic and market conditions

to develop and refine how we price our coverage and in the establishment of national and regional underwriting

guidelines to control the concentrations of risk in PMI portfolio Historically in developing our guidelines we

took into account the GSEs eligibility criteria and generally would place mortgage insurance coverage on any

mortgage loan accepted by the GSEs automated underwriting systems In 2007 and 2008 in light of weakening

economic conditions we made significant changes to our underwriting guidelines Under these new guidelines

loan application must independently meet our underwriting guidelines to be eligible for mortgage insurance from

PMI regardless of whether such loan would be accepted by the GSEs automated underwriting systems for

purchase by the GSEs

We continually monitor risk concentrations in our portfolio using various statistical tools Among these are

the pmiAURAsm System and the PMI Market Risk Indexsm The pmiAURAsm System is proprietary risk scoring

tool we developed over 20 years ago that assigns unique risk score to each loan in PMIs portfolio

corresponding to the relative likelihood of an insured loan going to claim based on demographic geographic

economic and loan specific characteristics The PMI Market Risk Indexsm is proprietary statistical model that

predicts the probability of decline in home prices at the end of two years in the Metropolitan Statistical Areas

or MSAs in the United States based on local historical home price appreciation changes in the local labor

markets and local home affordability During 2008 as part of our normal review process we revised and added

to certain attributes of the model to adapt it to changes in the housing market

Recent Underwriting Guidelines and Pricing Changes

We review PMI portfolio and underwriting guidelines on an on-going basis and in light of economic

housing and mortgage market conditions From late 2006 through 2007 we eliminated coverage of 2/28 Hybrid

ARMs and refined PMI pricing and underwriting policies in PMI primary structured finance channel In the

third and fourth quarters of 2007 we amended certain PMI lender paid policies to eliminate coverage of

Above-97s and Alt-A loans under our lender-paid mortgage insurance agreements and instituted tighter

underwriting guidelines and raised our rates for coverage of Above-97 loans in our borrower-paid flow channel

Throughout 2008 based on our ongoing reviews and negative economic conditions we implemented new pricing

and number of guideline changes designed to reduce and/or eliminate our exposure
in future NIW to certain

riskier loan attributes Among other guideline changes in 2008 we eliminated coverage of Alt-A Above-97 and

payment-option ARM loan products In addition we no longer offer mortgage insurance coverage of loans

secured by investment properties Further we imposed maximum borrower debt-to-income ratios and we

tightened our underwriting guidelines applicable to high balance loans those with balances exceeding $417000

To further reduce NIW to address capital constraints we continued tightening our underwriting guidelines in

February 2009 by eliminating coverage
of loans with LTVs exceeding 95% and cash-out refinance transactions

among other things

In the first quarter of 2008 we instituted Distressed Markets Policy with loan-to-value and loan product

limitations on loans originated in certain distressed markets Under our current Distressed Markets Policy for

those areas principally metropolitan statistical areas MSAs that are designated as distressed PMI caps the

maximum insured loan-to-value ratio at 90% and prescribes additional limiting criteria and underwriting

guidelines for certain property types and loan purposes PMI distressed markets list is reviewed and updated on

quarterly basis or as needed depending on our on-going assessment of the market

PMI NIW was lower in 2008 than 2007 due in large part to these initiatives We expect PMI NIW to be

lower in 2009 than 2008 in part because of these guideline changes and limitations

Underwriting Process

To obtain mortgage insurance on an individual mortgage loan customer submits an application to us If

the loan is approved for mortgage insurance we issue commitment to the customer Our advanced technology
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enables us to offer customers the option of electronic submission of applications and supporting documentation

as well as electronic receipt of insurance commitments and certificates Customer use of our electronic delivery

options accounted for approximately 83% of PMIs new policies issued in the primary flow channel in 2008

More than 86% of PMIs flow NIW is underwritten pursuant to delegated underwriting program that

allows approved lenders subject to periodic quality-control audits to determine whether loans meet program

guidelines and are thus eligible for mortgage insurance Delegated underwriting enables us to meet mortgage

lenders demands for immediate insurance coverage of certain loans If PMI determines that lender

participating in the program commits us to insure loan that fails to meet all of the approved underwriting

guidelines subject to certain exceptions PMI has the right to exclude or rescind the coverage on the loan PMI

may also suspend or terminate the insureds delegated authority to extend coverage to new loans if it determines

that the insured has not been complying with approved underwriting guidelines In 2008 as result of significant

variance from our quality control standards we terminated the right of several customers to participate in the

delegated underwriting program Flow customers who are not approved to participate in the delegated program

generally must submit to us an application for each loan supported by various documents sufficient to satisfy

applicable underwriting guidelines

Contract Underwriting

On March 12 2009 we announced that we will discontinue offering contract underwriting services

provided by our wholly-owned subsidiary PMI Mortgage Services Co or MSC MSC performed contract

underwriting services on mortgage loans for which PMI provided mortgage insurance and on mortgage loans for

which PM did not provide insurance MSC also provided the contract underwriting activities of CMG New

insurance policies processed by MSC contract underwriters in 2008 were 11.0% of PMI primary NIW

compared to 10.8% in 2007 and 14.8% in 2006 The number of contract underwriters utilized by MSC decreased

in 2008 and MSCs contract underwriting activities had declined as result of lower levels of mortgage

originations and decline in requests for contract underwriting services

As part of its contract underwriting services MSC provided to its customers monetary and other remedies

including loan indemnifications under certain circumstances in the event that MSC failed to properly underwrite

mortgage loan These remedies are separate from the insurance coverage provided by PMI Contract

underwriting remedies were $4.8 million in 2008 compared to $7.1 million and $12.4 million in 2007 and 2006

respectively The amount of contract underwriting remedies paid by MSC in 2008 decreased from prior periods

primarily as result of reduction in the number of contract underwritten loans in the last several years MSC

may still be obligated to pay remedies in the future even though it has ceased providing contract underwriting

services

Defaults and Claims

Defaults Our claims
process begins with notification by the insured or servicer to us of default on an

insured loan Default is defined in primary master policies as the borrowers failure to pay when due an

amount equal to the scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the mortgage Generally the

master policies require an insured to notify us of default no later than the last business day of the month

following the month in which the borrower becomes three monthly payments in default For reporting and

internal tracking purposes we do not consider loan to be in default for the purposes of reporting defaults and

default rates until borrower has failed to pay two regularly scheduled payments Depending upon its scheduled

payment date when borrower fails to make two consecutive payments the loan default could be reported to us

between the 31St and 60th day after the first missed payment due date Borrowers default for variety of reasons

including reduction of income unemployment divorce illness inability to manage credit rising interest rate

levels and declining home prices 2008 PMs primary default inventory increased as result of number of

factors including declining home prices higher rates of unemployment diminished availability of loan products

and higher than expected levels of default on Above 97 Alt-A and Interest-only loans
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PMI audits and/or investigates early payment default loans loans that default prior to the thirteenth payment

or EPDs and may also audit and/or investigate certain non-EPD loans for misrepresentations negligence

negligent underwriting and eligibility for coverage In 2008 we allocated additional resources to our

investigations unit to ensure the timely review and investigation of loans and as result the number of rescinded

loans substantially increased in 2008 and is expected to remain high in 2009 See Item lA Risk FactorsThe

U.S mortgage insurance industry and PMI are subject to litigation risk

Borrowers may cure defaults by making all of the delinquent loan payments or by selling the property in full

satisfaction of all amounts due under the mortgage The rate at which defaults cure the cure rate is influenced

by borrowers financial resources regional housing and economic conditions such as unemployment rates and

recently the speed with which loan servicers process delinquencies or engage in other loss mitigation efforts

Because PMI loss reserves are based upon its default inventory delinquent loans that cure are no longer

included in PMI loss reserves PMI cure rate declined in 2008 as result of among other things diminished

refinancing opportunities as result of declining home prices and unavailability of certain loan products higher

rates of unemployment and other economic conditions and slowdown in the time to resolve defaults either

through cure or claim payment attributable to significant backlogs in workout activity by loan servicers The

decline in PMI cure rate has been partially offset by PMI loss mitigation efforts and by increased rescissions

of insurance written in prior periods

In response to the increase in PMI delinquent loans changing market conditions and increased pressure on

loan servicers in late 2007 PM formed the Homeownership Preservation Initiatives HPI department to

facilitate the mounting volume of retention workout requests such as repayment plans and loan modifications

which enable borrowers to cure their defaults and reinstate their loans The HP department facilitates loan

servicer efforts by providing enhanced delegation the placement of PM loss mitigation staff on-site within loan

servicers offices servicer staff training and additional resources to supplement loan workout strategies on PMI

insured loans In early 2008 HPI also began direct outreach to delinquent borrowers on insured loans to educate

them about workout options and to hasten loan workout discussions with their loan servicers to design workout

plans to help cure their defaults PMs HP team supplements loan servicers outreach efforts through the use of

our own loss mitigation professionals through the engagement of specialty vendors non-profit housing

counseling agencies and through our participation in community outreach events including HOPE NOW

homeownership preservation forums

Claims and Policy Servicing As result of the portion of delinquent loans that cure the frequency of

claims is not directly proportional to the number of defaults we receive In most cases however defaults that are

not cured result in claims Whether an uncured default leads to claim principally depends on the borrowers

equity in the underlying property at the time of default and the borrowers or the insureds ability to sell the home

for an amount sufficient to satisfy all amounts due under the mortgage loan When the likelihood of defaulted

loan being reinstated is minimal we work with the servicer to explore the possibility of liquidation workout

such as pre-foreclosure sale or early disposal of the underlying property usually in an amount less than what is

owed or deed in lieu where the borrower conveys title to the lender in satisfaction of their debt both

avoiding the lengthy foreclosure process Such liquidation workouts result in reduction in our losses compared

to the percentage coverage option amount payable under PMI master policies

Within 60 days after valid primary insurance claim and supporting documentation have been filed we

have the option of

paying the coverage percentage specified in the certificate of insurance multiplied by the loss amount

in the event the property is sold pursuant to an agreement made prior to or during the 60-day period after

the claim is filed which we refer to as prearranged sale paying the lesser of 100% of the loss

amount less the proceeds of sale of the property or ii the specified coverage percentage multiplied by

the loss amount or
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paying 100% of the loss amount in exchange for the insureds conveyance to us of good and marketable

title to the property with us then selling the property for our own account Properties acquired under this

option are included on PMIs balance sheet in other assets as residential properties from claim

settlements also referred to as real estate owned or REO

While we select the claim settlement option that best mitigates the amount of our claim payment we

generally pay the coverage percentage multiplied by the loss amount At December 31 2008 our carrying value

which approximates fair value of REO properties was $4.8 million compared to $20.3 million at December 31

2007 and $26.9 million at December 31 2006

Primary Claim Sizes and Severity The severity of an individual claim is calculated as the ratio of the

claim paid to the original risk in force relating to the loan The main determinants of the severity of claim are

the value of the underlying property accrued interest on the loan expenses
advanced by the insured foreclosure

expenses the time required to complete foreclosure which varies by state and the amount of mortgage

insurance coverage placed on the loan Pre-foreclosure sales acquisitions and other early workout efforts

including those described above help to reduce overall claim severity In 2008 we processed 10.9% of the paid

primary insurance claims on the basis of prearranged sale compared to 20.0% and 22.9% in 2007 and 2006

respectively In 2008 we exercised the option to acquire the property on 0.2% of the primary claims processed

for payment compared to 2.4% and 4.6% for 2007 and 2006 respectively

PMI average primary claim severity is for given period primary claims paid as percentage of the total

risk in force of primary loans for which claims were paid The increase in
average primary claim severity in 2008

shown in the table below reflects the deterioration of the mortgage housing and credit markets as well as other

factors including declining home prices higher coverage levels delays in delinquency and claim resolutions and

the related decline in early workout opportunities Because severity reflects regional as well as national market

conditions PMIs average primary claim severity varies from region to region The table below shows
average

primary claim severity by region for the years 2005 through 2008 In 2008 severity worsened in
every region

with the most significant increases in the Mid-Atlantic and Northeast regions where average primary claim

severity increased by 15.3 percentage points and 15.1 percentage points respectively from their 2007 levels

Average Primary Claim Severity

2008 2007 2006 2005

Region

GreatLakes 105.2% 104.4% 101.7% 99.7%

Mid-Atlantic 91.1% 75.8% 71.5% 75.6%

New England 94.8% 90.6% 76.9% 58.3%

North Central 98.7% 93.8% 86.1% 83.0%

Northeast5 98.1% 83.0% 84.2% 81.2%

Pacific 95.7% 88.2% 53.5% 61.8%

Plains 93.5% 92.9% 88.2% 87.8%

South Central 1.9% 87.7% 80.6% 82.5%

Southeast9 92.1% 87.2% 83.0% 86.9%

Average Primary Claim Severity U.S 95.6% 91.5% 86.1% 86.1%

Includes Indiana Kentucky Michigan and Ohio

Includes Delaware Maryland Virginia Washington D.C and West Virginia

Includes Connecticut Maine Massachusetts New Hampshire Rhode Island and Vermont

Includes Illinois Minnesota Missouri and Wisconsin

Includes New Jersey New York and Pennsylvania

Includes California Hawaii Nevada Oregon and Washington Alaska and Guam

Includes Idaho Iowa Kansas Montana Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota and Wyoming

Includes Arizona Colorado Louisiana New Mexico Oklahoma Texas and Utah

Includes Alabama Arkansas Florida Georgia Mississippi North Carolina South Carolina Tennessee and Puerto Rico
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The table below sets out by channel primary claims paid which does not include changes in loss reserves

Primary Claims Paid for the Year

Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Flow Channel $483988 $222273 $161562

Structured Finance Channel 288355 104144 55853

Other 29392 3230 3384
Total Primary Claims paid $742951 $329647 $214031

Includes supplemental payments and reversals including $34.0 million recovered from certain terminated captive trust accounts during

2008 which reduces the total claims paid

Primary Default Rates by Region Primary default rates and claim activity differ from region to region in

the United States depending upon economic conditions and cyclical growth patterns PMIs default rates are

calculated by dividing the number of insured loans in default in the particular portfolio by the total number of

policies in force in that portfolio Declining home prices particularly in California and Florida and weak

economic conditions in California have negatively affected PMIs default rates in those states The two tables

below set forth primary default rates by region for the various regions of the United States and the ten largest

states by PMIs primary risk in force Default rates are shown by region based on location of the underlying

property

Percent of

Primary
Risl Primary Default Rates by Region

December31
as of December 31

2008 2008 2007 2006

Region

Pacific 15.34% 17.24% 7.16% 2.98%

New England 4.38% 10.47% 6.44% 4.27%

Northeast3 10.42% 11.70% 7.26% 5.51%

South Central 16.98% 10.93% 6.14% 5.21%

Mid-Atlantic 6.39% 12.12% 5.96% 3.39%

Great Lakes 9.10% 14.85% 11.23% 8.86%

Southeast 24.36% 17.88% 9.00% 5.74%

North Central 10.05% 13.32% 7.99% 5.60%

Plains 2.98% 8.80% 5.74% 4.57%

Total Primary Portfolio 100.00% 14.12% 7.93% 5.55%

Includes California Hawaii Nevada Oregon and Washington Alaska and Guam

Includes Connecticut Maine Massachusetts New Hampshire Rhode Island and Vermont

Includes New Jersey New York and Pennsylvania

Includes Arizona Colorado Louisiana New Mexico Oklahoma Texas and Utah

Includes Delaware Maryland Virginia Washington D.C and West Virginia

Includes Indiana Kentucky Michigan and Ohio

Includes Alabama Arkansas Florida Georgia Mississippi North Carolina South Carolina Tennessee and Puerto Rico

Includes Illinois Minnesota Missouri and Wisconsin

Includes Idaho Iowa Kansas Montana Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota and Wyoming
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Primary Default Rates for Top Ten

Percent of States by Primary Risk in Force

Primary Risk in
Default Rates

December31
as of December 31

2008 2008 2007 2006

Florida
10.3% 27.79% 10.56% 3.44%

California
8.0% 24.68% 10.92% 3.56%

Texas 7.3% 9.44% 6.03% 5.63%

Illinois
5.2% 14.80% 8.19% 5.58%

Georgia
4.7% 14.62% 9.50% 7.86%

NewYork 3.9% 11.27% 6.78% 5.40%

Ohio 3.8% 13.50% 10.83% 8.79%

Pennsylvania
3.3% 10.75% 7.47% 6.00%

New Jersey
3.2% 14.17% 7.53% 4.62%

Washington 3.1% 8.15% 3.58% 2.76%

lop ten states as determined by primary risk in force as of December 31 2008

Primary Default Rates by Channel and Loan Characteristics As discussed in Section Business

Composition above certain borrower and loan characteristics increase the risk on average of loan delinquency

and ultimate claims Insured loans in PMIs portfolio may contain one more than one or none of the loan

characteristics identified above and in the table below The following table shows default rates for PMI flow

and structured finance channels and for loans that contain certain of the characteristics identified by PMI as

having heightened risk

Primary Default Rates as of

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Flow Channel

Loan Type
Alt-A Loans 30.0% 11.6% 4.6%

Less-than-A Quality
30.4% 18.6% 16.8%

Above 97s 18.3% 8.8% 5.9%

ARMs 32.8% 15.1% 7.0%

2/28 Hybrid ARMs

Payment option ARMs 38.9% 14.5% 3.7%

Interest Only 28.2% 9.6% 3.0%

Total Flow Channel 13.0% 6.7% 4.8%

Structured Finance Channel

Loan Type
Alt-A Loans 32.4% 20.8% 7.8%

Less-than-A Quality
1.6% 23.6% 23.2%

Above 97s 1.1% 10.2% 9.2%

ARMs excluding 2/28 Hybrid ARMs 30.4% 16.4% 14.1%

2/28 Hybrid ARMs 48.5% 38.6% 16.0%

Payment option ARMs

Interest Only
30.1% 15.9% 5.0%

Total Structured Finance Channel 20.7% 13.9% 9.9%
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30.6%

30.8%

18.3%

32.0%

48.5%

38.9%

28.6%

14.1%

13.9%

20.2%

9.1%

15.5%

38.6%

14.5%

11.0%

7.9%

5.7%

19.0%

6.6%

8.5%

16.0%

3.7%

3.7%

5.6%

The higher default rates exhibited by PMIs structured finance channel are primarily the result of larger

concentration of loans insured through that channel that have layered risk characteristics

Primary Default Rates and the Aging of PMIs Insurance Portfolio Default and claims activity are not

spread evenly throughout the coverage period of primary insurance book of business Based upon our

experience we generally expect the majority of default and claims activity on insured loans in PMI current

portfolio to occur in the second through fourth
years

after loan origination Primary insurance written from the

period of January 2005 through December 31 2007 represented 8.9% of PMI primary insurance in force at

December 31 2008 The table below which sets out default rates by book year shows that PMI has experienced

adverse and accelerated delinquency development in its 2005 2006 2007 and 2008 insured loan portfolios

Book Year

2002 and prior

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

Total

Percent of Primary
PM Average Risk in Force as of

Fixed Rate December 31 2008

7.72% 6.9%

6.00% 8.4%

6.15% 9.0%

6.31% 13.2%

7.10% 16.9%

7.17% 29.6%

6.37% 16.0%

100.0%

2008 2007

12.3% 9.7%

9.6% 6.4%

11.4% 7.8%

16.0% 96%

21.2% 10.8%

18.3% 5.1%

3.9%

14.1% 7.9%

Primary Default Rates as of

December 31

2008 2007 2006

Total Primary

Loan Type
Alt-A Loans

Less-than-A Quality

Above 97s

ARMs excluding 2/28 Hybrid ARMs
2/28 Hybrid ARMs

Payment option ARMs

Interest Only

Total Primary

Loan types are not mutually exclusive

Default Rates

Average PMI fixed annual mortgage interest rate

2006 2005 2004

9.5% 10.7% 9.2%

5.3% 5.1% 3.1%

5.9% 4.7% 1.6%

4.9% 2.3%

2.5%

5.6% 5.7% 4.9%
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The following table sets forth for each of the
years 2006 2007 and 2008 the dispersion of PMI losses and

loss adjustment expenses by book year Losses and loss adjustment expenses represent claims paid certain

expenses related to default notification and claim processing and changes to loss reserves during the applicable

year

Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
For the year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

Book Year

2002 and prior 64629 76327 49917

2003 79310 72104 46182

2004 142950 119522 56605

2005 324842 262247 71758

2006 555607 349265 38575

2007 580516 216628

2008 87866

Total $1835720 $1096093 $263037

Pool Claims Pool claims are generally filed after the underlying property is sold We settle pool claim

in accordance with the terms of the applicable pool insurance policy which includes stop loss limit and in

some cases specified deductible Subject to such stop loss limit and any deductible our modified pool

insurance generally covers specified percentage of the particular loss less net proceeds from the sale of the

property and
any primary claim proceeds Our traditional pool insurance generally covers 100% of the loss less

net proceeds from the sale of the property and any primary claim proceeds Other poo1 insurance policies may
include maximum coverage percentage or defined benefit Claims relating to policies with maximum

coverage percentage are settled at the lesser of the actual loss or the maximum coverage set forth in the

applicable policy Claims relating to policies with defined benefits are settled at the maximum coverage

percentage set forth in the applicable policy We settle pool claims upon receipt of all supporting documentation

Pool insurance claims paid by PMI in 2008 increased to $55.2 million from $21.0 million in 2007

Mod Wed Pool Performance The tables ModWed Pool with Deductibles by Book Year and Modified

Pool without Deductibles by Book Year in Section above summarize the loss development of PM
modified pool portfolio Those tables show that as of December 31 2008 PM paid $68 million in claims on its

non-deductible modified poo1 portfolio Our modified pool portfolios are aging under severe economic

conditions and certain deductibles on individual transactions were pierced in December 2008 and we expect

additional deductibles to be pierced in 2009 As result PM expects its claim payments on modified pool

products will significantly increase in 2009 In addition in 2008 due to increases in pending delinquencies and

higher average
loan amounts claim rates claim sizes and severity we established significant loss reserves with

respect to our modified pool with deductible portfolio

Loss Reserves

period of time may elapse between the occurrence of the borrowers default on mortgage payments the

event triggering potential future claim payment the reporting of such default to us and the eventual payment

of the claim related to such default To recognize the liability for unpaid losses related to loans in default PM in

accordance with industry practice establishes loss reserves in respect of loans in default based upon the

estimated claim rate and estimated average
claim amount of loans in default Included in loss reserves are loss

adjustment expense LAE reserves and incurred but not reported IBNR reserves BNR reserves represent

our estimated unpaid losses on loans that are in default but have not yet been reported to us as delinquent by our

customers Loss reserves are estimates and there can be no assurance that PMIs reserves will prove to be

adequate to cover ultimate loss developments on reported defaults Consistent with industry accounting practices
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PMI does not establish loss reserves for estimated potential defaults that have not occurred but that may occur in

the future For full discussion of our loss reserving policy and process see Item Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsCritical Accounting Estimates Reserves for

Losses and LAE For reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses

on consolidated basis see Item Financial Statements and Supplementary DataNote Reserve for Losses

and Loss Adjustment Expenses LAE

The table below shows PMI total risk in force and loss reserves as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Risk In Force and Loss Reserves

as of December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Total Primary and Pool Risk In Force $33327248 $34431473 $28927051

Gross Loss Reserves by Book Year

2002 and prior

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
__________ __________ __________

Total Loss Reserves

The higher loss reserve balance for 2008 shown in the table above reflects among other factors accelerated

delinquency development of the 2007 book and significant additions to reserves in 2008 for the 2005 and 2006

book
years

both as result of increasingly higher delinquency and claim rates higher claim severity and

slowdown in delinquency resolution The additions to reserves for the 2008 book year reflect higher than

expected delinquencies on loans insured during early 2008 primarily under 2007 commitments and prior to our

implementation of tighter underwriting guidelines and pricing changes

Loan Performance

The table below shows cumulative losses paid by PMI at the end of the year of original policy issuance

policy year and each successive year thereafter expressed as percentage of the cumulative premiums

written on such policies

137136

118672

166420

406224

774871

928065

117987

87713

119017

238077

345918

224368

103053

65107

76606

83339

38077

366182

93116

2624504 1133080
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Percentage of Cumulative Primary Insurance Losses Paid Gross

To Cumulative Primary Insurance Premiums Written Gross

Policy Issue Year Loan Closing Year

Year 1980 1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994

11.8 23.3 38.1 14.8 9.8 4.5 1.5 0.4 0.1 0.3 0.7 0.8 1.1 1.0 1.0

39.2 90.4 112.1 47.3 44.0 18.7 5.2 2.0 2.0 3.6 7.1 6.6 6.9 5.5 6.5

74.2 139.3 166.3 83.0 83.1 35.2 8.7 5.1 6.1 10.8 17.8 16.9 16.3 13.4 13.7

95.5 168.3 180.9 129.3 114.3 47.4 12.2 9.7 11.6 21.9 31.7 28.9 28.3 18.7 18.0

100.8 168.0 229.6 165.9 127.1 56.4 15.6 13.1 18.5 32.4 41.8 39.8 36.1 21.1 20.1

90.8 184.8 251.0 177.5 135.9 60.7 18.5 17.5 23.1 40.3 50.5 47.4 40.3 21.9 20.9

98.5 197.3 265.4 184.6 139.3 63.0 21.3 20.7 26.2 45.7 56.2 51.3 41.5 22.0 21.3

107.8 203.6 265.7 187.7 141.9 65.0 24.1 23.0 29.1 49.6 59.2 52.7 41.3 21.8 21.3

10 111.4 205.6 264.4 189.8 142.6 65.3 25.8 25.1 31.5 51.7 60.9 52.6 41.1 21.6 21.3

11 113.0 207.1 263.8 191.0 142.9 65.9 27.4 26.5 33.6 52.8 61.4 52.7 41.0 21.7 21.4

12 114.1 208.8 264.4 191.3 142.6 65.8 28.4 27.8 34.6 53.1 61.4 52.7 41.0 21.7 21.4

13 114.6 208.9 263.3 191.1 142.1 65.8 28.8 28.4 35.0 53.3 61.4 52.6 41.0 21.7 21.4

14 115.0 209.8 262.2 190.6 141.7 65.9 29.0 28.6 35.2 53.3 61.4 52.6 41.0 21.6 21.4

15 115.1 209.5 261.5 190.1 141.5 66.0 29.1 28.5 35.2 53.2 61.4 52.6 41.0 21.6 21.4

16 115.3 209.2 260.8 189.8 141.3 66.0 29.1 28.5 35.2 53.2 61.5 52.6 41.0 21.7

17 115.5 208.9 260.4 189.5 141.0 66.0 29.1 28.6 35.2 53.2 61.5 52.6 41.0

18 115.5 208.5 259.8 189.5 140.9 66.0 29.1 28.6 35.2 53.2 61.5 52.7

19 115.5 208.1 259.6 189.5 140.8 66.0 29.1 28.5 35.2 53.2 61.5

20 115.4 208.1 259.6 189.4 140.8 66.0 29.1 28.5 35.2 53.2

21 115.4 208.0 259.5 189.5 140.7 65.9 29.1 28.5 35.2

22 115.3 208.0 259.5 189.5 140.7 65.9 29.1 28.5

23 115.3 208.0 259.5 189.4 140.6 65.9 29.1

24 115.3 208.0 258.6 189.5 140.5 65.9

25 115.3 206.6 258.1 189.5 140.5

26 114.5 206.3 258.1 189.5

27 114.0 206.3 258.1

28 114.0 206.3

29 114.0

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

0.1 0.1 1.2 1.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.2 0.1

2.8 2.9 2.3 1.2 2.7 10.2 6.6 4.5 2.8 3.9 4.9 11.3 14.9

10.4 8.3 5.8 3.8 5.9 21.8 22.5 14.5 8.9 12.3 22.2 56.8

15.4 11.9 8.7 5.7 8.6 35.2 34.1 23.3 13.9 21.2 60.0

18.2 14.2 10.4 6.7 11.1 43.0 42.0 27.7 17.4 30.8

19.2 15.3 11.1 7.7 12.7 48.0 45.8 30.5 20.5

20.1 15.8 11.9 8.3 13.9 50.3 47.9 32.5

20.3 16.1 12.4 8.8 14.4 51.7 49.1

20.4 16.3 12.8 9.0 14.7 52.3

10 20.5 16.5 13.0 92 15.0

11 20.6 16.6 13.0 9.4

12 20.7 16.7 13.2

13 20.8 16.8

14 20.9

Gross premiums written has not been reduced by ceded and refunded premiums

The above table shows that the cumulative loss ratios for all policy years through 1998 did not change by

any material amount from the end of 2007 which indicates that these ratios have stabilized and reached their
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ultimate development for each of these policy years Policy year 1999 also has seen only slight claims

development since the end of 2007

The table shows that performance of policies originally issued in the years 1980 through 1984 was adverse

with cumulative loss ratios ranging from 114.0% to 258.1% at the end of 2008 Such adverse experience was

significantly impacted by deteriorating economic and real estate market conditions in the Oil Patch states in the

1980s In 1985 PMI adopted substantially more conservative underwriting standards which we believe along

with increased premium rates and generally improving economic conditions contributed to the lower cumulative

loss ratios in subsequent years

Policy years 1985 through 1992 have developed to cumulative loss ratios between 28.5% and 65.9%

reflecting higher levels of claims on California loans insured in those years as well as higher prepayment speeds

when market rates dropped to relatively low levels from late 1992 through early 1994 Loss ratios declined

year-to-year from 1993 and bottomed out at 9.4% at the end of eleven years
for the 1998 policy year record

low The declines were due to an improvement in Californias economy and strong national economy with no

material regional weaknesses The 1999 policy year is developing at level slightly higher than 1998 but still at

low levels Given the small amount of business left in the 1996 through 1999 books further development is

expected to be immaterial

The higher levels of claims in the 2000 and 2001 policy years were result of an expansion into less-than-A

quality and Alt-A loan product offerings primarily through the introduction of our structured finance channel

These loan types generally had shorter lives and earlier incidences of default than quality loans leading to

earlier emergence of claims and shorter streams of premium income In addition our quality business written

in 2000 and 2001 was subject to high levels of policy cancellations in 2003 due to low interest rates and heavy

refinancing These policy cancellations decreased the accumulated premium received from the 2000 and 2001

policy years affecting the cumulative loss ratio development by increasing the ratio of claims paid to premiums

received

The 2002 book year is developing favorably compared to 2000 and 2001 due to lower level of claims

2003 is performing favorably compared to 2002 due to lower levels of claims and higher persistency 2004 has

higher cumulative loss ratio development at four and five years than 2003 due to higher claims development and

comparable persistency Book years 2005 through 2007 experienced progressively higher loss ratios primarily

due to higher claim rates and claim severity associated with the sustained weakness in the residential mortgage

and housing markets as well as result of riskier loan products that have sustained higher levels of losses In

particular the cumulative loss ratio from book year 2007 reflects significant exposure to insurance written on

Alt-A loans as well as loans with high LTVs with greater exposure to home price declines The 2008 book year is

still in its early stages of development and the loss ratio of 0.1 in its first year is due to earlier than expected

losses on loans insured during the first quarter of 2008 primarily under 2007 commitments and prior to our

implementation of tighter underwriting guidelines and pricing changes

Multicultural MarketsExpanding Homeownership

Expanding homeownership opportunities for low- to moderate-income individuals first-time home buyers

and typically underserved communities is important to us We believe that some insured affordable housing loans

may carry higher risks than other insured loans An important and ongoing initiative has been to establish

partnerships with numerous national and community organizations in order to mitigate credit risk on these loans

and promote community revitalization We have strong affiliations with major organizations such as AREAA

Asian Real Estate Association of America NAHREP National Association of Hispanic Real Estate

Professionals NAREB National Association of Real Estate BrokersRealtist NHC National Housing

Conference National NCLR National Council of La Raza LULAC League of United Latin American

Citizens NeighborWorks America and others
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Additionally through education and outreach our goal is to ensure that borrowers have thorough

understanding of the responsibilities and challenges of homeownership As result we have instituted various

programs that utilize pre- and post-purchase borrower counseling to increase the likelihood of successful

homeownership

Reinsurance

Reinsurance does not discharge PM as the primary insurer from liability to policyholder The

reinsurance company indemnifies PMI for the reinsurance companys share of losses incurred under specific

insurance policies unlike an assumption and novation agreement where the assuming reinsurance companys

liability to the policyholder is substituted for that of PMI PMI reinsurance arrangements include captive

reinsurance both excess-of-loss XOL and quota-share and other reinsurance structures as well as reinsurance

agreements with affiliates to comply with state statutory requirements

Captive Reinsurance

Mortgage insurers including PM offer products to lenders that are designed to allow them to participate in

the risks and rewards of the mortgage insurance business Many of the major mortgage lenders have established

affiliated captive reinsurance companies Under captive reinsurance agreement PM reinsures portion of its

risk written on loans originated by certain lender with the captive reinsurance company affiliated with such

lender In return commensurate amount of PMIs
gross premiums received is ceded to the captive reinsurance

company less in some instances ceding commission paid to us for underwriting and administering the

business

Ceded premiums as well as capital deposits required of the captive reinsurer are held in bankruptcy-

remote trust for PMIs benefit to secure the payment of potential future claims Captive reinsurers must comply

with applicable insurance regulations and must adhere to minimum capital requirements which consider only

eligible assets held in trust specifically for our benefit If at the end of predetermined reporting periods the value

of assets in the trust is less than that required under the minimum capital requirement the captive reinsurer must

deposit additional amounts into the trust account If captive reinsurer does not meet its capital deposit

obligations the agreement will either be placed into run-off or commuted according to its express terms or by

mutual agreement of the parties in which case PMI would reassume the ceded risk and recover all trust assets

Dividends from the trust accounts are only permissible once specified capital ratios are exceeded and then

only to the extent of such excess For example with respect to XOL arrangements only amounts held in the trust

that exceed 20% of the ceded risk may be dividended to the captive In addition to adherence to dividend capital

ratios some captive reinsurance agreements prohibit any dividends until book years have been reinsured for

minimum time period typically three years Because captive trust assets are not segregated by book or policy

year ceded premiums deposited into trust in one year may be used to pay claims on policies reinsured by the

captive in prior or later book years As of December 31 2008 assets in captive trust accounts held for the benefit

of PM totaled approximately $860.1 million Due to the run-off and commutation of certain captive reinsurance

agreements during the third and fourth quarters of 2008 as well as expected future claim payments in 2009 and

given that PMI is no longer seeking reinsurance under XOL captive reinsurance agreements as discussed below

we do not anticipate that the aggregate amount of assets held for the benefit of PM in captive trust accounts will

increase in 2009

PMI captive reinsurance agreements primarily provide for XOL reinsurance in which PMI retains first

loss position on defined set of mortgage insurance risk reinsures second loss layer of this risk with the

captive reinsurance company and retains the remaining risk above the second loss layer In the first quarter of

2008 the GSEs eligibility requirements for approved mortgage insurers were temporarily amended with respect

to business written on or after June 2008 to prohibit cessions of gross risk or gross premium cedes greater than

25% to captive reinsurers On September 29 2008 PMI announced that effective January 2009 it would no

longer seek reinsurance under XOL captive reinsurance agreements on new business On that date in-force XOL
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contracts were placed into run-off and will mature pursuant to the existing terms and conditions PMI will

however continue to consider quota share captive reinsurance arrangements under which the captive reinsurance

company assumes pro rata share of all losses in return for pro rata share of the premiums collected less

ceding commission

Captive reinsurance agreements mitigate catastrophic losses in times of economic stress In addition certain

rating agency capital models recognize the trust balances of the captive reinsurers and thus also recognize the

reinsurance value and transfer of risk associated with captive reinsurance Typically only flow Borrower Paid MI

is subject to captive reinsurance agreements The captive reinsurance agreements must comply with both federal

and state statutes and regulations including the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974 as well as criteria

established by the GSEs

In 2008 we received $12.9 million in claim payments from captive trusts We expect this amount to

increase substantially in 2009 See Item 1A Risk FactorsThe U.S mortgage insurance industry and PMI are

subject to regulatory risk and have been subject to increased scrutiny by insurance and other regulatory

authorities and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

OperationsU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Premiums written and earned below

Other Reinsurance

We are currently reviewing our reinsurance strategies with regard to capital and risk management including

potentially seeking quota-share reinsurance coverage other than existing quota-share captive reinsurance

arrangements on future insurance writings in 2009 and beyond See Item 1A Risk FactorsCapital and

Liquidity Constraints

Reinsurance with Affiliates

Certain states limit the amount of risk mortgage insurer may retain on single loan to 25% of the

indebtedness to the insured and as result the portion of such insurance in excess of 25% deep coverage

must be reinsured To minimize reliance on third party reinsurance companies and to permit PMI to retain the

premiums and related risk on deep coverage business The PMI Group our parent company formed several

wholly-owned subsidiaries including PMI Reinsurance Co or PRC Residential Insurance Co or RIC and PMI

Mortgage Guaranty Co or PMG to provide reinsurance of such deep coverage to PMI These deep cede

reinsurance agreements with PRC PMG and RIC replaced reciprocal deep cede reinsurance agreements
that PMI

had with certain non-affiliate mortgage insurance companies which have now largely run off Prior to 2008

Residential Guaranty Co now known as PMI Insurance Co or PlC also provided such reinsurance to PMI

PMI uses reinsurance provided by its reinsurance affiliates solely for purposes of compliance with statutory

coverage limits CMG MI also uses reinsurance provided by its reinsurance affiliate CMG Reinsurance

Company to comply with statutory limits

10 Regulation

State Regulation

General Our U.S mortgage insurance subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive detailed regulation by

the insurance departments of the various states in which they are licensed to transact business The principal aim

of this regulation is to safeguard their solvency for the protection of policyholders Although their
scope varies

state insurance laws generally grant broad powers to supervisory agencies or officials to examine the financial

books and records of companies as well as their market conduct and practices and to enforce rules or exercise

discretion touching the most significant aspects of the insurance business In light of current negative economic

conditions and the impacts on our financial condition and results of operations we expect greater scrutiny from

state insurance regulators certain of whom have increased their reporting requirements
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Mortgage insurers are restricted by state insurance laws and regulations to writing mortgage insurance

business only This restriction prohibits our mortgage insurance subsidiaries from directly writing other kinds of

insurance Our non-insurance subsidiaries are not subject to regulation under state insurance laws except with

respect to transactions with their insurance company affiliates

Insurance Holding Company Regulations All states have enacted legislation that requires each insurance

company in holding company system to register with the insurance regulatory authority of its state of domicile

and to furnish to such regulatory authority financial and other information concerning the operations of and the

interrelationships and transactions among companies within the holding company system that may materially

affect the operations management or financial condition of the insurers within the system The states also

regulate transactions between insurance companies and their parents and non-insurer affiliates

The PMI Group is treated as an insurance holding company under the laws of the State of Arizona The

Arizona insurance laws govern among other things certain transactions in our common stock and certain

transactions between or among The PM Group and its domestic and international subsidiaries For example no

person may directly or indirectly offer to acquire or acquire voting securities of The PM Group or any one of

the Arizona subsidiaries if after consummation thereof such person would be in control directly or indirectly of

such entity unless such person obtains the Arizona Director of Insurances prior approval For purposes of the

foregoing control is rebuttably presumed to exist if such person following the acquisition would directly or

indirectly own control or hold with the power to vote or hold proxies representing 10% or more of the entitys

voting securities In addition all material transactions involving PMI Mortgage Insurance Co MIC PMG
PRC PlC and/or RC and any of their affiliates such as PM Europe are subject to prior approval of the

Arizona Director of Insurance and may be disapproved if they are found to be not fair and reasonable MIC
on behalf of itself and its affiliates is required to file an annual insurance holding company system registration

statement with the Arizona and Wisconsin Departments of Insurance and any other states that so request

disclosing all inter-affiliate relationships transactions and arrangements that occurred or were in effect during the

prior calendar year and providing information on The PMI Group the holding companys ultimate controlling

person We must also submit and update biographical information about the executive officers and directors of

the holding companys insurance subsidiaries as well as executive officers and directors of The PM Group as

required by those states

The insurance holding company laws and regulations are substantially similar in Wisconsin where CMG

MI Commercial Loan Insurance Corporation or CLIC and WMAC Credit Insurance Corporation or WMAC
Credit are domiciled and transactions among these subsidiaries or any one of them and another affiliate

including The PMI Group are subject to regulatory review and approval in the respective states of domicile

FGIC is subject to regulation under insurance holding company statutes of New York where it is domiciled as

well as other jurisdictions where FGIC is licensed to do insurance business Transactions between FGIC and The

PMI Group and its subsidiaries are subject to prior approval of the New York Department of Insurance as well as

the Arizona Department of Insurance

Risk-to-Capital and Minimum Policyholders Position number of states limit the amount of insurance

risk that may be written by mortgage insurer to 25 times the insurers total statutory capital risk-to-capital

ratio or formula for minimum policyholders position If mortgage insurer exceeds an applicable

risk-to-capital ratio requirement or falls below states minimum policyholders position it cannot write new

business until its risk-to-capital ratio falls below the limit or its policyholders position meets the minimum As of

December 31 2008 MICs risk-to-capital ratio was 18.5 to and MIC held $424 million in excess of the

required minimum policyholders position Based on current and expected future trends we believe that we will

continue to incur and pay material losses Unless we raise capital which could include statutory capital or capital

or risk relief PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and risk-to-capital ratio increase beyond levels

necessary to meet capital adequacy requirements imposed by regulators See Item 1A Risk FactorsUnless we

raise capital PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and its risk-to-capital ratio will likely increase

beyond the levels necessary to meet various capital adequacy requirements which would restrict PMIs business
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operations result in further downgrades of our ratings and have an adverse impact on our financial condition

results of operations and business

Reserves Our mortgage insurance subsidiaries are required under the insurance laws of their state of

domicile and many other states including New York and California to establish special contingency reserve

with annual additions of amounts equal to 50% of premiums earned Contingency reser es are required to be held

for ten years and then released into surplus although earlier releases may be authorized by state insurance

regulators in certain cases or if and to the extent the mortgage insurers loss ratio exceeds 35% For the year

ended December 31 2008 MIC released $1.5 billion of contingency reserves into surplus attributable to losses in

excess of 35 of earned premiums PlC released $188.2 million of contingency reserves into surplus for excess

of 35 losses At December 31 2008 PMI had statutory policyholders surplus of $585.8 million and statutory

contingency reserves of $1 .1 billion

Dividends MIC did not pay shareholder dividends to The PM Group in28and we do not expect that PMI

will pay dividends to The PM1 Group in 2009 and 2010 Our Arizona insurn subsidiaries ability to pay

dividdstudit returts of.capital to The PM Group as their sole sharoeris limited among other things

hyheanc.jaof Ariina and other states Under Arizona law an ins ra idiary may pay dividends

out of able tplu with prior approval of the Arizona Director of TflSuranceifs 1ng aS such dividends

durthg .ady 12-month period do not exceed the lesser of l0f of policyhders srps as of the preceding

calendar year end or ii the preceding calendar years net investment income dividend that exceeds the

foregoing threshold is deemed an extraordinary dividend and requires the prior approval of the Arizona Director

of Insurance ftc Ariona Director of Insurance ma approve an extraordinary dividend if he or she finds that

lollowing the distribution the insurers policyholders surplus is reasonable in relation to its liabilities and adequate

to its financial needs See Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditioi am Results of

OperationsLiquidity and Capital RewurcesThe PMI Group LiquidityDividends to The PM Group

In addition to Arizona other states may limit or restrict our insurance subsidiaries abilities to pay

shareholder dividends For example California New York and Illinois prohibit mortgage insurers from declaring

dividends except from undivided profits remaining on hand over and above the aggregate of their paid-in capital

paid-in surplus and contingency reserves CMG MI is subject to shareholder dividendldistribution restrictions

under Wisconsin laws similar to those applicable to MIC

Insurance regulatory authorities have broad discretion to limit the payment of dividends by insurance

companies For example if insurance regulators determine that payment of dividend or any other payments to

an affiliate such as payments under tax-sharing agreement payments for employee or other services or

payments pursuant to surplus note would because of the financial condition of the paying insurance company

or otherwise he hazardous to such insurance companys policyholders or creditors the regulators may block

payments that would otherwise be permitted without prior approval

Premium Rates and Policy Forms Our insurance subsidiaries premium rates and policy forms are subject

to regulation in every jurisdiction in which each is licensed to transact business. Inmost U.S jurisdictions policy

rates must be filed prior to their use In some U.S jurisdictions forms must also he approved prior to use

ReimtwMd Regulation of reinsurance varies by state With the notab1 xcepEiOns of Arizona Illinois

Wrsco Yr rth Carolina and ahtoinia many states have stritions on mortgage

other thdh standard reinsurance requirements applica yand casualty insurance

compäni Ceiin restrictions apply under AriLona law to donietic compahi.aii ader the Jaws of several

other states to any licensed company ceding business to unlicensed or unaceredited reinsurance companies

Under such laws if reinsurance company is not accredited in such states the domestic company ceding

business to the reinsurance company cannot take credit in its statutory financial statements for the risk ceded to

such reinsurance company absent compliance with certain minimum statutory capital and reinsurance security

requirements In addition Arizona prohibits reinsurance unless the reinsurance agreements meet certain

requirements even if no statutory financial statement credit is taken
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Examinations Our licensed insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are subject to examination of their

financial condition and market conduct by the insurance departments of each of the states in which they are

licensed to transact business The Arizona Director of Insurance periodically conducts financial examination of

insurance companies domiciled in Arizona In 2008 the Arizona Director of Insurance conducted an examination

of MIC PMG PRC PlC and RIC for the five year period between January 2003 and December 31 2007 but

has not yet issued report CMG MI CLIC and WMAC Credit were examined by the Wisconsin Department of

Insurance in 2008 for the five year period ended December 31 2007 In lieu of examining foreign insurer i.e

an insurer licensed but not domiciled in state the insurance supervisors may accept an examination report by

state that has been accredited by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Thus while states have

the authority to examine all licensed insurers in practice insurance supervisors for the most part defer to the

examination reports issued by the domiciliary supervisor The final examination reports are public records and

may be obtained from the applicable states department of insurance

GSEs In order to be eligible to insure loans purchased by the GSEs mortgage insurers must meet Fannie

Maes and Freddie Macs mortgage insurer eligibility requirements These requirements among other things

impose standards for minimum ratings legal compliance use of reinsurance including captive reinsurance

policies and procedures risk-sharing and reporting requirements As discussed in Item 1A Overview of

OperationsFinancial Strength Ratings above in 2008 we submitted remediation plans to the GSEs who

currently treat PMI as an eligible mortgage insurer See Item IA Risk FactorsThe exercise of certain rights

reserved by the GSEs under eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers could harm our profitability and

reduce our operational flexibility In September 2008 the GSEs were placed into conservatorship which may

impact the GSEs role in the mortgage industry as well as their treatment of mortgage insurers See

Item BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsProductsPrimary Mortgage Insurance

Primary Flow Channel and Item 1A Risk FactorsIf the role of the GSEs in the U.S housing market is

changed or if the GSEs change other policies or practices the amount of insurance that PM writes could

further decrease which could result in decrease ofourfuture revenue

National Association of Insurance Commissioners The National Association of Insurance Commissioners

or NAIC is an organization of the state insurance regulators of all 50 states the District of Columbia Puerto

Rico Guam and U.S Territories major objective of the NAIC is to promote uniformity and harmonization of

insurance regulation among the states by the adoption and promulgation of model laws and regulations The

NAIC has developed rating system the Insurance Regulatory Information System or IRIS primarily intended

to assist state insurance departments in overseeing the statutory financial condition of all insurance companies

operating within their respective states IRIS consists of key financial ratios which are intended to indicate

unusual fluctuations in an insurers statutory financial position and/or operating results The NAIC applies its

IRIS financial ratios to PMI on continuing basis in order to monitor PMI financial condition The NAIC

Financial Analysis Working Group has been facilitating the exchange of infonnation among regulators of

mortgage guaranty insurers

Federal Laws and Regulation

Certain federal laws such as the Homeowners Protection Act discussed below directly affect private

mortgage insurers Private mortgage insurers including PMI are impacted indirectly by federal legislation and

regulation affecting mortgage originators and lenders purchasers of mortgage loans such as the GSEs and

governmental insurers such as the FHA and VA For example changes in federal housing legislation and other

laws and regulations that affect the demand for private mortgage insurance may have material adverse effect on

PMI As noted in Item B2 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsCompetitionU.S and State

Government Agencies above recently enacted federal legislation provides the FHA with greater flexibility in

establishing new products and temporarily increases the maximum loan amount that the FHA may insure in

some cases up to the GSE limits including up to $729500 in high-cost areas Further legislation that increases

the number of persons eligible for FHA or VA mortgages could have material adverse effect on our ability to

compete with the FHA or VA
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The placement of the GSEs into the conservatorship of the FHFA increases the likelihood that the U.S

Congress will examine the role and purpose
of the GSEs in the U.S housing market and potentially propose

certain structural and other changes to the GSEs New federal legislation or Treasury programs such as those

discussed below could reduce the level of private mortgage insurance coverage used by the GSEs as credit

enhancement or eliminate the requirement altogether and thereby materially affect our ability to compete

demand for our products and the profitability of our mortgage insurance business See Item 1B
BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsProductPrimary Mortgage InsurancePrimary Flow

Channel above and Item 1A Risk FactorsIf the role of the GSEs in the U.S housing market is changed or if

the GSEs change other policies or practices the amount of insurance that PMI writes could further decrease

which could result in decrease of our future revenue

Some federal legislation may have material positive impact on PMI Specifically the Emergency Economic

Stabilization Act of 2008 EESA authorized the Secretary of the Treasury to establish programs that would aid

homeowners to modify or reinstate loans in default and to stabilize the financial sector On February 10 2009 the

Treasury department announced its Financial Stability Plan which includes TARP with the stated purpose of

increasing transparency reducing the number of foreclosures relieving banks of troubled assets and providing

performance benchmarks for institutions receiving federal funds Among other things the Financial Stability Plan

includes capital assistance program that allows Treasury to inject new capital into financial institutions and joint

initiative with the FDIC to create public-private investment fund that would use combination of private and

public funds to make large scale asset purchases with the goal of leveraging private capital on an initial scale to

purchase up to $500 billion in troubled assets Our efforts to enhance our capital and liquidity as result of capital

constraints include potentially obtaining capital or other relief under the Financial Stability Plan See Item 1A Risk

FactorsCapital and Liquidity Constraints

On February 18 2009 President Obama announced his administrations Homeowner Affordability and

Stability Plan or the Plan which is designed to keep certain borrowers in their homes and reduce the rate of

foreclosures On March 2009 the Treasury Department released guidelines implementing two programs under

the Plan The Home Affordable Refinance program and The Home Affordable Modification program The

refinance and modification programs are designed to keep homeownership affordable for borrowers who remain

current on their mortgages but whose LTVs have risen because of declining home values and to aid struggling

borrowers with high mortgage debt to income ratios The Plan also includes component requiring participating

lenders to adhere to uniform modification guidelines adopted by Treasury and an increased funding commitment

to the GSEs to ensure strength and liquidity in the mortgage markets as well as to keep mortgage rates affordable

Finally under the Plan Congress is considering legislation the Helping Families Save Their Homes in

Bankruptcy Act of 2009 which would amend the United States bankruptcy laws with respect to modification

of certain mortgages secured by primary residences Such legislation if enacted could influence the number of

bankruptcy filings and may permit bankruptcy courts to more easily modify PMI insured mortgage loans so that

borrowers can continue to make payments

On February 17 2009 President Obama signed new economic stimulus legislation the American

Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 which is designed to stimulate the economy through combination of

tax breaks infrastructure investment and program enhancement The components of the American Recovery and

Reinvestment Act of 2009 related to housing increase the first time homebuyer tax credit and extend the

credit through December 2009 extend the 2008 GSE loan limits up to $729500 in high cost areas through

2009 and increase funding to states to rehabilitate and dispose of foreclosed homes

We are evaluating the above-mentioned legislation and programs While the extent to which such legislation

and programs and their implementation will impact PMI operations and profitability is unknown we view any

incremental assistance in reducing foreclosures as having potentially positive impact

Mortgage origination transactions are subject to compliance with various federal and state consumer

protection laws including the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974 or RESPA the Equal Credit

Opportunity Act the Fair Housing Act the Homeowners Protection Act the Fair Credit Reporting Act or
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FCRA the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act and others Among other things these laws and their

implementing regulations prohibit payments for referrals of settlement service business require fairness and

non-discrimination in granting or facilitating the granting of credit require cancellation of insurance and

refunding of unearned premiums under certain circumstances govern
the circumstances under which companies

may obtain and use consumer credit information and define the manner in which companies may pursue

collection activities Changes in these laws or regulations could adversely affect the operations and profitability

of our mortgage insurance business

The Homeowners Protection Act of 1998 or HOPA provides for the automatic termination or cancellation upon

borrowers request of private mortgage insurance upon satisfaction of certain conditions HOPA applies to owner-

occupied residential mortgage loans regardless of lien priority and to borrower-paid mortgage insurance closed on or

after July 29 1999 FHA loans are not covered by HOPA Under HOPA automatic termination of mortgage insurance

would generally occur once the LTV reaches 78% borrower who has good payment history as defined by

HOPA may generally request cancellation of mortgage insurance once the LTV reaches 80% of the homes original

value or when actual payments reduce the loan balance to 80% of the homes original value whichever occurs earlier

The Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of 1974 or RESPA applies to most residential mortgages

insured by PMI Mortgage insurance has been considered in some cases to be settlement service for purposes

of loans subject to RESPA Subject to limited exceptions RESPA prohibits persons from giving or accepting any

thing of value in connection with the referral of real estate settlement services RESPA is enforced by HUD and

the U.S Department of Justice and also provides for private rights of action

Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975 Most originators of mortgage loans are required to collect and

report data relating to mortgage loan applicants race nationality gender marital status and census tract to

HUD or the Federal Reserve under the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act of 1975 or HMDA Mortgage insurers

are not required pursuant to any
law or regulation to report HMDA data although under the laws of several

states mortgage insurers are currently prohibited from discriminating on the basis of certain classifications

Mortgage insurers have through the Mortgage Insurance Companies of America entered voluntarily into an

agreement with the Federal Financial Institutions Examinations Council to report the same data on loans

submitted for insurance as is required for most mortgage lenders under HMDA

Privacy and Information Securily The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 or GLB imposes privacy

requirements on financial institutions including obligations to protect and safeguard consumers nonpublic

personal information and records and limitations on the re-use of such information Federal regulatory agencies

have issued the Interagency Guidelines Establishing Information Security Standards Security Guidelines and

interagency regulations regarding financial privacy Privacy Rule implementing sections of GLB The Security

Guidelines establish standards relating to administrative technical and physical safeguards to ensure the security

confidentiality integrity and the proper disposal of consumer information The Privacy Rule limits financial

institutions disclosure to nonpublic personal information to unaffiliated third parties unless certain notice

requirements are met and the consumer does not elect to prevent or opt out of the disclosure The Privacy Rule

also requires that privacy notices provided to customers and consumers describe the financial institutions

policies and practices to protect the confidentiality and security of the information With respect to PM GLB is

enforced by the U.S Federal Trade Commission FTC and state insurance regulators Many states have

enacted legislation implementing GLB and establishing information security regulation Many states have

enacted privacy and data security laws which impose compliance obligations beyond GLB including obligations

to provide notification in the event that security breach results in reasonable belief that unauthorized persons

may have obtained access -to consumer nonpublic information Privacy and data security in the financial service

industry continues to be the subject of pending legislation on both federal and state levels

Fair Credit Reporting Act The Fair Credit Reporting Act of 1970 as amended or FCRA imposes

restrictions on the permissible use of credit report information FCRA has been interpreted by some FTC staff to

require mortgage insurance companies to provide adverse action notices to consumers in the event an

application for mortgage insurance is declined on the basis of review of the consumers credit
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International Operations

In 2008 consistent with our goals of enhancing capital and liquidity and focusing on our core U.S

Mortgage Insurance Operations we sold PMI Australia and PMI Asia began closing PMI Canada and

reconfigured PMI Europe As result our international mortgage insurance and credit enhancement operations

are now limited to PMI Europe and PMI Canada neither of which is writing new business Revenues from PMI

Europe were $8.4 million and 0.9% of our consolidated revenues in 2008 and $8.3 million and 0.7% of our

consolidated revenues in 2007 Premium revenues from PMI Canada in 2008 were negligible See Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsInternational

Operations and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary DataNote 18 Business Segments for

additional information about geographic areas Excluding revenue from the discontinued operations of our

former subsidiaries PMI Australia and PMI Asia our International Operations segment generated 1.7% of our

consolidated revenues in 2008 compared to 1.1% in 2007 and we expect revenue from our International

Operations to continue to be minimal in 2009

Europe

PMI Mortgage Insurance Company Limited collectively with our other European subsidiaries referred to as

PMI Europe is mortgage insurance and credit enhancement company incorporated and located in Dublin

Ireland PMI Europe is authorized to provide credit suretyship and miscellaneous financial loss insurance by

Irelands Financial Regulator IFR In 2008 to conserve capital and reduce expenses PMI Europe stopped

assuming new risk and reduced staff and facilities accordingly In 2008 we closed PMI Europes offices in

London Frankfurt Madrid and Brussels At December 31 2008 the total assets of PMI Europe were $261.8

million compared to $272.2 million at December 31 2007

PMI Europes current portfolio consists of capital markets products reinsurance and primary insurance all

of which are related to credit default risk on residential mortgage loans As of December 31 2008 PMI Europes

insurance in force and risk in force with respect to these products were $46.3 billion and $7.4 billion

respectively The table below shows PM Europes risk in force by country as of December 31 2008

Risk in Force Percent of

Country December 31 2008 Total

USD in millions

France $2953 40.1%

Italy 1811 24.6%

Germany 1586 21.5%

United Kingdom 828 11.2%

United States 189 2.6%

Total Portfolio $7367 100.0%

By country in which insured mortgage loan was originated

The table below summarizes PMI Europes credit enhancement portfolio by transaction type

Risk in Force

December 312008

USD in millions

Capital Markets Transactions/CDS $6310

Primary Mortgage Insurance 828

Reinsurance 229

$7367
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Approximately 84% of PM Europes risk in force represents capital market transactions that consist of

investment grade risk Default protection written by PM Europe that attaches at the first loss unrated position is

considered sub-investment grade PMI Europes investment grade coverage attaches at mezzanine or remote

loss level and is rated at least BBB- by Standard Poors BBB- by Fitch and/or Baa3 by Moodys PMI

Europes European portfolio does not include any credit impaired insured mortgages as commonly understood

in Europe Approximately 3% of PMI Europes risk in force consists of U.S credit impaired mortgages i.e

mortgages granted to borrowers whose credit history and/or application type is not sufficient to get

conventional mortgage at the prevailing mortgage rate

Capital Markets Products PMI Europes capital markets products were designed to support secondary

market transactions notably credit-linked notes or synthetic securities transactions principally credit default

swap transactions As of December 31 2008 approximately 86% of PMI Europes risk in force was derived

from sixteen credit default swap transactions In eight of these transactions PM Europe assumed

sub-investment grade or an unrated risk position In the remaining transactions PMI Europes risk position was

rated at least investment grade the majority being rated AAA

Certain of PMI Europes credit default swap contracts contain collateral support provisions which upon

certain circumstances such as downgrade of PM Europes insurer financial strength ratings and/or

deterioration of underlying mortgage loan performance require PMI Europe to post collateral for the benefit of

the counterparty The amount of the required posted collateral calculation varies and can include the amount of

loss reserves established by the counterparty mark-to-market valuations contractual formulae and/or

negotiated amount PMI Europe recently has been downgraded and currently has insurer financial strength

ratings of A- Negative Outlook BBB Negative and Developing from Standard Poors Fitch

and Moodys respectively As result of these rating agency actions and other contractual requirements

counterparties have required PMI Europe to post collateral of $64.2 million as of March 15 2009 on credit

default swap transactions PMI Europe may be required to post additional collateral as result of such factors as

changes in CDS valuations and/or deterioration in the performance of the underlying collateral referenced in such

transactions See also Item 1A Risk FactorsWe are exposed to risk in our European operations

Reinsurance PM Europes risk in force includes reinsurance coverage to both captive insurers and financial

guaranty companies PMI Europe has completed six reinsurance transactions with financial guaranty companies

consisting of U.S credit impaired mortgages where it holds second loss positions behind over-collateralization

excess spread mechanisms and other forms of credit enhancement in those transactions that absorb losses before

PM Europe In five of these transactions PMI Europe provides excess of loss reinsurance In the other transaction

PM Europe provides quota share reinsurance where it assumes risk pan passu with the financial guarantor PM
Europe has completed two excess of loss reinsurance transactions with captive insurers in which it reinsures

mortgage lenders captives above the level of expected losses but up to stop loss limit that is less than

catastrophic level of losses As of December 31 2008 approximately 2.6% of PMI Europes risk in force stemmed

from reinsurance of financial guaranty companies and 0.4% stemmed from reinsurance of captives PMI Europe

established loss reserves of $64.5 million as of December 31 2008 in respect of its reinsurance portfolio PMI

Europe has posted collateral related to certain U.S subprime exposures on which it provided reinsurance coverage

in 2005 and as of March 15 2009 the posted collateral balance was $53.7 million PMI Europe may be required to

post additional collateral on these reinsurance transactions as result of future loss developments

Primary Insurance As of December 31 2008 approximately 11% of PMI Europes risk in force consisted

of primary insurance written in taly Germany and the UK PMI Europes primary insurance is structured

similarly to the primary mortgage insurance products written in the U.S majority of PMI Europes primary

insurance in force stems from its acquisition of portion of the U.K lenders mortgage insurance portfolio of

Royal and Sun Alliance in the fourth quarter of 2003 PM Europe recognizes premiums associated with this

portfolio in accordance with established earnings patterns that are based upon managements estimation of the

expiration of the portfolios risk We expect the premiums earned and risk in force associated with the portfolio

to continue to decline through the remaining life of the portfolio
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The following table shows default rates for each of the last three years by type of credit enhancement

coverage

Percentage of Risk in Force
Default Rates by Product Line as of December 31

December 312008 2008 2007 2006

Capital Markets 85.7% 1.2% 0.8% 1.1%

Primary Mortgage Insurance 11.2% 3.2% 1.6% 0.4%

Reinsurance 3.1% 4.7% 3.6% 2.7%

Total lOftO%

Default rates were calculated using delinquent insurance in force divided by the total insurance in force

The increase in the default rate for primary mortgage insurance in 2008 reflects increased defaults on the

Italian primary flow business as well as the overall growth and seasoning of the primary portfolio Higher

default rates in the reinsurance portfolio reflect that books concentration of credit impaired U.S loans PMI

Europes reserves for losses and LAE are shown below for the years 2006 through 2008

Reserves for losses and LAE

2008 2007 2006

USD in thousands

Capital Market Transactions $11156 $19295 $14955

Primary Mortgage Insurance 8900 3024 2952
Reinsurance 64447 19260

Total reserves for losses and LAE $84503 $41579 $17907

Excluding credit default swap transactions classified as derivatives

The loss reserve on reinsurance as of December 31 2008 was related primarily to the deteriorating

performance of certain U.S subprime exposures on which PMI Europe provided reinsurance coverage in 2005

During 2008 we paid $10.3 million of claims related to the reinsurance coverage and we expect to pay out

substantial portion of the remaining reserves in 2009 For discussion on PMI Europes loss reserves refer to

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Critical

Accounting Estimates Reserves for Losses and LAEInternational Operations

PM Europes loss reserves shown above do not include credit default swap CDS transactions classified

as derivatives Changes in the fair value of CDS derivative contracts may occur as result of number of factors

including changes in market spreads and the extent to which actual claim payments differ from estimated claim

payments Global credit deterioration has impacted market spreads worldwide including spreads on PMI

Europes CDS portfolio which relates only to European prime mortgage risks We recorded an unrealized

mark-to-market loss of $17.9 million on PM Europes CDS derivative contracts in 2008 as result of the

significant widening of market spreads Continuing volatility of market spreads may lead to positive or negative

fair value adjustments of these contracts in the future In our view the volatility of these market spreads does not

necessarily reflect the credit quality of PMI Europes CDS portfolio

The applicable regulator of PMI Europe is the IFR Ireland is memberof the European Union and applies the

harmonized system of regulation set out in the European Union directives Under applicable regulations PMI

Europe may provide insurance only in the classes for which it has authorization and must maintain required capital

reserves Irish insurance companies are required among other things to submit comprehensive annual returns to the

IFR The FR has broad powers to intervene in the affairs of insurance companies including the power to enforce

and take remedial and disciplinary action with respect to its regulations Under IFR regulations insurance

companies must maintain margin of solvency the calculation of which is based on recent years premium volumes

or claims experience and which supplements technical loss and premium reserve requirements
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Canada

In 2007 we began offering residential mortgage insurance products to Canadian lenders and mortgage
originators through our wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary PMI Canada PMI Canada did not provide any

mortgage insurance
coverage in 2007 and wrote limited amount of insurance in 2008 Due to capital

constraints we are currently in the process of closing PM Canada We repatriated $41.5 million of capital to

PM in the fourth quarter of 2008 To fully close our operations in Canada we must facilitate the removal of PMI
Canadas risk in force and obtain regulatory approvals

Discontinued Operations in PMI Australia and PMI Asia

On October 22 2008 we sold PMI Australia for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $920 million

approximately 100% of the net tangible asset value of PMI Australia under GAAP as of June 30 2008 plus

certain adjustments for pre-completion interest and changes in the value of PMI Australias investment portfolio

With these adjustments PMI received approximately $746 million in cash and note receivable in the principal

amount of approximately 5187 million the Note with interest accruing through September 2011 when it

matures and is payable The actual amount owed under the Note is subject to reductions to the extent

performance of PMI Australias existing insurance portfolio as of June 30 2008 does not achieve specified

targets and ii PMI is required to satisfy any claims for breach of warranties under the PM Australia Sale

Agreement or under the PMI Asia Sale Agreement warranty claims and such warranty claims are not

satisfied by PMI by April 2010 All or portion of the principal amount of the Note may be prepaid with prior

written notice to PMI and PM may transfer or assign its interests under the Note without restriction See

Item 1A Risk Factosl7rere is risk we may not be fully compensated on the
cont.hçnt ne we yeceived An

connection with ur sate4W4ustra1ia

In connection with tlpsa1e lMI AustraIia PMI funded premiums of prtifty 1Mi
procure an excessof4oss riture cover for PMI Australia The agreement proesfp iMI ia4ice
profit-sharing for one.Mltof .t reiusurance premiums equivalent to $25 milliqn at tht4dthee-year
policy life provided that PM Australias losses do not exceed certain loss amount specified ia -the PM
Australia sale agreement PM Australia is recorded as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial

statements for all periods presented and in connection with recording PM Australia as discontinued operations

in the third quarter of 2008 we recognized an after tax loss of approximately $64.6 million with
respect to the

writedown of the carrying amount of PM Australia to its fair value less cost to sell The proceeds from the sale

of PMI Australia are reflected as contributed capital to the Companys U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

segment

On December 17 2008 we sold PMI Asia for cash purchase price of approximately $51.6 million which is

92.5% of PMI Asias net tangible asset value under U.S GAAP as of June 30 2008 plus pre-completion

adjustment of $86751 PM Asia is recorded as discontinued operations in the consolidated financial statements for

all periods presented The loss on sale was approximately $14.2 million for the
year ended December 31 2008

Foreign Currency Exchange

We are subject to foreign currency exposure due to operations in Europe and Canada whose currencies

fluctuate relative to the U.S dollar the basis of our consolidated financial reporting Such
exposure falls into two

general categories economic exposure and transaction exposure

Economic exposure is defined as the change between anticipated net cash flows in currencies ether than the

U.S dollar and the actual results-4hat are reflected in our consolidated financial statements after translation To
the extent there are chan 4n dae average translation rates from local currens 1t.4ie U.S d1Mruictrded
consolidated net ineoni 4ç jXityor negatively affected If the U.S

applicable foreign caie ttivlIlaL fnCQme from our International
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impacted by translation losses Conversely if the U.S dollar weakens against other applicable foreign currencies

our net income from International Operations will be positively impacted by translation gains We did not hedge

our economic exposure to PMI Europe or PMI Canada in 2008

We do not currently hedge foreign currency exposures of net investments in our foreign operations If the

spot exchange rates of the U.S dollar relative to other applicable foreign currencies change our net investment in

our foreign operations will be impacted Foreign currency translation gains in accumulated other comprehensive

income were $48.3 million as of December 31 2008 due primarily to the strengthening of the spot exchange

rates of the Euro relative to the U.S dollar This cumulative foreign currency
translation gain benefits PMI

statutory surplus as PMI Europe is its wholly-owned subsidiary

Transaction exposure refers to currency risk related to specific transactions and occurs between the time

firm commitment in foreign currency is entered into and the time the cash is actually paid Under our

Derivative Use Plans Foreign Exchange Policy Guidelines we are authorized to hedge our transaction

exposure through the purchase of forward currency contracts We did not engage in any hedging activities of

transaction risk in 2008

Financial Guaranty

FGIC Overview We are the largest shareholder of FGIC Corporation with common equity ownership

interest of approximately 42% FGIC Corporations wholly-owned subsidiary Financial Guaranty Insurance

Company FGIC is financial guaranty company The other principal investors in FGIC Corporation are

affiliates of The Blackstone Group L.P The Cypress Group L.L.C and CIVC Partners L.P We account for this

investment under the equity method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Principles Board APB
Opinion No 18 The Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock and accordingly the

investment is not consolidated

We impaired our investment in FGIC in the first quarter of 2008 and reduced the carrying value of the

investment from $103.6 million at December 31 2007 to zero To the extent that our carrying value remains

zero no equity in losses relating to FGIC will be recorded Equity in earnings from FGIC could be recognized in

the future to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable See Item Risk FactorsIt is unlikely we will

recover our investments in our financial guaranty equity investees We are under no obligation nor do we intend

to provide additional capital to FGIC

FGIC is licensed to engage in financial guaranty insurance in all 50 states the District of Columbia the

Commonwealth of Puerto Rico U.S Virgin Islands the United Kingdom and other European Union member

countries The financial guaranty industry changed dramatically in 2008 Financial guaranty insurers ability to

compete has been highly dependent on their triple-A ratings As result of the downgrades in FGICs financial

strength ratings discussed below and FGIC financial condition FGIC has ceased competing for and writing

new business in the financial guaranty industry and we do not expect FGIC to resume competing for or writing

new business

Recent Developments Relating to FGIC As of the date of this filing FGIC Corporation has not completed

its consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31 2008 As of September 30 2008

FGIC Corporations consolidated total shareholders equity was $523.4 million declining from $584.4 million at

December 31 2007 The decline in shareholders equity was primarily due to adverse developments in incurred

loss estimates in 2008 related to insurance contracts issued by FGIC on mortgage backed securities as well as

the recording of valuation allowance against FGIC Corporations deferred tax asset in 2008 FGIC loss

reserve increases in 2008 reflect the significant weakening of the U.S residential mortgage housing credit and

capital markets

Throughout 2008 with multiple rating actions the rating agencies downgraded FGIC insurance financial

strength ratings As of March 15 2009 FGICs insurance financial strength ratings were CCC with negative
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outlook and Caal with negative outlook from Standard Poors and Moodys respectively FGICs ratings

contracts with these rating agencies have expired or been terminated which could result in the withdrawal of

these ratings On November 24 2008 Fitch withdrew its rating of FGIC at the time of the withdrawal of its

rating Fitchs insurer financial strength rating of FGIC was CCC with rating watch evolving These

downgrades permit certain issuers and counterparties subject to the terms of their contractual arrangements with

FGIC to terminate those agreements which could result in the loss of future revenues

In the third and fourth quarters of 2008 FGIC completed reinsurance transaction with MBIA Insurance

Corporation MBIA whereby MBIA reinsured certain policies covering approximately $188 billion of FGICs

U.S public finance insured net par outstanding In connection with the MBIA reinsurance transaction FGIC

ceded to MBIA $915479 of unearned premium reserve associated with the reinsured policies and received

ceding commission of $196721 from MBIA for the cession

As of September 30 2008 FGICs policy holder surplus determined in accordance with statutory

accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the New York State Insurance Department was $350.2 million

In the fourth quarter of 2008 pursuant to the terms of its soft capital facility FGIC issued shares of its preferred

stock in exchange for an aggregate gross purchase price of $300 million in cash

Overview of Financial Guaranty Business Financial guaranty insurance generally provides an

unconditional and irrevocable guarantee that protects the holder of an insured financial obligation against

non-payment of principal and interest by an obligor when due If the issuer of an insured obligation cannot make

the scheduled debt service payment the financial guarantor assumes this responsibility as and when due FGIC

guaranteed U.S public and structured finance and international finance obligations

Loss Reserves FGICs provision for losses and loss adjustment expenses under GAAP fall into two

categories case reserves and watchlist reserves Case reserves are established for estimated losses on specific

non-derivative obligations that are presently or likely to be in payment default for which future loss is probable

and can be reasonably estimated These reserves are determined using internally developed models and represent

an estimate of the present value of the anticipated shortfall net of reinsurance between anticipated claims

payments on obligations plus anticipated loss adjustment expenses and ii anticipated cash flow from and

proceeds to be received on sales of any collateral supporting the obligation and/or other anticipated recoveries

The discount rate used in calculating the net present value of the estimated losses is based upon the risk-free rate

for the period of the anticipated shortfall FGICs case reserve models are dependent on number of assumptions

that require management to make judgments about the outcomes of future events using historical and current

market data Significant assumptions include the liquidation value of the assets supporting the insured

obligations volume and timing of collateral cash flows and the behavior of the underlying borrower FGICs case

reserves will likely change possibly materially in future periods as additional information becomes available

Watchlist reserves recognize the potential for claims against FGIC on non-derivative insured public finance

obligations that are not presently in payment default but that have migrated to an impaired level where there is

substantially increased probability of default These reserves reflect an estimate of probable loss given evidence

of impairment and reasonable estimate of the amount of loss given default The methodology for establishing

and calculating the watchlist reserves relies on categorization and assessment of the probability of default and

loss severity in the event of default of the specifically identified impaired obligations on the list based on

historical trends and other factors Reserves are adjusted each period based on claim payments and the results of

ongoing surveillance Adjustments of estimates made in prior years may result in additional loss and loss

adjustment expenses or reduction of loss and loss adjustment expenses for the period in which the adjustment is

made There are significant risks and uncertainties that could result in material adverse deviation of FGIC
reserves There remains considerable amount of uncertainty relating to risks in real estate prices credit markets

and the economy as whole There is no historical precedent for these conditions Consequently the ultimate

liability associated with such claims will likely differ possibly materially from such estimates
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Regulation Dividend Restrictions FGIC is subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the State of

New York where FGIC is domiciled including Article 69 comprehensive financial guaranty insurance statute

FGIC is also subject to the insurance laws and regulations of all other jurisdictions in which it is licensed to

transact insurance business The insurance laws and regulations as well as the level of supervisory authority that

may be exercised by the various insurance regulators vary by jurisdiction but generally require insurance

companies to maintain minimum standards of business conduct and solvency to meet certain financial tests to

comply with requirements concerning permitted investments and the use of policy forms and premium rates and

to file quarterly and annual statutory statements and other reports FGIC accounts and operations are subject to

periodic examination by the Superintendent of Insurance of the State of New York the Superintendent and by

insurance regulatory authorities in the other jurisdictions in which FGIC is licensed to write insurance Under

New York Insurance Law FGIC must maintain surplus to policy holders of at least $65000 Should FGIC be

required to increase its loss reserves in future periods this could cause FGIC surplus to fall below that

minimum amount In the event that FGIC is unable to meet such requirement the Superintendent has discretion

to take various remedial actions including seeking an order to place FGIC under regulatory control

FGICs ability to pay
dividends is subject to restrictions contained in the insurance laws and related

regulations of New York and the other jurisdictions in which FGIC is licensed to do insurance business Under

New York insurance law FGIC may pay dividends out of statutory earned surplus provided that together with

all dividends declared or distributed by FGIC during the preceding 12 months the dividends would not exceed

the lesser of 10% of policyholders surplus as of its last statement filed with the Superintendent and

ii adjusted net investment income during this period As of September 30 2008 FGIC did not have any earned

surplus and as result would require the prior approval of the Superintendent to declare and pay any dividends

In addition so long as any FGIC preferred stock is outstanding FGIC charter generally prohibits the payment

of cash dividends on any
of FGIC common stock unless all dividends on the FGIC preferred stock for the then

current period shall have been paid FGIC Corporation is prohibited from paying any dividends on its common

stock by the terms of its bank credit agreement which is scheduled to mature in December 2010

In addition so long as any FGIC Corporation senior preferred stock is outstanding FGIC Corporations

certificate of incorporation generally prohibits the payment of dividends or other payments on any of FGIC

Corporations capital stock except the senior preferred stock without the consent of the holder of two-thirds of

the outstanding shares of that preferred stock The stockholders agreement between The PMI Group and the other

investors in FGIC Corporation also restricts the payment of dividends by FGIC Corporation

FGIC Corporation is further restricted in the payment of dividends by the terms of its 6% senior notes due

2034 With certain exceptions FGIC Corporation may not pay dividends unless the amount of the dividends

together with other similar payments or restricted payments during any fiscal year does not exceed the greater

of 30% of FGIC Corporation and its subsidiaries consolidated net income for the previous fiscal year
and

ii 2.5% of the stockholders equity on the consolidated balance sheet of FGIC Corporation and its subsidiaries

as of the end of the previous fiscal year

In addition to the regulatory and contractual restrictions described above we expect that FGIC Corporation

will be further restricted in the payment of dividends in light of its recent financial performance

Other FGIC operates as an independent company Our stockholders agreement with the other members of

the investor group provides for certain corporate governance arrangements with respect to FGIC and other

important corporate matters

PMI Guaranty

In 2006 we formed PMI Guaranty wholly-owned surety company based in New Jersey PMI Guaranty

received its certificate of authority from the New Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance in July 2006 and

began operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 We initially capitalized PMI Guaranty with $200 million which
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included $150 million of paid in equity and $50 million junior surplus note issued to The PMI Group In

addition PMI Guaranty benefitted from capital support agreement with PMI for maximum of $650 million

which itself was guaranteed by The PMI Group

Effective June 10 2008 PMI Guaranty FGIC and Assured Guaranty Re Ltd AG Re executed an

Agreement the AG Agreement pursuant to which all of the direct FGIC business reinsured by PMI Guaranty

was recaptured by FGIC and ceded by FGIC to AG Re Pursuant to the AG Agreement PMI Guaranty paid

approximately $9 million net of unearned premium reserves assumed by AG Re to AG Re In addition with

respect to two of the exposures ceded to AG Re PMI Guaranty agreed to reimburse AG Re for
any losses it pays

subject to an aggregate limit of $22.9 million PMI Guaranty secured its obligations to pay those losses by

depositing $22.9 million into trust account for the benefit of AG Re and to the extent AG Res obligations are

less than $22.9 million the remaining funds will be returned to PMI We incurred
expenses of approximately $18

million net of tax savings in the second quarter of 2008 as result of the AG Agreement

During the third quarter of 2008 PMI Guaranty paid approximately $152 million of its excess capital to The

PMI Group of which $144 million was reinvested in U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations We now report the

results of PMI Guaranty as discontinued operations in the Financial Guaranty segment and in the consolidated

statement of operations for all periods presented We merged PMI Guaranty into PMI Mortgage Insurance Co in

December 2008 and PMI acceded to PMI Guarantys remaining $23 million of capital upon completion of the

merger

RAM Re

We own 23.7% of RAM Holdings Ltd holding company for RAM Re RAM Re is the financial guaranty

reinsurance company based in Bermuda RAM Holdings Ltd or RAM Holdings is publicly traded on the

Nasdaq National Market RAM Re and RAM Holdings are subject to regulation under the laws of Bermuda

RAM Re is not currently writing new business

Due to among other things the continuing deterioration of the credit market rating agency actions

discussed below and the decline in RAM Holdings share price we recognized equity in losses from RAM Re of

$57.7 million in 2008 and as result the carrying value of our investment was zero at December 31 2008

RAM Re reinsures municipal structured finance and international debt obligations originally underwritten

by primary financial guarantors The financial guaranty policies which RAM Re reinsures typically cover full

and timely payment of scheduled principal and interest on debt securities reinsurance company receives its

share of the premium from the primary insurer and typically pays ceding commission to the primary insurer as

compensation for underwriting expenses Insurance is ceded by the primary insurers to the reinsurance

companies either on treaty or facultative basis

Throughout 2008 both Standard Poors and Moodys took multiple rating actions in respect of RAM Re
As of March 15 2009 Standard Poors financial strength rating of RAM Re was with Negative

Outlook Standard Poors stated that the rating issued on September 24 2008 reflected the current

economic environments impact on primary insurers new business writings and the consequent impact to RAM
Res underwriting volume the difficulty RAM Re may face in light of the current environment toward

improving its return on equity and RAM Res weakened capital adequacy position As of March 15 2009

Moodys insurance financial strength rating of RAM Re was Baa3 Moodys stated that its rating issued on

December 2008 resulted from three primary factorsMoodys expectation of greater losses on mortgage

related exposures Moodys view of diminished business prospects for RAM Re as reflected by low underwriting

volume and RAM Res impaired financial flexibility The downgrades have had an adverse effect on RAM Res

ability to compete on the terms of RAM Res reinsurance and on RAM Res financial results

Due to the above-mentioned downgrades most of the primary financial guarantors that have previously

ceded business to RAM Re generally have the right to increase the ceding commission as stipulated in the

treaties or terminate the treaties and recapture the business previously ceded to RAM Re whether written in
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financial guaranty or credit derivative form To the extent policies are recaptured RAM Re must forfeit to the

ceding company an amount determined by formula under each treaty which generally consists of RAM Res

allocated share of the U.S statutory unearned premium net of the ceding commission paid by RAM Re to the

ceding company subject to penalty amount in some cases and loss reserves established with respect to the

policies ceded as applicable

Investment Portfolio

As of December 31 2008 The PMI Group and its consolidated subsidiaries had total cash and cash

equivalents of $1.5 billion and investments of $2.2 billion In 2004 The PMI Groups Board of Directors formed

the Investment and Finance Committee of the Board of Directors to oversee our investment portfolio including

our unconsolidated subsidiaries approve
investment strategies and monitor our investment performance The

U.S companies included in the consolidated financial statements or the U.S Portfolio held cash and cash

equivalents and investments of $3.4 billion as of December 31 2008 We manage the U.S Portfolio internally

We manage the U.S Portfolio to achieve the goals of providing predictable high level of investment

income while maintaining adequate levels of liquidity safety and preservation of capital Growth of capital and

surplus through long-term market appreciation are secondary considerations Realization of taxable capital gains

is minimized and emphasis is given to credit quality price volatility and diversification for each investment

category as well as for the portfolio as whole As of December 31 2008 based on market value and excluding

cash and cash equivalents approximately 100% of the U.S Portfolio was invested in fixed income securities and

preferred stock During 2008 we recorded realized loss of $96.5 million related to preferred securities held in

our U.S investment portfolio We may have additional impairments for preferred or other securities if they meet

the criteria for other-than-temporary impairment due to continuing stress in the capital markets 97% of the U.S

portfolio including cash and cash equivalents were rated or better by at least one nationally recognized

securities rating organization and of those 59% were rated AAA 24% were rated AA and 14% were rated

The U.S Portfolios option-adjusted duration including cash and cash equivalents was 5.1 as of

December 31 2008 We generally do not invest in non-agency mortgage-backed securities

Investments held by The PMI Groups U.S insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurer investment laws

of each of the states in which they are licensed These statutes designed to preserve insurer assets for the

protection of policyholders set limits on the percentage of assets that an insurer can hold in certain investment

categories e.g under Arizona law no more than 20% in equity securities and with single issuer e.g 10%

under Arizona law

PMI Europes and PMI Canadas investments are subject to the investment policies adopted by their

respective boards of directors and are managed by investment advisory firms under separate investment

management agreements We regularly review these entities investment strategies and performances The

investment policies specify that the portfolios must be invested predominantly in intermediate-term and high-

grade bonds

As of December 31 2008 PM Europe had $107.4 million in cash and cash equivalents and $136.9 million

of investments which are managed by Morgan Stanley Investment Management Limited The investment

portfolio primarily consists of Euro and British Pounds Sterling currency-denominated fixed income securities

issued by sovereign agency and corporate entities The portfolios option-adjusted duration including cash and

cash equivalents was 3.1 as of December 312008 PMI Europes portfolio did not contain investments in equity

securities as of December 31 2008

As of December 31 2008 PMI Canada had $17.1 million in cash and cash equivalents and $2.9 million of

investments which are managed by Morgan Stanley Investment Management The investment portfolio consists of

Canadian dollar and U.S dollar denominated fixed income securities issued by sovereign agency
and corporate

entities The portfolios option-adjusted duration including cash and cash equivalents was 0.6 at December 31

2008 PMI Canadas portfolio did not contain investments in equity securities as of December 31 2008
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We review the investment portfolios and strategies of our unconsolidated subsidiaries on quarterly

basis Through our representation on their boards of directors we have limited ability to influence their

investment management decisions

Employees

As of December 31 2008 The PMI Group together with its wholly-owned subsidiaries and CMG MI had

approximately 736 full-time and part-time employees of which 691 persons performed services primarily for

PM 11 were employed by PMI Europe were employed in Canada and 32 performed services primarily for

CMG MI Our employees are not unionized and we consider our employee relations to be good In addition

MSC had 162 temporary workers as of December 31 2008

ITEM 1A RISK FACTORS

Capital and Liquidity Constraints

We expect that we will need to raise significant amounts of additional capital There is no assurance that we

will be able to raise needed capital on timely basis and on favorable terms or at all

As result of continued losses in 2008 and our expectation that we will continue to incur significant losses

in 2009 we expect that we will need to raise significant amounts of additional capital which may be necessary in

2009 In response to our capital constraints we are limiting our new insurance writings We are also exploring

capital alternatives to enhance our liquidity and capital at PMI and The PM Group including potentially

obtaining capital or other relief under U.S Treasurys Financial Stability Plan including the Troubled Asset

Relief Program or TARP obtaining reinsurance for PMI future book of business other capital relief

initiatives at PMI and/or debt or equity offerings Given current market conditions generally and in our industry

there can be no assurance that we will be able to consummate any capital transactions on favorable terms or at

all or that we will successfully obtain assistance under the Financial Stability Plan or other government

programs In addition continued losses or additional ratings downgrades could make it more difficult for us to

raise the necessary capital Moreover to the extent capital raising transaction is undertaken in an effort to avoid

ratings downgrade or adverse regulatory or GSE action there can be no assurance that the transaction could be

completed in timely manner to avoid such downgrade or action The terms of capital raising transaction could

require us to agree to stringent financial and operating covenants and to grant security interests on our assets to

lenders or holders of our debt securities that could limit our flexibility in operating our business or our ability to

pay dividends on our common stock and could make it more difficult for us to obtain capital in the future We

may not be able to access additional debt financing on acceptable terms or at all Any future equity funding could

be significantly dilutive to our existing shareholders or could result in the issuance of securities that have rights

preferences and privileges that are senior to those of our common stock Further any capital initiatives in the

form of reinsurance or other risk transfer transactions of our existing portfolios would have dilutive effect on

our future earnings

We may face liquidity issues at our holding company The PMI Group

The PM Group is holding company and conducts its business operations through various subsidiaries

Historically The PM Groups principal sources of funds havebeen dividends from its insurance subsidiaries and

income from its investment portfolio State insurance regulations restrict the amount of dividends that may be

paid by The PM Groups insurance subsidiaries without the consent of the applicable regulator As result of

among other things PMI losses and the decline in its capital position PMI did not pay dividends to The PM
Group in 2008 and we do not expect that PMI will be able to pay dividends in 2009 or 2010

At December 31 2008 The PM Group held cash and marketable securities of $235.9 million including

$200 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility We believe that we currently have sufficient

liquidity at our holding company after consideration of receivables from PM with respect to tax sharing

agreements to pay holding company expenses including interest expense on our outstanding debt in 2009 and
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2010 and to repay the amounts outstanding under the credit facility if we were required to do so If an event of

default under our revolving credit facility is not cured or we do not repay within 30 days an event of default

would occur under our outstanding senior notes The PMI Group does not currently have sufficient funds or other

sources of liquidity to enable it to repay both our credit facility and our senior notes if those obligations were

required to be repaid immediately See Our credit facility contains restrictive and financial covenants and if we

are unable to comply with these covenants we may trigger an event of default under the facility below In

addition unexpected liabilities or investment losses could adversely affect The PMI Groups liquidity

Our credit facility contains restrictive andfinancial covenants and if we are unable to comply with these

covenants we may trigger an event of default under the facility

We currently have $200 million outstanding under our $250 million revolving credit facility The credit

facility contains number of financial covenants including minimum Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth as

defined in the facility requirement of $1.5 billion maximum total debt to total capitalization percentage

requirement of 35% and maximum risk-to-capital ratio requirement of 20 to Events of default under the

existing facility include among others PMI being suspended as an approved mortgage insurer by either of

the GSEs and failing to cure such suspension within 30 days or PMI being disqualified or terminated as an

approved mortgage insurer by either of the GSEs PM failing to maintain financial strength rating of at

least Baa from Moodys while also failing to maintain financial strength rating of at least BBB from SP
and our material insurance subsidiaries as defined in the facility being subject to certain regulatory actions

or restrictions by their respective primary insurance regulators that are not cured within specified periods of time

Upon an event of default we would likely be required to repay
all outstanding indebtedness under the credit

facility and would be unable to draw on the facility and the lenders under the credit facility would have the right

to terminate their loan commitments under the facility In addition an event of default under the facility if not

cured within 30days would cause an event of default under our outstanding senior notes and could require us to

repay all our outstanding senior notes

As of December 31 2008 our Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth was $1.72 billion and our total debt to total

capitalization percentage was 27.4% and PMIs risk-to-capital ratio was 18.5 to PMIs insurer financial

strength ratings are Ba3 Developing from Moodys and A- Watch Negative from SP In addition while

we have submitted to the GSEs remediation plans and to date each of the GSEs continues to treat PMI as an

eligible mortgage insurer we cannot be sure that the GSEs will continue to treat PM as an eligible mortgage

insurer We believe that we will continue to incur material losses that will reduce our Adjusted Consolidated Net

Worth increase our total debt to total capitalization percentage and increase PMIs risk-to-capital ratio SP
may take additional ratings actions with respect to PM and other mortgage insurers in the near future

We are actively engaged in discussions with the lenders under our credit facility to amend the financial

covenants and events of default under the credit facility Pending negotiation and execution of an amendment to

the credit facility the lenders under the credit facility have agreed to suspend the financial strength ratings event

of default reduce the minimum Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth requirement to $1.2 billion and increase the

maximum PM risk-to-capital ratio requirement to 24.0 to through April 15 2009 As part of this agreement

we have agreed not to borrow additional amounts under the facility or contribute additional capital to our

subsidiaries unless and until we are in compliance with these rating Adjusted Consolidated New Worth and risk

to-capital ratio provisions as they were set forth in the credit facility prior to their suspension We cannot be sure

that we will complete an amendment to the credit agreement on terms acceptable to us prior to the expiration of

this temporary suspension or at all We believe that unless we raise capital or the credit facility is successfully

amended we will be unable to comply with all credit facility covenants and terms on or after April 16 2009
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Unless we raise capital PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and its risk-to-capital ratio will likely

increase beyond the levels necessary to meet various capital adequacy requirements which would restrict

PMIs business operations result in further downgrades of our ratings and have an adverse impact on our

financial condition results of operations and business

PMIs principal regulator is the Arizona Department of Insurance the Department whose regulations

require PMI to maintain policyholders position of not less than minimum computed under formula set by

statute Other states in which PM is licensed also use policyholders position formula to determine

mortgage insurers capital adequacy If mortgage insurer does not meet the minimum required by the formula

it cannot write new business until its policyholders position meets the minimum

Other states require mortgage insurers to maintain certain risk-to-capital ratios generally at 25 to If

mortgage insurers risk-to-capital ratio exceeds the limit applicable in state it may be prohibited from writing

new business in that state until its risk-to-capital ratio falls below the limit Moreover our revolving credit

facility contains risk-to-capital ratio requirement of 20 to with respect to MIC which requirement has been

temporarily suspended through April 15 2009 If PMIs capital adequacy metrics exceed the limits discussed

above we will be prohibited from continuing to write new business in some or all states and unless we

successfully renegotiate the credit facility would be in default under the credit facility after April 15 2009

which could result in acceleration of all our outstanding indebtedness See Our credit facility contains restrictive

and financial covenants and if we are unable to comply with these covenants we may trigger an event of default

under the facility

Under the terms of our runoff support agreement with Allstate Insurance Company PMI is subject to

restrictions that may apply if its risk-to-capital ratio exceeds 23 to Under the runoff support agreement among

other things PMI may not declare or pay dividends at any time that its risk-to-capital ratio equals or exceeds

23 to or if such dividend would cause its risk-to-capital ratio to equal or exceed 23 to In addition if PMIs

risk-to-capital ratio equals or exceeds 23 to at three consecutive monthly measurement dates PMI may not

enter into new insurance or reinsurance contracts without the consent of Allstate Insurance Company If

following such time as PMI risk-to-capital ratio were to exceed 23 to Allstate Insurance Company were to

make any payments on account of specified third party claims or if PMIs risk-to-capital ratio were to exceed

24.5 to the runoff support agreement requires PMI to transfer substantially all of its liquid assets to trust

account for the payment of PMI obligations to policyholders

At December 31 2008 PMI exceeded its minimum policyholders position under Arizona law by $424

million and PMIs risk-to-capital ratio was 18.5 to Based on current conditions and expected future trends we

believe that we will continue to incur material losses The ultimate amount of losses will depend in part on

general economic conditions including the health of credit markets home price fluctuations and unemployment

rates all of which are difficult to predict Unless we raise capital PMI policyholders position will likely decline

and its risk-to-capital ratio will likely increase beyond levels necessary to meet capital adequacy requirements

The amount and timing of capital we require will depend on number of factors such as

The levels of future losses and new insurance written

Economic conditions

Compliance with regulatory policyholders position and risk-to-capital requirements

Rating agencies and GSE requirements and determinations

The performance of our investment portfolio and the extent to which we are required to impair portions

of the portfolio as result of deteriorating capital markets and

The potential need of certain of our insurance subsidiaries for hard capital support
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Many of these factors may be outside of our control and difficult to predict In addition some of these

factors such as the views and requirements of the rating agencies and GSEs are subjective and not subject to

specific quantitative standards

Capital constraints require us to limit our subsidiaries operations including reducing our new insurance

writing or NIW in 2008 and 2009 which is adversely affecting our results of operations and competitive

position

Our insurance subsidiaries to varying degree face significant capital constraints in the form of elevated

losses regulatory capital requirements restrictive financial covenants in our credit facility internally-imposed

capital limitations in light of our companys overall capital needs and rating agency capital requirements To

partially address our capital constraints we are limiting new insurance writings of our insurance subsidiaries

Reducing our new insurance writings to preserve capital has reduced our revenues and we expect that capital

constraints will continue to reduce our revenue and NIW unless and until we are able to obtain additional capital

We have been and will continue to be negatively impacted by recent downgrades of PMIs insurer financial

strength ratings

Standard Poors SP insurer financial strength rating of PM is A- Watch Negative PM is

currently rated BBB Negative and Ba3 Developing by Fitch and Moodys respectively As result of

the downgrades of PMI PM Europe has also been downgraded and has received insurer financial strength

ratings of A- Watch Negative BBB Negative and Developing from Standard Poors Fitch

and Moodys respectively PMI Europes rating is dependent in part upon the capital support of PMI

The recent downgrades have had negative effect on our eligibility to insure mortgage loans from the GSEs

and other private mortgage lenders who condition our eligibility partly on our maintenance of certain ratings See

The exercise of certain rights reserved by the GSEs under eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers could

harm our profitability and reduce our operational flexibility Some private mortgage lenders may also reduce the

amount of or eliminate all mortgage insurance they purchase from us as result of the ratings downgrade If we

become ineligible to provide insurance to portion or all of the mortgage loans from the GSEs or private

mortgage lenders our financial condition and results of operations would be materially adversely affected

The recent downgrades also have had an adverse impact on PMI Europe In 2008 PM Europes and The

PM Groups downgrades gave rise to the right by certain counterparties to terminate their agreements
andlor

required PM Europe to post collateral for the benefit of such counterparties See We are exposed to risk in our

European operations

If we experience further downgrades our business prospects revenues competitive position holding

company debt ratings and the performance of our insurance subsidiaries could be significantly harmed In

addition after April 15 2009 an event of default would occur under our credit facility if MIC fails to maintain

financial strength rating of at least Baa from Moodys or fails to maintain financial strength rating of at least

BBB from Standard Poors See Our credit facility contains restrictive and financial covenants and if we

are unable to comply with these covenants we may trigger an event of default under the facility We will need to

raise additional capital to regain our ratings There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise any

additional capital in the future either on acceptable terms or in timely manner or at all See We expect that we

will need to raise significant amounts of additional capital There is no assurance that we will be able to raise

needed capital on timely basis and on favorable terms or at all

The exercise of certain rights reserved by the GSEs under eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers could

harm our profitability and reduce our operationalflexibility

The GSEs have issued eligibility requirements for qualified mortgage insurers covering substantially all

areas of PM mortgage insurance operations including requiring mortgage insurers to maintain certain insurer
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financial strength ratings and may revise any eligibility requirement at any time in their own discretion In

response to ratings downgrades of PMI below Aa3/AA- the USEs required us to submit remediation plans

outlining among other things the steps we are taking or plan to take to increase our and PMIs insurer financial

strength We have submitted remediation plans to both GSEs and to date each of the GSEs continues to treat PMI

as an eligible mortgage insurer Freddie Mac has stated that its forbearance from enforcing additional insurer

requirements is wholly discretionary and subject to change as well as its review of monthly updates regarding

PMI progress in implementing its remediation plan Fannie Mae also requires periodic updates from PMI See

Item U.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsProductsPrimary Mortgage Insurance-Primary Flow

Channel

The GSEs in their own discretion could require PMI to limit certain activities and practices in order to

remain an eligible mortgage insurer with them Such limitations could include among other things maximum

risk-to-capital ratios and limitations on our ability to pay dividends or make other payments which could limit

our operating flexibility and limit the areas in which we may write new business Either or both of the GSEs

could determine that PMI is no longer an eligible mortgage insurer The GSEs as major purchasers of

conventional mortgage loans in the United States are the primary beneficiaries of PMIs mortgage insurance

coverage If either or both of the GSEs were to cease to consider PMI an eligible mortgage insurer and therefore

cease accepting our mortgage insurance products our consolidated financial condition and results of operations

would be significantly harmed and an event of default would occur under our credit facility

downgrade of our senior unsecured debt ratings could increase our borrowing costs and therefore

adversely affect our liquidity

Our senior unsecured debt is rated BBB- Negative Outlook by Standard Poors BB Rating Watch

Negative by Fitch and B3 Rating Under Review by Moodys Our access to external sources of financing

as well as the cost of financing is dependent on various factors and would be adversely affected by continued

deterioration of our unsecured debt ratings Debt ratings are influenced by number of factors including but are

not limited to financial leverage on an absolute basis or relative to peers the composition of the balance sheet

and/or capital structure material changes in earning trends and volatility inability to dividend monies from

subsidiaries our competitive position and the rating agencies views on the future earnings prospects of our

insurance subsidiaries and the mortgage insurance industry Sustained deterioration in any one or combination

of these factors including our weak financial results and continued weak earnings performance could result in

additional downgrades of our debt ratings thus increasing the cost of and/or limiting the availability of unsecured

financing Placement of our senior unsecured debt ratings on credit watch by the rating agencies increases the

risk that our debt ratings may be downgraded again in the near future If we cannot obtain adequate capital on

favorable terms or at all our business operating results and financial condition would be adversely affected

As result of significant volatility and uncertainty in the market we impaired the value of certain securities

held in our investment portfolio and there is risk that additional impairments may occur in the future

In 2008 we determined that certain preferred securities held in our U.S investment portfolio were other-than

temporarily impaired and incurred $96.5 million loss related to the impairment Changing and unprecedented

market conditions have materially impacted and could continue to materially impact the valuation of investment

securities in our investment portfolios which may cause us to impair in the future some portion of the preferred and

other securities remaining in our portfolio Any decision to impair securities held in our investment portfolio would

be based on our assessment of among other things recent credit downgrades of the applicable security or the issuer

by the rating agencies the severity and nature of the decline in market value below cost regardless of the duration of

the decline the financial condition of the applicable issuer whether scheduled interest payments are past due and

whether we have the ability and intent to hold the security for sufficient period of time to allow for anticipated

recoveries in fair value Future reductions to the value of our investment securities on an other-than-temporary basis

could have material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition In addition future

reductions to the value of our investment portfolios would negatively affect our capital which could cause PMIs
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policyholders position to decline and its risk-to-capital ratio to increase and further constrain our ability to write new

insurance See Unless we raise additional capital PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and its

risk-to-capital ratio will likely increase beyond the levels necessary to meet various capital adequacy requirements

which would restrict PMIs business operations result in further downgrades of our ratings and have an adverse

impact on our financial condition results of operations and business above

Risks Relating to Risk Management and Loss Reserving

We establish loss reserves with respect to our mortgage insurance policies only upon loan defaults and

because our loss reserve estimates are subject to uncertainties our actual losses may substantially exceed our

loss reserves Further due to higher losses we may be required to record premiumdeficiency reserve in the

future

The establishment of loss reserves is subject to inherent uncertainty and requires significant judgment by

management Loss reserves established with respect to our mortgage insurance business are based upon

managements estimates and judgments principally with respect to the rate and severity of claims and are

particularly uncertain during economic downturn which is characterized by market volatility and disruption In

accordance with GAAP for the mortgage insurance industry we establish loss reserves for our mortgage

insurance subsidiaries only for loans in default We establish reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses or

LAE based upon our estimate of unpaid losses and LAE on reported mortgage loans in default and

ii estimated defaults incurred but not yet reported to us by servicers Our mortgage insurance reserving process

does not take account of the impact of future losses that could occur from loans that are not in default As

result future notices of defaults on insured loans may have material impact on our financial results and our

ultimate actual losses may be substantially higher than our loss reserve estimates The continuing adverse

economic and market conditions and resulting uncertainty with respect to the rate and severity of claims may

result in substantial increases in loss reserves in the future Additional increases in loss reserves would negatively

affect our consolidated financial condition and results of operations

We perform premium deficiency analyses quarterly on single book basis for the U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations using assumptions based on our best estimates when the analyses are performed The calculation for

premium deficiency which is the present value of expected future losses and expenses to the extent they exceed

the present value of expected future premium requires significant judgment and includes estimates of future

expected premiums expected claims loss adjustment expenses and maintenance costs as of the date of the

test The calculation of future expected premiums uses assumptions for persistency and termination levels on

policies currently in force Assumptions for future expected losses include future expected average
claim sizes

and claim rates which are based on the current default rate and expected future defaults

premium deficiency analysis was performed on U.S GAAP basis as of December 31 2008 and we

determined there was no premium deficiency in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment despite

significant losses in 2008 Because this premium deficiency calculation required significant judgment and

estimation to the extent actual losses are higher or actual premiums are lower than the assumptions we used in our

analysis we could be required to record premium deficiency reserve in any future reporting periods which could

indirectly trigger an event of default under our credit facility and would negatively affect our financial condition and

results of operations

Our underwriting and risk management policies and practices may not anticipate all risks and/or the

magnitude of potential for loss as the result of unforeseen risks

We have established underwriting and risk management policies and practices which seek to mitigate our

exposure
to borrower default risk in our insured portfolio by anticipating future risks and the magnitude of those

risks In 2008 in light of economic and market conditions we continued to implement new pricing and tighter

underwriting guidelines Given the uncertainties caused by the present economic downturn and to the extent that

risk is unforeseen or is underestimated in terms of magnitude of loss these policies and practices will not
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insulate us from the effects of those risks When establishing loss reserves we rely on models that have been

developed internally and by third parties to analyze and predict estimated losses relating to our current inventory

of loans in default Flaws in these models and/or in assumptions used by these models could lead to increased

losses and loss reserving

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Current market volatility combined with falling home prices and rising unemployment have materially and

adversely affected our business and results of operations and we do not expect these conditions to improve in

the near future

Through our main operating businesses we are exposed to the risk that borrowers will default on residential

mortgage loans we have insured The current economic downturn characterized by deteriorating and volatile

credit and capital markets falling home prices and higher unemployment has significantly increased the

likelihood of borrowers defaulting on their mortgage loans and increased defaults and claims As result we

have incurred higher losses and the amount of new insurance written has declined We expect that these trends

will continue and will continue to materially affect our results of operations and financial condition

As discussed in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations we significantly increased PMI loss reserves in 2008 as result of the increase in PMI default

inventory higher claim rates higher average claim sizes and worsened severity which is the ratio of the claim

paid to the original risk-in-force relating to the loan Higher claim rates were driven in part by home price

declines and the diminished availability of certain loan products both of which constrain refinancing

opportunities and decrease the cure rate The increase in PMI average claim size was driven by higher average

loan sizes and coverage levels in PMIs portfolio as well as declines in home prices which limit PMIs loss

mitigation opportunities Our losses significantly increased in 2008 and we expect losses to continue in 2009 as

result of the severe downturn in the housing mortgage and capital markets

lithe role of the GSEs in the U.S housing market is changed or if the GSEs change other policies or

practices the amount of insurance that PMI writes could further decrease which could result in decrease of

our future revenue

The GSEs are the beneficiaries on significant portion of the insurance policies we issue as result of their

purchases statutorily required or otherwise of qualifying mortgage loans from lenders or investors In 2008 the

GSEs were and in 2009 the GSEs will be the beneficiaries of essentially all PMI issued insurance policies

Accordingly changes in the GSEs policies and practices with respect to mortgage credit enhancement could

significantly affect our business

The placement of the GSEs into the conservatorship of the FHFA increases the likelihood that the

U.S Congress will examine the role and
purpose

of the GSEs in the U.S housing market and potentially propose

certain structural and other changes to the GSEs New federal legislation or programs could reduce the level of

or eliminate the purchase of private mortgage insurance by the GSEs or fundamentally change the manner in

which the GSEs utilize credit enhancement For example under the Treasurys Home Affordable Refinance

Program announced on March 2009 certain borrowers whose loans are owned or guaranteed by the GSEs and

have loan-to-value ratios that have risen as result of declines in home prices may refinance into lower interest

and take advantage of lower interest rates or more stable loan product Under this program the GSEs will not

require mortgage insurance as credit enhancement on refinances of mortgages that were originated at less than

80% LTV but are now greater than 80% LTV The extent to which the Treasurys refinance program will impact

PMIs operations and business is unknown This program and other changes in the GSEs practices could have

material adverse effect on our business harm our ability to compete and reduce the profitability of our mortgage

insurance business
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decrease in the volume of low down-payment home mortgage originations would cause our revenues to

decline

Our future revenues also depend on the volume of low down payment home mortgage originations

decline in the volume of low down payment mortgage originations would reduce the demand for private

mortgage insurance and consequently our revenues The volume of low down payment mortgage originations is

affected by among other factors

general economic conditions including access to credit markets unemployment rates interest rates and

home prices

government policies including government housing policies encouraging homeownership federal and

state economic stimulus programs and policies and GSE and lender-specific policies and

the availability of mortgage insurance for high LTV loans which is affected by among other things

general economic conditions secondary market demand government housing policy and capital

constraints facing mortgage insurers

decline in the volume of low down payment mortgage originations would reduce the demand for

mortgage insurances products such as the ones we offer and could in turn have an adverse effect on our results of

operations and financial condition

Our business andfinancial performance could suffer if PMI were to lose the business of major customer

PMI top ten customers accounted for 49.4% of its premiums earned in 2008 Earned premiums from

Fannie Mae exceeded 10% of our consolidated revenues and represented 12.6% of PMIs earned premiums in

2008 The loss of significant customer for any reason could reduce our revenue and if not replaced harm our

consolidated financial condition and results of operations

The premiums we charge for mortgage insurance on insured loans and the associated investment income may

not be adequate to compensate forfuture losses from these loans

We charge premium rates in effect at the time policy is issued based upon our expectations regarding

likely performance over the life of insurance coverage We generally cannot cancel mortgage insurance coverage

or adjust renewal premiums during the life of mortgage insurance policy As result higher than anticipated

claims generally cannot be offset by premium increases on policies in force or mitigated by non-renewal or

cancellation of insurance coverage The premiums we charge on our insurance in force and the associated

investment income may not be adequate to compensate us for the risks and costs associated with the insurance

coverage provided to customers An increase in the number or size of unanticipated claims could adversely affect

our consolidated financial condition and results of operations

PMIs primary new insurance written and risk in force includes

Loans with LTVs exceeding 97% known as Above-97s As of December 31 2008 21.5% of PMIs

primary risk in force consisted of Above-97s We no longer insure loans with LTVs exceeding 95%

Above-97s represented 4.8% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2008

ARMs As of December 31 2008 8.0% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of ARMs excluding

2/28 Hybrid ARMs

2/28 Hybrid ARMs As of December 31 2008 2.3% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of

2/28 Hybrid ARMs through PMIs structured finance channel

Alt-A loans As of December 31 2008 18.8% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of Alt-A loans

Beginning in 2007 we began progressively tightening our underwriting guidelines related to Alt-A
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loans and effective June 2008 we eliminated Alt-A loan eligibility altogether Alt-A loans

represented 5.3% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2008

Interest only loans As of December 31 2008 approximately 11.8% of PMIs primary risk in force

consisted of interest only loans

Payment option ARMs As of December 31 2008 approximately 3.4% of PMIs primary risk in force

consisted of payment option ARMs Effective April 15 2008 we eliminated future coverage of

negatively-amortizing ARM products Payment Option ARMs represented 0.2% of our total primary

NIW for the
year

ended December 31 2008

Less-than-A quality mortgage loans As of December 31 2008 7.1% of PMI primary risk in force

consisted of less-than-A quality loans

We expect higher default and claim rates for high-LTV ARM 2/28 Hybrid ARM Alt-A interest only

payment option ARM and less-than-A quality loans We also insure loans that have more than one of the above

risk characteristics As of December 31 2008 approximately 2.5% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of

Above-97s that are less-than-A quality loans approximately 2.4% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of

Alt-A loans that are also Above-97s and approximately 3.1% of PMIs primary risk in force consisted of interest

only loans that are also Above-97s This layering of risk has increased the risk of borrower default Although

we attempt to incorporate the higher default and claim rates associated with these loans into our underwriting and

pricing models there can be no assurance that the premiums earned and the associated investment income will

prove adequate to compensate for future losses from these loans While the risk of default on these loans is

already higher worsening economic conditions rising unemployment rates and/or additional house price

declines could even more significantly increase the default risks associated with these loans In addition these

same negative economic and market conditions could also significantly increase the default and claim risk on

loans for which we did not assume higher default and claim rates

PMIs loss experience may increase as its policies continue to age

Generally we expect the majority of losses and LAE on insured loans in PMI current portfolio to occur

during the second through the fourth years
after loan origination Primary insurance written from the period of

January 2005 through December 31 2007 represented 58.9% of PMIs primary risk in force as of

December 31 2008 Accordingly significant percentage of the primary portfolio is in or approaching its peak

claim years In addition PMI has experienced adverse and accelerated delinquency development in the 2005

2006 and 2007 insured loan portfolios We believe our loss experience could increase even more as these policies

age If the claim frequency on PMI risk in force significantly exceeds the claim frequency that was assumed in

setting premium rates our consolidated financial condition and results of operations would be harmed

Initiatives through our Home Preservation Initiatives HPI department and other similar mortgage

modification programs may not provide material benefits to us

As discussed in Item 1B7 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsDefaults and Claims in

response to the increase in PMI delinquent loans changing market conditions and increased pressure on loan

servicers in late 2007 PMI formed its HPI department to facilitate our customers responses to the mounting

volume of retention workout requests such as repayment plans and loan modifications which enable borrowers

to cure their defaults and reinstate their loans In early 2008 HPI also began direct outreach to delinquent

borrowers on PMI insured loans to educate them about workout options and to hasten loan workout discussions

with their loan servicers to design workout plans to help cure their defaults

Congress and the U.S government continue to evaluate and develop various programs and initiatives

designed to stabilize the housing markets In February 2009 the Obama Administration announced the

Homeowner Affordability and Stability Plan that intends to help homeowners to refinance or modify their
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mortgages with more favorable mortgage terms It is not yet clear whether such and other similar programs will

result in significant numbers of loan modifications In addition there can be no assurance that modified loans

will not subsequently re-default resulting in losses that could be greater than those we would have paid had the

loan not been modified Because these programs are in their early stages we do not know whether they will

provide material benefits to us

If legislation is enacted to more easily permit mortgage balances to be reduced in bankruptcy we may still

be responsible to pay eligible claims based on the loans original balances if borrowers re-default on their

mortgages after the balances are reduced Various government entities have enacted foreclosure moratoria which

do not affect the accrual of interest and other expenses on delinquent loans Unless loan is modified during

moratorium to cure default at the expiration of the moratorium additional interest and expenses would be due

which could result in our losses on loans subject to the moratorium being higher than if there had been no

moratorium

Geographic concentration of PMIs primary insurance in force has increased and could continue to increase

claims and losses and harm our financial performance

We are affected by economic downturns and other events in specific regions of the United States where

large portion of our U.S business is concentrated As of December 31 2008 10.3% of PMIs primary risk in

force was located in Florida and 8.0% was located in California We are currently experiencing accelerated

delinquency and loss development in those states In addition as of December 31 2008 16.9% of our primary

risk-in-force related to loans located in Illinois Georgia New Jersey and Ohio Collectively these states

experienced higher default rates in 2008 than other states in the U.S as result of relatively weak economic

activity higher unemployment rates and dramatic declines in house prices We expect that our loss experience

with respect to risk-in-force in these states will continue to deteriorate in the near future which could continue to

adversely affect our results of operations and financial position

We delegate underwriting authority to mortgage lenders which could cause us to insure mortgage loans that

do not conform to our underwriting guidelines and thereby increase claims and losses

significant percentage of PMI new insurance written is underwritten pursuant to delegated

underwriting program under which subject to periodic audit certain mortgage lenders may determine whether

mortgage loans meet our program guidelines and commit us to issue mortgage insurance If PMI determines that

lender participating in the delegated program commits PM to insure loan that fails to meet all of the

approved underwriting guidelines subject to certain exceptions PMI has the right to exclude or rescind coverage

on the loan PMI may also suspend or terminate the insureds delegated authority to extend coverage to new

loans if it determines that the insured has not been complying with approved underwriting guidelines Because

PMI does not review the underwriting determinations on all loans claims may be paid on certain loans with

unacceptable risk profiles or which failed to meet approved underwriting guidelines at the time of origination In

addition certain customers who fail to comply with approved underwriting guidelines may go undetected and

continue to submit noncompliant loans under their delegated authority

Higher persistency rates in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations place additional constraints on capital

making it more difficult to write new business

As discussed in Item 1B5 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsBusiness Composition

Persistency PMIs persistency rate has increased in recent years rising to 82.2% in 2008 from 75.5% and 69.6%

in 2007 and 2006 respectively PMI persistency rate has been positively impacted by lower borrower refinance

activity of PMI insured loans primarily as result of declining home prices and the diminished availability of

loan products To the extent that home prices continue to decline and residential mortgage refinance activity

remains relatively low we expect that PMIs persistency rate will remain high and therefore limit the rate at

which PMIs existing risk in force runs off Because PM must maintain sufficient capital to satisfy regulatory

55



risk-to-capital metrics higher persistency rates-even though they create relatively higher revenues-constrain

PMIs capital position and its ability to write new business which may adversely impact our future revenues and

results of operations See Capital constraints require us to limit our subsidiaries operations including reducing

our new insurance writing or NIW in 2008 and 2009 which is adversely affecting our results of operations and

competitive position

If mortgage lenders and investors select alternatives to private mortgage insurance the amount of insurance

that we write could decline which could reduce our revenues and profits as well as our competitiveness

Alternatives to private mortgage insurance include

government mortgage insurance programs including those of the FHA and the VA

lenders and investors holding mortgages in their portfolios and self-insuring

mortgage lenders maintaining lender recourse or participation with respect to loans sold to the GSEs

lenders and investors using internal credit enhancements such as subordination using other credit

enhancements combined with reduced mortgage insurance coverage or accepting credit risk without

credit enhancement and

mortgage lenders returning to structuring mortgage originations to avoid private mortgage insurance

primarily through the use of so called simultaneous seconds piggybacks 80/10/lOs 80/15/5s or 80/20

loans which include first mortgage with an 80% loan-to-value ratio and second mortgage with

loan-to-value ratio ranging from 5% to 20% In light of current market conditions most lenders ceased

originating such loans however if market conditions improve lenders could choose to originate

simultaneous seconds in the future

These alternatives or other alternatives to private mortgage insurance that may develop could reduce the

demand for private mortgage insurance and cause our revenues and profitability to decline

Recently enacted federal legislation provides the FHA with greater flexibility in establishing new products

and temporarily increases the maximum loan amount that the FHA may insure in some cases up to the GSE

limits including up to $729500 for certain high cost areas i.e areas with median house prices that are higher

than the regular conforming loan limit In the past FHAs market share included loans that would be ineligible

for mortgage insurance from private mortgage insurer however the expansion of the FHA mortgage

insurance program now includes loans that would be eligible for insurance from private mortgage insurer As

result the FHA substantially increased its market share of the U.S primary mortgage insurance business The

future size of the FHA market will depend in large part on whether Congress will permanently keep the FHA
maximum loan limit at its current level or adopt additional increases Any changes expanding the FHA program

could cause future demand for private mortgage insurance to decrease and have material adverse effect on our

ability to compete with the FHA

Government-owned or -sponsored mortgage insurance providers such as the FHA and VA may establish

pricing terms and business practices that are not consistent with maximizing return on capital or other

profitability metrics In addition they may not have the same capital requirements that private mortgage insurers

have and therefore may have greater financial flexibility in their product portfolios that could put us in

competitive disadvantage To the extent such government-owned or sponsored entities decide to issue loans

with more unfavorable terms in furtherance of social or other goals rather than based on profit or risk

management motive we may be unable to compete effectively in that market which could adversely affect our

financial condition and results of operations

Prior to their suspension in 2008 the risk-based capital rules applicable to the GSEs may have allowed large

financial entities such as banks financial guarantors insurance companies and brokerage firms to provide or
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arrange for products that may efficiently substitute for some of the capital relief provided to the GSEs by private

mortgage insurance Our competitive position and our consolidated financial condition and results of operations

could be banned if these rules are reinstituted and the GSEs were to use these products in lieu of mortgage

insurance See Changes to the risk-based capital rules applicable to the GSEs could cause PMIs business to suffer

Our revenues and profits could decline if PMI loses market share as result of industry competition or our

limited ability to write new business

The principal sources of PMI competition include other private mortgage insurers several of which are

wholly-owned subsidiaries of public companies with direct or indirect capital reserves that provide it with

potentially greater resources than we have as well as the various alternatives to private mortgage insurance

discussed in If mortgage lenders and investors select alternatives to private mortgage insurance the amount of

insurance that we write could decline which could reduce our revenues and profits as well as our

competitiveness above Future entrants to the mortgage insurance industry if any could also negatively affect

our market share and revenues We believe that at least one additional company is considering offering mortgage

insurance in the United States

In response to market conditions we implemented significant pricing and underwriting guideline changes

which reduced PMIs new business writings in 2008 and due to capital constraints we will continue to limit

NIW in 2009 If demand for mortgage insurance products from PMI diminishes as result of our capital

preservation initiatives we may have greater difficulties competing with other private mortgage insurers other

external credit enhancers and the various other private mortgage insurance alternatives See Capital constraints

require us to limit our subsidiaries operations including reducing our new insurance writing or NIW in 2008

and 2009 which is adversely affecting our results of operations and competitive position In addition if we

experience delays in introducing competitive new products and programs or if these products or programs are

less profitable than our existing products and programs our business will suffer If our revenues decline we may

be unable to replenish PMIs investment portfolio to the extent that the portfolio is reduced to pay claims

We reinsure portion of our mortgage insurance default risk with lender-affiliated captive reinsurance

companies which reduces our net premiums written and earned

Mortgage insurers including PMI offer products to lenders that are designed to allow them to participate in

the risks and rewards of the mortgage insurance business Many of the major mortgage lenders have established

affiliated captive reinsurance companies These captive reinsurance companies assume portion of the risks

associated with the lenders insured mortgage loans in exchange for percentage of the associated gross

premiums Because the GSEs currently prohibit cessions of gross risk or gross premium cedes greater than 25%

to captive reinsurers and PMI ceased seeking excess-of-loss XOL captive reinsurance arrangements we expect

the portion of our new primary insurance business that is subject to captive arrangements to decrease See

Item B9a BusinessU Mortgage Insurance OperationsReinsuranceCaptive Reinsurance PMI will

continue to cede premiums under its in-force XOL contracts until they run-off and mature pursuant to the

existing terms and conditions and as result captive reinsurance agreements will continue to negatively impact

our net premiums written and earned

If we are unable to keep pace with the technological demands of our customers or with the technology-related

products and services offered by our competitors our business and financial performance could be

significantly harmed

Participants in the mortgage lending and mortgage insurance industries rely on e-commerce and other

technology to provide and expand their products and services Our customers generally require that we provide

our products and services electronically via the Internet or electronic data transmission and we process

majority of our new insurance written and claims processing electronically We expect this trend to continue and

accordingly we believe that it is essential that we continue to invest resources in maintaining electronic
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connectivity with our customers and more generally in e-commerce and technology Because of capital

constraints we may reduce costs by among other things decreasing the level of resources devoted to

e-commerce and technology upgrades Our business may suffer if we do not keep pace with the technological

demands of our customers and the technological capabilities of our competitors

Regulatory and Litigation Risk

The U.S mortgage insurance industry and PMI are subject to litigation risk

The mortgage insurance industry and PMI face litigation risk in the ordinary course of operations including

the risk of class action lawsuits In recent years mortgage insurers including PMI have been involved in

litigation with policyholders regarding the rescission of mortgage insurance coverage on individual loans under

the terms of the insurers master policies where the mortgage insurers discovered misrepresentations by for

example borrower lender or an agent of the lender In 2008 as result of significant increase in the volume

of defaults on loans we insure we are reviewing and investigating larger volume of insured loans for fraud

negligence negligent underwriting and eligibility for coverage which has resulted in substantial increase in the

number of policy rescissions See Item 1B7 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsDefaults and

ClaimsDefaults We believe the rise in the numbers of rescissions heightens the risk of litigation concerning

our rescission decisions

On January 15 2009 Bayview Loan Servicing LLC Bayview filed complaint against PM Mortgage

Insurance Co PM in California state court in Contra Costa County The complaint alleges that PMI

improperly rescinded mortgage insurance
coverage on 39 loans which Bayview acquired from PMIs insured

Alliance Bancorp and alleges damages of at least $10 million PM does not believe that Bayviews allegations

have merit and intends to defend the action vigorously

On August 28 2008 PM Mortgage Insurance Co PM rescinded coverage on 5565 loans that

IndyMac Bank delivered to PMI for coverage in 2007 under lender paid mortgage insurance program On

September 12 2008 IndyMac Federal Bank FSB IndyMac by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FDIC as Conservator filed complaint against PM in the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California alleging that PM improperly rescinded mortgage insurance
coverage on the 5565 loans

The complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief and requests damages against PMI in an unspecified

amount for breach of contract tortuous breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and

reformation Thereafter on October 31 2008 IndyMac by the FDIC as Conservator filed an amended

complaint which included allegations related to PM rescission of coverage on certain additional ineligible

interest-only loans rescinded on October 2008 and on January 2009 filed second amended complaint

adding additional allegations including allegations related to the FDICs rights and powers as conservator

receiver Trial in the matter is set for January 11 2010 PMI filed an answer to the second amended complaint on

February 26 2009 PMI does not believe that the FDIC sIndyMac allegations have merit and intends to defend

the action vigorously

As we continue to review our insured loan portfolios we may rescind more insurance policies in the future

Such rescissions may lead to an increase in litigation by lenders and policyholders asserting claims challenging

our right to rescind such policies Such litigation is likely to be costly even if we are successful in defending

against such claims In addition as result of these rescissions we may have reduced our loss reserves and/or

risk in force for the corresponding policies If we are unsuccessful in defending these rescissions in legal actions

we may need to re-establish loss reserves for and reassume the risk on such rescinded policies which could

harm our results of operations

Litigation relating to capital markets transactions and securities-related matters in general has increased and

is expected to continue to increase as result of the deterioration of the capital credit housing and mortgage

markets In March 2008 we and certain of our executive officers were named in securities class action
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complaints filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California In April 2008 we and

certain of our executive officers and directors were named in two shareholder derivative suits Both of the

derivative suits assert various acts and/or omissions against the defendants Both actions have been stayed by

stipulation of the parties and court orders based on the stipulations until completion of the motion to dismiss

phase of the securities litigation referenced above We continue to believe that we have meritorious defenses to

these lawsuits and intend to defend ourselves vigorously See Item Legal Proceedings

Consumers are also bringing growing number of lawsuits against home mortgage lenders and settlement

service providers Mortgage insurers including PM have been involved in litigation alleging violations of

RESPA and FCRA In the past number of lawsuits have challenged the actions of private mortgage insurers

including PMI under RESPA alleging that the insurers have provided products or services at improperly

reduced prices in return for the referral of mortgage insurance RESPA precludes PMI from providing services or

products to mortgage lenders free of charge charging fees for services that are lower than their reasonable or fair

market value and paying fees for services that others provide that are higher than their reasonable or fair market

value in exchange for the referral of settlement services

We cannot predict whether actions of the types described herein or other actions will be brought against us

or other mortgage insurers in the future Any such proceedings could have an adverse effect on our consolidated

financial position results of operations or cash flows

The U.S mortgage insurance industiy and PMI are subject to regulatory risk and have been subject to

increased scrutiny by insurance and other regulatory authorities

PMI and the mortgage insurance industry are subject to comprehensive detailed regulation by state

insurance departments whose primary goal is to safeguard insurers solvency for the protection of policyholders

Although their scope varies state insurance laws generally grant broad powers to supervisory agencies and

officials to examine and investigate insurance companies and to enforce rules or exercise discretion touching

almost every aspect of PMIs business

We have been subject to increased scrutiny by the Department of Insurance of the State of Arizona and

other state insurance regulatory authorities as result of our substantial losses in recent periods and the decrease

in our statutory capital State insurance regulatory authoritiescould take actions restricting our ability to conduct

business if among other things they were to determine that PMI were in hazardous financial condition Such

regulatory actions could limit our flexibility adversely affect our operating results and result in an event of

default under our credit facility

In addition the insurance industry has become the focus of increased scrutiny by regulatory and law

enforcement authorities concerning certain practices including captive reinsurance arrangements PMI continues

to respond to requests
from the Minnesota Department of Commerce and the Office of Inspector General

OIG of the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development HUD for information regarding its

captive reinsurance arrangements among other matters We cannot predict whether the Minnesota Department of

Commerce and the HUD OIG administrative subpoenas will lead to further inquiries or investigations of these

matters or the scope timing or outcome of any inquiry or actions by those Departments or any inquiry or actions

that may be commenced by state insurance departments attorneys general or other regulators

As result of the deterioration of the housing and mortgage markets in the U.S regulatory oversight of our

insurance subsidiaries may significantly increase in the future Increased federal or state regulatory scrutiny

could lead to new legal precedents new regulations or new practices or regulatory actions or investigations

which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation

Changes to the risk-based capital rules applicable to the GSEs could cause PMIs business to suffer

The FHFA the agency which currently regulates the GSEs has risk-based capital rules that prescribe

treatment of credit enhancement issued by private mortgage insurers and provides capital guidelines for the GSEs
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in connection with their use of other types of credit protection counterparties in addition to mortgage insurers

The rules require the GSEs to hold different amounts of capital against mortgage insurance coverage according to

the rating of the mortgage insurance company that issued the policy See Item 1Bla U.S Mortgage

Insurance OperationsProductsPrimary Mortgage Insurance-Primary Flow Channel Although these rules

were suspended in 2008 the FHFA or other governmental authority including Congress may revisit the risk-

based capital rules and the treatment of mortgage insurance at any time in the future If the rules change or if the

GSEs begin again to follow the FHFA risk-based capital rules our consolidated financial condition and results

of operation could be adversely affected

The implementation of the Base II Capital Accord may limit the use of mortgage insurance

The implementation by banks in the United States of Basel II the Basel Committee on Banking

Supervisions proposal to implement new international capital accord has been indefinitely delayed in the

United States although many banks in the United States implemented Basel II in 2008 and others may continue

to implement Base II in 2009 Basel II affects the capital treatment provided to mortgage insurance by domestic

and international banks in both their origination and securitization activities and the provisions related to

residential mortgages and mortgage insurance could alter the competitive positions of mortgage insurers In

addition the Base II provisions related to residential mortgages and mortgage insurance may provide incentives

to certain customers not to insure mortgages with lower risk of claim and to insure mortgages having higher

risk of claim These systemic incentives may have the effect of presenting the mortgage insurance industry with

the riskiest loans while lenders and investors pursue the less-risky loans utilizing other forms of credit

enhancement or foregoing default protection which could impact our future financial condition

Other Risk

We are exposed to risk in our European operations

Despite the restructuring of our European operations substantial risk remains in those operations and

increased in 2008 as result of deteriorating economic conditions in the United States and the European Union

As result of PMI Europes exposure to U.S subprime risk under reinsurance agreements and the deterioration

of such risk PMI Europe increased its loss reserves by $48.8 million in 2008 and paid claims of $10.6 million If

the performance of these
exposures

continues to deteriorate PM Europe will continue to experience increased

losses and increases to its loss reserves which could have material adverse effect on our results and financial

condition

In addition the 2008 downgrades of PMI Europes insurer financial strength ratings have had an adverse

impact on PM Europe PMI Europes downgrades gave rise to the right by certain counterparties to terminate

their agreements and/or required PMI Europe to post collateral for the benefit of such counterparties As of

March 15 2009 PMI Europe has posted collateral of $64.2 million on credit default swap transactions and $53.7

million related to its exposure to U.S subprime risk PMI Europe may be required to post additional collateral on

credit default swaps as result of such factors as changes in CDS valuations and/or deterioration in the

performance of the underlying collateral referenced in such transactions and on subprime reinsurance

transactions due to continued loss development If PMI Europe is required to post additional collateral our

financial condition could be impaired

Further PM Europes financial results have been volatile as result of changes in the fair value of its credit

default swap derivative contracts Credit derivative transactions are recorded at fair value and are subject to

mark-to-market treatment under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No 133 Accounting for

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities Since quoted market prices for these derivative contracts are

generally not available PMI Europe estimates fair value by using modeling methodologies which are less

objective than using quoted market prices Changes in estimated fair values can be caused by general market
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conditions perception of credit risk generally and events affecting particular credit derivative transactions e.g

impairment or improvement of specific reference entities or reference obligations

Decreases in estimated fair value relative to credit derivatives have caused decreases in the value of such

credit derivative transactions Those changes in value are reflected in our financial statements and have adversely

affected our reported earnings Due to the illiquid nature of the credit default swap market the use of available

market data and assumptions used by management to estimate fair value could differ materially from amounts

that would be realized in the market if the derivatives were traded Further decreases in estimated fair value in the

future will continue to affect our reported earnings The underlying collateral of these credit derivatives are

residential mortgage loans Accordingly continued adverse conditions in the residential mortgage credit market

may continue to result in mark-to-market losses

In estimating the fair values of derivative contracts and based on historical experience PMI Europe

incorporates expected call dates in its internal valuation models Call dates are determined based on number of

factors including the underlying economics of the transactions counterparties exercising their option to call the

transactions at certain agreed dates counterparties expressed intent and potential penalties associated with

extending transactions The current state of capital markets the financial conditions and perspectives of various

counterparties and the general weakening of economic conditions in Europe may lead to decisions to extend the

credit protection offered by PMI Europes CDS contracts If CDS contract is extended beyond its expected call

date PMI Europe will be required to adjust its internal model assumptions To the extent that credit spreads are

higher than at the time of inception of the transaction PMI Europe will recognize further mark-to-market losses

If many CDS contracts extend and spreads remain at their current levels mark-to-market losses could be

material Further if contracts are extended beyond their expected call dates there will be greater likelihood of

incurring higher than currently expected realized losses on the contracts

All of the above risks could result in material losses to PMI Europe and if significant enough in the

aggregate could require PMI to make additional capital contributions to PMI Europe pursuant to its capital

support agreements which could harm the financial condition of PMI

It is unlikely we will recover our investments in our financial guaranty equity investees

We made significant investments in the equity securities of several companies including FGIC through

FGIC Corporation and RAM Re through RAM Holdings Ltd. Our investments in FGIC Corporation and

RAM Re are accounted for on the equity method of accounting in our consolidated financial statements The

carrying values of our investments in FGIC Corporation and RAM Re were zero as of December 31 2008 As

result of the downgrades in FGIC financial strength ratings as discussed in Item 1D Financial Guaranty

FGIC has ceased competing for new business in the financial guaranty industry and we do not expect FGIC to

compete for new business in the future In addition RAM Re is currently not writing new business

There is risk we may not be fully compensated on the contingent note we received in connection with our

sale of PM Australia

When we sold PMI Australia PM received approximately $746 million in cash and note receivable in the

principal amount of approximately $187 million the Note with interest accruing through September 2011

when it matures and is payable As discussed above in Item 1C International OperationsDiscontinued

Operations in PMI Australia and PMI Asia the actual amount owed under the Note is subject to reductions to the

extent performance of PMI Australias existing insurance portfolio as of June 30 2008 does not achieve

specified targets and ii PMI is required to satisfy certain warranty claims We currently do not record any

statutory or GAAP value to the Note due to the contingencies discussed above There is no guarantee that PM
Australias portfolio as of June 30 2008 will achieve the required performance targets or that the counterparty

will not assert warranty claims against us Either or both of these events could impact our ability to recover the

full value of the Note which would harm our consolidated financial condition and results of operations Also the

Note is an unsecured obligation of the issuer and there is no assurance that the issuer will have the ability to

redeem in whole or in part
the Note when it matures in 2011
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Our common stock is subject to sign ificant price fluctuation and possible delisting from the New York Stock

Exchange and suspension of dividend payment may put further pressure on our stock price

Stock prices in general and the price of our common stock in particular have experienced significant

fluctuation over the past year As of March 13 2009 the closing price of our common stock was $0.44 94%

decline from its 52-week high at $7.30 As of the same date our market capitalization was $36.0 million The

market price of our common stock may continue to be subject to significant fluctuations due to general stock

market conditions and change in market perception of the mortgage insurance industry as well as our results of

operations business prospects liquidity and capital position The substantial decline in our market capitalization

will make it more difficult for us to raise equity capital and if we are able to raise equity capital significantly

increase dilution to our existing stockholders

The NYSEs quantitative continuing listing standards require any listed security to have an average closing

price during any 30 consecutive trading days of not less than $1.00 per share and an average global market

capitalization for any such period of not less than $25 million On February 26 2009 the NYSE announced

subject to SEC approval the suspension of the $1.00 minimum price requirement and the reduction of the global

market capitalization standard to $15 million initially through June 30 2009 Our common stock had been

trading below $1.00 before the NYSE announcement and is continuing to trade below $1.00 There is no

assurance that our stock will trade above the $1.00 minimum price requirement after the NYSE suspension

expires or that we will satisfy the NYSE market capitalization requirements If we do not satisfy any of NYSEs

continued listing standards our common stock could be delisted from the NYSE unless we cure the deficiency

during the period provided by the NYSE If the NYSE were to delist our common stock it is likely that the

liquidity of our common stock will be substantially reduced which could significantly reduce our stock price

We paid quarterly dividends on our common stock in 2008 and
years prior thereto Our Board of Directors

has decided to suspend the payment of dividends on our common stock to enhance our liquidity and capital

position in the current challenging environment We do not intend to pay dividend for the first quarter of 2009
and we cannot be sure when whether or at what level we will resume paying dividends on our common stock

Suspension of dividend payments may cause some current stockholders to sell our common stock which could

further depress our stock price

ITEM lB UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM PROPERTIES

We currently own approximately 200000 square feet of office space in Walnut Creek California for our

home office PMI leases offices throughout the United States We conduct our international operations in leased

facilities in Ireland and Italy

ITEM LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In March 2008 we and certain of our executive officers were named in securities class action complaint

filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California Lori Weinrib The PMI Group
Inc Stephen Smith David Katkov and Donald Lofe Jr. Also in March 2008 we and the same

executive officers were named in second securities fraud class action complaint also filed in the United States

District Court for the Northern District of California Kimberly Holt The PMI Group Inc Stephen

Smith David Katkov and Donald Lofe Jr. On April 17 2008 the court issued an order consolidating the

two actions for pretrial purposes On June 20 2008 the court appointed lead plaintiff in the action The

plaintiffs filed consolidated complaint on September 2008 naming as defendants The PMI Group Inc

Stephen Smith David Katkov Donald Lofe Jr and Bradley Shuster On October 14 2008 we filed
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motion to dismiss the consolidated complaint On December 12 2008 the court held hearing on the

defendants motion to dismiss and took the matter under advisement We continue to believe that we have

meritorious defenses and intend to defend ourselves vigorously

In April 2008 we and certain of our executive officers and directors were named in two shareholder

derivative suits the first filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California Case No
CV 082046 The Port Authority of Allegheny Retirement and Disability Allowance Plan for Employees

Represented by Local 85 of the Amalgamated Transit Union Stephen Smith Roger Haughton David

Katkov Donald Lofe Jr Mariann Byerwalter Dr James Gastle carmine Guerro Wayne Hedien

Louis Lower II Raymond Ocampo Jr John Roach Kenneth Rosen Steven Scheid Jose

Villarreal Mary Lee Widener Ronald Zech and The PMI Group Inc Nominal Defendant and the second

suit filed in the Superior Court of the State of California County of Contra Costa Case No 08-01068 Jorge

Torres Derivatively on Behalf of The PMI Group Inc Stephen Smith Victor .J Bacigalupi Bradley

Shuster Joanne Berkowitz David Katkov Lloyd Porter Daniel Roberts Thomas Jeter Donald

Lofe Jr Kenneth Rosen John Roach James Castle Ronald Zech Wayne Hedien Mary Lee

Widener and Raymond Ocampo respectively Bothof these suits assert various acts and/or omissions against

the defendants Both actions have been stayed by stipulation of the parties and court orders based on the

stipulations until completion of the motion to dismiss phase of the securities litigation described above

On August 28 2008 PMI Mortgage Insurance Co PMI rescinded coverage on 565 loans that

IndyMac Bank delivered to PMI for coverage in 2007 under lender paid mortgage insurance progiam On

September 12 2008 IndyMac Federal Bank FSB IndyMac by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FDIC as Conservator filed complaint against PMI in the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California alleging that PMI improperly rescinded mortgage insurance coverage on the 565 loans

The complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief and requests damages against PMI in an unspecified

amount for breach of contract tortuous breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and

reformation Thereafter on October 31 2008 IndyMac by the FDIC as Conservator filed an amended

complaint which included allegations related to PMI rescission of coverage on certain additional ineligible

interest-only loans rescinded on October 2008 and filed second amended complaint on January 2009

adding additional allegations including allegations related to the FDICs rights and powers as conservator

receiver Trial in the matter is set for January 11 2010 PMI filed an answer to the Second Amended Complaint

on February 26 2009 PMI does not believe that the FDIC sllndyMac allegations have merit and intends to

defend the action vigorously

On January 15 2009 Bayview Loan Servicing LLC Bayview filed complaint against PMI Mortgage

Insurance Co PMI in California state court in Contra Costa County The complaint alleges that PMI

improperly rescinded mortgage insurance coverage on 39 loans which Bayview acquired from PMI insured

Alliance Bancorp aiid alleges damages of at least $10 million PMI filed an answer to the complaint on March 12

2009 PMI does not believe that Bayviews allegations have merit and intends to defend the action vigorously

Various other legal actions and regulatory reviews are currently pending that involve us and specific aspects

of our conduct of business Although there can be no assUrance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters in

the opinion of management based upon the information available as of the date of these financial statements the

expected ultimate liability in one or more of these actions is not expected to have material effect on our

consolidated financial condition results of operations or cash flows
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Set forth below is certain information regarding our executive officers as of March 152009

STEPHEN SMITH 59 has served as Chairman of the Board of The PMI Group Inc since May 2007
and has been one of our directors since February 2002 He has been the Chief Executive Officer since June

2006 and President and Chief Operating Officer since September 1998 of The PMI Group Inc He has served as

Chief Executive Officer of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co PMI since January 2004 He was President and

Chief Operating Officer of PMT from September 1998 to June 2006 He was elected Executive Vice President of

Marketing and Field Operations of PMI in May 1994 and elected to the same positions with The PMI Group Inc

in January 1995 serving in such capacities until September 1998 Prior thereto he held various executive

positions with the Company Mr Smith joined The PMI Group Inc in 1979 He has served as President of the

Mortgage Insurance Companies of America and as member of the Board of Directors of National Association

of Hispanic Real Estate Professionals

DAVID KATKOV 53 has been Executive Vice President of The PMI Group Inc since August 2001

and Chief Business Officer of PMI since November 2008 He has also served as President of PMI Mortgage

Insurance Co PMI since June 2006 Mr Katkov joined The PMI Group Inc in July 1992 and prior to

August 2001 he held variety of executive management positions in Sales Structured Transactions Product

Development and Portfolio Management of PMI Prior to joining
The PMI Group Inc Mr Katkov was Vice

President of US Bank Corporation Minneapolis Minnesota

DONALD LOFE JR 52 has been Executive Vice President of The PMI Group Inc since January

2003 Chief Financial Officer since April 2003 and Chief Administrative Officer since November 2008 Pnor to

joining The PMI Group Inc Mr Lofe was Senior Vice President Corporate Finance for The CNA Financial

Corporation from October 1998 until January 2003 From October 1991 until October 1998 Mr Lofe was the

partner in charge of the Northeast Ohio Insurance Practice and the engagement partner for The Progressive

Corporation with the accounting firm of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP where he was employed for

approximately 20 years Mr Lofe is certified public accountant

JOANNE BERKOWITZ 49 has been Chief Insurance Operations Officer of The PMI Group Inc since

November 2008 From January 2008 to November 2008 Ms Berkowitz served as Executive Vice President

Risk Management and Operations and from October 2005 to January 2008 she served as Executive Vice

PresidentChief Enterprise Risk Officer for The PMI Group Inc She served as Senior Vice PresidentChief

Risk Officer for PMI Capital Corporation from January 2004 until October 2005 Ms Berkowitz joined the PMI

Group in 1983 and prior to January 2004 held various risk management underwriting and marketing positions

in the field and corporate headquarters both for mortgage insurance operations and international and

strategic investments with the Company

LLOYD PORTER 49 has been Executive Vice PresidentChief Risk Officer of The PMI Group Inc

since December 2008 Mr Porter has also served as Executive Vice President and Managing Director

International Mortgage Insurance of PMI Capital Corporation since August 2004 Prior thereto Mr Porter was

Senior Vice President and Managing Director International Markets of The PMI Group since February 1999

Mr Porter joined The PMI Group in 1983 and has held variety of positions relating to marketing capital

markets strategy and corporate development

ANDREW CAMERON 43 has been Group Senior Vice President General Counsel and Secretary of

The PMI Group Inc since July 2008 Mr Cameron joined The PMI Group Inc in June 1998 and served as

Senior Vice President and Deputy General Counsel from November 2006 to July 2008 and Vice President and

Assistant General Counsel from June 2003 to October 2006 Prior to joining The PMI Group Inc Mr Cameron

was Senior Counsel in the Enforcement Division of the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission
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PARTII

ITEM MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITYAND RELATED STOCKHOLDER

MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Common Stock

The PMI Group is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading symbol PMI As of

January 30 2009 there were approximately 85 stockholders of record

The following table shows the high low and closing common stock prices by quarter from the New York

Stock Exchange Composite Listing for the years ended

2008 2007

High Low Close High Low Close

First quarter $13.46 $4.82 $5.82 $51.46 $40.69 $45.22

Second quarter 6.53 $1.87 $1.95 $50.50 $42.71 $44.67

Third quarter 5.43 $1.20 $2.95 $46.69 $25.81 $32.70

Fourth quarter 3.36 $1.15 $1.95 $35.87 9.82 $13.28

Preferred Stock

Our Board of Directors is authorized to issue up to 5000000 shares of preferred stock of The PMI Group in

classes or series and to fix the designations preferences qualifications limitations or restrictions of any class or

series with respect to the rate and nature of dividends the price and terms and conditions on which shares may be

redeemed the amount payable in the event of voluntary or involuntary liquidation the terms and conditions for

conversion or exchange into any other class or series of the stock voting rights and other terms We may issue

without the approval of the holders of common stock preferred stock that has voting dividend or liquidation

rights superior to the common stock and which may adversely affect the rights of the holders of common stock

Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan

On January 13 1998 we adopted Preferred Share Purchase Rights Plan or the Rights Plan which expired

pursuant to its terms on January 25 2009 On January 29 2009 we terminated the Series Junior Participating

Preferred Stock which had been reserved in connection with the Rights Plan and reduced the authorized number

of shares of such series to zero Under the Rights Plan all shareholders of record as of January 26 1998 received

rights to purchase shares of new series of preferred stock on the basis of one right for each common stock held

on that date The rights traded with The PMI Groups common stock Rights issued under the Rights Plan were

exercisable only if person or group acquired 10% or more of our common stock or announced tender offer for

10% or more of the common stock If such event had occurred all rights holders except the buyer would have

been entitled to acquire our common stock at discount and/or under certain circumstances to purchase shares

of the acquiring company at discount

Payment of Dividends and Policy

We paid regular dividends on our common stock of

$0.0025 per share in each of the quarters from July 2008 through December 31 2008

$0.0 125 per share in each of the quarters in the period from January 2008 through June 30 2008

$0.05 25 per
share in each of the quarters in the period from July 2005 through December 31 2007

$0.0450 per share in each of the four quarters in the period from July 2004 through June 30 2005 and

$0.0375 per share in each of the four quarters in the period from July 2003 through June 30 2004
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We do not expect that our Board of Directors will declare quarterly dividend for the foreseeable future

The payment of future dividends is subject to the discretion of our Board of Directors which will consider

among other factors our consolidated operating results our overall finanºial condition and capital requirements

as well as general business conditions The PMI Group as holding company is dependent upon dividends and

any other permitted payments from its subsidiaries to enable it to pay dividends and to service outstanding debt

PMI did not pay dividends to The PMI Group in 2008 and we do not expect that PMI will pay dividends to The

PMI Group in 2009 and 2010 PMIs ability to pay dividends or make distributions or returns of capital to The

PMI Group is affected by state insurance laws credit agreements rating agencies- the discretion of insurance

regulatory authorities and the terms of our runoff support agreement with Allstate Insurance Company and

capital support agreements with our subsidiaries See Item- 1B10 Regulation and Item 1A Risk FactorsWe

may face liquidity issues at our holding company The PMI Group

Common Share Repurchases

We currently have approximately $100 million available under our $300 million common share repurchase

program which was authorizedby the Board of Directors in February 2007 and extended in July 2007 We did

not repurchase any con-rn-ion shares in 2008 and do not intend to repurchase common shares in 2009 or 2010

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

See Part III Item 12 below
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related information shall not be deemed soliciting material or

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission nor shall such information be incorporated by reference

into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934 each as amended

except to the extent that The PM Group specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing

Comparison of The PM Group Inc and Benchmarks

Total Return Index

PM --MI Index -A SP 500 Russell 1000 FIN SVS

12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 12/31/08

PMI $100.00 $112.60 $111.32 $128.45 36.45 5.41

MIndex $100.00 $116.29 $116.42 $112.07 32.36 $6.59

SP 500 $100.00 $110.84 $116.27 $134.60 $141.97 $89.53

Russell 1000FNSVS $100.00 $113.14 $120.78 $143.27 $119.18 $58.40

Total Return Capital Appreciation Dividend Income for the period 12/31/03 12/31/08

Total Rate of Return Total Return 100 100

The MI index includes Radian Group Inc MGIC Investment Corporation and Triad Guaranty Inc
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ITEM SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following financial data should be read in conjunction with Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

TEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATA

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Summary of Consolidated Operations

Net premiums written 768895 813922 $672871 $693807 $620198 $784251 $617255 $544361 $498255 $459064

Premiumsearned 786159 815440

Netinvestmentincome 138377 132552

Net realized investment losses gains 139210 37309
Realized gain loss on sale of equity investment 12670

Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123595

Other loss income 1134 168

$709532

137794

318

20700

$693821

132584

1864

20813

$661328

130391

2546

20420

32904

$611878

123513

225

39749

$616928

108034

4400

39123

$553619

111457

5604

28643

$503749

93953

20

8309

$447214

81836
509

15825

Total revenues 907787 923185 868344 849082 806749 775365 759685 688115 606031 545384

00

Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs

Other underwriting and operating expenses

Lease abandonment and relocation costs

Litigation recovery settlement

Interest expense

Distributions on mandatorily redeemable preferred securities

1899264

18285

229522

10939
41007

1122898

87683

192917

33391

266273

53124

208787

2839
37930

255283

61539

183515

31129

236690

72129

180273

2574
34552

217241

78877

158601

20810

3676

150451

74844

134303

12183

12222

17648

4030

99553

76586

122797

13685

7604

95308

78769

86666

7656

8309

110465

80252

78680

7398

8309

Total losses and expenses 2177139 1436889 563275 531466 521070 479205 405681 320225 276708 285104

Loss income before equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries and income taxes

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries

1269352
51802

513704
741500

305069

127309

317616

97885

285679

83554

296160

4597

354004

44225

367890

19423

329323

12117

260280

7061

Losses income from continuing operations before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense from continuing operations

1321154
433966

1255204
246522

432378
102616

415501
94808

369233

79012

300757

88840

398229

108701

387313

116991

341440

103879

267341

77729

Loss income from continuing operations after income taxes 887188 1008682 329762 320693 290221 211917 289528 270322 237561 189612

Income from discontinued operations before income taxes

Income taxes from discontinued operations

46297

8868

127788

34432

127337

37448

125330

36854

115514

35405

119258

37160

72561

23044

59654

17959

32425

9774

22745

7891

Income from discontinued operations after income taxes 37429 93356 89889 88476 80109 82098 49517 41695 22651 14854

Loss gain on sale of discontinued operations net of income taxes of

$41057 and $16356 respectively

Loss income before extraordinary items and cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle

Extraordinary gain on write off of negative goodwill net of income

taxes

Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt net of income tax

benefit

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle

78749

928508 915326 419651 409169

29003

399333 294015

5418

339045

7172

312017

4805

260212 204466

Net loss income 928508 915326 $419651 $409169 $399333 $299433 $346217 $307212 $260212 $204466

32.8% l9.6% 23.7% 22.8% 21.4% 29.5% 27.3% 30.2% 30.4% 29.1%Effective tax rate for continuing operations



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

TEN-YEAR SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL DATAContinued

As of and for the Years Ended December 31

81688

81423

81423

81120

84645

84645

86747

86478

92866

88713

91738

101620

94025

95452

105231

15.65

11.40

11.40

0.03

95162

89915

99198

30.98

10.81

10.81

0.21

89943

89843

99533

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operating Ratios

Loss ratio 237.7% 136.9% 38.2% 38.1% 36.8% 36.2% 24.5% 18.1% 19.0% 24.7%

Expenseratio 18.5% 22.5% 23.2% 24.4% 28.6% 22.0% 25.3% 25.5% 26.7% 29.4%

Combined ratio 256.2% 159.4% 61.4% 62.5% 65.4% 58.2% 49.8% 43.6% 45.7% 54.1%

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data

Total assets $4824399 $5070440 $5317555 $5254136 $5145967 $4794289 $3517049 $2989952 $2392657 $2100762

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses $2709286 $1177309 384089 360360 355058 336760 316223 289443 281704 269931

Long-term debt 481764 496593 496593 819529 819529 819543 422950 422950 136819 145367

Mandatorily redeemable preferred securities 48500 48500 99109 99075

Shareholders equity $1278225 $2512962 $3568590 $3230790 $3137755 $2784029 $2193833 $1786688 $1499211 $1217268

Return on equity 48.6% 25.7% 12.7% 12.7% 13.4% 12.3% 17.1% 18.5% 19.3% 17.7%

Shares Outstanding in thousands

Basic at year end

Basic weighted-average

Diluted weighted average

Per Share Data

Book value

Basic net loss income

Diluted net loss income

Cash dividends declared

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Operating

and Statutory Data

Primary new insurance written in millions 22639 46133 32234 35934 41213 57301 4703 4O235 27295 28733

New insured primary loans 107455 234942 174432 205431 260641 381249 332234 335213 206493 219038

Primary insurance in force in millions 124265 123623 102635 101090 105321 105241 107579 109158 96914 86729

Primary risk in force in millions 30605 30967 25711 24971 25505 24668 25188 25772 23559 21159

Insured primary loans 775841 797419 720347 743533 803236 827225 874202 882846 820213 749985

Persistency 82.2% 75.5% 69.6% 61.9% 60.9% 44.6% 56.2% 62.0% 80.3% 71.9%

Primarydefaultrate 14.12% 7.93% 5.55% 5.74% 4.86% 4.53% 4.18% 2.86% 2.21% 2.12%

Statutory capital $1353261 $2554140 $2922621 $2838778 $2831437 $2561765 $2192712 $1900709 $1617519 $1372273

Statutoryrisk-to-capitalratio4 18.51 10.81 8.11 8.21 8.21 9.11 11.31 13.01 14.11 14.81

Expense ratio is the ratio of underwriting expenses to net premiums written The 2006 and 2004 expense ratios include the litigation settlement recovery The 2003 expense ratio includes

lease abandonment and relocation costs as well as the litigation settlement charge

Return on equity is calculated using an average of the twelve months ending balances of shareholders equity for the respective calendar year

Share data has been split adjusted In accordance with EITF No 04-8 The Effect of Contingently Convertible Instruments on Diluted Earnings Per Share EITF No 04-8 diluted

earnings per share data have been retroactively adjusted from 2001 until the fourth quarter of 2006 at which point the contingent convertible debentures were called to reflect the dilutive

effects of these instruments issued by The PMI Group in 2001

41.14

4.85

4.57

0.21

89163

88887

94421

36.42

4.46

4.10

0.20

88620

88507

90037

33.37

4.18

3.87

0.17

89404

89787

90488

29.26

3.33

3.09

0.13

24.39

3.85

3.55

0.10

20.04

3.46

3.28

0.08

16.92

2.94

2.89

0.08

13.62

2.28

2.26

0.07

Statutory data is based on PMI Mortgage Insurance Co information only Statutory capital includes policyholders surplus and contingency reserves



ITEM MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Financial Results for the Year Ended December 31 2008

For the year ended December 31 2008 we recorded consolidated net loss of $928.5 million compared to

consolidated net loss of $915.3 million for 2007 Our consolidated net loss for 2008 includes the financial results

of our discontinued operations related to PMI Australia PMI Asia and PMI Guaranty Our consolidated net loss

in 2008 was primarily driven by losses in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Financial Guaranty and

International Operations segments U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations net loss in 2008 was primarily driven

by an increase in losses and loss adjustment expenses LAE higher impairment losses in our U.S investment

portfolio and decrease in earned premiums from 2007 Our Financial Guaranty segments loss in 2008 was the

result of our impairment of our investment in FGIC in the first quarter of 2008 impairment of our investment in

RAM Re in the third quarter of 2008 and equity in losses from RAM Re International Operations net loss in

2008 was primarily driven by increases in losses and LAE in PMI Europe as compared to 2007 and losses on the

sales of PMI Australia and PMI Asia Our consolidated 2008 financial results were positively impacted by

$123.6 million in gains related to the change in fair value of certain of our senior debt instruments in our

Corporate and Other segment Our consolidated net loss in 2007 was primarily due to our equity in losses from

FGIC and higher losses and LAE in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Overview of Our Business

We provide residential mortgage insurance products designed to promote homeownership and strengthen

communities Mortgage insurance protects lenders and investors from credit losses helping to ensure that

mortgages are available to prospective homebuyers In 2008 we divided our business into four segments

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations We offer mortgage insurance products in the U.S that enable

borrowers to buy homes with low down payment mortgages The results of U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations include PMI Mortgage Insurance Co and its affiliated U.S mortgage insurance and

.reinsurance companies collectively PMI and equity in earnings from PMI joint venture CMG

Mortgage Insurance Company and its affiliated companies collectively CMG MI U.S Mortgage

Insurance Operations recorded net loss of $709.5 million in 2008 and $190.8 million in 2007

International Operations We completed the sale of PMI Australia on October 22 2008 and the sale of

PM Asia on December 17 2008 The results from PMI Australia and PMI Asia are reported as

discontinued operations in our International Operations segment and in the consolidated statement of

operations for all periods presented Losses from the continuing operations of PM Europe and PMI

Canada in our International Operations segment were $87.0 million in 2008 and $35.3 million in 2007

Financial Guaranty Our Financial Guaranty segment includes our investment in RAM Holdings Ltd

whose wholly-owned subsidiary RAM Reinsurance Company Ltd or RAM Re is financial guaranty

reinsurer and our investment in FGIC Corporation whose wholly-owned subsidiary Financial

Guaranty Insurance Company collectively FGIC is financial guarantor
Effective December 31

2008 our wholly-owned surety company PMI Guaranty Co.s PMI Guaranty remaining assets and

liabilities were merged into PM The results of operations of PMI Guaranty are reported as

discontinued operations in our Financial Guaranty segment and in the consolidated statement of

operations for all periods presented Continuing operations in our Financial Guaranty segment generated

net losses of $124.0 million in 2008 and $734.8 million in 2007

Corporate and Other Our Corporate and Other segment consists of corporate debt and expenses of

our holding company The PMI Group or TPG contract underwriting operations and equity in

earnings or losses from investments in certain limited partnerships Our Corporate and Other segment

generated net income of $33.4 million in 2008 and net loss of $47.8 million in 2007
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Revenues and Expenses

Our revenues consist primarily of

premiums earned on our U.S and international mortgage insurance policies and other credit

enhancement products

net investment income on our investment portfolios

net realized investment gains losses including the impairment of FGIC and RAM Re and securities

within our investment portfolio and

other income including fees from contract underwriting services and income losses from changes in

the fair value of credit default swaps

Our expenses consist primarily of

claims paid to policyholders claims-related expenses and changes in reserves

amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs

underwriting acquisition and policy servicing costs contract underwriting costs and remedies and

general administration and overhead expenses

interest and financing expenses and

income taxes to the extent we have pre-tax income

Conditions and Trends Affecting our Business

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations The financial performance of our U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations segment is affected by number of factors including

Market Conditions and Capital Constraints The significant weakening of employment in the United

States and the U.S credit capital residential mortgage and housing markets continues to negatively

affect our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment As discussed below under Losses and L4E

PMI is experiencing higher losses These losses which we expect to continue in 2009 have reduced and

will continue to reduce PMIs net assets Partially in response to PMIs increased losses and reduced

capital as of March 15 2009 Standard Poor Moodys and Fitch had each lowered their insurer

financial strength rating on PMI from AA or equivalent to A- Ba3 and BBB respectively

Because of rating agency actions in 2008 we submitted written remediation plans to Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac collectively the GSE5 outlining among other things the steps we are taking or plan to

take to bolster PMIs financial strength To date each of the GSEs has continued to treat PMI as an

eligible mortgage insurer There however can be no assurance that the GSEs will continue to treat PM

as an eligible mortgage insurer

Based on current and expected future trends we believe that we will continue to incur and pay material

losses The ultimate amount of losses will depend in part on general
economic conditions and other

factors including the health of credit markets home price fluctuations and unemployment rates We are

significantly limiting PMI new business writings to conserve capital and are exploring other available

alternatives including potentially obtaining capital or other relief under the U.S Treasurys Financial

Stability Plan including the Troubled Asset Relief Program or TARP obtaining reinsurance for our

insurance subsidiaries future books of business other capital relief initiatives at PMI and/or debt or

equity offerings Unless we raise capital PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and

risk-to-capital ratio will likely increase beyond levels necessary to meet regulatory capital adequacy

requirements and if we are unsuccessful in renegotiating our revolving credit facility by April 15 2009

certain credit facility financial covenants Especially given current and expected future market

conditions there can be no assurance that we will be able to raise any additional capital either on
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acceptable terms and in timely manner or at all See Item Risk FactorsCapital and Liquidity

Constraints In addition our reduction of new insurance written will correspondingly reduce our

premiums earned

Losses and LAE PMIs losses and LAE increased to $1.8 billion in 2008 from $1.1 billion in 2007

We increased PMIs net loss reserves in 2008 by $1.0 billion as result of increases in PMIs default

inventory discussed under Defaults below higher claim rates the rate at which delinquent insured

loans result in claims higher average
claim sizes and worsened severity The increase in claim rates

was driven by home price declines and diminished availability of certain loan products both of which

constrain refinancing opportunities and result in decrease in the cure rate the percentage of the default

inventory that is returning to current status The increases in PMIs average claim size have been driven

by among other things higher loan sizes and coverage levels and declining home prices which limit

PMIs loss mitigation opportunities During 2008 the increase in loss reserves was partially offset by

decrease in our estimated claim rate due to the impact of loss mitigation efforts and increased

rescissions of insurance written in prior periods PMIs losses and LAE will be negatively affected if

future estimated claim rates and/or claim sizes increase Changes or lack of improvement in economic

conditions including the U.S credit and capital markets mortgage interest rates job creation

unemployment rates and home prices could significantly impact our reserve estimates and therefore

PMIs losses and LAE Claims paid including LAE in 2008 increased to $814.0 million from $362.3

million in 2007

Defaults PM primary default inventory increased to 109580 as of December 31 2008 from 63197

as of December 31 2007 primary default rate increased to 14.1% as of December 31 2008 from

7.9% as of December 31 2007 The increase in the default rate is due to the combined effect of the

higher default inventory and fewer policies in force We expect primary default inventory and

default rate to continue to increase in 2009 The increases in PMIs primary default inventory and

default rate in 2008 were driven by number of factors including

Declining Home Prices and Rising UnemploymentDeclining home prices and rising

unemployment have made it significantly more difficult for many borrowers to remain current on

their mortgage payments refinance their mortgages or sell their homes and are negatively

affecting PMI default inventory and default rate In addition accelerating job losses and rising

unemployment rates are expected to negatively affect PMIs default rates and default inventory

Decline in Cure RateThe percentage of defaults that cure has declined due to diminished

refinancing opportunities as result of declining home prices and diminished availability of loan

products This decline in the percentage of defaults that cure has negatively affected PM default

inventory and default rate The decline in PMIs cure rate has been partially offset by successful

loss mitigation efforts and by increased rescissions of insurance written in prior periods

Above-97sPMI has experienced higher than expected levels of delinquent mortgages with

loan-to-value ratios LTVs exceeding 97% which we refer to as Above 97s in its flow and

structured channels Effective March 2008 we no longer insure Above-97s Above-97s

represented 4.8% of our total primary NIW for the year ended December 31 2008 compared to

31.6% for the year ended December 31 2007 As of December 31 2008 risk in force from

Above-97s in all book years represented 1.5% of PMIs primary risk in force compared to 24.6%

as of December 31 2007 As of December 31 2008 of the 21.5% of PMIs primary risk in force

from Above-97s approximately half was from our 2007 book year The default rate for

Above-97s in PMIs primary portfolio as of December 31 2008 was 18.3% compared to 9.1% as

of December 31 2007 As of February 2009 we stopped insuring loans with LTVs

exceeding 95%

Alt-A LoansWe define Alt-A loans as loans where the borrowers FICO score is 620 or higher

and the borrower requests and is given the option of providing reduced documentation verifying

the borrowers income assets deposit information or employment Beginning in 2007 we began
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progressively tightening our underwriting guidelines related to Alt-A loans and effective June

2008 we eliminated Alt-A loan eligibility 5.3% of new insurance written in 2008 consisted of

Alt-A loans compared to 27.4% in 2007 Risk in force from Alt-A loans represented 18.8% of

PMIs primary risk in force as of December 31 2008 compared to 22.8% as of December 31

2007 The default rate for Alt-A loans was 30.6% as of December 31 2008 compared to 13.9% as

of December 31 2007

Interest Only LoansInterest only loans also known as deferred amortization loans have more

exposure to declining home prices than traditional loans in part because principal is not reduced

during an initial deferral period In 2008 PMI primarily insured interest only loans through our

flow channel and most of such loans were sold by the originating lenders to the GSEs Due to the

tightening of underwriting guidelines in late 2007 and early 2008 5.2% of new insurance written

in 2008 was comprised of interest only loans compared to 20.2% in 2007 Risk in force from

interest only loans represented 11.8% of PMs primary risk in force as of December 31 2008

compared to 14.2% as of December 31 2007 The default rate for interest only loans was 28.6%

as of December 31 2008 compared to 11.0% as of December 31 2007

None of the above categories or risk characteristics are mutually exclusive and PMI portfolio

may contain loans with one or more of such characteristics We expect the percentage of the above

categories of loans in our portfolio to continue to decline as result of our underwriting guideline

changes in 2007 and 2008

Geographic FactorsDeclining home prices particularly in California and Florida and weak

economic conditions in California as well as in Michigan Indiana Ohio and Illinois the Auto

States have negatively affected the development of PMI portfolio PM default rates in

California and Florida continued to increase above PMI average default rate as of December 31

2008 The default rate from California as of December 31 2008 was 24.7 compared to 10.9%

and 3.6% as of December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively The default rate from Florida as of

December 31 2008 was 27.8% compared to 10.6% and 3.4% as of December 31 2007 and 2006

respectively As of December 31 2008 risk in force from California and Florida insured loans

represented 8.0% and 10.3% of PMI primary risk in force respectively The default rate of the

Auto States as of December 31 2008 was 15.1% compared to 10.6% and 8.1% as of

December 31 2007 and 2006 respectively As of December 31 2008 risk in force from the Auto

States represented 13.5% of PMIs primary risk in force

New Insurance Written NIW PMIs primary NIW decreased by 50.9% in 2008 compared to 2007

This decrease was principally due to changes to PMI pricing and underwriting guidelines implemented

in 2007 and 2008 that reduce the types
of loans that PM will insure Due to capital constraints PM

will continue to limit NIW in 2009 See Item 1A Risk FactorsCapital and Liquidity Constraints

Captive Reinsurance As of December 31 2008 49.0% of PMIs primary insurance in force was

subject to captive reinsurance agreements As of December 31 2008 we recorded $482.7 million in

reinsurance recoverables from ceded losses primarily from captive arrangements related to PM gross

loss reserves Due to the delay between establishing reserve and the payment of claims we have only

received $12.9 million in claim payments related to reinsurance recoverables from captive trust accounts

in 2008 As of December 31 2008 assets in captive trust accounts held for the benefit of PM totaled

approximately $860.1 million We expect that reinsurance payments to PMI from captive trust assets

will substantially increase in 2009

During 2008 PMI commuted eight captive reinsurance agreements with one partial commutation We

recorded cash payments of $32.6 million received from captive trust accounts as result of captive

commutations as reduction of PMIs total claims paid which principally offset previously recorded

reinsurance recoverables Accordingly there was no significant impact to our results of operations for

the current period
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As discussed above in Item B9 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsReinsurance

Captive Reinsurance PMI no longer seeks reinsurance under excess-of-loss XOL captive

reinsurance agreements on new business PMI will continue to cede premiums to the captive trust

accounts related to the captives in runoff but these cessions are expected to decrease over time as the

number of loans in our portfolio subject to captive reinsurance agreements decrease Due to the run-off

of these XOL agreements and commutation of certain captive reinsurance agreements in 2008 as well

as expected future claim payments from captive trust accounts in 2009 we do not anticipate that the

aggregate amount of assets held for the benefit of PMI in captive trust accounts will significantly

increase in 2009 and will likely decrease once claim payments begin to exceed premium cessions to the

trusts In addition we expect that the percentage of PMIs primary insurance in force that is subject to

captive reinsurance
agreements will decrease over time

Policy Cancellations and Persistency PMI persistency rate which is based upon the percentage of

primary insurance in force at the beginning of 12-month period that remains in force at the end of that

period was 82.2% as of December 31 2008 and 75.5% as of December 31 2007 The increase in PMI

persistency rate reflects home price declines and lower levels of residential mortgage refinance activity

To the extent that home prices continue to decline and residential mortgage refinance activity remains

relatively low we expect that PMIs persistency rate will likely remain high and therefore limit the rate

at which PMIs existing risk in force runs off Because PMI must maintain sufficient capital to satisfy

regulatory risk-to-capital metrics higher persistency rates further constrain PMIs capital position and

limit its ability to write new business

Voluntary Early Retirement Program and Restructuring Charges In 2008 we initiated involuntary

terminations and Voluntary Early Retirement Program the Program The Program was made

available to employees other than the CEO who were at least 52 years of age and had seven or more

years of service We incurred net expenses of $45.9 million in 2008 as result of these restructuring

activities We expect to incur an additional $1.0 million to $2.0 million of expenses in 2009 as result of

the Program

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Investments During 2008 we recorded realized loss of $96.5

million related to preferred securities held in our U.S investment portfolio due to continuing stress in

the capital markets We may have additional impairments for preferred or other securities if they meet

the criteria for other-than-temporary impairment which would negatively affect our capital and have an

adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition See Item 1A Risk FactorsAs

result of significant volatility and uncertainty in the market we impaired the value of certain securities

held in our investment portfolio and there is risk that additional impairments may occur in the future

International Operations Factors affecting the financial performance of our International Operations

segment include

PMI Europe In 2008 we restructured PMI Europe to conserve capital and reduce expenses PMI

Europe is not assuming any new risk and has reduced staff and facilities accordingly The aggregate cost

associated with PMI Europes reconfiguration is estimated to be approximately $7.6 million pretax of

which $7.1 million was recognized in 2008 PMI Europe had net loss of $80.3 million in 2008

compared to net loss of $33.4 million in 2007 The increase in net loss in 2008 compared to 2007 was

primarily due to an increase in loss reserves of $48.8 million in 2008 The increase in loss reserves was

due primarily to the deteriorating performance of certain U.S subprime exposures on which PMI

Europe provided reinsurance coverage in 2005 and to lesser extent increased defaults on the Italian

primary flow business As of December 31 2008 PMI Europes total exposure from its reinsurance of

U.S subprime risk is approximately $188.6 million Total reserves associated with this portfolio were

$64.5 million as of December 31 2008 PMI Europe has posted collateral related to these reinsurance

transactions and as of March 15 2009 the posted collateral balance was $53.7 million PMI Europes

losses in 2008 were also due to changes in the fair value of PMI Europes credit default swap CDS
derivative contracts resulting from the widening of European residential mortgage-backed securities

RMBS credit spreads during the period
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PMI Europe has been downgraded and currently has insurer financial strength ratings of A- Negative

Outlook BBB Negative and Bi Rating Developing from Standard Poors Fitch and

Moodys respectively As result of these rating agency actions and other contractual requirements

counterparties have required PMI Europe to post collateral of $64.2 million on CDS transactions as of

March 15 2009 As result of such factors as changes in CDS valuations andlor deterioration in the

performance
of the underlying collateral referenced in such transactions PMI Europe may be required

to post additional collateral See Item 1A Risk FactorsWe are exposed to risk in our European

operations

PMJ Canada We are in the process of closing our operations in Canada and estimate that the total

costs to exit Canada will be between $8 million and $10 million pre-tax
of which $2.6 million was

recognized in 2008 We repatriated to PM $41.5 million of capital in the fourth quarter of 2008 To

fully close our operations in Canada we must facilitate the removal of PMI Canadas risk in force and

obtain regulatory approvals

Discontinued Operations of PM Australia and PM Asia On October 22 2008 we sold PM
Australia for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $920 million approximately 100% of the

net tangible asset value of PMI Australia under GAAP as of June 30 2008 As discussed in Item 1C
Businessinternational OperationsDiscontinued Operations in PMI Australia and PMI Asia PM
received approximately $746 million in cash and $187 million in contingent consideration paid in the

form of note the Note subject to reductions in certain events In connection with recording PMI

Australia as discontinued operations we recognized an after tax loss with respect to the write-down of

the carrying amount of PMI Australia to its fair value less cost to sell The loss on sale was

approximately $64.6 million for the year ended December 31 2008 primarily due to no value being

assigned to the Note due to contingent elements with respect to repayment On December 17 2008 we

completed the sale of PMI Asia and received approximately $51.6 million in cash In connection with

recording PMI Asia as discontinued operations we recognized an after tax loss with respect to the write-

down of the carrying amount of PMI Asia to its fair value less cost to sell The loss on sale was

approximately $14.2 million for the year
ended December 31 2008

As result of the changes in our International Operations described above our International Operations will

generate substantially smaller portion of our revenues in 2009 and thereafter

Financial Guaranty Factors affecting the financial performance of our Financial Guaranty segment

include

RAM Re Equity in losses from RAM Re in 2008 was $57.7 million compared to equity in earnings of

$4.5 million in 2007 As of June 30 2008 the carrying value of our investment in RAM Re had been

reduced to zero due to equity in losses in RAM Re During the third quarter of 2008 we recognized

equity in earnings from RAM Re of $9.4 million and realized an other-than-temporary impairment

charge of $2.9 million During the fourth quarter of 2008 we recognized equity in losses from RAM Re

of $6.5 million The carrying value of our investment was zero at December 31 2008

FGIC We impaired our investment in FGIC in the first quarter of 2008 and reduced the carrying

value of the investment from $103.6 million to zero To the extent that our carrying value remains zero

no equity in losses relating to FGIC will be recorded Equity in earnings from FGIC could be recognized

in the future to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable We are under no obligation nor do we

intend to provide additional capital to FGIC

Discontinued Operations of PM Guaranty During the third quarter of 2008 PM Guaranty paid

approximately $152 million of its excess capital to The PMI Group of which $144 million was

reinvested in U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Having completed its runoff activities we now

report the results of operations of PMI Guaranty as discontinued operations in the Financial Guaranty

segment and in the consolidated statement of operations for all periods presented
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As result of the changes in our Financial Guaranty segment described above we do not expect to generate

significant revenues from our Financial Guaranty segment in 2009 or thereafter

Corporate and Other Factors affecting the financial performance of our Corporate and Other segment

include

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments Effective January 2008 we adopted SFAS
No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an amendment

of FASB Statement No 115 which allows an entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the

initial and subsequent measurement of certain financiat assets and liabilities on contract-by-contract

basis We elected to adopt the fair value option for certain corporate debt In 2008 the decrease in fair

value representing increase in revenue of $123.6 million was related to the subsequent measurement of

fair value for these debt instruments The changes in the fair value of liabilities for which the fair value

was elected were primarily due to widening of credit spreads and interest rate fluctuations See Item

Note 10 Fair Value Disclosures for further discussion

Share-Based Compensation During 2008 we incurred pre-tax share-based compensation expense of

$8.8 million compared to $16.1 million in 2007 The decrease in share-based compensation expense was

due primarily to decrease in the fair value of the share-based compensation granted in 2008

Contract Underwriting Services As result of lower levels of mortgage originations and decline in

requests for contract underwriting services our contract underwriting activities and revenues have

declined and on March 12 2009 we announced that we will discontinue offering contract underwriting

services Total contract underwriting expenses include allocated
expenses and monetary remedies

provided to customers in the event we failed to properly underwrite loan Contract underwriting

remedies and related expenses were $4.8 million in 2008 compared to $7.1 million in 2007 We may
still be obligated to pay remedies in the future even though we have ceased providing contract

underwriting services

Additional Items Affecting this Segment Our Corporate and Other segment also includes net

investment income from our holding company expenses related to corporate overhead including

compensation expense not included in our other operating segments and interest expense

Holding Company Liquidity Our holding companys principal sources of liquidity include dividends

from its insurance subsidiaries expected tax receivables from PM income from its investment

portfolio and funds drawn from our revolving credit facility and cash and investments held at the

holding company PMI did not pay dividends to The PMI Group in 2008 and we do not expect that PMI
will be able to pay dividends in 2009 or 2010 Our holding companys available funds consisting of

cash and cash equivalents and investments were $235.9 million at December 31 2008 and included

$200 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility We are engaged in discussions with the

lenders under our credit facility to amend the financial covenants and certain events of default under the

credit facility We currently have sufficient liquidity at our holding company to repay
the credit facility

in the event we no longer comply with its terms or in the event of potential cross-default under our

senior notes See Item 1A Risk FactorsOur credit facility contains restrictive and financial covenants

and if we are unable to comply with these covenants we may trigger an event of default under the

facility and Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

OperationsLiquidity and Capital Resources
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results

The following table presents our consolidated financial results

For the year
ended December 31 2008 we recorded consolidated net loss of $928.5 million compared to

consolidated net loss of $915.3 million for 2007 Our consolidated net loss for 2008 includes the financial results

of our discontinued operations related to PM Australia PM Asia and PMI Guaranty Our consolidated net loss

in 2008 was primarily driven by losses in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Financial Guaranty and

International Operations segments U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations net loss in 2008 was primarily driven

by an increase in losses and loss adjustment expenses LAE higher impairment losses in our U.S investment

portfolio and decrease in earned premiums from 2007 Our Financial Guaranty segments loss in 2008 was the

result of our impairment of our investment in FGIC in the first quarter of 2008 impairment of our investment in

RAM Re in the third quarter of 2008 and equity in losses from RAM Re International Operations net loss in

2008 was primarily driven by increases in losses and LAE in PM Europe as compared to 2007 and losses on the

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2007 20062008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions except

per share data

REVENUES
Premiums earned 786.2 815.4 $709.5 3.6% 14.9%

Net investment income 138.4 132.6 137.8 4.4% 3.8%

Net realized investment losses gains 139.2 24.6 0.3

Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123.6 100.0%

Other loss income 1.2 0.2 20.7 l01.0%

Total revenues 907.8 923.2 868.3 1.7% 6.3%

LOSSES AND EXPENSES
Losses and loss adjustment expenses 1899.3 1122.9 266.3 69.1%

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 18.3 87.7 53.1 79.1% 65.2%

Other underwriting and operating expenses 218.6 192.9 205.9 13.3% 6.3%

Interest expense 41.0 33.4 37.9 22.8% 11.9%

Total losses and expenses 2177.2 1436.9 563.2 51.5% 155.1%

Loss income before equity in losses earnings from

unconsolidated subsidiaries and income taxes 1269.4 513.7 305.1 147.1%

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries 51.8 741.5 127.3 93.0%

Loss income from continuing operations before taxes 1321.2 1255.2 432.4 5.3%

Income tax benefit expense
from continuing operations 434.0 246.5 102.6 76.1%

Loss income from continuing operations 887.2 1008.7 329.8 12.0%

Loss income from discontinued operations net of tax 41.3 93.4 89.9 144.2% 3.9%

Net loss income 928.5 915.3 $419.7 1.4%

Diluted loss income from continuing operations per

share 10.90 11.92 3.60 8.6%
Diluted loss income from discontinued operations per

share 0.50 1.11 0.97 145.0% 14.4%

Diluted net loss income per share 11.40 10.81 4.57 5.5%
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sales of PMI Australia and PM Asia Our consolidated 2008 financial results were positively impacted by

$123.6 million in gains related to the change in fair value of certain of our senior debt instruments in our

Corporate and Other segment Our consolidated net loss in 2007 was primarily due to our equity in losses from

FGIC and higher losses and LAE in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

The decrease in premiums earned in 2008 compared to 2007 was driven by lower premiums earned in our

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment which was primarily due to lower NIW and higher levels of

rescissions of insurance previously writter which generate premium refunds partially offset by higher

persistency in 2008 compared to 2007 The increase in premiums earned in 2007 compared to 2006 was driven

by higher levels of insurance in force caused by increased levels of NIW higher persistency and higher insured

loan sizes

The increase in net investment income in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to the growth of PMI

investment portfolio The increase in our investment portfolio was partially offset by decrease in our pre-tax

book yield Our consolidated pre-tax book yield was 3.46% 5.07% and 5.18% as of December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 respectively The decrease in our consolidated pre-tax book yield in 2008 was primarily due to an

increase in cash and cash equivalents generated from the sale of PMI Australia and Asia

The net realized investment loss in 2008 of $139.2 million was primarily due to impairment of preferred

securities in our investment portfolio of $96.5 million impairments of our investment in FGIC of $88.0 million

and impairment of our investment in RAM Re in the amount of $2.9 million partially offset by gains on the sale

of common stock in PM investment portfolio The net realized investment loss in 2007 was driven by the

other-than-temporary impairment of our investment in RAM Re of $38.5 million This loss was partially offset

by $12.7 million settlement gain related to the favorable resolution of certain indemnifications associated with

the sale of our investment in Select Portfolio Servicing SPS in 2005 The decline in other income in 2007 was

due to unrealized mark-to-market losses of $16.9 million from PMI Europes CDS derivative contracts as result

of the significant widening of market spreads

The change in fair value of certain debt instruments in 2008 resulted from our adoption of SFAS No 159

effective January 2008 The changes in fair value of $123.6 million in 2008 were primarily due to changes in

interest rates and widening of credit spreads associated with our senior debt

The increase in our losses and LAE in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily driven by U.S Mortgage

Insurance Operations increased loss reserves and claim payments during the period as well as loss reserve

increases by PMI Europe The increases in U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations reflect the significant weakening

of the U.S employment credit capital residential mortgage and housing markets which drove higher default

inventories claim rates average claim sizes and claim severity The significant increase in our losses and LAE in

2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to loss reserve increases in the U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

and to lesser extent PM Europe The 2007 increase in U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations losses and LAE

was due to an increase in net loss reserves and an increase in claims paid compared to 2006 due to declines in

credit and housing markets

The decreases in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs in 2008 compared to 2007 were primarily

due to our $33.6 million impairment in 2007 of PMIs deferred policy acquisition costs associated with PMIs

2007 book year As result of this impairment current period amortization includes only costs associated with

book years prior to 2007 and the year ended December 31 2008 PMIs deferred policy acquisition cost asset

increased to $32.3 million at December 31 2008 from $10.5 million at December 31 2007 The increase in

amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs in 2007 compared to 2006 was also primarily due to the above

impairment of $33.6 million
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The increase in other underwriting and operating expenses in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to

severance costs associated with our Voluntary Early Retirement Program and involuntary terminations and

disposal costs in our U.S Mortgage Insuraace Operations and International Operations segments as well as

certain software impairment charges in the Corporate and Other Segment The decrease in other underwriting and

operating expenses in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily result of lower employee compensation expenses

in 2007

The equity in losses in 2008 for RAM Re was $57.7 million primarily due to RAM Res results of

operations driven by increases in loss reserves Due to the impairment of our FGIC investment in the first quarter

of 2008 we did not recognize any equity in earnings losses from FGIC in 2008 The equity in losses in 2007

was primarily due to equity in losses from FGIC as result of net unrealized mark-to-market losses

predominantly related to CDS derivative contracts and loss reserve increases

We recorded income tax benefits from continuing operations of $434.0 million in 2008 compared to income

tax benefits of $246.5 million in 2007 The effective tax rates for the continuing operations were 32.8% for 2008

19.6% for 2007 and 23.7% for 2006 The change in our effective tax rate in 2008 was primarily due to losses in

our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations and Financial Guaranty segments and the effects of tax exempt income

as proportion of net losses The change in our effective tax rate in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to

the losses in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations and Financial Guaranty segments In 2007 valuation

allowance of approximately $168 million was established against deferred tax assets resulting from losses

attributable to FGIC and RAM Re decreasing the effective tax rate In 2008 the valuation allowance increased

by $6.5 million to $174.6 million due primarily to unrealized losses primarily related to FGIC RAM Re and

preferred investments

Loss income from discontinued operations includes the financial results of PMI Australia PMI Asia and

PMI Guaranty Losses from discontinued operations for 2008 also include recorded impairments related to our

sales of PMI Australia and PMI Asia

Segment Results

The following table presents consolidated loss income and loss income for each of our segments

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations $709.5 190.8 $290.3 165.7%

International Operations 87.0 35.3 14.2 146.5%

Financial Guaranty 124.0 734.8 96.7 83.1%

Corporate and Other 33.4 47.8 71.4 169.9% 33.1%

Loss income from continuing operations $887.2 $1008.7 $329.8 12.O%

International Operations 17.2 90.3 89.3 119.0% 1.1%

Financial Guaranty 24.1 3.1 0.6

Loss income from discontinued operations 41.3 93.4 89.9 144.2% 3.9%

Net loss income $928.5 915.3 $419.7 1.4%

May not total due to rounding
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U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

The results of U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations include the operating results of PM CMG MI is

accounted for under the equity method of accounting and its results are recorded as equity in earnings from

unconsolidated subsidiaries U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations results are summarized in the table below

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Net premiums written 750.6 799.7 $658.6 6.1% 21.4%

Premiums earned 772.2 800.9 $688.0 3.6% 16.4%

Netinvestmentincome 115.2 110.4 105.9 4.3% 4.2%

Net realized investment losses gains 47.6 4.6 3.8 21.1%

Other loss income 0.4 0.1 0.1

Total revenues 839.4 916.0 797.6 8.4% 14.8%

Losses andLAE 1835.7 1096.1 263.0 67.5% 316.8%

Underwriting and operating expenses
139.1 179.9 152.6 22.7% 17.9%

Total losses and expenses 1974.8 1276.0 415.6 54.8%

Loss income before equity in earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries and income taxes 1135.4 360.0 382.0 194.2%

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 6.5 17.1 20.3 62.0% 15.8%

Loss income before income taxes 1128.9 342.9 402.3 185.2%
Income tax benefit expense 419.4 152.1 112.0 175.7%

Net loss income 709.5 190.8 $290.3 165.7%

Premiums written and earnedPMs net premiums written refers to the amount of premiums recorded

based on effective coverage during given period net of refunds and premiums ceded primarily under captive

reinsurance agreements Under captive reinsurance agreements PMI transfers portions of its risk written on loans

originated by certain lender-customers to captive reinsurance companies affiliated with such lender-customers In

return portions of PMIs gross premiums written are ceded to those captive reinsurance companies

PMIs premiums earned refers to the amount of premiums recognized as earned net of changes in unearned

premiums The components of PMI net premiums written and premiums earned are as follows

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Gross premiums written $1007.8 $1001.4 839.2 0.6% 19.3%

Ceded and refunded premiums net of assumed 257.2 201.7 180.6 27.5% 11.7%

Net premiums written 750.6 799.7 $658.6 6.1% 21.4%

Premiums earned 772.2 800.9 688.8 3.6% 16.3%

The increase in gross premiums written in 2008 was primarily due to higher insurance in force in our

monthly product category compared to 2007 The decrease in premiums earned in 2008 compared to 2007 was
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primarily due to lower NIW and higher levels of rescissions of insurance previously written both of which are

expected to negatively impact our premiums earned in future periods The increases in gross
and net premiums

written and premiums earned in 2007 compared to 2006 were primarily due to increased insurance in force from

increased NIW as well as higher persistency

As of December 31 2008 49.0% of PMIs primary insurance in force and 49.5% of its risk in force were

subject to captive reinsurance agreements compared to 52.2% and 52.3% respectively as of December 31 2007

PMI no longer seeks reinsurance under excess-of-loss XOL reinsurance arrangements with lender affiliated

captive reinsurers On January 2009 in-force XOL contracts went into runoff and will mature pursuant to their

terms and conditions PM will continue to cede premiums to the captives in runoff but these cessions are

expected to decrease over time as the number of loans in our portfolio subject to captive reinsurance

arrangements decrease

Net investment incomeNet investment income increased in 2008 primarily due to increased holdings of

fixed income securities and cash and cash equivalents in PMIs investment portfolio at December 31 2008

compared to at December 31 2007 partially offset by decrease in pre-tax book yield PM pre-tax book yield

was 3.49% at December 31 2008 5.15% at December 31 2007 and 5.28% at December 31 2006 The pre-tax

book yield for 2008 was lower than 2007 primarily due to interest rate decreases during the year Fixed income

securities and cash and cash equivalents in PMs portfolio increased to $3.0 billion as of December 31 2008

from $1.8 billion as of December 31 2007 The increase in net investment income in 2007 compared to 2006

was primarily due to an increase in municipal bond refundings in 2007

Net realized investment losses gainsThe net realized investment loss in 2008 was due to other-than-

temporary impairments of PMI preferred securities as result of declines in the market values of the securities

The effect of the impairments in 2008 was partially offset by realized gains on the sale of certain equity

investments in PM portfolio in the first half of 2008 The net realized investment gain in 2007 was primarily

due to gains from sale of common stock offset by losses from impairment of common stock and losses from the

sale of preferred securities

Losses and LAEPMIs losses and LAE represent claims paid certain expenses related to default

notification and claim processing and changes to loss reserves during the applicable period Because losses and

LAE includes changes to loss reserves it reflects our best estimate of PMIs future claim payments and costs to

process
claims relating to PMIs current inventory of loans in default Claims paid including LAE includes

amounts paid on primary and pool insurance claims and LAE PMIs losses and LAE and related claims data are

shown in the following table

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions except

claim size

Claims paid including LAE 814.0 362.3 $242.8 124.7% 49.2%

Change in net loss reserves 1021.7 733.8 20.2 39.2%

Losses and LAE $1835.7 $1096.1 $263.0 67.5%

Number of primary claims paid 17466 10262 8637 70.2% 18.8%

Average primary claim size in thousands 44.5 32.1 24.8 38.6% 29.4%

The calculation of the average primary claim size for 2008 excluded $34.0 million received from certain captive trust accounts as result

of commutations completed during the year ended December 31 2008

The increase in claims paid including LAE in 2008 compared to 2007 was driven by higher average primary

claim sizes and an increase in the number of primary claims paid or claim rate The increases in PMI average
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claim sizes in 2008 and 2007 have been driven by higher loan sizes and coverage levels in PMIs portfolio and

declining home prices which limit PMIs loss mitigation opportunities Higher claim rates have been driven by

among other things home price declines and diminished availability of certain loan products both of which

constrain refinancing opportunities and result in decrease in the percentage of the default inventory that is

returning to current status Primary claims paid were $743.0 million in 2008 $329.6 million in 2007 and $214.0

million in 2006 Pool insurance claims paid were $55.2 million in 2008 $21.0 million in 2007 and $18.3 million

in 2006

The increase in claims paid including LAE in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to higher claim

rates and higher average
claim sizes as well as home price declines as discussed above For discussion of the

changes in net loss reserves in 2008 and 2007 see Conditions and Trends Affecting our BusinessU.S Mortgage

Insurance OperationsLosses and LAE above

As of December 31 2008 we ceded $482.7 million in loss reserves primarily to captive reinsurers which

we record as reinsurance recoverables Reinsurance recoverables do not exceed assets in captive trust accounts

As of December 31 2008 assets in captive trust accounts held for the benefit of PM totaled approximately

$860.1 million See Conditions and Trends Affecting our BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Captive Reinsurance above

DefaultsPMIs primary mortgage insurance master policies define default as the borrowers failure to pay

when due an amount equal to the scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the mortgage Generally

the master policies require an insured to notify PMI of default no later than the last business day of the month

following the month in which the borrower becomes three monthly payments in default For reporting and internal

tracking purposes we do not consider loan to be in default until the borrower has missed two consecutive

payments Depending upon its scheduled payment date loan in default for two consecutive monthly payments

could be reported to PM between the 31st and the 60th day after the first missed payment due date

PM primary default data are presented in the table below

Percentage Change/
Variance

As of December 31
2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Flow Channel

Loans in default 86060 44931 28881 1.5% 55.6%

Policies in force 662199 666216 607553 0.6% 9.7%

Default rate 13.00% 6.74% 4.75% 6.26pps l.99pps

Structured channel

Loans in default 23520 18266 11116 28.8% 64.3%

Policies in force 113642 131203 112794 13.4% 16.3%

Default rate 20.70% 13.92% 9.86% 6.78pps 4.O6pps

Total primary

Loans in default 109580 63197 39997 73.4% 58.0%

Policies in force 775841 797419 720347 2.7% 10.7%

Default rate 14.12% 7.93% 5.55% 6.l9pps 2.38pps

The increases in PMI primary default inventory and default rate in 2008 are discussed in Conditions and

Trends Affecting our BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsDefaults above The increases in PMs
primary default inventory and default rate in 2007 compared to 2006 were driven by number of factors

including declining home prices particularly in California and Florida weak economic conditions in the Auto

States and higher levels of default on Above-97 Alt-A and 2/28 hybrid ARM loans in PMIs flow and structured

channels
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PMI modified pool default data are presented in the table below

Percentage Change/
Variance

As of December 31
2008 2007

_______________________________________ vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Modified pooi with deductible

Loans in default 36477 17013 9531 114.4% 78.5%

Policies in force 210150 234694 204011 10.5% 15.0%

Defaultrate 17.36% 7.25% 4.67% 10.llpps 2.S8pps

Modified pool without deductible

Loans in default 10122 7441 2258 36.0%

Policies in force 55438 66421 86370 16.5% 23.l%

Default rate 18.26% 11.20% 2.61% 7.O6pps 8.59pps

Total modified pool

Loans in default 46600 24454 11789 90.6% 107.4%

Policies in force 265588 301115 290381 11.8% 3.7%

Default rate 17.55% 8.12% 4.06% 9.43pps 4.O6pps

The increases in loans in default for modified pool with deductible in 2008 and 2007 were due to

deterioration in the 2007 and 2006 book years We expect the numbers of modified pool loans in default to

increase as PMI modified poo1 portfolio seasons due to continued housing and employment deterioration The

increases in loans in default for modified poo1 without deductible in 2008 were primarily due to large modified

pool transaction in which PMI insured predominantly seasoned less-than-A quality loans Our modified pool

portfolios are aging under severe economic conditions and certain deductibles on individual pool transactions

were pierced in 2008 We expect additional deductibles to be exceeded in 2009 In 2008 due to increases in

pending defaults and higher average loan amounts claim rates claim sizes and severity we established

significant loss reserves with respect to our modified pool with deductibles portfolios Additional reserves may

be recorded in the future with respect to these portfolios

Total pool loans in default which includes modified and other pool products as of December 31 2008

2007 and 2006 were 50772 29143 and 15898 respectively The default rates for total pool loans as of

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 were 15.5% 7.76% and 4.24% respectively

Total underwriting and operating expensesPMI total underwriting and operating expenses are as

follows

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 15.6 84.2 52.0 81.5% 61.9%

Other underwriting and operating expenses
123.5 95.7 100.6 29.0% 4.9%

Total underwriting and operating expenses
$139.1 $179.9 $152.6 22.7% 17.9%

Policy acquisition costs incurred and deferred 37.4 51.2 48.7 27.0% 5.1%

PMIs policy acquisition costs are those costs that vary with and are related to our acquisition

underwriting and processing of new mortgage insurance policies including contract underwriting and sales

related activities To the extent we provided contract underwriting services on loans that did not require mortgage
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insurance associated underwriting costs were not deferred We defer policy acquisition costs when incurred and

amortize these costs in proportion to estimated gross profits for each policy year by type of insurance contract

i.e monthly annual and single premium Policy acquisition costs incurred and deferred are variable and

fluctuate with the volume of new insurance applications processed and NIW The decrease in amortization of

deferred policy acquisition costs in 2008 and the increase in 2007 were primarily due to our $33.6 million

impairment in 2007 of PMI deferred policy acquisition costs associated with PMI 2007 book year PMIs

deferred policy acquisition cost asset was $32.3 million $10.5 million and $43.5 million as of December 31

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

Other underwriting and operating expenses generally consist of all costs that are not attributable to the

acquisition of new business and are recorded as expenses when incurred Other underwriting and operating

expenses increased in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily as result of severance costs associated with our

Voluntary Early Retirement Program and involuntary terminations

PM incurs underwriting expenses related to contract underwriting services for mortgage loans without

mortgage insurance coverage These costs are allocated to PMI Mortgage Services Co or MSC which is

reported in our Corporate and Other segment thereby reducing PMIs underwriting and operating expenses

Contract underwriting expenses allocated to MSC were $9.7 million in 2008 $13.1 million in 2007 and $12.7

million in 2006

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiariesU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations equity in

earnings is derived entirely from the results of operations of CMG MI Equity in earnings from CMG MI in 2008

was $6.5 million compared to equity in earnings of $17.1 million in 2007 and $20.3 million in 2006 primarily as

result of higher losses

Income taxesU.S Mortgage Insurance Operations statutory tax rate is 35% The tax benefit recorded in

the U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment reflects tax benefits attributable to changes in the compositions

of earnings and the effect of tax exempt income as proportion of net income resulting in an effective tax rate of

37.1% for 2008

RatiosPMI loss expense and combined ratios are shown below

Variance

As of December 31
2008 2007

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Loss ratio 237.7% 136.9% 38.2% 100.8 pps 98.7 pps

Expense ratio 18.5% 22.5% 23.2% 4.0 pps 0.7 pps

Combined ratio 256.2% 159.4% 61.4% 96.8 pps 98.0 pps

PMs loss ratio is the ratio of losses and LAE to premiums earned The loss ratio increased in 2008

compared to 2007 as result of higher losses and LAE and lower premiums earned The loss ratio increased in

2007 compared to 2006 as result of higher losses and LAE partially offset by higher premiums earned

PMI expense ratio is the ratio of total underwriting and operating expenses to net premiums written The

decrease in PM expense ratio in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to decreases in amortization of

deferred policy acquisition costs and employee compensation expenses The decrease in PMI expense ratio in

2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to an increase in net premiums written and decrease in employee

compensation expenses partially offset by an increase in amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs
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Primary NIWThe components of PMI primary NIW are as follows

Percent

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollar in millions

Primary NIW
Flow channel $22197 $37584 $23270 40.9% 61.5%

Structured finance channel 442 8549 8964 94.8% 4.6%

Total primary NIW $22639 $46133 $32234 50.9% 43.1%

The decrease in PMIs primary flow NIW for 2008 compared to 2007 was principally due to changes to

PMI pricing and underwriting guidelines that were implemented during 2007 and 2008 that have decreased the

types of loans that PMI would insure and to lesser extent the continuing slowdown in the mortgage origination

and non-agency mortgage capital markets as well as increased competition from the Federal Housing

Administrations mortgage insurance programs The increase in PMIs flow channel NIW in 2007 compared to

2006 was driven by larger private mortgage insurance market Structured finance NIW was lower in 2008

compared to 2007 as result of the deterioration in the housing mortgage credit and capital markets and the

near elimination of the non-agency MBS market

Modified pooi insurancePMI wrote $4.1 million of modified pool risk in 2008 compared to $0.4 billion

of modified pool risk in 2007 This decline was driven by reduction in demand for this product by our

customers and capital conservation in 2008 We did not enter into any new modified pool agreements in 2008

and we do not expect to write modified pool risk in the foreseeable future Modified poo1 risk in force was $2.2

billion as of December 31 2008 $2.9 billion as of December 31 2007 and $2.5 billion as of December 31 2006

Insurance and risk in forcePMI primary insurance in force and primary and pool risk in force are

shown in the table below

Percentage Change/
Variance

As of December 31
2008 2007

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Primary insurance in force $124265 $123623 $102635 0.5% 20.4%

Primary risk in force 30605 30967 25711 l.2% 20.4%

Pool risk in force 2722 3464 3216 21.4% 7.7%

Policy cancellationsprimary year-to-date 21997 25145 30689 12.5% 18.1%

Persistencyprimary 82.2% 75.5% 69.6% 6.7 pps 5.9 pps

Includes modified pool and other pooi risk in force As of September 30 2008 we adjusted pool risk in force to reflect the effect of loan

repayments on risk limits

Primary insurance in force as of December 31 2008 increased from December 31 2007 primarily as result

of higher persistency Primary insurance in force and risk in force as of December 31 2007 increased from

December 31 2006 primarily as result of higher persistency and higher levels of NIW The increases in PMI

persistency rate in 2008 and 2007 reflect lower levels of residential mortgage refinance activity and home price

declines Primary risk in force as of December 31 2008 decreased primarily as result of lower NIW in 2008
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Florida

California

Texas

Illinois

Georgia

New York

Ohio

Pennsylvania

New Jersey

Washington

ARM amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel

Primary NIWstructured finance channel

Total primary NIW

Above-97 loan amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel

Primary NIWstructured finance channel

Total primary NIW

Percent of Primary Percent of Primary Percent of Primary
Risk in Force as of Risk in Force as of Risk in Force as of

December 312008 December 312007 December 31 2006

10.3% 10.8% 10.7%

8.0% 8.1% 7.0%

7.3% 7.2% 7.4%

5.2% 5.0% 5.1%

4.7% 4.7% 4.7%

3.9% 3.6% 3.8%

3.8% 3.8% 4.3%

3.3% 3.3% 3.6%

3.2% 3.0% 3.1%

3.1% 3.1% 2.9%

2007

Dollars in millions

The decreases in 2008 in the percentages of PMIs NIW consisting of ARM and Above-97 loans were

driven primarily by changes in PMIs pricing and underwriting guidelines adopted in 2007 and 2008 We no

The following table sets forth the percentages
of PMIs primary risk in force as of December 31 2008 2007

and 2006 in the ten states with the highest risk in force as of December 31 2008 in PMI primary portfolio

Credit and portfolio characteristicsLess-than-A quality loans generally include loans with credit scores

less than 620 In 2008 PMI NIW consisted of significantly lower percentages of less-than-A quality and Alt-A

loans than in 2007 primarily as result of changes in PMIs pricing and underwriting guidelines in 2007 and

2008 The following table presents PMIs less-than-A quality and Alt-A loans as percentages of its flow channel

and structured finance channel primary NIW

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Less-than-A quality loan amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel 296 1.3% 3067 8.2% 1153 5.0%

Primary NIWstructured finance channel 26 5.8% 1605 18.8% 838 9.3%

Total primary NIW 322 1.4% 4672 10.1% 1991 6.2%

Alt-A loan amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel $1195 5.4% $11242 29.9% 6691 28.7%

Primary NIWstructured finance channel 16 3.6% 1397 15.9% 4410 49.2%

TotaiprimaryNlW $1211 5.3% $12639 27.4% $11101 34.4%

The following table presents PMIs ARMs mortgage loans with interest rates that may adjust prior to their

fifth anniversary and Above-97s loans exceeding 97% LTV as percentages of its flow channel and structured

finance channel primary NIW

2008 2006

261 1.2% 1907 5.1% $3802 16.3%

34 7.7% 2238 26.2% 4081 45.5%

295 1.3% 4145 9.0% $7883 24.5%

974 4.4% $11757 31.3% $4835 20.8%

113 25.6% 2821 33.0% 1386 15.5%

$1087 4.8% $14578 31.6% $6221 19.3%
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longer insure Above-97s The increase in 2007 in the percentage of PMIs NIW consisting of Above-97 loans

was primarily due to the reduced availability of alternative mortgage products including piggyback loans and

increased activity by the GSEs

In 2008 interest only loans were insured primarily through PMIs flow channel and such loans were

primarily sold to the GSEs The majority of interest only loans insured in 2008 have ten year terms and are

subject to additional underwriting criteria to limit the potential for layered risk With payment option ARM
borrower generally has the option every month to make payment consisting of principal and interest interest

only or an amount established by the lender that may be less than the interest owed in which case the interest

shortfall is added to the principal amount of the loan The following table presents PMIs interest only loans as

percentages of its flow channel and structured finance channel primary NIW and payment option ARMs as

percentages of its flow channel primary NIW

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Interest only loan amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel $1173 5.3% $8296 22.1% $3507 15.1%

Primary NIWstructured finance channel 11 2.5% 1025 12.0% 2329 26.0%

Total primary NIW $1184 5.2% $9321 20.2% $5836 18.1%

Payment option ARMs amounts and as percentage of

Primary NIWflow channel 54 0.2% $1252 3.3% $2617 11.2%

TotaiprimaryNlW 54 0.2% $1252 2.7% $2617 8.1%

The decrease in 2008 in the percentage of PMIs NIW consisting of interest only loans and the decreases in

2008 and 2007 in the percentage of PMIs NIW consisting of payment option ARM loans were driven primarily

by changes in PMIs pricing and underwriting guidelines adopted in 2007 and 2008 The increase in 2007 in the

percentage of PMI NIW consisting of interest only loans was primarily the result of an increase in the

percentage of interest only loans originated by mortgage lenders in 2007

The following table presents PMI less-than-A quality Alt-A ARM Above-97 interest only and payment

option ARM loans as percentages of primary risk in force

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

As percentage of primary risk in force

Less-than-A Quality loans FICO scores below 620 7.1% 8.1% 8.0%

Less-than-A Quality loans with FICO scores below 575 1.8% 2.2% 2.1%

Alt-A loans 18.8% 22.8% 19.9%

ARMs excluding 2/28 Hybrid ARMs 8.0% 9.5% 12.5%

2/28 Hybrid ARM5 2.3% 3.3% 6.2%

Above-97s above 97% LTVs 21.5% 24.6% 17.6%

Interest Only 11.8% 14.2% 9.9%

Payment Option ARMs 3.4% 3.8% 4.5%

Less-than-A quality loans with FICO scores below 575 is subset of PMI less-than-A quality loan portfolio

2/28 Hybrid ARMs are loans whose interest rate is fixed for an initial two year period and floats thereafter
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International Operations

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

USD in millions

80.3 $33.4 11.9

6.7 1.9

87.0 35.3 11.9

17.2 90.3 91.6

$104.2 55.0 $103.5

May not total due to rounding

PMI Europe

The following table sets forth the financial results of PMI Europe for the periods set forth below

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs
2007 2006

_____ _____
12.8%

6.3%

21.5%
20.9%

_____ _____
100.0%

1.2%

135.8%

_____ _____
64.6%

_____ _____
107.7%

132.2%

_____ _____
26.9% 140.0%

_____ _____
140.4%

The average USD/Euro currency exchange rate was 1.4712 in 2008 1.3709 in 2007 and 1.2566 in 2006

The changes in the average USD/Euro currency exchange rates from 2007 to 2008 negatively impacted PM
Europes financial results by $5.5 million in 2008 Changes in the average USD/Euro currency exchange rates

from 2006 to 2007 negatively impacted PMI Europes financial results by $2.8 million in 2007

Premiums written and earnedNet premiums written increased in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to

growth in new reinsurance written in the U.K We do not expect this trend to continue in 2009 Net premiums

written increased in 2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to growth in primary NIW particularly in Italy The

decrease in premiums earned in 2008 compared to 2007 and 2007 compared to 2006 was due primarily to decreases

in premiums earned associated with the Royal SunAlliance RSA insurance portfolio acquired in 2003

International Operations results include continuing operations of PM Europe and PMI Canada and

discontinued operations and losses on the sales of PMI Australia and PMI Asia

PMI Europe

PMI Canada

Loss income from continuing operations

Loss income from discontinued operations

Net loss income

140.4%

146.5%

119.0% 1.4%

46.9%

2008 2007 2006

USD in millions

Net premiums written 15.9 14.1 $11.0

Premiums earned 13.5 14.4 $16.2

Net losses gains from credit default swaps 11.3 14.4 7.4

Net investment income 10.4 8.6 9.3

Net realized losses gains 4.2 0.2 1.1

Other loss 0.1 0.1

Total revenues 8.4 8.3 33.9

Losses and LAE 63.2 26.8 3.2

Other underwriting and operating expenses 28.8 17.5 12.3

Total losses and expenses 92.0 44.3 15.5

Loss income before taxes 83.6 36.0 18.4

Income tax benefit expense 3.3 2.6 6.5

Net loss income $80.3 $33.4 $11.9

28.2%

ll.l%

7.5%
18.2%

75.5%

42.3%

185.8%
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Net losses gains from credit default swapsPMI Europe is currently party to sixteen credit default

swap CDS contracts that are classified as derivatives PMI Europes net unrealized losses in 2008 from its

credit default swaps were primarily result of changes in the fair value of the derivative contracts in 2008 due to

the significant widening of CDS spreads during the period Net losses were partially offset by gains from

increased cash flows from contracts concluded in the fourth quarter of 2007 We recorded unrealized

mark-to-market loss of $17.9 million and $16.9 million in 2008 and 2007 respectively on PM Europes CDS

derivative contracts as result of the significant widening of market spreads The underlying collateral of these

credit derivatives are residential mortgage loans Accordingly continued adverse conditions in the residential

mortgage credit market may continue to result in mark-to-market losses See also Item 1A Risk FactorsWe are

exposed to risk in our European operations

Net investment incomePMI Europes net investment income consists primarily of interest income from

its investment portfolio including cash deposits and gains and losses on foreign currency re-measurement The

pre-tax book yield was 3.46% 4.45% and 4.33% as of December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively The

increase in net investment income in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to foreign currency

re-measurement from Sterling denominated investments to Euros The increase in net investment income in 2008

was also attributable to the strengthening of the Euro relative to the dollar The decrease in net investment

income in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to foreign currency re-measurement partially offset by an

increase in PMI Europes investment portfolio

Losses and LAEPMI Europes losses and LAE includes claim payments excluding payments for CDS

accounted as derivatives and changes in reserves Claim payments totaled $14.4 million in 2008 compared to

$5.1 million and $1.9 million in 2007 and 2006 respectively The increase in claim payments in 2008 resulted

primarily as result of claims paid of $10.3 million related to the US reinsurance business We increased PMI

Europes loss reserves by $48.8 million in 2008 primarily due to the deteriorating performance of certain U.S

subprime exposures on which PMI Europe provided reinsurance coverage in 2005 and to lesser extent in 2008

increased defaults on the Italian primary flow business We increased PMI Europes loss reserves by $23.7

million in 2007 primarily due to loss provision related to the deteriorating performance of small number of

U.S exposures on which PMI Europe provided reinsurance coverage

Underwriting and operating expensesThe increase in underwriting and operating expenses in 2008

compared to 2007 was primarily due to severance costs related to the restructuring of PMI Europe and the

strengthening of the Euro relative to the U.S dollar The increase in underwriting and operating expenses in 2007

compared to 2006 was primarily due to expenses related to our continuing expansion in Europe and also due to

strengthening of the Euro against the U.S dollar

Income taxesThe effective tax rate of 3.9% for PM Europe for 2008 was primarily driven by the Irish

statutory tax rate of 12.5% The tax rate of 7.2% for 2007 reflected certain U.S tax expense derived from PM
Europe earnings that were allocated to the international business segment

Risk in forcePMI Europes risk in force as of December 31 2008 was $7.4 billion compared to $9.4

billion as of December 31 2007 and $3.9 billion as of December 31 2006 The decrease in 2008 was primarily

due to number of credit default swap contracts being called as scheduled limited new business writings and

weakening of the Euro against the U.S dollar The increase in 2007 compared to 2006 was primarily due to new

credit default swaps written in 2007 increased primary insurance written and the strengthening of the Euro

against the U.S dollar
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PM Canada

The table below sets forth the financial results of PM Canada PM Canada began operations in 2007

Percentage

Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

USD in millions

Total revenues $7.4 $2.2

Losses and LAE 0.3 100.0%

Underwriting and operating expenses
13.8 4.1

Total losses and expenses 14.1 4.1

Loss before taxes 6.7 1.9

Income tax benefit expense

NetLoss $6.7 $1.9

Total revenuesTotal revenues increased in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to foreign currency

re-measurement gains from U.S dollar denominated cash and cash equivalents and from premiums earned on

2008 bulk primary transaction PMI Canada did not write business in 2007 PM Canadas revenue in 2007

consisted primarily of investment income on its investment portfolio

Losses and LAEPMI Canadas losses and LAE increased in 2008 compared to 2007 due to the notices of

default received in 2008 on its 2008 business writings PM Canada did not write
any

business in 2007

Underwriting and operating expensesThe increase in underwriting and operating expenses
in 2008

compared to 2007 was primarily due to severance costs

Discontinued Operations

During the third quarter of 2008 we reported PM Australia and PM Asia as discontinued operations As

result we classify the assets and liabilities of PM Australia and PM Asia as discontinued operations for all

periods presented In addition where applicable the notes to the consolidated financial statements have been

restated to reflect these discontinued operations for all periods presented summary of the composition of

operating results included in discontinued operations is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

PMI Australia 51114 $80005 $84539

PM Asia 10435 10265 4745

Income from discontinued operations 61549 $90270 $89284

Loss from sale of discontinued operations net of taxes 78749

Total loss income from discontinued operations $17200 $90270 $89284
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Summarized below are the overall operating components for each entity as well as certain asset and liability

information

The following table represents PMI Australias results of operations recorded as discontinued operations

and loss on sale of PMI Australia

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Premiums earned $151018 $167106 $145393

Net investment income 68178 72501 54741

Other loss income 28391 1139 1879

Total revenues 190805 240746 202013

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 73296 77500 36310

Other underwriting and operating expenses 44105 48632 44870

Income before income taxes from discontinued operations 73404 114614 120833

Income tax expense 22290 34609 36294

Income from discontinued operations 51114 80005 84539

Loss on sale of PMI Australia before income tax 25389
Income tax expense 39178

Loss on sale of PM Australia 64567

Loss on sale of PMI Australia was principally due to receiving portion of the purchase price in the form of

note issued by the purchaser in the principal amount of $187 million the payment of which is contingent on

certain performance criteria Due to the contingent nature of the note we did not record it as an asset in the

consolidated financial statements Loss on sale of PMI Australia was also due in part to selling and other costs

associated with the sale transaction including $46.5 million reinsurance premium partially offset by gains on

realization of accumulated other comprehensive income relating to foreign currency
translation adjustment The

income tax expense
related to the sale reflects the recognition of U.S taxable gain reduced by the benefits of

certain foreign tax credits generated by the sale

The following table represents PMI Asias results of operations recorded as discontinued operations and

loss on sale of PMI Asia

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Total revenues 15147 $13669 $6902

Losses and loss adjustment expenses
23 43 353

Other underwriting and operating expenses 3316 1989 797

Income before income taxes from discontinued operations 11808 11723 5752

Income taxes 1373 1458 1007

Income from discontinued operations 10435 $10265 $4745

Loss on sale of PMI Asia before income tax 10000

Income tax expense 4182

Loss on sale of PM Asia $14182

We sold PMI Asia for cash purchase price equal to 92.5% of its book value as of June 30 2008 The loss

on sale of PMI Asia was primarily due to selling PMI Asia for less than its book value and selling and other costs

associated with the sale which was partially offset by gains on realization of accumulated other comprehensive

income related to foreign currency translation adjustment The income tax expense related to the sale reflects the

recognition of U.S taxable gain reduced by the benefits of certain foreign tax credits generated by the sale
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Financial Guaranty

Financial Guaranty includes the equity in earnings losses from FGIC and RAM Re The financial results of

PM Guaranty are reported as discontinued operations

Equity in losses from RAM Re in 2008 was $57.7 million compared to equity in earnings of $4.5 million

and $8.7 million in 2007 and 2006 respectively The equity in losses from RAM Re in 2008 was due primarily to

RAM Res increases in loss reserves related to continued deterioration in the performance of RMBS In the third

quarter of 2008 we realized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $2.9 million with respect to our

investment in RAM Re The carrying value of our investment in RAM Re was zero at December 31 2008

In the first quarter of 2008 we impaired our investment in FGIC and reduced the carrying value of the

investment from $103.6 million to zero To the extent that our carrying value remains zero we will not recognize

in future periods our proportionate share of FGICs losses if any Equity in earnings from FGIC could be

recognized in the future to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable

Having completed its runoff activities we now report the results of operations of PM Guaranty as

discontinued operations in the Financial Guaranty segment and in the consolidated statement of operations for all

periods presented

Corporate and Other

The results of our Corporate and Other segment include income and operating expenses
related to contract

underwriting and net investment income interest expense and corporate overhead of The PM Group our

holding company Our Corporate and Other segment results are summarized as follows

Percentage Change

2008 2007

vs vs

2008 2007 2006 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Net investment income 10.3 11.4 22.1 9.6% 48.4%
Net realized investment losses 1.0 9.4 4.6 lO.6%

Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123.6 100.0%

Other income 10.5 14.4 13.6 27.1% 5.9%

Total revenues 143.4 35.2 31.1 13.2%

Pension Settlement Charge 5.5

Share-based compensation expense 8.8 16.1 12.2 45.3% 32.0%

Otheroperatingexpenses 46.5 63.1 76.1 26.3% l7.1%

Total other operating expenses 55.3 79.2 93.8 30.2% lS.6%
Interest

expense 40.9 33.3 37.9 22.8% 12.l%

Total expenses 96.2 112.5 131.7 14.5% 14.6%
Income loss before equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries and income taxes 47.2 77.3 100.6 l6l.1% 23.2%

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 0.6 0.2 0.2 200.0%

Net income loss before income taxes 46.6 77.1 100.8 160.4% 23.5%
Income tax expense benefit 13.2 29.3 29.4 145.1% 0.3%

Netincomeloss 33.4 $47.8 71.4 169.9% 33.l%

Net investment incomeNet investment income decreased in 2008 compared to 2007 due primarily to

decrease in book yield on our fixed income securities as well as lower rates on cash and cash equivalents Net

investment income decreased in 2007 compared to 2006 due primarily to decrease in the size of the investment

portfolio as result of repurchases of common shares and capital contributions to certain wholly-owned

subsidiaries in 2007 and decrease in book yield for the Corporate and Other segment
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Net realized investment lossesThe net realized investment losses in 2008 are due primarily to losses from

actual or anticipated investment sales The increase in net realized investment gains in 2007 compared to net

realized investment losses in 2006 was primarily due to the settlement gain of $12.7 million on the sale of an

unconsolidated subsidiary

Change in fair value of certain debt instrumentsThe change in fair value of certain debt instruments in

2008 resulted from our adoption of SFAS No 159 effective January 2008 In connection with our adoption of

SFAS No 159 we elected the fair value option presented by SFAS No 159 with respect to certain of our long

term debt instruments The realized gain of $123.6 million in 2008 is the result of fluctuations of fair value in

2008 primarily due to widening credit spreads and changes in interest rates

Share-based compensation expensesThe decrease in share-based compensation in 2008 from 2007 was

primarily due to decreases in the fair value of share-based compensation and the number of stock units granted in

2008 The increase in share-based compensation in 2007 from 2006 was primarily due to our acceleration of

out-of-the-money stock options in 2005 which reduced our share-based compensation expense in 2006

Other operating expensesThe decrease in other operating expenses in 2008 compared to 2007 was due

primarily to our receipt in 2008 of settlement proceeds of approximately $10.9 million related to insurance coverage

litigation concerning PMI defense and settlement of the litigation captioned Baynham et al PMI Mortgage

Insurance Co and decrease in contract underwriting remedies paid in 2008 Other operating expenses decreased

in 2007 compared to 2006 due to decreases in employee compensation costs and contract underwriting remedies

Income taxesThe tax rate of 28.3% for 2008 declined from 38.0% and 29.2% for 2007 and 2006

respectively due primarily to allocation of certain federal and state taxes or benefits to the Corporate and Other

business segment

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and Uses of Funds

The PMI Group LiquidityThe PMI Group is holding company and conducts its business operations

through various subsidiaries Historically The PMI Groups liquidity is primarily dependent upon The PMI

Groups subsidiaries ability to pay dividends to The PMI Group ii financing activities in the capital markets

iii maturing or refunded investments and investment income from The PMI Groups investment portfolio and

iv receivables from PMI with respect to tax sharing agreements The PMI Groups ability to access dividend and

financing sources is limited and depends on among other things the financial performance of The PMI Groups

subsidiaries regulatory resthctions on the ability of The PMI Groups insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends The

PMI Groups and its subsidiaries ratings by the rating agencies and restrictions and agreements to which The PMI

Group or its subsidiaries are subject that restrict their ability to pay dividends incur debt or issue equity securities

PMI did not pay dividends to The PMI Group in 2008 and we do not expect that PMI will be able to pay dividends

in 2009 or 2010 In addition the economic downturn has reduced returns on the PMI Groups investment portfolio

and we expect these returns could continue to be adversely affected to the extent the dislocation in the credit

markets and economic downturn continues See Item 1A Risk FactorsWe may face liquidity issues at our holding

company The PMI Group

The PMI Groups principal uses of liquidity are the payment of operating costs income taxes which are

predominantly reimbursed by its subsidiaries principal and interest on its capital instruments and dividends to

shareholders repurchases of its common shares purchases of investments and capital investments in and for its

subsidiaries The PMI Groups available funds consisting of cash and cash equivalents and investments were

$235.9 million at December 31 2008 including $200 million outstanding under our revolving credit facility

described below compared to $78.4 million at December 31 2007
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Credit Facility

We are actively engaged in discussions with the lenders under our credit facility to amend the financial

covenants and certain events of default under our revolving credit facility Pending negotiation and execution of

an amendment to the credit facility the lenders under the credit facility have agreed to suspend the financial

strength ratings event of default reduce the minimum Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth requirement from $1.5

billion to $1.2 billion and increase the maximum PMI risk-to-capital ratio requirement to 24.0 to through

April 15 2009 As part of this agreement we have agreed not to borrow additional amounts under the facility or

contribute additional capital to our subsidiaries unless and until we are in compliance with the rating Adjusted

Consolidated Net Worth and risk-to-capital ratio provisions as they were set forth in the credit facility prior to

their suspension We cannot be sure that we will complete an amendment to the credit agreement on terms

acceptable to us prior to the expiration of this temporary suspension or at all We believe that unless we raise

capital or the credit facility is successfully amended we will be unable to comply with all credit facility

covenants and terms on or after April 16 2009 See Item Risk FactorsWe may face liquidity issues at our

holding company The PMI Group We currently have sufficient liquidity at our holding company to repay the

credit facility in the event we no longer comply with its terms or in the event of potential cross-default under

our senior notes

Subject to the terms of the temporary suspension the total amount available under the credit facility is $250

million of which we have drawn $200 million In addition there is one outstanding letter of credit drawn under

the facility totaling approximately $0.25 million The availability under the credit facility is subject to reduction

potentially by up to an additional $100 million in the event of certain asset sales or equity or debt issuances The

facility includes $50 million letter of credit sub-limit We have granted the lenders under the revolving credit

facility security interest under Shared Collateral Pledge Agreement with U.S Bank National Association as

collateral agent the Collateral Agent pursuant to which we granted security interest in the stock of MIC in

favor of the Collateral Agent for the benefit of both the lenders under the credit facility and the noteholders

under certain of our senior notes In addition we have pledged to the lenders under the revolving credit facility

the stock of four of TPGs reinsurance subsidiaries

The credit facility includes number of conditions to our being able to borrow additional amounts under the

facility Among other things we will not be able to borrow additional amounts if either PMI fails to meet the

GSE eligibility requirements for mortgage insurers or there exist any limitations that were not in effect on

March 16 2008 with respect to the eligibility of mortgages insured by MIC for purchase by the GSEs that would

adversely affect other than in manner that is insubstantial the ability of PMI to conduct its business as it was

conducted prior to that date There can be no assurance that we will be able to meet the conditions required to

borrow additional amounts under the facility

The facility contains restrictions on asset dispositions and investments While we are generally permitted

subject to the terms of the temporary suspension described above to make additional investments in PMI and its

subsidiaries our ability to invest in our reinsurance subsidiaries is subject under the credit facility to dollar

limitations other than with regard to four of TPGs subsidiaries whose capital stock is pledged to the lenders

The credit facility does not permit us to make additional investments in FGIC or RAM Re

The credit facility contains number of financial covenants including minimum Adjusted Consolidated

Net Worth as defined in the facility requirement of $1.5 billion reduced to $1.2 billion through April 15 2009

by the temporary suspension maximum total debt to total capitalization percentage requirement of 35% and

maximum risk-to-capital ratio requirement of 20 to increased to 24 to through April 15 2009 by the

temporary suspension Events of default under the existing facility include among others PMI being

suspended as an approved mortgage insurer by either of the GSEs and failing to cure such suspension within 30

days or PMI being disqualified or terminated as an approved mortgage insurer by either of the GSEs PMI

failing to maintain financial strength rating of at least Baa from Moodys while also failing to maintain

financial strength rating of at least BBB from SP and our material insurance subsidiaries as defined in
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the facility being subject to certain regulatory actions or restrictions by their respective primary insurance

regulators that are not cured within specified periods of time Upon an event of default we would likely be

required to repay
all outstanding indebtedness under the credit facility and would be unable to draw on the

facility and the lenders under the credit facility would have the right to terminate their loan commitments under

the facility In addition an event of default under the facility if not cured within 30 days would cause an event

of default under our outstanding senior notes and could require us to repay
all our outstanding senior notes As

described above the financial strength ratings event of default has been suspended through April 15 2009 by the

lenders under the facility

As of December 31 2008 our Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth was $1.72 billion and our total debt to total

capitalization percentage was 27.4% and PMI risk-to-capital ratio was 18.5 to PMI insurer financial

strength ratings are Ba3 Developing from Moodys and A- Watch Negative from SP In addition while

we have submitted to the GSEs remediation plans and to date each of the GSEs has continued to treat PMI as an

eligible mortgage insurer we cannot be sure that the GSEs will continue to treat PMI as an eligible mortgage

insurer We believe that we will continue to incur material losses that will reduce our Adjusted Consolidated Net

Worth increase our total debt to total capitalization percentage
and increase PMIs risk-to-capital ratio SP

may take additional ratings actions with respect to PMI and other mortgage insurers in the very near future See

also Item 1A Risk FactorsOur credit facility contains restrictive and financial covenants and we are unable

to comply with these covenants we may trigger an event of default under the facility

Dividends to The PMI Group

PMIs ability to pay dividends to The PMI Group is affected by state insurance laws credit agreements

rating agencies and the discretion of insurance regulatory authorities The laws of Arizona PMIs state of

domicile for insurance regulatory purposes provide that PMI may pay dividends out of any available surplus

account without prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance Arizona Director

during any
12-month period in an amount not to exceed the lesser of 10% of policyholders surplus as of the

preceding year
end or the prior calendar years net investment income dividend that exceeds the foregoing

threshold is deemed an extraordinary dividend and requires the prior approval of the Arizona Director In 2006

and 2007 the Arizona Director approved two extraordinary dividend requests totaling $450 million PMI paid

$265 million of the $450 million of approved extraordinary dividends to The PM Group in 2006 and 2007 but

did not pay any
dividend to The PMI Group in 2008 We do not anticipate that PM will pay any dividends to

The PMI Group in 2009 and 2010 Any payment of the remaining $185 million of approved dividends by PMI to

The PMI Group requires prior written notice to the Arizona Director who could withdraw approval of such

dividends

Other states may also limit or restrict PMIs ability to pay shareholder dividends For example California

and New York prohibit mortgage insurers from declaring dividends except from the surplus of undivided profits

over the aggregate of their paid-in capital paid-in surplus and contingency reserves

PMIs ability to pay dividends is also subject to restriction under the terms of runoff support agreement

with Allstate Insurance Company Under the terms of such runoff support agreement PMI is subject to

restrictions that may apply if its risk-to-capital ratio exceeds 23 to Under the runoff support agreement among

other things PMI may not declare or pay dividends at any time that its risk-to-capital ratio equals or exceeds 23

to or if such dividend would cause its risk-to-capital ratio to equal or exceed 23 to In addition if PMI

risk-to-capital ratio equals or exceeds 23 to at three consecutive monthly measurement dates PMI may not

enter into new insurance or reinsurance contracts without the consent of Allstate Insurance Company If

following such time as PMI risk-to-capital ratio were to exceed 24.5 to the runoff support agreement requires

PM to transfer substantially all of its liquid assets to trust account for the payment of PMI obligations to

policyholders therefore negatively affecting PMIs and The PMI Groups liquidity position As of December 31

2008 PMIs risk-to-capital ratio was 18.5 to compared to 10.8 to at December 31 2007 and 8.1 to at

December 31 2006
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U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations LiquidityThe principal uses of U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations liquidity are the payment of operating expenses claim payments taxes dividends to The PM Group

and the growth of its investment portfolio The principal sources of U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

liquidity are the investment portfolio including cash and cash equivalents written premiums net investment

income and capital contributed from its holding company TPG

International Operations and Financial Guaranty LiquidityThe principal uses of these segments

liquidity are the payment of operating expenses claim payments taxes and growth of their investment

portfolios The principal sources of these segments liquidity are written premiums investment maturities and net

investment income

Capital Constraints

As result primarily of higher losses and LAE beginning in 2007 we require additional capital as described

further under Item lA. Risk FactorsCapital and Liquidity Constraints The amount and timing of capital

required is affected by variety of factors many of which are difficult to predict and may be outside of our

control These factors include among others

the performance of our U.S mortgage insurance operations which is affected by among other things

the economy default and cure rates and losses and LAE

PMIs ability to comply with policyholders position requirements and risk-to-capital requirements

imposed by regulators as well as under our credit facility

determinations and views many of which are subjective rather than quantitative in nature of the GSEs

and rating agencies

performance of our investment portfolio and the extent of impairments to portions of the portfolio as

result of deteriorating capital markets

financial and other covenants and event of default triggers in our credit facility

the performance of PMI Europe which is affected by among other things the U.S mortgage market

and changes in the fair value of CDS derivative contracts resulting from the widening of RMBS credit

spreads and

any requirements to provide capital under the PM Europe or CMG capital support agreements

We are significantly limiting PMIs new business writings to conserve capital and are exploring other

alternatives including potentially obtaining capital or other relief under the U.S Treasurys Financial Stability

Plan including TARP obtaining reinsurance for our insurance subsidiaries existing or future books of

business other capital relief initiatives at PMI and/or debt or equity offerings Given current market conditions

generally and in our industry as well as the possibility that we may need to raise additional capital with little

notice there can be no assurance that we will be able to consummate any capital raising transactions on favorable

terms in timely manner or at all or that we will successfully obtain assistance under the Financial Stability

Plan or other government program Unless we raise capital PMI policyholders position will likely decline and

risk-to-capital ratio increase beyond levels necessary to meet capital adequacy requirements and if we are

unsuccessful in renegotiating our credit facility certain credit facility covenants We could exceed regulatory

capital adequacy requirements in 2009 and if we did PMI would likely cease writing new business

Consolidated Contractual Obligations

Our consolidated contractual obligations include reserves for losses and LAE long-term debt obligations

operating lease obligations capital lease obligations and purchase obligations Most of our purchase obligations

are capital expenditure commitments that will be used for technology improvements We have lease obligations

under certain non-cancelable operating leases In addition we may be committed to fund if called upon to do so

$3.0 million of additional equity in certain limited partnership investments
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Cash payments related to our reserves for losses and LAE as of December 31 2008 shown below are based

upon managements best estimate from historical experience as well as current economic conditions These

estimates could vary significantly based on among other things changes to claim rates and claim sizes

Minimum rental payments under non-cancelable capital and operating leases are provided in the table below

Less Than 3-5 Years

Year 1-3 Years Years or more Total

Dollars in thousands

Reserves for losses and LAE $1333897 $1228865 $130190 16334 $2709286

Debt obligations 34304 258448 58448 783030 1134230

Operating lease obligations 2069 2582 1286 886 6823

Capital lease obligations 642 161 803

Purchase obligations 2501 815
_______ _______

3316

Total $1373413 $1490871 $189924 $800250 $3854458

Includes $65 1593 million of principal debt and $482637 million of scheduled interest

Includes amounts representing interest of $0.05 million

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Under certain circumstances when we make an underwriting error in the course of providing contract

underwriting services to customer we issue to the customer loan indemnification Such an indemnification is

in lieu of paying monetary remedy to the customer at the time the underwriting error is discovered and is

usually issued on loan by loan basis While the terms of the indemnifications vary each indemnification

generally requires us to reimburse the customer for certain costs excess of insurance recoverables it incurs as

result of the borrowers default on the loan in question If the indemnified loan remains current or is repaid or

refinanced we have no actual liability under the indemnification As of December 31 2008 we estimate that the

total principal balance of indemnified loans was between approximately $30 million and $35 million We believe

number of factors will cause our contingent liability with respect to these indemnifications to be significantly

lower than this amount These factors include the following we generally only indemnify performing loans

ii we expect only portion of the indemnified loans to default iii loans in default may not necessarily cause

our customers to incur losses and iv we expect portion of these loans to be refinanced or their

indemnification coverage to expire On March 12 2009 we announced that we will discontinue offering contract

underwriting services however we may still have liabilities under the existing loan indemnifications In 2008

we paid customers $0.2 million pursuant to loan indemnifications compared to $0.2 million in 2007 These

amounts are included in our expenses associated with contract underwriting remedies

In connection with structured finance transactions in the U.S and Europe we are required to provide

narrative and/or financial information relating to us and our subsidiaries to mortgage-backed securities issuers for

inclusion in the relevant offering documents and the issuers ongoing SEC filings In connection with the

provision of such information we or our subsidiaries may be required to indemnify the issuer of the mortgage-

backed securities and the underwriters of the offering with respect to the informations accuracy and

completeness and its compliance with applicable U.S securities laws and regulations

Certain of PM Europes credit default swap contracts and reinsurance agreements
contain collateral support

provisions which upon certain circumstances such as downgrade of PMI Europes insurer financial strength

ratings and/or deterioration of underlying mortgage loan performance require PM Europe to post collateral for

the benefit of the counterparty The amount of the required posted collateral varies and can include the amount of

loss reserves established by the counterparty
mark-to-market valuations by the counterparty contractual

formulae and/or negotiated amount PMI Europe has posted collateral of $64.2 million as of March 15 2009

with respect to credit default swap transactions PM Europe has also posted collateral related to certain

reinsurance transactions and as of March 15 2009 the posted collateral balance was $53.7 million PMI Europe
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may be required to post additional collateral on credit default swaps as result of such factors as widening of

credit spreads and/or deterioration in the performance of the underlying collateral referenced in such transactions

and on reinsurance transactions due to continued loss development

Consolidated Investments

Net Investment Income

Net investment income consists of

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Fixed income securities $103770 97517 $102019

Equity securities 21583 19725 12975

Short-term investments and cash and cash equivalents and other 14965 17000 24429

Investment income before expenses 140318 134242 139423

Investment expenses 1941 1690 1629

Net investment income $138377 $132552 $137794

The increase in net investment income in 2008 compared to 2007 was primarily due to the growth of PMI
fixed income portfolio partially offset by decrease in pre-tax book yield Our consolidated pre-tax book yield

was 3.55% and 5.11% as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively Net investment income decreased in

2007 compared to 2006 primarily due to declines in PMIs short-term investments portfolio

Realized Investment Gains and Losses

Realized investment gains and losses on investments are composed of

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Fixed income securities

Gross gains 30570 2273 5961

Gross losses 7479 974 3657

Net gains 23091 1299 2304

Equity securities

Gross gains 24092 14632 3600

Gross losses 99397 14612 2500

Net losses gains 75305 20 1100

Short-term investments

Gross gains 5733
Gross losses 1861 129 3086

Net gains losses 3872 129 3086

Investment in unconsolidated subsidiaries

Settlement gain on sale of unconsolidated subsidiary 12670

Impairment of unconsolidated subsidiaries 90868 38499

Net losses 90868 25829

Net realized investment losses gains before income taxes 139210 24639 318

Income tax benefit expense 48724 8624 111

Total net realized investment losses gains after income taxes 90486 $16015 207
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Realized investment losses gains for 2008 include $96.5 million loss related to other-than-temporary

impairments of certain preferred securities in our U.S investment portfolio See Item 1A Risk FactorsAs

result of signJicant volatility and uncertainty in the market we impaired the value of certain securities held in

our investment portfolio and there is risk that additional impairments may occur in the frture Also included in

realized investment losses gains for 2008 is the Company impairment of its investment in its unconsolidated

subsidiaries FGIC and RAM Re Impairment of unconsolidated subsidiaries for 2008 includes an $88 million

loss related to the impairment of the Company investment in FGIC and $2 million loss related to the

Companys impairment of its investment in RAM Re The net realized investment losses in 2007 were due

primarily to our other-than-temporary impairment of our investment in RAM Re of $38.5 million partially offset

by $12.7 million settlement gain related sale of an unconsolidated subsidiary

Unrealized Investment Gains and Losses

The changes in net unrealized gains losses net of deferred taxes consist of

2008 2007 2006

Dollars hi thousands

Fixed income securities 98557 $48358 $24601

Equity securities 9464 26543 11686

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 17 721 12 973 001

Short-term investments 2074

Changes in unrealized investment gains net of deferred taxes 125742 $6 1937 2840

The changes in unrealized gains in 2008 2007 and 2006 were due primarily to changes in interest rates that

caused market value fluctuations relative to our consolidated fixed income portfolio In 2008 changes in interest

rates and widening credit spreads contnbuted to the changes in unrealized losses on our preferred stock in our

equity portfolio As interest rates market and other economic conditions change we expect the market value of

the securities in our consolidated investment portfolio and of our unconsolidated equity investments to be

affected
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Investment Portfolio by Operating Segment

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the consolidated investment portfolio as of

December 31 2008 and 2007 Amounts shown under International Operations consist of the investment

portfolios of PMI Europe and PMI Canada Amounts shown under Corporate and Other consist of the

investment portfolio of The PMI Group and amounts shown under Financial Guaranty consist of the

investment portfolio of PMI Guaranty as of December 31 2007 As of December 31 2008 PMI Guarantys

assets and liabilities were merged into our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

December 31 2008

Fixed income securities

U.S Municipal bonds

Foreign governments

Corporate bonds

U.S government and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Total fixed income securities

Equity securities

Common stocks

Preferred stocks

Total equity securities

Short-term investments

Total investments

98893 $1814269

50361

125218

4419

________
3199

_______ 1997466

5593

________
216256

221849

________
2280

_______ $2221595

International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Guaranty and Other Total

Dollars in thousands

50361

89443 34701

154

1482

139804 135230

1300

$139804 $136530

International Financial Corporate
Operations Guaranty and Other

Dollars in thousands

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance

Operations

$1715376

1074

4265

1717

1722432

5593

216256

221849
980

$1945261

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance

Operations

$1521367

675

7511

2053

1531606

116005

277165

393170
951

$1925727

100

December 31 2007

Fixed income securities

U.S Municipal bonds

Foreign governments

Corporate bonds

U.S government and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Total fixed income securities

Equity securities

Common stocks

Preferred stocks

Total equity securities

Short-term investments

Total investments

265653

265653

$265657

Consolidated

Total

$1702824

265653

37464

8487

3720

2018148

117251

299630

416881

2251

$2437280

$167915

167915

22465

22465

$190380

$13542

36789

976

1667

52974

1242

1242

1300

$55516



Our consolidated investment portfolio holds primarily investment grade securities comprised of readily

marketable fixed income and equity securities The fair value of these securities in our consolidated investment

portfolio decreased to $2.2 billion as of December 31 2008 from $2.4 billion as of December 31 2007

Our consolidated investment portfolio consists primarily of publicly traded municipal bonds U.S and

foreign government bonds and corporate
bonds In accordance with SPAS No 115 Accounting for Certain

Investments in Debt and Equity Securities our entire investment portfolio is designated as available-for-sale and

reported at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income

The following table summarizes the rating distributions of our consolidated investment portfolio including

cash and cash equivalents excluding common stocks as of December 31 2008

U.S

Mortgage
insurance International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Operations Guaranty and Other Total

AAA or equivalent
58% 80% 60% 59%

AA 24% 3% 30% 24%

15% 10% 9% 14%

BBB 3% 5% 1%

Below investment grade 2%

Total 100% 100% 100% 100%

As of December 31 2008 approximately $850.5 million or 24.8% of our consolidated investment portfolio

including cash and cash equivalents excluding common stocks was insured by monoline financial guarantors

The financial guarantors
include MBIA FGIC FSA AMBAC and others The table below presents the fair value

of securities and the percentage of our consolidated investment portfolio that are insured by these financial

guarantors as of December 31 2008

Fair Value of Consolidated

in thousands Investments

MBIA $235371 6.9%

FGIC 185555 5.4%

FSA 163212 4.8%

AMBAC 176396 5.1%

Other 89998 2.6%

Total $850532 24.8%
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We do not rely on the financial guarantees as principal source of repayment when evaluating securities for

purchase Rather securities are evaluated primarily based on the underlying issuers credit quality During 2008
several of the financial guarantors listed above were downgraded by one or more of the rating agencies

downgrade of financial guarantor may have an adverse effect on the fair value of investments insured by the

downgraded financial guarantor If we determine that declines in the fair values of our investments are other-

than-temporary we record realized loss The table below illustrates the underlying rating distributions of our

consolidated investment portfolio including cash and cash equivalents excluding common stocks as of

December 31 2008 excluding the benefit of the financial guarantees provided by these financial
guarantors

Underlying ratings excluding the benefit of financial
guarantors are based upon the higher underlying rating

assigned by SP or Moodys when an underlying rating exists from either rating agency or when an external

rating is not available the underlying rating is included in the not ratedcategory

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance

Operations
______________

AAA or equivalent 51%
AA 19%

26%
BBB 4%
Below investment grade

Notrated

Total

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance

Operations

3.49%

5.15%

5.28%

2008

2007

2006

International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Guaranty and Other Total

80% 53% 53%
3% 22% 18%

10% 24% 25%
5% 1%
2%

International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Guaranty and Other Total

3.31% 3.27% 3.46%

4.52% 5.19% 5.07%

4.33% 5.23% 5.18%

December 312008

Principal Carrying
Amount Fair Value Value

Dollars in thousands

$153027 $153027

77144 77144

200000 200000

27540 51593

_______
$457711 $481764

The following table summarizes the pre-tax book yield of our consolidated investment portfolio by segment

as of December31 2008 2007 and-2006

100% 100%

The decrease in the pre-tax book yield of U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Financial Guaranty and

Corporate and Other in 2008 was due to interest rate decreases during the year

Debt and Equity Financing

As of December 31 2008 our consolidated shareholders equity was $1.3 billion The fair value and

carrying value of our long-term debt outstanding issued by The PMI Group at December 31 was as follows

December 31
2007

6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 2016

6.625% Senior Notes due September 15 2036
Revolving Credit Facility

8.3 09% Junior Subordinated Debentures due February 2027

5.568% Senior Notes due November 15 2008

$250000

150000

200000

51593

Total debt $651593

Carrying
Value

$250000

150000

51593

45000

$496593

The fair value and carrying value of the our 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes at December 31 2008 include accrued

interest
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Effective January 2008 we elected to adopt the fair value option presented by SFAS No 159 for our

6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes SFAS No 159 requires that the difference between the carrying

value before election of the fair value option and the fair value of these instruments be recorded as an adjustment to

beginning retained earnings in the period of adoption See Note Fair Value Disclosures for further discussion

In considering the initial adoption of the SFAS No 159 we determined that the change in fair value of the

8.309% Junior Subordinated Debentures would not have significant impact on the Companys consolidated

financial results Therefore the Company did not elect to adopt the fair value option for the 8.309% Junior

Subordinated Debentures Since the 5.568% Senior Notes matured in 2008 the Company did not elect to adopt

the fair value option for the 5.568% Senior Notes

For discussion of our revolving credit facility see Liquidity and Capital ResourcesCredit Facility above

6.000% and 6.625% Senior NotesIn September 2006 we issued $250 million in principal amount of

6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 2016 and $150 million in principal amount of 6.625% Senior Notes

due September 15 2036 The 6.000% Senior Notes and the 6.625% Senior Notes bear interest at rate of 6.000%

and 6.625% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year beginning

on March 15 2007 The PMI Group may redeem the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes in whole or in part at any
time at the make-whole redemption price The make-whole redemption price will be equal to the greater of

100% of the principal amount of the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes to be redeemed and the sum of the

present values of the remaining scheduled payments thereon discounted to the date of redemption on semi
annual basis assuming 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months at rate equal to the applicable

treasury rate plus 25 basis points for the 6.000% Senior Notes and 35 basis points for the 6.625% Senior Notes

plus in the case of either or any interest accrued but not paid to but excluding the date of redemption In

connection with the issuance of these Senior Notes the Company entered into two interest rate lock agreements

which were designated as cash flow hedges The fair value of the cash flow hedges was settled for $9.0 million

and is amortized into interest expense over the terms of the new senior debt that was issued As of December 31

2008 the unamortized balance in the other comprehensive income related to these fair value hedges was

approximately $7.6 million pre-tax

5.568% Senior NotesIn August 2006 we completed the remarketing of approximately $345 million in

principal amount of senior notes which matured and were paid in November 2008 and which are referred to as

the 5.568% Senior Notes As result of the remarketing the annual interest rate on these notes was reset from

3.00%
per annum to 5.568% per annum paid quarterly effective from and including August 15 2006 In

connection with the remarketing we purchased and cancelled $300.0 million in principal amount of the 5.568%

Senior Notes leaving $45.0 million in principal amount of these notes outstanding after completion of the

remarketing which subsequently matured and was repaired in November 2008

8.309% Junior Subordinated DebenturesThe Junior Subordinated Debentures bear interest at the rate of

8.309%
per annum paid semiannually and mature on February 2027 The Junior Subordinated Debentures are

subordinated to all senior indebtedness of The PMI Group

Capital Support Obligations

PMI has capital support agreement with PMI Europe with corresponding guarantee from The PMI

Group under which PMI may be required to make additional capital contributions from time-to-time as

necessary to maintain PMI Europes minimum capital requirements PMI also has capital support agreement

whereby it agreed to contribute funds under specified conditions to maintain CMG MIs risk-to-capital ratio at

or below 19.0 to PMIs obligation under the CMG MI capital support agreement is limited to an aggregate of

$37.7 million As of December 31 2008 CMG MIs risk-to-capital ratio was 16.2 to

PMI also has capital support agreement with PMI Canada Because we terminated our Canadian

operations in PMI Canada we believe it is unlikely there is any remaining material support obligation under the

PMI Canada capital support agreement
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Cash Flows

On consolidated basis our principal sources of funds are cash flows generated by our insurance subsidiaries

and investment income derived from our investment portfolios One of the primary goals of our cash management

policy is to ensure that we have sufficient funds on hand to pay obligations when they are due We believe that we

have sufficient cash to meet these and other of our short- and medium-term obligations We believe that we

currently have sufficient liquidity at our holding company to pay holding company expenses including interest

expense on our outstanding debt in 2009 and 2010 and to repay
the amounts outstanding under the credit facility if

we were required to do so or in the event of potential cross-default under our senior notes We also believe we

currently have sufficient assets at the insurance company level to meet our obligations in 2009 However if an event

of default under our revolving credit facility is not cured or we do not repay within 30 days an event of default

would occur under our outstanding senior notes The PMI Group does not currently have sufficient funds or other

sources of liquidity to enable it to repay both our credit facility and our senior notes if those obligations were

required to be repaid See Item 1A Risk FactorsWe may face liquidity issues at our holding company

Consolidated cash flows generated by operating activities including premiums investment income

underwriting and operating expenses and losses were $277.2 million in 2008 compared to $400.6 million in

2007 and $149.2 million in 2006 Cash flows from operations decreased in 2008 primarily due to increases in

claim payments from PM Cash flows from operations increased in 2007 primarily due to increases in premiums

written We expect cash flows from operating activities to be negatively affected throughout 2009 due to

payment of claims from loss reserves recorded by PMI in 2007 and 2008

Consolidated cash flows provided by investing activities in 2008 including purchases and sales of

investments and capital expenditures were $686.0 million compared to consolidated cash flows used in investing

activities of $102.0 million in 2007 and cash provided by investing activities of $284.0 million in 2006 The

increase in cash flows provided by investing activities in 2008 compared to 2007 was due primarily to proceeds

from the sales of PMI Australia and PM Asia The increase in cash flows used in investing activities in 2007

compared to 2006 was due primarily to decreased proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed income securities

and increased purchases of fixed income securities

Consolidated cash flows provided by financing activities were $155.3 million in 2008 compared to cash

flows used in financing activities of $197.4 million and $501.6 million in 2007 and 2006 respectively The

significant increase in cash provided by financing activities in 2008 was due to the $200 million of proceeds from

our credit facility in 2008 The decrease in cash used in financing activities in 2007 was primarily due to cash

used in repurchase of senior notes repayment of long-term debt and purchase of treasury stock in 2006

Ratings

The rating agencies have assigned the following ratings to The PMI Group and certain of its affiliates and its

equity investee subsidiaries as of March 15 2009

Standard

Poors Fitch Moodys

Insurer Financial Strength Ratings

PM Mortgage Insurance Co A- BBB Ba3

PMI Insurance Co A- BBB Ba3

PMI Europe A- BBB
CMGMI AA- AA

FGIC CCC Caal

RAM Re Baa3

Senior Unsecured Debt

The PMI Group BBB- BB B3

Capital Securities

PM Capital BB BB- Caal
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Recent Developments Relating to Mortgage Insurance Companies Ratings

On April 2008 Standard Poors downgraded its counterparty credit and insurer financial strength ratings on

PMI Mortgage Insurance Co PM Insurance Co and PM Europe from AA CreditWatch with Negative

Implications to Negative Outlook Standard Poors also downgraded its counterparty
credit rating on The

PM Group from CreditWatch with Negative Implications to BBB Negative Outlook In taking these

actions Standard Poors noted that the downgrades reflected among other things weaker-than-expected results for

the fourth quarter of 2007 and the continued deterioration in key variables that influence claims for mortgage

insurance Also on April 2008 Standard Poors placed its AA- counterparty credit and insurer financial

strength ratings on CMG MI on CreditWatch with Negative Implications Standard Poors indicated that it had taken

this action in order to review the impact that the downgrade of PM Mortgage Insurance Co would have on CMG MI

On April 15 2008 Standard Poors removed CMG from CreditWatch with Negative Implications

affirmed its AA counterparty credit and insurer financial strength ratings and revised the outlook to Negative

In taking these actions Standard Poors indicated that it viewed the April 2008 downgrade of PMI

Mortgage Insurance Co as not having material impact on CMG MIs financial strength

On June 2008 Fitch lowered its insurer financial strength rating on PMI and PMI Europe from AA
Rating Watch Negative to Rating Watch Negative and its long-term issuer rating of The PMI Group

from Rating Watch Negative to BBB Rating Watch Negative

On July 2008 Moodys lowered its insurer financial strength rating on PM from Aa2 On Review for

Possible Downgrade to A3 Negative Outlook and The PM Groups senior debt rating from Al On
Review for Possible Downgrade to Baa3 Negative Outlook Moodys also lowered the rating of PM Europe

from Aa3 On Review for Possible Downgrade to A3 Negative Outlook

On August 26 2008 Standard Poors downgraded its counterparty credit and insurer financial strength

ratings on PM Mortgage Insurance Co PM nsurance Co and PMI Europe from Negative Outlook to

A- CreditWatch with Negative Implications Standard Poors also downgraded its counterparty credit

rating on The PM Group from BBB Negative Outlook to BBB- CreditWatch with Negative

Implications

On October 2008 Standard Poors removed The PM Group and its mortgage insurance subsidiaries

PM Mortgage Insurance Co PM Insurance Co and PMI Europe from CreditWatch with Negative

Implications At the same time Standard Poors affirmed the ratings on all of these companies and revised the

outlook to Negative

On October 10 2008 Moodys announced that it placed on review for possible downgrade the A3
insurance financial strength ratings of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co PMI Insurance Co and PM Europe

Moodys also placed the Baa3 senior unsecured debt rating of The PMI Group under review for possible

downgrade

On October 17 2008 Fitch lowered its insurer financial strength ratings on PM Mortgage Insurance Co
PM nsurance Co and PMI Europe from Rating Watch Negative to BBB Negative Fitch also

lowered its long-term issuer debt rating of The PMI Group from BBB Negative to BB Rating Watch

Negative

On December 2008 Standard Poors placed its ratings on PMI Mortgage Insurance Co and its core

and dependent foreign subsidiaries on CreditWatch with negative implications The CreditWatch placement

reflected greater deterioration in the employment and housing markets than Standard Poor had anticipated

when they last conducted an extensive review of the mortgage insurance sector in late August On December 19
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2008 Standard Poors concluded that the increase in their loss cost estimates for PMI Mortgage Insurance Co

was not large enough to necessitate downgrade Ratings remain on CreditWatch

On February 13 2009 Moodys downgraded the insurer financial strength ratings of PMI Mortgage

Insurance Co and PMI Insurance Co to Ba3 from A3 and downgraded PMI Europe to from A3
Moodys indicated that its rating outlook for each of these companies is developing Moodys also downgraded

the senior unsecured debt ratings of The PMI Group to B3 from Baa3 and they remain under review for

further possible downgrade Moodys noted that its rating action reflected its view that there is significant stress

on MICs risk-adjusted capital position as result of higher expected mortgage losses due to the weak economic

environment and continued deterioration in housing fund4mentals The downgrade also considered the continued

pressure on MIC profitability and the constraints on its financial flexibility in the current market environment

In addition Moodys stated its belief that the franchise value among mortgage insurers generally has deteriorated

in recent months placing additional pressure on our ratings The downgrade on The PMI Group reflected

Moodys view of the proximity to potential breach of covenants in the bank credit facility constrained financial

flexibility and meaningful liquidity and refinancing risks that The PMI Group may face if the deterioration in

mortgage finance is protracted

On March 2009 Fitch Ratings placed CMG MIs AA insurer financial strength rating on Rating Watch

Negative The rating action was result of Fitchs downgrade of CUNA Mutuals insurer financial strength

rating to from AA- which was covered under separate rating commentary on March Fitch expects to

resolve the Rating Watch Negative on CMG MIs rating within one month

Determinations of ratings by the rating agencies are affected by variety of factors including

macroeconomic conditions economic conditions affecting the mortgage insurance industry changes in business

prospects regulatory conditions competition underwriting and investment losses and the need for additional

capital There can be no assurance that our wholly-owned insurance subsidiaries will not be downgraded in the

future See Item lA Risk FactorsWe have been and will continue to be negatively impacted by recent

downgrades of PMIs insurer financial strength ratings
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation as well as

disclosures included elsewhere in this report are based upon our consolidated financial statements which have

been prepared in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles The preparation of these

financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and

liabilities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingencies Actual results may differ significantly

from these estimates We believe that the following critical accounting estimates involved significant judgments

used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements

Reserves for Losses and LAE

We establish reserves for losses and LAE to recognize the liability of unpaid losses related to insured

mortgages that are in default We do not rely on single estimate to determine our loss and LAE reserves To

ensure the reasonableness of our ultimate estimates we develop scenarios using generally recognized actuarial

projection methodologies that result in various possible losses and LAE

Changes in loss reserves can materially affect our consolidated net income or loss The process of

estimating loss reserves requires us to forecast the interest rate employment and housing market environments

which are highly uncertain Therefore the process requires significant management judgment and estimates The

use of different estimates would have resulted in the establishment of different reserves In addition changes in

the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to period based on the economic conditions

We review the judgments made in our prior period estimation process and adjust our current assumptions as

appropriate While our assumptions are based in part upon historical data the loss provisioning process
is

complex and subjective and therefore the ultimate liability may vary significantly from our estimates

The following table shows the reasonable range
of loss and LAE reserves as determined by our actuaries

and recorded reserves for losses and LAE gross of recoverables as of December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 on segment and consolidated basis

As of December 312008 As of December 312007

Low High Recorded Low High Recorded

Dollars in millions Dollars in millions

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations $2175.0 $3075.0 $2624.5 $933.8 $1348.7 $1133.1

International Operations
73.4 91.3 84.8 18.1 76.2 41.6

PMI Guaranty
2.6 2.6 2.6

Consolidated loss and LAE reserves $2248.4 $3166.3 $2709.3 $954.5 $1427.5 $1177.3

Effective December 31 2008 PM Guarantys reserves were merged into U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

U.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsWe establish PMI reserves for losses and LAE based upon our

estimate of unpaid losses and LAE on reported mortgage loans in default and ii estimated defaults incurred

but not reported to PMI by its customers We believe the amounts recorded represent the most likely outcome

within the actuarial ranges

Our best estimate of PMIs reserves for losses and LAE is derived primarily from our analysis of PMIs

default and loss experience The key assumptions used in the estimation process are expected claim rates

average
claim sizes and costs to settle claims We evaluate our assumptions in light of PMIs historical patterns

of claim payments loss experience in past and current economic environments the seasoning of PMIs various

books of business PMI coverage levels the credit quality profile of PMI portfolios and the geographic mix

of PMIs business Our assumptions are influenced by historical loss patterns and are adjusted to reflect recent

loss trends Our assumptions are also influenced by our assessment of current and future economic conditions
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including trends in housing prices unemployment and interest rates Our estimation
process uses generally

recognized actuarial projection methodologies As part of our estimation process we also evaluate various

scenarios representing possible losses and LAE under different economic assumptions

We established PMIs reserves at December 31 2008 based on among other factors our evaluation of

PMIs estimated future claim rates and average claim sizes Managements best estimate of reserves for losses at

December 31 2008 was approximately the mid-point of the actuarial range

Our increases to the reserve balance in 2008 were primarily due to PMIs higher default inventory higher

expected claim rates and claim sizes on reported defaults driven by increases in the average loan size and

coverage level within PMIs default inventory Continuing deterioration of the U.S housing and mortgage
markets caused PMIs default inventory claim rates and claim sizes to increase in 2008 Higher claim rates have

been driven by home price declines and diminished availability of certain loan products both of which constrain

refinancing opportunities and result in decrease in the percentage of the default inventory that is returning to

current status cure rate The increases in PMIs
average

claim size have been driven by among other things an

increase in defaults from loans with higher loan sizes and
coverage levels and declining home prices which limit

PMI loss mitigation opportunities The table below provides reconciliation of our U.S Mortgage Insurance

segments beginning and ending reserves for losses and LAE for the years ended December 31 2008 2007
2006

1688.0

147.7

1835.7

894.4

201.7

1096.1

1097.2

35.9

$1133.1

260.8

2.2

263.0

22.1

220.6

242.7

363.3

2.9

366.2

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

$1133.1 366.2 345.5

35.9 2.9 2.5

1097.2 363.3 343.0

Balance at January

Reinsurance recoverables

Net balance at January

Losses and LAE incurred principally with respect to defaults occurring in
Current year

Prior years

Total incurred

Losses and LAE payments principally with respect to defaults occurring in
Current year

Prior years

Total payments

Transfer of PMI Guaranty loss reserves to USMI
Net balance at December 31

Reinsurance recoverables

Balance at December 31

100.9 43.6

_______
318.6

________
362.2

713.1

814.0

22.9

2141.8

482.7

$2624.5
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The above loss reserve reconciliation shows the components of our losses and LAE reserve changes for the

periods presented Losses and LAE payments of $814.0 million $362.2 and $242.7 million for the periods ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively reflect amounts paid during the periods presented and are not

subject to estimation Total losses and LAE incurred of $1.8 billion $1.1 billion and $263.0 million for years

ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively are managements best estimates of ultimate losses and

LAE and are subject to change The changes in our estimates are principally reflected in the losses and LAE

incurred line item which shows an increase to losses and LAE incurred related to prior years
of $147.7 million

$201.7 million and $2.2 million for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively PMI

Guarantys loss reserves of $22.9 million are related to the agreement between PMI Guaranty FGIC and AG Re

under which PMI Guaranty commuted certain risks with FGIC Effective December 31 2008 PMI Guarantys

loss reserves were merged into our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

The table below breaks down 2008 2007 and 2006 changes in reserves related to prior years by particular

accident years

Losses and LAE Incurred Change in Incurred

2008 2007 2006

Accident Year vs vs vs

year in which default occurred 2008 2007 2006 2005 2007 2006 2005

2001 and prior
0.6 0.3 $0.3

2002 225.1 225.1 221.7 220.2 3.4 1.5

2003 225.9 226.8 220.2 217.6 0.9 6.6 2.6

2004 241.2 241.3 229.1 224.7 0.1 12.2 4.4

2005 272.0 270.8 240.4 247.0 1.2 30.4 6.6

2006 409.9 410.3 260.9 0.4 149.4

2007 1041.6 893.1 148.5

2008 1710.9

Total
$147.7 $201.7 $2.2

The $147.7 million $201.7 and $2.2 million increases related to prior years in 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively were due to re-estimations of ultimate loss rates from those established at the original notices of

defaults updated through the periods presented
The $147.7 million increase in prior years reserves during 2008

and the $201.7 million increase in prior years reserves in 2007 reflected the significant weakening of the

housing and mortgage markets and was driven by lower cure rates higher claim rates and higher claim sizes The

$2.2 million increase in prior years reserves during 2006 was driven by higher than estimated claim sizes on

pending defaults partially offset by reduction in the incurred but not reported estimate These re-estimations of

ultimate loss rates are the result of managements periodic review of estimated claim amounts in light of actual

claim amounts loss development data and ultimate claim rates Future declines in PMIs cure rate or higher

default and claim rates or claim sizes could lead to further increases in losses and LAE

The following table shows breakdown of reserves for losses and LAE by primary and pool insurance

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Primary insurance $2339987 $1054326

Pool insurance
261617 78754

Other 22900

Total reserves for losses and LAE $2624504 $1133080
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The following table shows breakdown of reserves for losses and LAE by loans in default incurred but not

reported or IBNR and the cost to settle claims or LAE

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Loans in default $2452629 $1062150
IBNR 91295 45453
Cost to settle claims LAE 57680 25477
Other 22900

Total reserves for losses and LAE $2624504 $1133080

Other relates to PMI Guarantys loss reserves of $22.9 million related to the
agreement between PM

Guaranty FGIC and AG Re under which PMI Guaranty commuted certain risks with FGIC

To provide measure of sensitivity of pre-tax income to changes in loss reserve estimates we estimate that

for every 5% change in our estimate of the future average claim sizes or every 5% change in our estimate of

the future claim rates with respect to the December 31 2008 reserves for losses and LAE the effect on pre-tax

income would be an increase or decrease of approximately $122.6 million ii for every 5% change in our

estimate of incurred but not reported loans in default as of December 31 2008 the effect on pre-tax income

would be approximately $4.6 million and iii for every 5% change in our estimate of the future cost of claims

settlement expenses as of December 31 2008 the effect on pre-tax income would be approximately $2.9 million

If either the claim rate or claim size or combination of the claim rate and claim size were to increase

approximately 17% above our current estimates we would reach the top of our actuarially determined

range Conversely if the claim rate or claim size or combination of the claim rate and claim size were to

decrease by approximately 17% of our current estimates we would reach the bottom end of our actuarially

determined range

The establishment of loss reserves is subject to inherent uncertainty and requires judgment by management
The actual amount of claim payments may vary substantially from the loss reserve estimates For example the

relationship of change in assumption relating to future
average claim sizes claim rates or cost of claims

settlement to the change in value may not be linear Also the effect of variation in particular assumption on

the value of the loss and LAE reserves is calculated without changing any other assumption Changes in one

factor may result in changes in another which might magnify or counteract the sensitivities Changes in factors

such as persistency or cure rates can also affect the actual losses incurred To the extent persistency increases and

assuming all other variables remain constant the absolute dollars of claims paid will increase as insurance in

force will remain in place longer thereby generating higher potential for future incidences of loss Conversely
if persistency were to decline absolute claim payments would decline In addition changes in cure rates would

positively or negatively affect total losses if cure rates increased or decreased respectively

International OperationsPM Europe establishes loss reserves for all of its insurance and reinsurance

business and for CDS transactions entered into before July 2003 Revenue losses and other expenses

associated with CDS contracts executed on or after July 2003 are recognized through derivative accounting

treatment PM Europes loss reserving methodology contains two components case reserves and IBNR reserves

Case and IBNR reserves are based upon factors which include but are not limited to our analysis of arrears and

loss payment reports loss assumptions derived from pricing analyses our view of current and future economic

conditions and industry information Our actuaries calculated
range for PM Europes loss reserves at

December 31 2008 of $73.4 million to $90.8 million PMI Europes recorded loss reserves at December 31
2008 were $84.5 million which represented our best estimate and an increase of $42.9 million from PM
Europes loss reserve balance of $41.6 million at December 31 2007 The increase to PMI Europes loss reserves

in 2008 was primarily due to the deteriorating performance of several U.S subprime exposures on which PMI
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Europe provided reinsurance coverage The remaining loss reserves within International Operations segment

relates to PMI Canada which ceased writing new business in 2008

The following table shows breakdown of International Operations loss and LAE reserves

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Loans in default $66251 $33044

IBNR 17784 8250

Cost to settle claims LAE 747 285

Total loss and LAE reserves $84782 $41579

The following table provides reconciliation of International Operations beginning and ending reserves for

losses and LAE for each of the last three years

18.4

45.1

63.5

19.9

6.9

26.8

0.4

2.8

3.2

The increases in losses and LAE incurred relating to prior years
of $45.1 million and $6.9 million in 2008

and 2007 respectively were primarily due to loss provision related to deteriorating performance of several

U.S exposures on which PMI Europe provided reinsurance coverage The $2.8 million increase in 2006 was

primarily the result of moderating home price appreciation and home price decline in certain areas and interest

rate increases in 2006

Investment Securities

Other-Than-Temporary ImpairmentWe have committee review process
for all securities in our

investment portfolio including process for reviewing impairment losses Factors considered when assessing

impairment
include

decline in the market value of security below cost or amortized cost for continuous period of at

least six months

the severity and nature of the decline in market value below cost regardless of the duration of the

decline

recent credit downgrades of the applicable security or the issuer by the rating agencies

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in millions

Balance at January 41.6 $17.9 $14.8

Reinsurance recoverables 1.0 0.9 0.8

Net balance at January
40.6 17.0 14.0

Losses and LAE incurred principally with respect to defaults occurring in

Current year

Prior
years

Total incurred

Losses and LAE payments principally with respect to defaults occurring in

Current year

Prior years
14.4 5.1 1.9

Total payments 14.4 5.1 1.9

Foreign currency
translation 4.9 1.9 1.7

Net balance at December 31 84.8 40.6 17.0

Reinsurance recoverables 1.0 0.9

Balance at December 31 84.8 $41.6 $17.9
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the financial condition of the applicable issuer

whether scheduled interest payments are past due and

whether we have the ability and intent to hold the security for sufficient period of time to allow for

anticipated recoveries in fair value

If we believe decline in the value of particular investment is temporary and we have the intent and ability

to hold to recovery we record the decline as an unrealized loss on our consolidated balance sheet under

accumulated other comprehensive income in shareholders equity If we believe the decline is other-than-

temporary we write-down the carrying value of the investment and record realized loss in our consolidated

statement of operations under net realized investment gains Our assessment of decline in value includes

managements current assessment of the factors noted above If that assessment changes in the future we may
ultimately record loss after having originally concluded that the decline in value was temporary

The following table shows our investments
gross unrealized losses and fair value aggregated by investment

category and length of time that individual securities have been in continuous unrealized loss position as of

December 31 2008 and 2007

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2008

Fixed income securities

U.S municipal bonds $801039 $49171 $460962 $49416 $1262001 98587

Foreign governments 6664 1780 6664 1780
Corporate bonds 25903 1977 30423 5371 56326 7348

Total fixed income

securities 833606 52928 491385 54787 1324991 107715
Equity securities

Common stocks 5576 3698 5576 3698
Preferred stocks 20365 2712 99294 17489 119659 20201

Total equity securities 25941 641Q 99294 17489 125235 23899

Total $859547 $59338 $590679 $72276 $1450226 $131614

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Dollars in thousands

December 31 2007

Fixed income securities

U.S municipal bonds $135690 3244 7201 186 142891 3430
Foreign governments 28217 850 43694 1207 71911 2057
Corporate bonds 53525 1190 62147 2590 115672 3780
U.S government and agencies 100 145 245

Total fixed income

securities 217532 5284 113187 3983 330719 9267
Equity securities

Common stocks 14395 339 14395 339
Preferred stocks 275852 34908 275852 34908

Total equity securities 290247 35247 290247 35247

Total $507779 $40531 $113187 3983 620966 44514
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Unrealized losses in 2008 on fixed income securities were primarily due to the widening of credit spreads

which have also increased market interest rates on most fixed income securities Unrealized losses on preferred

securities were primarily due to the widening of credit and sector spreads These unrealized losses are not

considered to be other-than temporarily impaired as the company has the intent and ability to hold such

investments until they recover in value or mature We determined that the decline in the fair value of certain

investments met the definition of other-than-temporary impairment and recognized realized losses of $104.2

million for 2008

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Our policy acquisition costs are those costs that vary with and are primarily related to our acquisition

underwriting and processing of new mortgage insurance policies including contract underwriting and sales

related activities To the extent we provided contract underwriting services on loans that did not require mortgage

insurance associated underwriting costs were not deferred We defer policy acquisition costs when incurred and

amortize these costs in proportion to estimated gross profits for each policy year by type of insurance contract

i.e monthly annual and single premium The amortization estimates for each underwriting year are monitored

regularly to reflect persistency and expected loss development by type of insurance contract The deferred costs

related to single premium policies are adjusted as appropriate for policy cancellations to be consistent with our

revenue recognition policy We review our estimation process on regular basis and any adjustments made to the

estimates are reflected in the current periods consolidated net income

Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed periodically to determine that they do not exceed recoverable

amounts after considering investment income In 2008 due to the novation of principally all of PMI Guarantys

risk in force we impaired the remaining deferred policy acquisition cost assets related to PMI Guarantys

operations by $3.6 million reducing its value to zero and impaired $1.2 million of deferred policy acquisition cost

assets relating to PMI Europe

Impairment Analysis of Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Periodically or as events dictate we evaluate potential impairment of our investments in unconsolidated

subsidiaries Accounting Principles Board APB Opinion No 18 The Equity Method of Accounting for

In vestments in Common Stock provides criteria for determining potential impairment In the event loss in value

of an investment is determined to be an other-than-temporary decline an impairment loss would be recognized in

our consolidated statement of operations Evidence of loss in value that could indicate impairment might

include but would not necessarily be limited to the absence of an ability to recover the carrying amount of the

investment or the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity which would justify the carrying

amount of the investment Realized gains or losses resulting from the sale of our ownership interests of

unconsolidated subsidiaries are recognized in net realized investment gains or losses in the consolidated

statement of operations

In connection with the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for the quarter ended March 31

2008 we determined that our investment in FGIC was other-than-temporarily impaired and reduced the carrying

value of our investment in FGIC from $103.6 million at December 31 2007 to zero To the extent that our carrying

value remains zero we will not recognize in future periods our proportionate share of FGICs losses if any Equity

in earnings from FGIC could be recognized in the future to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable

At June 30 2008 the carrying value of our investment in RAM Re had been reduced to zero due to equity in

losses in RAM Re During the third quarter of 2008 we recognized equity in earnings from RAM Re of $9.4

million and realized an other-than-temporary impairment charge of $2.9 million During the fourth quarter of

2008 we recognized equity in losses from RAM Re of $6.5 million The carrying value of our investment in

RAM Re was zero at December 31 2008
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Premium Deficiency Analysis

We perform an analysis for premium deficiency using assumptions based on our best estimate when the

analysis is performed The calculation for premium deficiency requires significant judgment and includes

estimates of future expected premiums expected claims loss adjustment expenses and maintenance costs as of

the date of the test The calculation of future expected premiums uses assumptions for persistency and

termination levels on policies currently in force Assumptions for future expected losses include future expected

average claim sizes and claim rates which are based on the current default rate and expected future defaults

Investment income is also considered in the premium deficiency calculation For the calculation of investment

income we use our pre-tax investment yield

We perform premium deficiency analyses quarterly on single book basis for the U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations premium deficiency analysis was performed as of December 31 2008 on GAAP basis We

determined there was no premium deficiency in our U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment despite

significant losses in 2008 To the extent premium levels and actual loss experience differ from our assumptions

our results could be negatively affected in future periods See Item 1A Risk FactorsWe establish loss reserves

with respect to our mortgage insurance policies only upon loan defaults and because our loss reserve estimates

are subject to uncertainties our actual losses may substantially exceed our loss reserves Further due to higher

losses we may be required to record premium deficiency reserve in the future

ITEM 7A QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Interest rate risk

As of December 31 2008 our consolidated investment portfolio excluding cash and cash equivalents was

$2.2 billion The fair value of investments in our portfolio is calculated from independent market quotations and

is interest rate sensitive and subject to change based on interest rate movements As of December 31 2008

89.9% of our investments were long-term fixed income securities primarily U.S municipal bonds As interest

rates fall the fair value of fixed income securities generally increases and as interest rates rise the fair value of

fixed income securities generally decreases The following table summarizes the estimated change in fair value

and the accounting effect on comprehensive income pre-tax for our consolidated investment portfolio based

upon specified hypothetical changes in interest rates as of December 31 2008

Estimated Increase

Decrease in

Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

300 basis point decline 363374

200 basis point decline 266795

100 basis point decline $159973
100 basis point rise $177600
200 basis point rise $333545
300 basis point rise $475189

These hypothetical estimates of changes in fair value are primarily related to our fixed-income securities as

the fair values of fixed-income securities generally fluctuate with increases or decreases in interest rates The

weighted average option-adjusted duration of our consolidated investment portfolio including cash and cash

equivalents was 5.1 as of December 31 2008
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Currency exchange risk

We analyze the sensitivity of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates on investments in our foreign

subsidiaries denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar This estimate is calculated using the spot

exchange rates as of December 31 2008 and respective current period end investment balances in our foreign

subsidiaries in the applicable foreign currencies The following table summarizes the estimated changes in the

investments in our foreign subsidiaries based upon specified hypothetical percentage changes in foreign currency

exchange rates as of December 31 2008 with all other factors remaining constant

Estimated Increase Decrease

Foreign Currency Translation

Change in foreign currency exchange rates Europe Canada Consolidated

USD in thousands

15% decline $13609 $2547 $16156

10% decline 9073 $1698 $10771

5% decline 4536 849 5385

5% rise 4536 849 5385

10% rise 9073 $1698 10771

15% rise $13609 2547 16156

Foreign currency translation recorded as of December 31 2008

U.S Dollar relative to

Canadian

As of December 31
Euro Dollar

2008
1.3971 0.8202

2007
1.4590 1.0015

The changes in the foreign currency exchange rates from 2007 to 2008 negatively affected our investments

in our foreign subsidiaries by $7.8 million This foreign currency translation impact is calculated by applying the

period over period change in the period end spot exchange rates to the current period end investment balance of

our foreign subsidiaries

As of December 31 2008 $0.2 billion including cash and cash equivalents of our invested assets was held

by PMI Europe and was denominated primarily in Euros As of December 31 2008 $20.0 million including

cash and cash equivalents of our invested assets was held by PMI Canada and was denominated primarily in the

Canadian dollar The above table shows the exchange rate of the U.S dollar relative to the Euro and Canadian

dollar as of December 31 2008 and 2007 The value of the Euro and Canadian dollar weakened relative to the

U.S dollar as of December 31 2008 compared to December 31 2007

Credit spread risk

We provide credit protection in the form of credit default swaps in PMI Europe that are marked to market

through earnings under the requirements
of SFAS No 133 These financial guaranty derivative contracts

generally insure obligations with considerable subordination beneath our exposure at the time of issuance The

underlying assets of these obligations are residential mortgage-backed The value of our financial guaranty

derivative contracts were affected predominantly by changes in credit spreads of the underlying obligations

collateral in some cases compounded by ratings downgrades of insured obligations As credit spreads and ratings

change the values of these financial guaranty
derivative contracts will change and the resulting gains and losses

will be recorded in our operating results In addition with the adoption of SFAS No 157 we have incorporated

the markets perception
of our non-performance risk into the market value of our derivative assets and liabilities

The fair value of these CDS liabilities is $54.5 million as of December 31 2008

In estimating the fair values of derivative contracts and based on historical experience PMI Europe

incorporates expected call dates in its internal valuation models Call dates are determined based on number of

factors including the underlying economics of the transactions counterparties exercising their option to call the
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transactions at certain agreed dates counterparties expressed intent and potential penalties associated with

extending transactions The current state of capital markets the financial conditions and perspectives of various

counterparties and the general weakening of economic conditions in Europe may lead to decisions to extend the

credit protection offered by PM Europes CDS contracts If CDS contract is extended beyond its expected call

date PM Europe will be required to adjust its internal model assumptions To the extent that credit spreads are

higher than at the time of inception of the transaction PM Europe will recognize further mark-to-market losses

If many CDS contracts extend and spreads remain at their current levels mark-to-market losses could be

material Further if contracts are extended beyond their expected call dates there will be greater likelihood of

incurring higher than currently expected realized losses on the contracts
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MANAGEMENTS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial

reporting as defined in Rules 3a- 15f and 5d 15f under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Our internal

control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with

U.S generally accepted accounting principles Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and

procedures that

Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of our assets

Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

and that our receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our

management and directors and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use

or disposition of our assets that could have material effect on our consolidated financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31

2008 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission COSO in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework

Based on managements assessment and those criteria management has concluded that we maintained

effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2008

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report on our internal control over

financial reporting That report appears below in this Item
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The PMI Group Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of The PMI Group Inc and subsidiaries

the Company as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and the related consolidated statements of operations

shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 2008 Our

audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in the Index at Item 15a These financial statements

and schedules are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion

on these financial statements and schedules based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

consolidated financial position of The PMI Group Inc and subsidiaries at December 31 2008 and 2007 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended

December 31 2008 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the

related financial statement schedules when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as

whole present fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

In 2008 the Company adopted FASB Statement No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB Statement No 115 In 2007 the Company adopted FASB

Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income TaxesAn Interpretation of FASB Statement

No 109 These matters are further described in Note to the consolidated financial statements

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States The PM Group Inc and subsidiaries internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2008 based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the

Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report
dated March 15 2009

expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

San Francisco California

March 15 2009
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of The PMI Group Inc

We have audited The PM Group Inc.s internal control over financial reporting as of December 2008
based on criteria established in Internal ControlIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission the COSO criteria The PMI Group Inc.s management is

responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the

effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Report on

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the companys internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is
process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are bein made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that

controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the

policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion The PMI Group Inc maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31 2008 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the 2008 consolidated financial statements of The PM Group Inc and our report dated

March 15 2009 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Is Ernst Young LLP

San Francisco California

March 15 2009
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands except per share data

REVENUES

Premiums earned 786159 815440 $709532

Net investment income 138377 132552 137794

Net realized investment losses gains 139210 24639 318

Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123595

Other loss income 1134 168 20700

Total revenues 907787 923185 868344

LOSSES AND EXPENSES

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 1899264 1122898 266273

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 18285 87683 53124

Other underwriting and operating expenses 218583 192917 205948

Interest expense
41007 33391 37390

Total losses and expenses 2177139 1436889 563275

Loss earnings before equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries and income taxes 1269352 513704 305069

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 51802 741500 127309

Loss income from continuing operations before income taxes 1321154 1255204 432378

Income tax benefit expense from continuing operations 433966 246522 102616

Loss income from continuing operations 887188 1008682 329762

Loss income from discontinued operations net of taxes 41320 93356 89889

NET LOSS INCOME 928508 915326 $419651

PER SHARE DATA
Basic loss income from continuing operations 10.90 11.92 3.81

Basic loss income from discontinued operations 0.50 1.11 1.04

Basic net loss income 11.40 10.81 4.85

Diluted loss income from continuing operations 10.90 11.92 3.60

Diluted loss income from discontinued operations 0.50 1.11 0.97

Diluted net loss income 11.40 10.81 4.57

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

ASSETS

Investmentsavailable-for-sale at fair value

Fixed income securities 1997466 2018148

Equity securities

Common 5593 117251

Preferred 216256 299630

Short-term investments 2280 2251

Total investments 2221595 2437280
Cash and cash equivalents 1483313 354508

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 150377 309800

Related party receivables 1526 1432

Accrued investment income 36323 34067

Premiums receivable 58573 62303

Reinsurance receivables and prepaid premiums 22569 8833

Reinsurance recoverables 482678 36917

Deferred policy acquisition costs 34791 18305

Property equipment and software net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization 131211 157308

Prepaid and recoverable income taxes 9562 87102

Deferred income tax assets 148184 48875

Other assets 43697 60155

Assetsdiscontinued operationsheld for sale 1453555

Total assets 4824399 5070440

LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 2709286 1177309

Unearned premiums 111656 136921

Debt includes $230171 measured at fair value at December 31 2008 481764 496593

Reinsurance payables 42442 41379

Related party payables 1853 1852

Other liabilities and accrued expenses 199173 135044

Liabilitiesdiscontinued operationsheld for sale 568380

Total liabilities 3546174 2557478

Commitments and contingencies Notes and 13

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock$0.01 par value 5000000 shares authorized none issued

or outstanding

Common stock$0.Ol par value 250000000 shares authorized

119313767 shares issued 81687583 and 81120144 shares

outstanding 1193 1193

Additional paid-in capital 892213 890598

Treasury stock at cost 37626184 and 38193623 shares 1341037 1354601
Retained earnings 1761535 2660695

Accumulated other comprehensive loss income net of deferred taxes 35679 315077

Total shareholders equity 1278225 2512962

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 4824399 5070440

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Accumulated

Common stoci
Additional

Treasury Stock
Other

Comprehensive Paid-in Retained Comprehensive

Income Loss Shares Amount Capital Shares Amount Firnings Income Loss Total

in thousands

111337 $1114 $466474 22624 652957 $3207737 $208422

22880 1386 21328

12152

6187

7977 79 344921

11397 535000
18045

5574 68 2415

419651 419651

2840 2840

5864
116

65400

476463

BALANCE JANUARY 2006

Common stock grants for incentive plans

Compensation expense for share-based payments and ESPP

Tax benefit on share-based payments

Issuance of common stock

Common stock repurchases

Dividends declared

Non vested portion of restricted stock

Net income

Change in unrealized gains on investments net of taxes

Net unrealized losses from derivatives designated as cash flow hedges net of

deferred tax benefits

Accretion of cash flow hedges to interest expense

Foreign currency trunsltion adjustment

Comprehensive income

Adjustment to initially apply new accounting pronouncement net of tax

BALANCE DECEMBER 312006

Common stock grants for incentive plans

Compensation expense for share-based payments and ESPP

Tax benefit on share-based payments

Common stock repurchases

Dividends declared

Non-vested portion of restricted stock

Net loss

Change in unrealized gains on investments net of taxes

Pension adjustment including plan amendment net of deferred tax

Accretion of cash flow hedges to interest expense

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Adjustment to initially apply new accounting pronouncement Note 12

BALANCE DECEMBER 312007
Common stock grants for incentive plans

Compensation expense for share-based payments and ESPP

Tax benefit on share-based payments

Dividends declared

Non-vested portion of restricted stock

Net loss

Change in unrealized gains on investments net of taxes

Pension adjustment including plan amendment net of deferred tax

Accretion of cash flow hedges to interest expense

Foreign currency translation adjustment

Comprehensive loss

Adjustment to initially apply new accounting pronouncement Note 10

BALANCE DECEMBER 312008

119314

5864
116

65400

_______ ___________ __________
1154

1164214 3609343 264080

24609

214996
17703

915326
61937

3876

398

108660

15619 ________

38194 1354601 2660695 315077

568 13564

2451

928508
101773
16593

398

232788

_________
35679

119314 1193

31799

119314 $1193 $892213 37626 $1341037 $1761535

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net loss income 928508 $915326 419651
Less loss income from discontinued operations net of taxes 41320 93356 89889
Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash provided by operating activities

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 51802 741500 127309
Net realized investment losses gains 138544 24456 205
Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123595
Depreciation and amortization 28084 21247 27224
Deferred income taxes 100015 158339 15312
Compensation expense related to share-based payments 8815 16652 12152
Excess tax benefits on the exercise of employee stock options 4001 2838
Net Cost to exchange and extinguish long-term debt 2044
Deferred policy acquisition costs incurred and deferred 38803 55054 49654
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition Costs 18285 87683 53124
Changes in

Accrued investment income 5161 1059 4069
Premiums receivable 3600 625 5733
Reinsurance receivables and prepaid premiums net of reinsurance payables 12673 11739 5537
Reinsurance recoverables 445752 33082 371
Prepaid and recoverable income taxes 74758 73248 4070
Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses 1538804 787367 21974
Unearned premiums 17253 489 61054
Related party receivables net of payables 1809 2096 445
Liability

for pension benefit 45735 12660 4346
Other 2643 57097 54864

Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations 277153 400634 149235

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed income securities 578664 258158 506643
Proceeds from the sale of PMI Australia 697470
Proceeds from the sale of PM Asia 51571
Proceeds from sales of equity securities 112958 126500 52629
Proceeds from sale of unconsolidated subsidiary 14184
Proceeds from sale of equity investment held for sale 3375
Investment purchases Fixed income securities 745634 292660 221419

Equity securities 7849 201632 185877
Net change in short-term investments 29 22 115916
Distributions from unconsolidated subsidiaries net of investments 968 23561 19847
Capital expenditures and capitalized software net of dispositions 3517 15916 17922

Net cash provided by used in investing activities from continuing operations 686041 102011 284001
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 200000 385993
Net repurchase of senior notes 298768
Repayment and extinguishment of long-term debt net of expenses 45000 425338
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 345000
Purchases of treasury stock 214996 535000
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock 2777 31260 41728
Excess tax benefits on the exercise of employee stock options 4001 2838
Dividends paid to common shareholders 2451 17703 18045

Net cash provided by used in financing activities from continuing operations 155326 197438 501592
CASH FLOWS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Net cash used in provided by operating activities from discontinued operations 22472 158013 210382
Net cash provided by used in investing activities from discontinued operations 46439 359776 273219
Net cash provided by financing activities from discontinued operations 424 4325

Net cash provided by used in discontinued operations 23967 201339 58512
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents from continuing operations 13686 9890 10652
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations

held for sale 12094 2595
Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 1128805 78170 113621
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 354508 506082 619703
Less cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operationsheld for sale at the end of the year 73404 157451
Cash and cash equivalents of continuing operations at end of year $1483313 354508 348631

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURES
Cash paid during the year

Interest paid net of capitalization 36469 32096 34341
Income taxes refunded paid net of payments/refunds 32580 40928 79997

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Capital lease obligations 803 1297

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The PMI Group Inc The
PMI Group or TPG Delaware corporation and its direct and indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries including

PMI Mortgage Insurance Co an Arizona corporation and its affiliated U.S mortgage insurance and reinsurance

companies collectively PMI PMI Mortgage Insurance Company Limited and its holding company PMI

Europe Holdings Limited the Irish insurance companies collectively PMI Europe PMI Mortgage Insurance

Company Canada and its holding company PMI Mortgage Insurance Holdings Canada Inc collectively PMI

Canada and other insurance reinsurance and non-insurance subsidiaries Also included in the accompanying

financial statements and reported as discontinued operations for all periods presented are the accounts of PMI

Mortgage Insurance Ltd and its holding company PMI Mortgage Insurance Australia Holdings Pty Limited

collectively PMI Australia and PMI Mortgage Insurance Asia Ltd PMI Asia which were sold as of

December 31 2008 and the accounts of PMI Guaranty Co PMI Guaranty which was considered disposed of

other than by sale as of December 31 2008 As of December 31 2008 upon receiving regulatory approval PMI

Guarantys remaining assets and liabilities were merged into PMI The PMI Group and its subsidiaries are

collectively referred to as the Company All material inter-company transactions and balances have been

eliminated in the consolidated financial statements

On October 22 2008 the Company completed the sale of PMI Australia and on December 17 2008 the

Company completed the sale of PMI Asia In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards

SFAS No 144 Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets the Company has

classified the results of its PMI Australia PMI Asia and PMI Guaranty operations as discontinued operations for

all periods presented The Company reports the assets and liabilities of PMI Australia and PMI Asia in the

consolidated balance sheets for all periods presented as Assets/Liabilities discontinued operations held for

sale The assets and liabilities of PMI Guaranty which were disposed of other than by sale are classified in the

consolidated balance sheet according to their nature The results of discontinued operations which include both

disposed of by sale and disposed of other than by sale are reported as Loss/income from discontinued

operations net of taxes in the consolidated statements of operations for all periods presented

The Company has equity ownership interests in CMG Mortgage Insurance Company CMG Mortgage

Reinsurance Company and CMG Mortgage Assurance Company collectively CMG MI which conduct

residential mortgage insurance business for credit unions The Company also has equity ownership interests in

RAM Holdings Ltd the holding company of RAM Reinsurance Company Ltd collectively RAM Re
financial guaranty reinsurance company based in Bermuda The Company also has 42.0% equity ownership

interest in FGIC Corporation the holding company of Financial Guaranty Insurance Company collectively

FGIC New York-domiciled financial guaranty insurance company The Company also has ownership

interests in several limited partnerships In addition the Company owns 100% of PMI Capital Issuer Trust

an unconsolidated wholly-owned trust that privately issued debt in 1997

During the first quarter of 2008 the Company impaired its investment in FGIC and reduced the carrying

value of its investment in FGIC from $103.6 million to zero During 2008 the Company realized an other-than-

temporary impairment charge of $2.9 million and recognized equity in losses from RAM Re of $57.7 million

which decreased the value of the Companys investment in RAM Re to zero To the extent that their carrying

values remain zero the Company will not recognize in future periods its proportionate share of FGIC and RAM

Res losses if any Equity in earnings from FGIC and RAM Re could be recognized in the future to the extent

those earnings are deemed recoverable The Company is under no obligation to provide additional capital to

FGIC or RAM Re
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THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Impact of Current Economic Environment

The significant and continuing weakening of the U.S residential mortgage housing credit and capital

markets has negatively affected the Companys results of operations and overall financial condition The

Companys consolidated net loss was $928.5 million and $915.3 million for the years ended December 31 2008

and 2007 respectively As part of the Companys response to difficult market conditions it has adopted

number of initiatives that affect the composition of its business In particular the Company is focusing on its core

business U.S mortgage insurance

In the current environment the Company continues to face significant challenges and risks Unless the

Company raises new capital to support PMI its policyholders position will likely continue to decline and its risk-

to-capital ratio will likely increase beyond levels necessary to meet regulatory capital adequacy requirements and

credit facility financial covenants In response to the Companys capital constraints it is exploring alternatives to

enhance its liquidity and capital at TPG and PM including potentially obtaining capital or other relief under U.S

Treasurys Financial Stability Plan including the Troubled Asset Relief Program or TARP obtaining

reinsurance for PMIs future book of business and/or debt or equity offerings PMI wrote significantly less

business in 2008 and in response to capital constraints will continue to reduce new insurance written or NIW
in 2009

Notwithstanding the above the Company believes that it currently has sufficient liquidity at its holding

company to pay holding company expenses including interest
expense on its outstanding debt in 2009 and has

sufficient assets at the insurance company level to meet its obligations in 2009 See Note 25 Subsequent Events

for further discussion

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Companys consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S generally

accepted accounting principles GAAP and the requirements of Form 10-K and Article of Regulation S-X

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and

liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from these estimates In the opinion of

management all adjustments consisting only of normal recurring adjustments considered necessary for fair

presentation for the periods presented have been included

Risks and UncertaintiesThe Company is dependent upon mortgage originators to provide mortgage loans

to insure In the event any of its largest customers choose to stop providing the Company with mortgage loans to

insure the Companys ability to generate new insurance business could be adversely affected The Companys
U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations ten largest customers generated 49.4% 52.0% and 43.9% of its premiums

earned in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively

We are affected by economic downturns natural disasters and other events in specific regions of the United

States where large portion of our U.S business is concentrated As of December 31 2008 10.3% of PMIs

primary risk in force was located in Florida and 8.0% was located in California We are currently experiencing

accelerated delinquency and loss development in those states In addition we expect higher default and claim

rates for high LTV loans ARMs 2/28 Hybird ARMs Alt-A loans interest only loans payment option ARMS
and less-than-A quality loans We also insure loans that have more than one of the above risk characteristics

This layering of risk has further increased the risk of borrower default Although we attempt to incorporate the

higher default and claim rates associated with these loans into our underwriting and pricing models there can be
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no assurance that the premiums earned and the associated investment income will prove adequate to compensate

for future losses from these loans or that future adverse loss development will not emerge

The Companys various U.S European and Canadian insurance subsidiaries are subject to comprehensive

regulation These regulations are generally intended to protect policyholders rather than to benefit investors

Although their scope varies applicable laws and regulations grant broad powers to supervisory agencies or

officials to examine companies and to enforce rules or exercise discretion covering almost every significant

aspect of the insurance business The licensing of the Companys insurance subsidiaries their premium rates

their forms and policies offered to customers their financial statements and periodic financial reporting and their

permissible investments and adherence to financial standards relating to statutory surplus dividends to the

Company and other criteria of solvency are all subjects of detailed regulations

Unless we raise new capital PMIs policyholders position will likely decline and its risk-to-capital ratio

increase beyond the levels necessary to meet capital adequacy requirements imposed by regulators as well as

under our credit facility See Note 25 Subsequent Events for further discussion

The Company establishes loss reserves to recognize the liability for unpaid losses related to insured

mortgages that are in default These loss reserves are based upon the Companys estimates of the claim rate and

average
claim size as well as the estimated costs of settling claims These estimates are regularly reviewed and

updated using currently available information Any adjustments due to positive or adverse developments which

may be material resulting from these reviews would impact current reserve requirements The Companys

reserves may not be adequate to cover ultimate loss development on incurred defaults The Companys

consolidated financial condition results of operations and cash flows could be harmed if the Companys reserve

estimates are insufficient to cover the actual related claims paid and loss-related expenses incurred

Significant accounting policies are as follows

InvestmentsThe Company has designated its entire portfolio of fixed income and equity securities as

available-for-sale These securities are predominantly recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices with

unrealiied gains and losses net of deferred income taxes accounted for as component of accumulated other

comprehensive income in shareholders equity The Company evaluates its investments regularly to determine

whether there are declines in value and whether such declines meet the definition of other-than-temporary

impairment in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards SFAS No 115 Accounting for

Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities and Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Staff

Accounting Bulletin SAB No 59 Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities The fair value of

security below cost or amortized cost for consecutive quarters is potential indicator of an other-than-

temporary impairment When the Company determines security has suffered an other-than-temporary

impairment the impairment loss is recognized to the extent of the decline as realized investment loss in the

consolidated statement of operations The Companys short-term investments have maturities of greater than

three and less than 12 months when purchased and are carried at fair value

Realized gains and losses on sales of investments are determined on specific-identification basis

Investment income consists primarily of interest and dividends Interest income and preferred stock dividends are

recognized on an accrual basis Dividend income on common stocks is recognized on the date of declaration Net

investment income represents
interest and dividend income net of investment expenses

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an

original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents
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Investments in Unconsolidated SubsidiariesInvestments in the Companys unconsolidated subsidiaries

include both equity investees and other unconsolidated subsidiaries Investments in equity investees with

ownership interests of 20-50% are generally accounted for using the equity method of accounting and

investments of less than 20% ownership interest are generally accounted for using the cost method of accounting

if the Company does not have significant influence over the entity Limited partnerships with ownership interests

greater than 3% but less than 50% are primarily accounted for using the equity method of accounting The

carrying value of the investments in the Companys unconsolidated subsidiaries also includes the Companys
share of net unrealized gains and losses in the unconsolidated subsidiaries investment portfolios

Periodically or as events dictate the Company evaluates potential impairment of its investments in

unconsolidated subsidiaries Accounting Principles Board APB Opinion No 18 The Equity Method of

Accounting for Investments in Common Stock APB No 18 provides criteria for determining potential

impairment In the event loss in value of an investment is determined to be an other-than-temporary decline an

impairment charge would be recognized in the consolidated statement of operations Evidence of loss in value

that could indicate impairment might include but would not necessarily be limited to the absence of an ability to

recover the carrying amount of the investment or the inability of the investee to sustain an earnings capacity

which would justify the carrying amount of the investment Realized capital gains or losses resulting from the

sale of the Companys ownership interests of unconsolidated subsidiaries are recognized as net realized

investment gains or losses in the consolidated statement of operations

The Company reports the equity in earnings from CMG MI on current month basis and the Companys
interest in limited partnerships are on one-quarter lag basis Equity in earnings losses from RAM Re are

reported on one-quarter lag basis Due to the impairment of the Companys investments in FGIC and RAM Re

in 2008 the carrying value of the Companys investments in FGIC and RAM Re were reduced to zero To the

extent that the carrying value remains zero the Company will not recognize in future periods its proportionate

share of FGIC and RAM Res losses if any Equity in earnings from FGIC and RAM Re could be recognized in

the future to the extent those earnings are deemed recoverable

Related Party Receivables and PayablesAs of December 31 2008 related party receivables were $1.5

million and related
party payables were $1.9 million compared to $1.4 million and $1.9 million as of

December 31 2007 respectively which were comprised of non-trade receivables and payables from

unconsolidated subsidiaries

Deferred Policy Acquisition CostsThe Company defers certain costs of its mortgage insurance operations

relating to the acquisition of new insurance and amortizes these costs against related premium revenue in order to

match costs and revenues To the extent we provide contract underwriting services on loans that do not require

mortgage insurance associated underwriting costs are not deferred Costs related to the acquisition of mortgage
insurance business are initially deferred and reported as deferred policy acquisition costs SFAS No 60

Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises SFAS No 60 specifically excludes mortgage guaranty

insurance from its guidance relating to the amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs Consistent with

industry accounting practice amortization of these costs for each underwriting year book of business is charged

against revenue in proportion to estimated
gross profits Estimated

gross profits are composed of earned

premiums interest income losses and loss adjustment expenses The deferred costs related to single premium

policies are adjusted as appropriate for policy cancellations to be consistent with the Companys revenue

recognition policy For each underwriting year the Company estimates the rate of amortization to reflect actual

experience and
any changes to persistency or loss development Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed

periodically to determine that they do not exceed recoverable amounts after considering investment income
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Property Equipment and SoftwareProperty and equipment including software are carried at cost and

are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets ranging from three to

thirty nine years Leasehold improvements are recorded at cost and amortized over the lesser of the useful life of

the assets or the remaining term of the related lease The Companys accumulated depreciation and amortization

from continuing operations was $206.4 million and $179.0 million as of December 31 2008 and December 31

2007 respectively

Under the provisions of Statement of Position No 98-1 Accounting for the Cost of Computer Software

Developed or Obtained for Internal Use the Company capitalizes costs incurred during the application

development stage related to software developed for internal use and for which it has no substantive plan to

market externally Capitalized costs are amortized at such time as the software is ready for its intended use on

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset which is generally three to seven years In 2008 the

Company recorded an impairment charge of $7.2 million related to capitalized software

DerivativesCertain credit default swap contracts entered into by PMI Europe are considered credit

derivative contracts under SFAS No 133 Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities as

amended by SFAS No 149 Amendment of SFAS No 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

These credit default swap derivatives are recorded at their fair value on the consolidated balance sheet with

subsequent changes in fair value recorded in consolidated net income or loss The Company determines the fair

values of its credit default swaps on quarterly basis and uses internally developed models since observable

market quotes are not regularly available These models include future estimated claim payments and market

input assumptions including discount rates and market spreads to calculate fair value and reflect managements

best judgment about current market conditions Due to the illiquid nature of the credit default swap market the

use of available market data and assumptions used by management to estimate fair value could differ materially

from amounts that would be realized in the market if the derivatives were traded Due to the volatile nature of the

credit market as well as the imprecision inherent in the Companys fair value estimate future valuations could

differ materially from those reflected in the current period

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157 Fair Value Measurements SFAS
No 157 The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value of which Level

inputs include fair value determinations using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar

techniques as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management

judgment or estimation Due to the lack of available market values for the Companys credit default swap

contracts the Companys methodology for determining the fair value of its credit default swap contracts is based

on Level inputs See Note 10 Fair Value Disclosures for further discussion

Special Purpose EntitiesCertain insurance transactions entered into by PMI and PMI Europe require the

use of foreign wholly-owned special purpose entities principally for regulatory purposes These special purpose

entities are consolidated in the Companys consolidated financial statements

Reserve for Losses and Loss Adjustment ExpensesThe consolidated reserves for losses and loss

adjustment expenses LAE for the Companys U.S Mortgage Insurance and International Operations are the

estimated claim settlement costs on notices of default that have been received by the Company as well as loan

defaults that have been incurred but have not been reported by the lenders For reporting and internal tracking

purposes we do not consider loan to be in default until the borrower has missed two payments Depending

upon its scheduled payment date loan delinquent for two consecutive monthly payments could be reported to

PMI between the 31st and the 60th day after the first missed payment due date The Companys U.S mortgage

insurance primary master policy defines default as the borrowers failure to pay when due an amount equal to

the scheduled monthly mortgage payment under the terms of the mortgage Generally however the master
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policy requires an insured to notify PMI of default no later than the last business day of the month following

the month in which the borrower becomes three monthly payments in default SFAS No 60 specifically excludes

mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to reserves for losses and LAE Consistent with industry

accounting practices the Company considers its mortgage insurance policies short-duration contracts and

accordingly does not establish loss reserves for future claims on insured loans that are not currently in default

The Company establishes loss reserves when insured loans are identified as currently in default using estimated

claim rates and claim amounts for each report year net of recoverables The Company also establishes loss

reserves for defaults that it believes have been incurred but not yet reported to the Company prior to the close of

an accounting period using estimated claim rates and claim amounts applied to the estimated number of defaults

not reported

The Company establishes reserves for losses and LAE for financial guaranty contracts on case-by-case

basis when specific insured obligations are in payment default or are likely to be in payment default These

reserves represent an estimate of the present value of the anticipated shortfall between payments on insured

obligations plus anticipated loss adjustment expenses and anticipated cash flows from and proceeds to be

received on sales of any collateral supporting the obligation and/or other anticipated recoveries The discount rate

used in calculating the net present value of estimated losses is based upon the risk-free rate for the duration of the

anticipated shortfall

Changes in loss reserves can materially affect the Companys consolidated net income or loss The process

of estimating loss reserves requires the Company to forecast the interest rate employment and housing market

environments which are highly uncertain Therefore the process requires significant management judgment and

estimates The use of different estimates would have resulted in the establishment of different reserves In

addition changes in the accounting estimates are reasonably likely to occur from period to period based on the

economic conditions The Company reviews the judgments made in its prior period estimation process and

adjusts the current assumptions as appropriate While the assumptions are based in part upon historical data the

loss provisioning process is complex and subjective and therefore the ultimate liability may vary significantly

from the Companys estimates

ReinsuranceThe Company uses reinsurance to reduce net risk in force optimize capital allocation and

comply with
statutory provision adopted by several states that limits the maximum

mortgage insurance coverage

that can be provided by single company to 25% for
any single risk The Companys reinsurance agreements

typically provide for recovery of proportionate level of claim
expenses from reinsurers and reinsurance

receivable is recorded as an asset based on the type of reinsurance coverage The Company remains liable to its

policyholders if the reinsurers are unable to satisfy their obligations under the agreements Reinsurance recoverables

on loss estimates are based on the Companys actuarial analysis of the applicable business Amounts the Company
will ultimately recover could differ materially from amounts recorded as reinsurance recoverables Reinsurance

transactions are recorded in accordance with the accounting guidance provided in SFAS No 113 Accounting and

Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts Accordingly management assesses

among other factors risk transfer criteria for all reinsurance arrangements

Revenue RecognitionMortgage guaranty insurance policies are contracts that are generally

non-cancelable by the insurer are renewable at fixed price and provide for payment of premiums on

monthly annual or single basis Upon renewal the Company is not able to re-underwrite or re-price its policies

SFAS No 60 specifically excludes mortgage guaranty insurance from its guidance relating to the earning of

insurance premiums Consistent with industry accounting practices premiums written on monthly basis are

earned as coverage
is provided Monthly premiums accounted for 84.7% 1.0% and 85.8% of

gross premiums

written from the Companys mortgage insurance operations in 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively Premiums

written on an annual basis are amortized on monthly pro rata basis over the
year

of coverage Primary mortgage
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insurance premiums written on policies covering more than one year are referred to as single premiums

portion of the revenue from single premiums is recognized in premiums earned in the current period and the

remaining portion is deferred as unearned premiums and earned over the expected life of the policy range of

seven to fifteen years for the majority of the single premium policies If single premium policies related to

insured loans are cancelled due to repayment by the borrower and the premium is non-refundable then the

remaining unearned premium related to each cancelled policy is recognized as earned premiums upon

notification of the cancellation Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written that is applicable

to the estimated unexpired risk of insured loans Rates used to determine the earning of single premiums are

estimates based on actuarial analysis of the expiration of risk

Income TaxesThe Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method in accordance with

SFAS No 109 Accounting for Income Taxes The liability method measures the expected future tax effects of

temporary differences at the enacted tax rates applicable for the period in which the deferred asset or liability is

expected to be realized or settled Temporary differences are differences between the tax basis of an asset or

liability and its reported amount in the consolidated financial statements that will result in future increases or

decreases in taxes owed on cash basis compared to amounts already recognized as tax expense in the

consolidated statement of operations The Companys effective tax rates from continuing operations were 32.8%

and 19.6% for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively compared to the federal statutory rate

of 35.0% The effective tax rate for the year ended December 31 2008 reflects income derived from certain

international operations which have lower effective tax rates combined with the Companys municipal bond

investment income In 2007 previously deferred tax liabilities attributable to equity in earnings from FGIC and

RAM Re were reversed and in 2007 and 2008 certain deferred tax assets were established

As of December 31 2008 tax valuation allowance of $174.6 million was recorded against $322.8

million deferred tax asset related to the recognition of losses from FGIC and RAM Re in excess of our tax basis

The Company did not record full valuation allowance against the deferred tax asset as it is managements

expectation that portion of the tax benefit will be realized Additional benefits could be recognized in the future

due to changes in managements expectations regarding the realization of tax benefits See Note 12 Income

Taxes for further discussion

As of January 2007 the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in

Income TaxesAn Interpretation of FASB Statement No 109 FIN 48

Benefit PlansThe Company provides pension benefits to all eligible U.S employees under The PMI

Group Inc Retirement Plan the Retirement Plan and to certain employees of the Company under The PMI

Group Inc Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan In addition the Company provides certain health care and

life insurance benefits for retired employees under another post-employment benefit plan The Company applies

SFAS No 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans an

amendment of FASB Statements No 87 88 106 and 132R SFAS No 158 for pension benefits to U.S

employees SFAS No 158 requires the Company to recognize the funded status i.e the difference between the

fair value of plan assets and the projected benefit obligations of its defined benefit postretirement plans with

corresponding adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income or loss

On May 17 2007 The PMI Groups Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Retirement Plan

The amendment changed the Plans benefit formula from final pay pension formula to cash balance

formula The amendment took effect immediately for employees hired or rehired on or after September 2007

For employees hired before and continuously employed on September 2007 the amendment will take effect on

January 2011 Under the new cash balance plan formula the Company will contribute 8% of qualified

employees compensation to cash balance accounts and credit interest at rate equal to the 30-year Treasury

bond rate
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In the third quarter of 2008 the Company initiated Voluntary Early Retirement Program the Program
The Program was made available to employees other than the CEO who were at least 52

years
of

age and had

seven or more years
of service PMI incurred expenses of $33.1 million in 2008 as result of this Program In

addition the Company contributed $41.0 million to the Retirement Plan in 2008 Approximately $24.0 million of

this contribution was nondeductible for tax purposes The Company has filed with the Internal Revenue Service

IRS to have the nondeductible portion refunded to avoid excise tax penalties

Foreign Currency TranslationThe financial statements of the Companys foreign subsidiaries have been

translated into U.S dollars in accordance with SFAS No 52 Foreign Currency Translation Assets and

liabilities denominated in non-U.S dollar functional currencies are translated using the period-end spot exchange

rates Revenues and
expenses are translated at monthly-average exchange rates The effects of translating

operations with functional
currency other than the reporting currency are reported as component of

accumulated other comprehensive income loss included in total shareholders equity In conjunction with the

sale of PMI Australia and PMI Asia and their classifications as assets held for sale the Company recognized

$124.1 million of accumulated currency translation gains for PM Australia and $0.3 million for PMI Asia during

2008 Foreign currency translation gains in accumulated other comprehensive income were $48.3 million as of

December 31 2008 compared with $281.0 million as of December 31 2007 Gains and losses from foreign

currency re-measurement incurred by PMI Europe and PMI Canada
represent the revaluation of assets and

liabilities denominated in non-functional currencies into the functional currency the Euro and Canadian dollar

respectively

Comprehensive Income LossComprehensive income loss includes net income loss the change in

foreign currency translation gains or losses derivatives designated as cash flow hedges pension adjustments

changes in unrealized gains and losses on investments accretion of cash flow hedges and reclassification of

realized gains and losses previously reported in comprehensive income loss net of related tax effects

Business SegmentsThe Companys reportable operating segments are U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations International Operations Financial Guaranty and Corporate and Other U.S Mortgage Insurance

Operations includes the results of operations of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co affiliated U.S insurance and

reinsurance companies and the equity in earnings from CMG MI International Operations includes the results

from continuing operations of PMI Europe and PM Canada and the results from discontinued operations of PMI
Australia and PM Asia Financial Guaranty includes the equity in earnings losses from FGIC and RAM Re
and the financial results of PMI Guaranty which are reported as discontinued operations As of December 31
2008 upon receiving regulatory approval PMI Guarantys remaining assets and liabilities were merged into U.S

Mortgage nsurance Operations The Companys Corporate and Other segment mainly consists of our holding

company and contract underwriting operations

Earnings Loss Per ShareBasic earnings loss per share EPS excludes dilution and is based on

consolidated net income loss available to common shareholders giving effect to discontinued operations and the

actual weighted-average common shares that are outstanding during the period Diluted EPS is based on

consolidated net income loss available to common shareholders giving effect to discontinued operations

adjusted for the effects of dilutive securities and the weighted-average dilutive common shares outstanding

during the period The weighted-average dilutive common shares reflect the potential increase of common shares

if contracts to issue common shares including stock options issued by the Company that have dilutive impact

were exercised or if outstanding securities were converted into common shares Due to the net loss in 2008 and

2007 normally dilutive components of shares outstanding such as stock options were not included in fully

diluted shares outstanding as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive
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The following table presents for the periods indicated reconciliation of the weighted average common

shares used to calculate basic EPS to the weighted-average common shares used to calculate diluted EPS from

continuing and discontinued operations

2008 2007 2006

Dollars and shares in thousands

Net loss income

Loss income from continuing operations as reported $887188 $l008682 $329762

Interest on contingently convertible debt CoCos net of taxes 4752

Loss income from continuing operations adjusted for diluted EPS

calculation 887188 1008682 334514

Loss income from discontinued operations 41320 93356 89889

Net loss income adjusted for diluted EPS calculation $928508 915326 $424403

Weighted-average shares for basic EPS 81423 84645 86478

Weighted-average stock options and other dilutive components 6388

Weighted-average shares for diluted EPS 81423 84645 92866

Dividends declared and accrued to common shareholders 0.03 0.21 0.21

Share-Based CompensationThe Company applies SFAS No 123 revised 2004 Share-Based Payment

SFAS No 23R in accounting for share-based payments SFAS No 23R requires that such transactions be

accounted for using fair value-based method and recognized as expense in the consolidated results of

operations The Company recognizes the fair value of share-based payments granted and unvested including

employee stock options restricted stock units and employee stock purchase plan shares as compensation

expense in the consolidated results of operations Share-based compensation expense was $8.8 million pre-tax

$16.1 million pre-tax and $12.2 million pre-tax for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

respectively

Fair Value of Financial InstrumentsEffective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157 and

SFAS No 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial LiabilitiesIncluding an Amendment

of FASB Statement No 115 SPAS No 159 SFAS No 157 provides framework for measuring fair value

under GAAP SFAS No 159 allows an entity the irrevocable option to elect fair value for the initial and

subsequent measurement of certain financial assets and liabilities on contract-by-contract basis The Company

elected to adopt the fair value option for certain corporate debt on the adoption date SPAS No 159 requires that

the difference between the carrying value before election of the fair value option and the fair value of these

instruments be recorded as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the period of adoption The Company

recognized net of tax gain of $31.8 million in retained earnings as of January 2008 related to the initial

adoption of SFAS No 159 for certain debt instruments held by the Company For the year
ended December 31

2008 the Companys net loss included $123.6 million gain related to the subsequent measurement of fair value

for these debt instruments We selected our 10
year

and 30
year

senior debt instruments for the fair value option

as their market values are the most readily available The fair value option was elected with respect to the senior

debt as changes in value are expected to generally offset changes in the value of credit default swap contracts that

are also accounted for at fair value See Note 10 Fair Value Disclosures for further discussion

ReclassficationsCertain items in the prior years consolidated financial statements have been reclassified

to conform to the current years consolidated financial statement presentation The Company reclassified the

results of operations assets and liabilities of PMI Australia and PMI Asia and the results of operations of PM
Guaranty as discontinued operations for all periods presented
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NOTE NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In December 2008 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued FASB staff position

FSP No FAS 132R-i Employers Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan Assets This FSP amends

FASB Statement No 132 Employers Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits to provide

guidance on an employers disclosures about plan assets of defined benefit pension or other postretirement

plan It requires companies to provide users of financial statements with an understanding of how investment

decisions are made the major categories of plan assets inputs and valuation techniques used to measure fair

value of plan assets the effect of fair value measurements when using unobservable inputs and significant

concentrations of risk within plan assets FSP No FAS 132R-i is effective for fiscal
years ending after

December 15 2009 FSP No FAS 132R-i is not currently expected to significantly impact the Companys
consolidated financial statements

In October 2008 the FASB issued FSP FAS No 157-3 Determining the Fair Value of Financial Asset

When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active This FSP clarifies the application of SFAS Statement No 157

Fair Value Measurements in market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations

in determining the fair value of financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active FSP FAS

No 157-3 is effective upon issuance and has not impacted the Companys consolidated financial statements

In May 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 163 Accounting for Financial Guaranty Insurance Contracts an

Interpretation of FASB Statement No 60 SFAS No 163 which specifically clarifies the accounting guidance

for financial guaranty contracts under SFAS No 60 SFAS No 163 requires that an insurance enterprise

recognize claim liability prior to an event of default when there is evidence that credit deterioration has

occurred in an insured financial obligation The statement also clarifies how SFAS No 60 applies to financial

guarantee insurance contracts including the recognition and measurement to be used to account for premium

revenue and claim liabilities SFAS No 163 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after

December 15 2008 SFAS No 163 is not currently expected to significantly impact the Companys consolidated

financial statements

In March 2008 the FASB issued SFAS No 161 Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging

Activitiesan amendment of FASB Statement No 133 SFAS No 161 which amends and expands the

disclosure requirements of Statement 133 SFAS No 161 requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and

strategies for using derivatives quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of gains and losses on

derivative instruments and disclosures about credit-risk-related contingent features in derivative agreements

SFAS No 161 is effective for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15 2008 SFAS

No 161 is not currently expected to significantly impact the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 160 Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statementsan amendment to ARB No 51 SFAS No 160 which establishes accounting and reporting

standards for the noncontrolling interest in subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of subsidiary It requires

consolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to both the parent and the

noncontrolling interest It also requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the

amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest SFAS No 160 is

effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2008 SFAS No 160 is not currently expected to

significantly impact the Companys consolidated financial statements

In December 2007 the FASB issued SFAS No 141 revised 2007 Business Combinations SFAS
No 141R which requires an entity that obtains control of one or more businesses in business combination to

recognize the assets acquired the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the

acquisition date measured at their fair values as of that date with limited exceptions specified in SFAS No 141
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SFAS No 141R is effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning

of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after December 15 2008 SFAS No 141R is not currently

expected to significantly impact the Companys consolidated financial statements

NOTE INVESTMENTS

Fair Values and Gross Unrealized Gains and Losses on InvestmentsThe cost or amortized cost

estimated fair value and gross unrealized gains and losses on investments are shown in the tables below

Amortized
Gross Unrealized

Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

Dollars in thousands

As of December 31 2008

Fixed income securities

Municipal bonds $1888682 24174 98587 $1814269

Foreign governments 49965 2176 1780 50361

Corporate bonds 131299 1267 7348 125218

U.S governments and agencies 3620 799 4419

Mortgage-backed securities 3050 149 3199

Total fixed income securities 2076616 28565 107715 1997466

Equity securities

Common stocks 9291 3698 5593

Preferred stocks 229262 7195 20201 216256

Total equity securities 238553 7195 23899 221849

Short-term investments 2280 2280

Total investments $2317449 35760 $131614 $2221595

As of December 31 2007

Fixed income securities

Municipal bonds $1629076 77178 3430 $1702824

Foreign governments 126671 2085 2057 126699

Corporate bonds 179527 671 3780 176418

U.S governments and agencies 7002 1485 8487

Mortgage-backed securities 3551 169 3720

Total fixed income securities 1945827 81588 9267 2018148

Equity securities

Common stocks 86920 30670 339 117251

Preferred stocks 333915 623 34908 299630

Total equity securities 420835 31293 35247 416881

Short-term investments 2251 2251

Total investments $2368913 $112881 44514 $2437280
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Due in one year or less

Due after one year through five years

Due after five
years through ten years

Due after ten years

Mortgage-backed securities

Total fixed income securities

Actual maturities may differ from those scheduled as result of calls or prepayments by the issuers prior to

maturity

Net Investment IncomeNet investment income consists of the following for the years ended

December 31

Fixed income securities

Equity securities

Short-term investments cash and cash equivalents and other

Investment income before
expenses

Investment expenses

Net investment income

Realized investment losses gainsNet realized investment losses gains consist of the following for the

Fixed income securities

Gross gains

Gross losses

Net gains

Equity securities

Gross gains

Gross losses

Net losses gains

Short-term investments

Gross gains

Gross losses

Net gains losses

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries

Settlement gain on sale of unconsolidated subsidiary

Impairment of unconsolidated subsidiaries

Net losses

Net realized investment losses gains before income taxes

Income tax benefit expense

Total net realized investment losses gains after income taxes

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

30585 2273 5961

8439 974 3657

22146 1299 2304

24092 14632 3600
99397 14612 2500

75305 20 1100

6695

1878 129 3086

4817 129 3086

12670

90868 38499

90868 25829

139210 24639 318

48724 8624 111

90486 $16015 207

THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Scheduled MaturitiesThe following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of fixed income

securities by contractual maturity at December 31 2008

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Dollars in thousands

26195 25808

81410 79566
214746 212576

1751215 1676317
3050 3199

$2076616 $1997466

years ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

$103770 97517 $102019

21583 19725 12975

14965 17000 24429

140318 134242 139423

1941 1690 1629

$138377 $132552 $137794
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5576

20365

25941

$859547

$49 171 $460962

1780
1977 30423

52928 491385

$49416 $1262001

6664

5371 56326

54787 1324991

3698
20201

23899

$131614

Unrealized losses in 2008 on fixed income securities were primarily due to the widening of credit spreads

which have also increased market interest rates on most fixed income securities Unrealized losses in 2008 on

preferred securities were primarily due to the widening of credit and sector spreads The unrealized losses are not

considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired as the Company has the intent and ability to hold such

investments until they recover in value or mature The Company determined that the decline in the fair value of

certain investments in 2008 met the definition of other-than-temporary impairment and recognized realized

losses of $104.2 million

THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Realized investment losses gains for 2008 include $96.5 million loss related to the Companys other-

than-temporary impairment of certain preferred securities in its U.S investment portfolio Also included in

realized investment losses gains for 2008 is the Companys impairment of its investment in its unconsolidated

subsidiaries which includes an $88.0 million loss related to the impairment of the Companys investment in

FGIC in the first quarter of 2008 and $2.9 million loss related to the Companys impairment to fair value of its

investment in RAM Re The net realized investment losses in 2007 were due primarily to an other-than-

temporary impairment of the investment in RAM Re of $38.5 million partially offset by $12.7 million

settlement gain related to sale of an unconsolidated subsidiary

Aging of Unrealized LossesThe following table shows the gross
unrealized losses and fair value of the

Companys investments aggregated by investment category and the length of time the individual securities have

been in continuous unrealized loss position as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total

Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

December 31 2008 Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

Fixed income securities Dollars in thousands

U.S municipal bonds $801039 98587

Foreign governments 6664 1780

Corporate bonds 25903 7348
Total fixed income securities 833606 107715

Equity securities

Common stocks 3698 5576

Preferred stocks 2712 99294 17489 119659

Total equity securities 6410 99294 17489 125235

Total $59338 $590679 $72276 $1450226

December 31 2007

Fixed income securities

U.S municipal bonds $135690 3244 7201

Foreign governments 28217 850 43694

Corporate bonds 53525 1190 62147

U.S government and agencies 100 145 245

Total fixed income securities 217532 5284 113187 3983 330719 9267

Equity securities

Common stocks 14395 339 14395 339
Preferred stocks 275852 34908 275852 34908

Total equity securities 290247 35247 290247 35247

Total $507779 $40531 $113187 3983 620966 44514

186
1207
2590

142891

71911

115672

3430
2057
3780
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Investment Concentrations and Other ItemsThe Company maintains an investment portfolio principally

of U.S municipal bonds The following states and the District of Columbia represent the largest concentrations

in the U.S municipal bond portfolio expressed as percentage of the fair value of all U.S municipal bond

holdings Holdings in states and the District of Columbia that exceed 5% of the U.S municipal bond portfolio at

December 31 for the respective years are presented below

2008

NewYork 12.8%

Texas 11.7%

California 10.1%

Florida 7.5%

Illinois 6.7%

Massachusetts 8.1%

Washington 7.5%

District of Columbia 5.1% 6.5%

At December 31 2008 fixed income securities and short-term investments with fair value of $16.0

million were on deposit with regulatory authorities as required by law

NOTE INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

Investments in the Companys unconsolidated subsidiaries include both equity investees and other

unconsolidated subsidiaries The carrying values of the Companys investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries

consisted of the following as of December 31 2008 and December 31 2007

December 31 Ownership December 31
2008 Percentage 2007

Dollars in thousands

42.0% $103644

135082 50.0% 131225

23.7% 60017

_______
various 14914

________
$309800

Other represents principally various limited partnership investments

Due to the impairment of its FGIC investment in the first quarter of 2008 the Company did not recognize

any equity in earnings losses from FGIC in 2008 During 2008 the Company realized an other-than-temporary

impairment charge of $2.9 million and recognized equity in losses from RAM Re of $57.7 million which

decreased the value of the Companys investment in RAM Re to zero

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries consisted of the following for the years

presented below

Ownership Ownership
2008 Percentage 2007 Percentage 2006

Dollars in thousands

$763290 42.0%

17119 50.0%

4457 23.7%

_______
214 various

_______

________
$741500

________

2007

21.0%

152%

13.0%

8.7%

FGIC

CMGMI
RAMRe
Other 15295

Total $150377

Ownership
Percentage

42.0%

50.0%

23.7%

various

FGIC

CMG MI

RAM Re

Other

Total

6456

57670

588

$51802

42.0%

50.0%

23.7%

various

Ownership

Percentage

42.0%

50.0%

23.7%

various

98510

20308

8703

212

$127309
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CMG MIs condensed balance sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007 and condensed statements of

operations for the years
ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Condensed Balance Sheets

Assets

Cash and investments at fair value $337216 $290173

Deferred policy acquisition costs 12626 9384

Other assets 29510 16837

Total assets $379352 $316394

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
87559 28815

Unearned premiums 22410 23274

Other liabilities 5926 8554

Total liabilities 115895 60643

Shareholders equity 263457 255751

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $379352 $316394

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Condensed Statements of Operations

Gross revenues $108808 $92878 $80937

Total expenses
93670 44223 22913

Income before income taxes 15138 48655 58024

Income tax expense 2225 14417 17409

Net income 12913 34238 40615

PMIs ownership interest in common equity 50.0% 50.0% 50.0%

Total equity in earnings from CMG MI 6456 $17119 $20308

NOTE DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

The following table summarizes deferred policy acquisition cost activity as of and for the years
ended

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Beginning Balance 18305 47611 49471

Policy acquisition costs incurred and deferred 34771 58377 51264

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 18285 87683 53124

Balance at December 31 34791 18305 47611

Deferred policy acquisition costs are affected by qualifying costs that are deferred in the period and

amortization of previously deferred costs in such periods In periods where new business activity is declining the

asset will generally decrease because the amortization of previously deferred policy acquisition costs exceeds the
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amount of acquisition costs being deferred Conversely in periods where there is significant growth in new

business the asset will generally increase because the amount of acquisition costs being deferred exceeds the

amortization of previously deferred policy acquisition costs

Deferred policy acquisition costs are reviewed periodically to determine that they do not exceed recoverable

amounts after considering investment income For the year ended December 31 2007 as result of

recoverability analysis of deferred costs relating to new mortgage insurance policies acquired in 2007 the

Company impaired its deferred policy acquisition cost asset related to its U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations by

$33.6 million relating to the 2007 book year The deferred policy acquisition cost asset at December 31 2008

includes only costs associated with the 2008 book of business and book years prior to 2007 In the second quarter

of 2008 PMI Guaranty impaired its remaining deferred policy acquisition cost assets by $3.6 million reducing

its value to zero PMI Guaranty did not incur any deferred policy acquisition costs during the last half of 2008 as

runoff activities were effectively completed The Company also impaired $1.2 million of deferred policy

acquisition cost assets relating to PMI Europe during 2008 Due to higher persistency levels experienced in the

Companys U.S Mortgage Insurance portfolio in 2008 the Company changed the period over which it amortizes

deferred policy acquisition costs in its U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations The change in the period over which

deferred policy acquisition costs are amortized resulted in decrease of $8.1 million in amortization of deferred

policy acquisition costs

NOTE PROPERTY EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE

The following table sets forth the cost basis of and accumulated depreciation and amortization for property

equipment and software for the years ended

2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Software 184873 185376

Building and leasehold improvements 99659 98467

Furniture and equipment 48105 47484

Land 5000 5000

Property and equipment at cost 337637 336327

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 206426 179019

Total property equipment and software net of accumulated depreciation and

amortization 131211 $157308

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property equipment including capital lease and software

totaled $29.3 million in 2008 $30.6 million in 2007 and $31.0 million in 2006 Capitalized costs associated with

software developed for internal use were $8.1 million in 2008 $15.8 million in 2007 and $15.6 million in 2006
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NOTE RESERVE FOR LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES LAE

The Company establishes reserves for losses and LAE to recognize the estimated liability for potential

losses and LAE related to insured mortgages that are in default The establishment of loss reserve is subject to

inherent uncertainty and requires significant judgment by management The following table provides

reconciliation of the beginning and ending consolidated reserves for losses and LAE between January and

December 31 for each of the three years

Balance at January

Less reinsurance recoverables
__________ _________

Net balance at January

Losses and LAE incurred principally with respect to defaults occurring in

Current year

Prior years __________ __________ _________

Total incurred

Losses and LAE payments principally with respect to defaults occurring in

Current year

Prior years __________ __________ _________

Total payments _________ _________ ________

Foreign currency translation effects

Net change in PM Guarantys loss reserves _________ _________

Net ending balance at December 31

Reinsurance recoverables
__________ __________ _________

Balance at December 31
_________ _________ _________

The $192.9 million $208.6 million and $5.0 million increases in losses and LAE incurred in prior years in

2008 2007 and 2006 respectively were due to re-estimates of ultimate claim rates and claim sizes from

those established at the original notices of default updated through the periods presented These

re-estimates of ultimate loss rates and amounts are the result of managements periodic review of estimated

claim amounts in light of actual claim amounts loss development data and/or expected ultimate claim rates

The increases in prior years reserves in 2008 and 2007 were primarily due to the significant weakening of

the U.S housing and mortgage markets and were driven by lower cure rates higher claim rates and higher

claim sizes

Includes losses and LAE incurred of $29.9 million and payments of $9.6 million for the year ended

December 31 2008 from PM Guaranty which is reported as discontinued operations in the consolidated

statement of operations for all periods presented

The increase in total consolidated loss reserves at December 31 2008 compared to December 31 2007 was

primarily due to increases in the reserve balances for U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations as result of an

increase in the default inventory higher claim rates and higher average claim sizes Upon receipt of default

notices future claim payments are estimated relating to those delinquent loans and reserve is recorded

Generally it takes approximately 12 to 36 months from the receipt of default notice to result in claim

payment Accordingly most losses paid relate to default notices received in prior years

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

$1177309 384089 360360

36917 3741 3278

1140392 380348 357082

1706383 914333 261282

192881 208565 4991

1899264 1122898 266273

100795 43643 22161

727576 323755 222491

828371 367398 244652

4927 1894 1645

20250 2650

2226608 1140392 380348

482678 36917 3741

$2709286 $1177309 384089
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NOTE DEBT AND REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY

December 31
December 31 2008 2007

Principal Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Value Value

Dollars in thousands

6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 2016 $250000 $153027 $153027 $250000

6.625% Senior Notes due September 15 2036 150000 77144 77144 150000

Revolving Credit Facility 200000 200000 200000

8.309% Junior Subordinated Debentures due February

2027 51593 27540 51593 51593

5.568% Senior Notes Due November 15 2008 45000

Total debt $651593 $457711 $481764 $496593

The fair value and carrying value of the Companys 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes at

December 31 2008 include accrued interest

6.000% and 6.625% Senior NotesIn September 2006 the Company issued $250 million in principal

amount of 6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 2016 and $150 million in principal amount of 6.625% Senior

Notes due September 15 2036 The 6.000% Senior Notes and the 6.625% Senior Notes bear interest at rate of

6.000% and 6.625%
per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year

beginning on March 15 2007 The PMI Group may redeem the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes in whole or in

part at any
time at the make-whole redemption price The make-whole redemption price will be equal to the

greater of 100% of the principal amount of the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes to be redeemed and the

sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments thereon discounted to the date of redemption on

semi-annual basis assuming 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months at rate equal to the

applicable treasury rate plus 25 basis points for the 6.000% Senior Notes and 35 basis points for the 6.625%

Senior Notes plus in the case of either or any interest accrued but not paid to but excluding the date of

redemption In connection with the issuance of these Senior Notes the Company entered into two interest rate

lock agreements which were designated as cash flow hedges The fair value of the cash flow hedges was settled

for $9.0 million and is amortized into interest expense over the terms of the new senior debt that was issued As

of December 31 2008 the unamortized balance in the other comprehensive income related to these fair value

hedges was approximately $7.6 million pre-tax

Effective January 2008 the Company elected to adopt the fair value option presented by SFAS No 159

for the Companys 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes SFAS No 159 requires that the difference

between the carrying value before election of the fair value option and the fair value of these instruments be

recorded as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the period of adoption See Note 10 Fair Value

Disclosures for further discussion

8.309% Junior Subordinated DebenturesThe Junior Subordinated Debentures bear interest at the rate of

8.309% per annum paid semiannually and mature on February 2027 The Junior Subordinated Debentures are

subordinated to all senior indebtedness of The PMI Group

In considering the initial adoption of the SFAS No 159 the Company determined that the change in fair

value of the 8.309% Junior Subordinated Debentures would not have significant impact on the Companys
consolidated financial results Therefore the Company did not elect to adopt the fair value option for the 8.309%

Junior Subordinated Debentures
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5.568% Senior NotesIn August 2006 the Company completed the remarketing of approximately $345

million in principal amount of senior notes which matured in November 2008 and are referred to as the 5.568%

Senior Notes As result of the remarketing the annual interest rate on these notes was reset from 3.00% per

annum to 5.568% per annum paid quarterly effective from and including August 15 2006 In connection with

the remarketing the Company purchased and cancelled $300.0 million in principal amount of the 5.568% Senior

Notes leaving $45.0 million in principal amount of these notes outstanding after completion of the remarketing

Since the 5.568% Senior Notes were scheduled to mature in 2008 the Company did not elect to adopt the fair

value option for the 5.568% Senior Notes The 5.568% Senior Notes matured and were paid in November 2008

Revolving Credit FacilityThe Company has $250 million revolving credit facility the facility for

working capital capital expenditures and other business purposes The facility includes $50 million letter of

credit sub-limit The revolving credit facility contains certain financial covenants and restrictions including an

adjusted consolidated net worth threshold and risk-to-capital ratio threshold of 20 to There was $200 million

outstanding under this facility and one letter of credit for approximately $0.25 million as of December 31 2008

In early 2008 the Company amended the facility and in May 2008 the Company drew $200 million on the

facility The facility includes $50 million letter of credit sub-limit The facility was reduced to $300 million in

the first quarter of 2008 and was further reduced to $250 million on or about October 22 2008 upon the sale of

PMI Australia Pursuant to the terms of the amendment the Companys ability to borrow under the facility was

subject to number of conditions including that the stock of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co MIC be pledged

in favor of the lenders under the facility and noteholders under certain of the Companys senior notes The

amended facility also contains additional restrictions on asset dispositions and investments While the Company

is generally permitted under the amended facility to make additional investments in MIC and its subsidiaries the

Companys ability to invest in its reinsurance subsidiaries is subject to dollar limitations other than with regard

to four of TPG subsidiaries whose capital stock was pledged to the bank group on or about September 29

2008 In the third quarter of 2008 the Company requested and received 100% of the lenders consent for the

sale of PMI Australia and PMI Asia to third party See Note 25 Subsequent Events for further discussion

NOTE 10 FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES

Effective January 2008 the Company adopted SFAS No 157 and SFAS No 159 In particular the

Company elected to adopt the fair value option presented by SFAS No 159 for certain corporate debt liabilities

on the adoption date SFAS No 159 requires that the difference between the carrying value before election of the

fair value option and the fair value of these instruments at the time of election of the fair value option be recorded

as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the period of adoption
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The following table summarizes the impact of adopting SFAS No 157 for derivative contracts and the

impact of adopting the fair value option for certain financial instruments on January 2008 Amounts shown

represent the carrying value of the affected instruments before and after the adoption of the new accounting

pronouncements

Transition Impact January 12008

Before adoption

Carrying Gain/ After

Value Fair Value loss adoption

Impact of adopting SFAS No 157

Credit default swapsliabilities 26921 26921 26921

Impact of adopting SFAS No 159

6.000% Senior Notes $252461 $217893 $34568 $217893

6.625% Senior Notes $150224 $135873 $14351 $135873

Cumulative-effect adjustment pre-tax $48919
Tax Impact $17120

Cumulative-effect adjustment after-tax increase to

retained earnings $31799

The carrying value of the Companys 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes before adoption

include accrued interest and unamortized deferred costs The fair value and carrying value after adoption of

these notes include accrued interest

The following table presents the difference between fair values as of December 31 2008 and the aggregate

contractual principal amounts of the long-term debt for which the fair value option has been elected Had the

Company not adopted SPAS No 159 the Companys diluted loss
per

share for the year ended December 31
2008 would have been $12.39 per share

Fair Value including

accrued interest

as of Principal amount and

December 31 2008 accrued interest Difference

Long-term debt

6.000% Senior Notes $153027 $254375 $101348

6.625% Senior Notes 77144 $152898 75754

The change in fair value of certain of the Companys corporate debt for which the fair value option was

elected was principally due to the widening of credit spreads SFAS No 157 defines fair value as the exchange

price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the

measurement date SFAS No 157 also establishes fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the

use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value The standard

describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities

include debt and equity securities and derivative contracts that are traded in an active exchange market as well as

certain U.S Treasury securities that are highly liquid and are actively traded in over-the-counter markets

144



THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices in markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities

include debt securities with quoted prices that are traded less frequently than exchange-traded instruments and

derivative contracts whose value is determined using pricing model with inputs that are observable in the

market or can be derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the

fair value of the assets or liabilities Level assets and liabilities include financial instruments whose value is

determined using pricing models discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques as well as

instruments for which the determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis including financial instruments for which

the Company has elected the fair value option are summarized below

December 31 2008

Fair Value Measurements Using AssetsfLiabilities at

Level Level Level Fair Value

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Fixed income securities $1994025 3441 $1997466

Equity securities 5576 211809 4464 221849

Short-term investments 2280 2280

Cash and cash equivalents 1483313 1483313

Accrued investment income 36323 36323

Total assets $1527492 $2205834 7905 $3741231

Liabilities

Credit default swaps
$54542 54542

6.000% Senior Notes 153027 153027

6.625% Senior Notes 77144
______

77144

Total liabilities 230171 $54542 284713

PMI Europes credit default swap CDS contracts are valued using internal proprietary models because

these instruments are unique complex and private and are often highly customized transactions for which

observable market quotes are not regularly available Due to the lack of observable inputs required to value CDS

contracts they are considered to be Level under the SFAS No 157 fair value hierarchy Valuation models and

the related assumptions are continuously re-evaluated by management and refined as appropriate

Key inputs used in the Companys valuation of CDS contracts include the transaction notional amount

expected term premium rates on risk layer changes in market spreads estimated loss rates and loss timing and

risk free interest rates As none of the instruments that we are holding are traded in order to obtain representative

current CDS premium rates or spreads that represent an exit price for the CDS contracts we develop an internal

exit price estimate based on informal market data obtained through market surveys with investment banks

counterparty banks and other relevant market sources in Europe The assumed market credit spread is

significant assumption that if changed could result in materially different fair values Accordingly market

perceptions of credit deterioration would result in the increase in the expected exit value the amount required to

be paid to exit the transaction due to wider credit spreads
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Fixed income and equity securities classified as Level under SFAS No 157 are not publicly or actively

traded and the prices are not readily available The fair values of these investments are managements best

estimate and will be reassessed periodically

The table below
presents reconciliation for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring

basis using significant unobservable inputs Level for the year ended December 31 2008 Level instruments

presented in the table including credit default swaps and certain fixed income and equity securities were carried

at fair value prior to the adoption of SFAS No 157

Total Fair Value Measurements
Year Ended December 31 2008

Credit

Fixed Default

Income Equity Swaps
Level Instruments Only Securities Securities liabilities

Dollars in thousands

Balance January 2008 $3704 5706 $26921
Total gains or losses

Included in earnings 263 1242 11275
Included in other comprehensive income 889

Purchase issuance and settlements 17235

Balance December 31 2008 $3441 4464 $54542

The combined losses on equity and fixed income securities of $1.5 million for 2008 are included in net

investment income in the Companys consolidated statement of operations The loss on credit default swaps
of $11.3 million for the year ended December 31 2008 is included in other loss income in the Companys
consolidated statement of operations

The purchase issuance and settlements of $17.2 million for 2008 represent net cash received on credit

default swaps
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NOTE 11 REINSURANCE

The following table shows the effects of reinsurance on premiums written premiums earned and losses and

LAE of the Companys operations for the years
ended

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Premiums written

Direct 942580 984903 825291

Assumed 15313 10040 7578

Ceded 188998 181021 159998

Net premiums written 768895 813922 672871

Premiums earned

Direct 964512 986591 $860118

Assumed 12851 7657 8773

Ceded 191204 178808 159359

Net premiums earned 786159 815440 709532

Losses and loss adjustment expenses

Direct $2363233 $1157378 268159

Assumed 441 439

Ceded 464410 34471 1447

Net losses and LAE $1899264 $1122898 266273

The majority of the Companys existing reinsurance contracts are captive reinsurance agreements in the

U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations Under captive reinsurance agreements portion of the risk insured by PMI

is reinsured with the mortgage originator or investor through reinsurer that is affiliated with the mortgage

originator or investor Ceded premiums for U.S captive reinsurance accounted for 98.9% of total ceded

premiums written in 2008 compared to 99.2% and 99.8% in 2007 and 2006 respectively The Company recorded

$482.7 million in reinsurance recoverables primarily from captive arrangements related to PMIs gross
loss

reserves as of December 31 2008 compared to $36.9 million as of December 31 2007 As of December 31

2008 and 2007 the total assets in captive trust accounts held for the benefit of PMI totaled approximately $860.1

million and $702.6 million respectively

NOTE 12 INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax benefit expense
from continuing operations for the years

ended

December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 are as follows

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Current 22614 27920 83730

Deferred 411352 218602 18886

Total income tax benefit expense from continuing operations $433966 $246522 $102616

Section 832e of the Internal Revenue Code permits mortgage guaranty insurers to deduct within certain

limitations additions to statutory contingency reserves This provision allows mortgage guaranty insurers to

increase statutory unassigned surplus through the purchase of non-interest bearing tax and loss bonds from the
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federal government The tax and loss bonds purchased are limited to the tax benefit of the deduction for additions

to the contingency reserves The Company purchased $51.0 million of tax and loss bonds in 2006 and did not

purchase any tax and loss bonds in 2007 and 2008 The Company redeemed tax and loss bonds of $396.3 million

in 2008 $62.7 million in 2007 and $48.6 million in 2006 The purchase and redemption of tax and loss bonds are

included as deferred component of income tax expense The increase/decrease in current and deferred income

tax expense in 2008 as compared to 2007 is primarily attributable to an increase in deferred tax assets due

primarily to loss reserves and unrealized investment losses The decrease in current and deferred income tax

expense in 2007 as compared to 2006 is primarily attributable to the reversal of contingency reserve deductions

related to tax and loss bonds

The components of the income tax expense for 2008 included no foreign provision for current tax expense

and deferred tax benefit of $4.0 million primarily related to PMI Europe

reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective tax rate reported on loss income

from operations before income taxes is shown in the following table

2008 2007 2006

Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%

Tax-exempt interest 2.2 2.1 6.3
Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 0.0 3.9 7.2
Valuation allowance 0.5 13.4
State taxes net 0.2 0.3 0.9

Foreign taxes net 2.0 0.4 1.1
Other fl 24

Effective income tax rate 32.8% 19.6% 23.7%

PMI has provided for U.S federal income tax on the undistributed earnings from its foreign subsidiaries

except to the extent such earnings are reinvested indefinitely

The Company has foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $61.4 million that will expire

in 20 12-2027 or will carryforward indefinitely The Company has recorded tax benefit of $3.7 million

attributable to these losses based on the expectation that such losses will be utilized in future years Additionally

state deferred tax liabilities related to investments in certain subsidiaries reflect tax benefits of approximately

$5.9 million attributable to approximately $66.8 million of state operating loss carryforwards that could reduce

future dividend income

The Company has tax credit carryforwards of approximately $64.9 million primarily related to the payment
of alternative minimum tax and foreign taxes
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The components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the period ended are as follows

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Deferred tax assets

AMT and other credits 64901 55473

Discount on loss reserves
28350 18384

Unearned premium reserves 5762 6979

Unrealized net losses on investments 84098

Basis difference on investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 245339 214258

Pension costs and deferred compensation 20604 12987

Contingency reserve deduction net of tax and loss bonds 182

Other assets
15494 10506

Total deferred tax assets
464730 318587

Deferred tax liabilities

Contingency reserve deduction net of tax and loss bonds 2339

Deferred policy acquisition costs 11311 5580

Unrealized net gains on investments 21316

Unrealized net gains on debt 72857

Software development costs 18906 21683

Equity in earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 32453 40126

Other liabilities 6378 10565

Total deferred tax liabilities 141905 101609

Net deferred tax asset 322825 216978

Valuation allowance 174641 168103

Net deferred tax asset 148184 48875

As of December 31 2008 tax valuation allowance of $174.6 million was recorded against $322.8

million deferred tax asset related to unrealized losses primarily related to FGIC RAM Re and preferred

investments The Company did not record valuation allowance against the remaining deferred tax assets as it is

managements expectation that these will more likely than not be utilized Additional benefits could be

recognized in the future due to changes in managements expectations regarding realization of tax benefits

When incurred the Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits

in tax expense The Company incurred interest and penalties of approximately $0.5 million in 2008 The

Company remains subject to examination in the following major tax jurisdictions

Jurisdiction
Years Affected

California from 2003 to present

Ireland from 2005 to present

Canada from 2006 to present

As of December 31 2008 the Company is subject to federal examination in the U.S from 2005 through the

present as in 2007 the IRS closed its audit for taxable years
2001 through 2003 and the statute of limitations

lapsed for 2004 in 2008

149



THE PML GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContjnued

NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

LeasesThe Company leases certain office
space and office equipment Minimum rental payments under

non-cancelable operating leases and capital leases in the aggregate for the five years subsequent to 2008 and

thereafter are as follows

Capital Leases Operating Leases Total

Dollars in thousands

Year ending December 31
2009 $642 $2069 $2711
2010 161 1603 1764
2011 979 979

2012 780 780

2013 506 506

Thereafter 886 886

Total minimum lease payments $803 $6823 $7626

Rent expense for all leases was $3.8 million for 2008 $3.5 million for 2007 and $5.1 million for 2006

Income TaxesAs of December 31 2008 no tax issues from the recently closed IRS audit would in the

opinion of management give rise to material assessment or have material effect on the consolidated financial

condition results of operations or cash flows of the Company

GuaranteesThe PMI Group has guaranteed certain payments to the holders of the privately issued debt

securities Capital Securities issued by PMI Capital Payments with respect to any accrued and unpaid
distributions payable the redemption amount of any Capital Securities that are called and amounts due upon an

involuntary or voluntary termination winding up or liquidation of the Issuer Trust are subject to the guarantee In

addition the guarantee is irrevocable is an unsecured obligation of the Company and is subordinate and junior in

right of payment to all senior debt of the Company

Funding ObligationsThe Company has invested in certain limited partnerships with ownership interests

greater than 3% but less than 50% As of December 31 2008 the Company had committed to fund if called

upon to do so $3.0 million of additional equity in certain limited partnership investments In addition the

Company is under no obligation to fund FGIC or RAM Re two unconsolidated equity investees

Legal ProceedingsVarious legal actions and regulatory reviews are currently pending that involve the

Company and specific aspects of its conduct of business Although there can be no assurance as to the ultimate

disposition of these matters in the opinion of management based upon the information available as of the date of

these financial statements the expected ultimate liability in one or more of these actions is not expected to have

material effect on the consolidated financial condition results of operations or cash flows of the Company

NOTE 14 RESTRICTED IN VESTMENTS CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effective June 2008 PM Guaranty FGIC and Assured Guaranty Re Ltd AG Re executed an Agreement

pursuant to which all of the direct FGIC business reinsured by PMI Guaranty was recaptured by FGIC and ceded

by FGIC to AG Re Pursuant to the Agreement with respect to two of the exposures ceded to AG Re PM
Guaranty agreed to reimburse AG Re for any losses it pays subject to an aggregate limit of $22.9 million PMI
Guaranty has secured its obligation by depositing $22.9 million into trust account for the benefit of AG Re
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and to the extent AG Res obligations are less than $22.9 million the remaining funds will be returned to the

Company The $22.9 million deposit is included in cash and cash equivalents on the Companys consolidated

balance sheet at December 31 2008

PMI Europe is required to pledge collateral for the benefit of the counterparty under the terms of certain

credit default swap and reinsurance transactions it has concluded As of December 31 2008 PM Europe

pledged collateral of $32.8 million on credit default swap transactions and $60.7 million related to U.S

sub-prime related reinsurance transactions The collateral of $93.5 million is included in investments and cash

and cash equivalents on the Companys consolidated balance sheet at December 31 2008

NOTE 15 DIVIDENDS AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common StockIn March 2007 the Company repurchased 325000 common shares for $14.2 million

under $400 million common share repurchase program authorized by the Board of Directors in July 2006 In

May 2007 upon completion of $345 million accelerated share repurchase program entered into in 2006 The

PM Group received the final delivery of 436152 common shares bringing the total received under the

accelerated share repurchase program to 7624700 shares The average price paid per common share upon

completion of this program was $45.25 per common share

In February 2007 the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of additional common shares in an

amount not to exceed $150 million Pursuant to this program in June 2007 the Company repurchased 468500

common shares for $22.7 million or $48.48 per common share In July 2007 the Board of Directors increased

the $150 million repurchase
authorization to $300 million From July 2007 through September 30 2007 the

Company repurchased 5454381 common shares for $178.0 million or $32.64 per common share While

approximately $100.0 million remains on the $300 million repurchase authorization the Company did not

repurchase additional common shares in 2008

DividendsPMI ability to pay dividends to The PMI Group is affected by state insurance laws credit

agreements rating agencies and the discretion of insurance regulatory authorities The laws of Arizona PMI

state of domicile for insurance regulatory purposes provide that PMI may pay dividends out of any available

surplus account without prior approval of the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance Arizona

Director during any
12-month period in an amount not to exceed the lesser of 10% of policyholders surplus as

of the preceding year end or the prior calendar years net investment income dividend that exceeds the

foregoing threshold is deemed an extraordinary dividend and requires the prior approval of the Arizona

Director In 2006 and 2007 the Arizona Director approved two extraordinary dividend requests totaling $450

million PMI paid $265 million of the $450 million of approved extraordinary dividends to The PMI Group in

2006 and 2007 We do not anticipate that PMI will pay any dividends to The PMI Group in 2009 and 2010 Any

payment of the remaining $185 million of approved dividends by PMI to The PMI Group requires prior written

notice to the Director of the Arizona Department of Insurance who could withdraw approval of such dividends

Other states may also limit or restrict PMIs ability to pay shareholder dividends For example California

and New York prohibit mortgage insurers from declaring dividends except from the surplus of undivided profits

over the aggregate
of their paid-in capital paid-in surplus and contingency reserves

Preferred StockThe PM Groups certificate of incorporation authorizes the Board of Directors to issue

up to 5000000 shares of preferred stock of The PM Group in classes or series and to set the designations

preferences qualifications limitations or restrictions of any class or series with respect to the rate and nature of

dividends the price and terms and conditions on which shares may be redeemed the amount payable in the event

of voluntary or involuntary liquidation the terms and conditions for conversion or exchange into any other class
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or series of the shares voting rights and other terms The Company may issue without the approval of the

holders of common shares preferred stock that has voting dividend or liquidation rights superior to the common
stock which may adversely affect the rights of holders of common stock

Pursuant to the support agreement described in Note 21 Capital Support Agreements the Company has

agreed that in the event that Allstate the Companys former parent makes payment contempJated by the

Allstate Support Agreements or the runoff
support agreement Allstate will have the right to receive preferred

stock of The PMI Group or PMI with liquidation preference equal to the amount of such payment Such

preferred stock will rank senior in right of payment to the issuers common stock and so long as such preferred
stock is outstanding the issuer thereof will be prohibited from paying any

dividends or making any other

distributions on its common stock

NOTE 16 BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 2003 all U.S full-time and part-time employees of the Company are eligible to

participate in The PMI Group Inc Retirement Plan the Plan noncontributory defined benefit plan In

addition certain employees whose annual earnings exceed $220000 under Internal Revenue Code IRC
Section 401a17 and limits established under IRC Section 415 participate in The PMI Group Inc

Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan The SERP Plan noncontributory defined benefit plan Benefits

under both pension plans are based upon the employees length of service average annual compensation and

estimated social security retirement benefits

On May 17 2007 The PMI Groups Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Retirement Plan

The amendment changed the Plans benefit formula from final pay pension formula to cash balance

formula The amendment took effect immediately for employees hired or rehired on or after September 2007
For employees hired before and continuously employed on September 2007 the amendment will take effect on

January 2011 Under the new cash balance plan formula the Company will contribute 8% of qualified

employees compensation to cash balance accounts and credit interest at rate equal to the 30-year Treasury

Bond rate

In the third quarter of 2008 the Company initiated Voluntary Early Retirement Program the Program
The Program was made available to employees other than the CEO who were at least 52

years of age and had

seven or more years
of service PMI incurred expenses of $33.1 million in 2008 as result of this Program In

addition the Company contributed $10 million to the Retirement Plan in January 2008 and an additional $31.0

million in December 2008 Approximately $24.0 million of this contribution was nondeductible for tax purposes
The Company has filed with the IRS to have the nondeductible portion refunded to avoid excise tax penalties

The Company provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees under another

post-employment benefit plan Generally qualified employees may become eligible for these benefits if they
retire in accordance with the Companys established retirement policy and are continuously insured under the

Companys group plans or other approved plans for ten or more years prior to retirement The Company
contributes fixed dollar subsidy towards the cost of coverage Retirees are expected to pay all amounts in

excess of the Companys fixed dollar subsidy
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Pension Benefits including SERP

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007

Dollars in thousands except percentages

2006

85964

7611

5454

1718

1148

1312
45836

16908

69359

85921

8278

5226

1696

3302
11855

85964

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and fair value of

plan assets for the years ended and the accumulated benefit obligation at year end is as follows

Other Post-Employment Benefits

Funded Status

Projected Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at January 94105 11046 10248 9875

Service cost 10249 451 507 564

Interest cost 6007 738 648 585

Actuarial loss gain 3735 1572 27 393

Benefits paid 6770 412 384 383

Effect of plan amendments

Effect of curtailments 507

Effect of settlements 13935

Special termination benefits 1477

Benefit obligation at December31 ... 85921 15379 11046 10248

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at January 91098 77596 64904

Actual return on plan assets 28942 6576 9139

Company contribution1 17916 10228 24258 412 384 383

Benefits paid 1148 3302 20705 412 384 383

Settlements 45836

Fair value of plan assets at

December31 33088 91098 77596

Funded status

Funded status of plan at

December 31

Accumulated benefit obligation

Amounts recognized in accumulated other

comprehensive income consist of

Net actuarial loss

Prior service credit

Amount recognized in accumulated

other comprehensive income 21038 3704 5561 302 3357 3786

Effect of one-percentage-point change in

assumed health care cost trend rate on

postretirement obligation

Increase

Decrease

The 2008 contribution is reflected net of the $24 million refund that was nondeductible for tax purposes

$36271

65125

5134

77571

8325

65368

$15379

N/A

$1 1046

N/A

28168

7130

10248

N/A

7354

11058

5729

168
6223

5921
5072

8429
5481

9267

N/A N/A

N/A N/A

N/A

N/A

239 215

132 123

45

37
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Included in the underfunded status of the pension benefits is the underfunded status of The SERP Plan of

$12.9 million and the underfunded status of PM retirement plan of $23.4 million resulting in net

underfunded status of $36.3 million

Pension Benefits including SERP Other Post-Employment Benefits

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands except percentages

Components of net periodic benefit

cost

Service cost 7611 8278 $10249 450 507 564

Interest cost 5454 5226 6007 738 648 585

Expected return on assets 7591 6968 5728
Prior service cost amortization 1510 964 21 838 838 838
Actuarial loss recognized 470 463 1200 422 437 338

Curtailment gain 2441 1163
Additional cost related to settlement.. 15677 6164

Net periodic benefit cost 17670 6035 $17871 391 $754 649

Cost of special trrnination benefits 16908 1477

Assumptions to determine net

periodic benefit cost

Discount rate 6.17%-6.34% 6.06% 5.75% 6.12%-6.30% 5.89% 5.75%

Expected return on plan assets 8.00% 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% N/A N/A N/A
Health care cost trend on covered

charges N/A N/A N/A 9.00% 9.00% 10.00%

Expected benefit payments

2009 10835 855

2010 5293 853

2011 8892 863

2012 6570 863

2013 6850 853

2014-2018 43811 4453
Effect of one-percentage-point change

in assumed health care cost trend rate

on aggregate service and interest cost

Increase N/A N/A N/A 23 18

Decrease N/A N/A N/A 10
The estimated amounts that will be

amortized from accumulated other

comprehensive income into net

periodic benefit in 2009 are as

follows

Actuarial loss 2479 537

Prior service credit 1116 654
Total 1363 117

Prior to the plan amendment in May 2007 the discount rate used to determine the net periodic cost was

5.95%
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In 2008 the Company contributed $41.0 million to its Retirement Plan Approximately $24.0 million of this

contribution was nondeductible for tax purposes The Company has filed with the IRS to have the nondeductible

portion refunded to avoid excise tax penalties The Company intends to contribute between $15 million and $20

million to its Retirement Plan in 2009 The benefit costs increased in 2008 compared to 2007 primarily due to

pension settlement costs associated with the VERP initiated in the third quarter of 2008 discussed above The

benefit costs for 2007 decreased from 2006 primarily due to the amendment to the Retirement Plan in May 2007

discussed above The amendment reduced the Plans projected benefit obligation by $11.8 million and the

reduction was recorded as an adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income on the Companys

consolidated balance sheet The adjustment will be amortized through other underwriting and operating expenses

over time

The Companys accumulated benefit obligation for its Retirement Plan and SERP Plan at December 31

2008 was $53.1 million and $12.0 million respectively the combination of which equals the $65.1 million

accumulated benefit obligation As of December 31 2008 the combined fair value of plan assets is

approximately $32.0 million lower than our combined accumulated benefit obligation excluding the

nondeductible contribution of $24 million The health care cost trend on covered charges for other postretirement

benefits was 9% in 2008 which will be reduced to 5% in 2013

Percentage of Plan

Target
Assets at December 31

Allocation 2008 2007

Asset allocation

U.S stocks
40% 60% 40% 55%

International stocks 0% 30% 4% 16%

U.S fixed income securities 20% 50% 36% 29%

U.S cash and cash equivalents
0% 10% 20% 0%

Total
100% 100%

In 2008 excludes $24 million of cash and cash equivalents related to the nondeductible contributions

The primary objective of the Plan is to provide retirement income for Plan participants and their

beneficiaries in accordance with the terms of the Plan As such the key objective in the Plans financial

management is to promote stability and to the extent appropriate growth in funded status secondary financial

objective is to reduce reliance on contributions as source of benefit payments As such Plan assets are invested

to maximize the Plans funded ratios over the long-term while managing the downside risk The strategic asset

allocation ranges represent long-term perspective Rapid unanticipated market shifts or changes in economic

conditions may cause the asset mix to fall outside the policy range These divergences should be of relatively

short-term nature unless the circumstances warrant longer term divergence from the permissible ranges The

Company evaluates and rebalances asset allocations as appropriate and reviews the Plan to make sure that the

Plan remains properly funded to protect the benefit security of the participants The Company makes

contributions that are sufficient to fully fund its actuarially determined costs generally exceeding the minimum

amounts required by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act

Savings and Profit Sharing PlansAll U.S full-time part-time and certain temporary employees of the

Company are eligible to participate in The PMI Group Inc Savings and Profit-Sharing Plan 401k Plan

Eligible employees who participate in the 401k Plan may receive within certain limits matching Company

contributions The Company contributions recognized as expense were $0.9 million for 2008 $2.1 million for

2007 and $3.3 million for 2006 Contract underwriters are covered under The PMI Group Inc Alternate 401k

155



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Plan under which there are no matching Company contributions In addition to the 401k Plan the Company
has an officers deferred compensation plan available to certain employees The obligation related to the deferred

compensation plan was $7.4 million and $17.7 million as of December 31 2008 and 2007 respectively and is

included in other liabilities and accrued expenses

NOTE 17 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Equity Incentive PlanThe PMI Groups Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan the Equity
Incentive Plan provides for awards of both non-qualified stock options and incentive stock options nonvested

shares stock appreciation rights subject to forfeiture and restrictions on transfer and performance awards

entitling the recipient to receive cash or common shares in the future following the attainment of performance

goals determined by the Board of Directors Stock options are granted with an exercise price equal to the market

value on the date of grant and generally expire ten years from the grant date and have three-year vesting

period The Equity Incentive Plan provides for the granting of nonvested shares to officers and key employees
Nonvested shares issued under the Equity Incentive Plan to date generally vest annually between two to four

years and holders are entitled to dividends and voting rights Under the Equity Incentive Plan non-employee
directors receive quarterly non-discretionary grants of stock units with an initial value of $25000 The number

of units granted depends on the fair market value of the Companys common shares on the grant date but each

stock unit has an initial value equal to the fair market value of one common share on the grant date

Non-employee director
grants of stock units vest on the earlier of the fifth anniversary of the applicable grant

date and termination of board service

Employee Stock Purchase PlanThe PMI Group Inc Employee Stock Purchase Plan ESPP allows

eligible employees to purchase shares of the Companys stock at 15% discount to fair market value as

determined by the plan The ESPP offers participants the 15% discount to current fair market value or fair market

value with look-back provision of the lesser of the duration an employee has participated in the ESPP or two

years Based on the features of the ESPP it is considered compensatory according to the provisions of SFAS
No 123R Under the ESPP the Company issued 470671 treasury shares in 2008 151953 treasury shares in

2007 and 128467 treasury shares in 2006 SFAS No 123R requires expense recognition of the amount of the

discount to current fair value of ESPP shares purchased by employees

Impact of SFAS No 123RThe Company has recognized compensation expense for all awards granted

based on the estimated grant date fair value method using the Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine

the fair value of stock options and ESPP shares For stock options ccimpensation expense is recognized using the

accelerated amortization method The determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards on the date

of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by the Companys share price as well as assumptions regarding

number of complex and subjective variables These variables include the Companys expected share price

volatility over the expected term of the awards actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors

risk-free interest rates and expected dividends

As SFAS No 123R requires that share-based compensation expense be based on awards that are ultimately

expected to vest share-based compensation for the year ended December 31 2007 has been reduced for

estimated forfeitures The Company is required to estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise those

estimates in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates The Company uses historical

data to estimate pre-vesting forfeitures and record share-based compensation expense only for those awards that

are expected to vest

SFAS No 23R requires cash flows resulting from gross excess tax benefits to be classified as part of cash

flows from financing activities Excess tax benefits are realized tax benefits from tax deductions for exercised
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options in excess of the deferred tax asset attributable to share compensation costs for such options Cash

received from option exercises and the ESPP for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 was $1.6

million $27.3 million and $41.6 million respectively The actual tax benefit realized for the tax deductions from

option exercise of the share-based payment arrangements totaled $0.0 million $7.0 million and $6.2 million

respectively

The Company recognized share-based compensation expense of $8.8 million pre-tax $16.1 million pre

tax and $12.2 million pre-tax for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006 respectively As of

December 31 2008 there was approximately $4.6 million of unrecognized compensation cost adjusted for

estimated forfeitures related to non-vested share-based payments granted to employees This unrecognized

expense
is expected to be recognized over weighted average period of 1.2 years Total unrecognized

compensation cost will be adjusted for future changes in estimated forfeitures

Valuation AssumptionsThe fair value of share options granted to employees is estimated on the date of

the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model This option pricing model was developed to estimate the

fair value of freely tradable and fully transferable options without vesting restrictions which differ from the

Companys stock option program The model also requires considerable judgment including assumptions

regarding future share price volatility and expected time to exercise which greatly affect the calculated value of

stock option grants

The Company aggregates similar groups
of employees with respect to exercise and post-vesting

employment-termination behaviors for its option pricing model assumption estimation process The Company

estimates the expected term of options granted by analyzing historical exercise and post-vesting behavior of

employees for similar stock option grants Expected volatility is estimated using the historical volatility of the

common stock over the expected term of the options If new or different information that would be useful in

estimating expected volatility becomes available the Company may incorporate that information into future

estimates The Company considers expected changes of future dividend policy for selection of expected

dividends The risk-free interest rate that the Company uses in the option pricing model is based on the U.S

Treasury zero-coupon yield curve with remaining terms similar to the expected terms on the options

The fair value of each stock option grant is estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option

pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Expected volatility
76.5% 22.9% 28.8%

Expected dividends 0.95% 0.48% 0.49%

Expected term in years
3.8 4.2 4.3

Risk-free rates
2.12% 4.59% 4.40%

Since the Companys restricted stock units do not participate in dividends during their vesting period their

fair value is determined using the closing price of the Companys stock on the date of grant less the present value

of anticipated dividends over the vesting period The discount rate used is the risk-free rate as of the date of grant

of 2.12%
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connectivity with our customers and more generally in e-commerce and technology Because of capital

constraints we may reduce costs by among other things decreasing the level of resources devoted to

e-commerce and technology upgrades Our business may suffer if we do not keep pace
with the technological

demands of our customers and the technological capabilities of our competitors

Regulatory and Litigation Risk

The U.S mortgage insurance industry and PMI are subject to litigation risk

The mortgage insurance industry and PMI face litigation risk in the ordinary course of operations including

the risk of class action lawsuits In recent years mortgage insurers including PMI have been involved in

litigation with policyholders regarding the rescission of mortgage insurance coverage on individual loans under

the terms of the insurers master policies where the mortgage insurers discovered misrepresentations by for

example borrower lender or an agent of the lender In 2008 as result of significant increase in the volume

of defaults on loans we insure we are reviewing and investigating larger volume of insured loans for fraud

negligence negligent underwriting and eligibility for coverage which has resulted in substantial increase in the

number of policy rescissions See Item lB7 BusinessU.S Mortgage Insurance OperationsDefaults and

ClaimsDefaults We believe the rise in the numbers of rescissions heightens the risk of litigation concerning

our rescission decisions

On January 15 2009 Bayview Loan Servicing LLC Bayview filed complaint against PMI Mortgage

Insurance Co PMI in California state court in Contra Costa County The complaint alleges that PMI

improperly rescinded mortgage insurance coverage on 39 loans which Bayview acquired from PMIs insured

Alliance Bancorp and alleges damages of at least $10 million PMI does not believe that Bayviews allegations

have merit and intends to defend the action vigorously

On August 28 2008 PMI Mortgage Insurance Co PMI rescinded coverage on 5565 loans that

IndyMac Bank delivered to PMI for coverage in 2007 under lender paid mortgage insurance program On

September 12 2008 IndyMac Federal Bank FSB IndyMac by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

FDIC as Conservator filed complaint against PMI in the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California alleging that PMI improperly rescinded mortgage insurance coverage on the 5565 loans

The complaint seeks declaratory and injunctive relief and requests damages against PMI in an unspecified

amount for breach of contract tortuous breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing and

reformation Thereafter on October 31 2008 IndyMac by the FDIC as Conservator filed an amended

complaint which included allegations related to PMIs rescission of coverage on certain additional ineligible

interest-only loans rescinded on October 2008 and on January 2009 filed second amended complaint

adding additional allegations including allegations related to the FDIC rights and powers as conservator

receiver Trial in the matter is set for January 11 2010 PMI filed an answer to the second amended complaint on

February 26 2009 PMI does not believe that the FDIC s/IndyMac allegations have merit and intends to defend

the action vigorously

As we continue to review our insured loan portfolios we may rescind more insurance policies in the future

Such rescissions may lead to an increase in litigation by lenders and policyholders asserting claims challenging

our right to rescind such policies Such litigation is likely to be costly even if we are successful in defending

against such claims In addition as result of these rescissions we may have reduced our loss reserves and/or

risk in force for the corresponding policies If we are unsuccessful in defending these rescissions in legal actions

we may need to re-establish loss reserves for and reassume the risk on such rescinded policies which could

harm our results of operations

Litigation relating to capital markets transactions and securities-related matters in general has increased and

is expected to continue to increase as result of the deterioration of the capital credit housing and mortgage

markets In March 2008 we and certain of our executive officers were named in securities class action
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complaints filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of California In April 2008 we and

certain of our executive officers and directors were named in two shareholder derivative suits Both of the

derivative suits assert various acts and/or omissions against the defendants Both actions have been stayed by

stipulation of the parties
and court orders based on the stipulations

until completion of the motion to dismiss

phase of the securities litigation referenced above We continue to believe that we have meritorious defenses to

these lawsuits and intend to defend ourselves vigorously See Item Legal Proceedings

Consumers are also bringing growing number of lawsuits against home mortgage lenders and settlement

service providers Mortgage insurers including PMI have been involved in litigation alleging violations of

RESPA and FCRA In the past number of lawsuits have challenged the actions of private mortgage insurers

including PMI under RESPA alleging that the insurers have provided products or services at improperly

reduced prices in return for the referral of mortgage insurance RESPA precludes PMI from providing services or

products to mortgage lenders free of charge charging fees for services that are lower than their reasonable or fair

market value and paying fees for services that others provide that are higher than their reasonable or fair market

value in exchange for the referral of settlement services

We cannot predict whether actions of the types described herein or other actions will be brought against us

or other mortgage insurers in the future Any such proceedings could have an adverse effect on our consolidated

financial position results of operations or cash flows

The U.S mortgage insurance industiy and PMI are subject to regulatory risk and have been subject to

increased scrutiny by insurance and other regulatory authorities

PMI and the mortgage insurance industry are subject to comprehensive detailed regulation by state

insurance departments whose primary goal is to safeguard insurers solvency for the protection of policyholders

Although their scope varies state insurance laws generally grant broad powers to supervisory agencies and

officials to examine and investigate insurance companies and to enforce rules or exercise discretion touching

almost every aspect of PMIs business

We have been subject to increased scrutiny by the Department of Insurance of the State of Arizona and

other state insurance regulatory authorities as result of our substantial losses in recent periods and the decrease

in our statutory capital State insurance regulatory authoritiescould take actions restricting our ability to conduct

business if among other things they were to determine that PMI were in hazardous financial condition Such

regulatory actions could limit our flexibility adversely affect our operating results and result in an event of

default under our credit facility

In addition the insurance industry has become the focus of increased scrutiny by regulatory
and law

enforcement authorities concerning certain practices including captive reinsurance arrangements PMI continues

to respond to requests from the Minnesota Department of Commerce and the Office of Inspector
General

OIG of the U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development HUD for information regarding its

captive reinsurance arrangements among other matters We cannot predict whether the Minnesota Department of

Commerce and the HUD OIG administrative subpoenas will lead to further inquiries or investigations of these

matters or the scope timing or outcome of any inquiry or actions by those Departments or any inquiry or actions

that may be commenced by state insurance departments attorneys general or other regulators

As result of the deterioration of the housing and mortgage markets in the U.S regulatory oversight of our

insurance subsidiaries may significantly increase in the future Increased federal or state regulatory scrutiny

could lead to new legal precedents new regulations or new practices or regulatory actions or investigations

which could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operation

Changes to the risk-based capital rules applicable to the GSEs could cause PMIs business to suffer

The FHFA the agency which currently regulates the GSEs has risk-based capital rules that prescribe

treatment of credit enhancement issued by private mortgage insurers and provides capital guidelines for the USEs
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Year Ended December 312007

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Operations Guaranty and Other Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Premiums earned 800937 14446 57 815440

Net investment income 110355 10848 11349 132552

Net realized investment gains losses 4587 164 9437 13860

Impairment of unconsolidated subsidiary 38499 38499
Net loss from credit default swaps 14447 14447
Other income loss 85 114 14308 14279

Total revenues expenses 915964 10569 38499 35151 923185

Losses and expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 1096093 26805 1122898
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition

costs 84214 3469 87683

Other underwriting and operating expenses 95557 18104 79256 192917

Interest expense 108 33283 33391

Total losses and expenses 1275972 48378 112539 1436889

Loss before equity in earnings losses from

unconsolidated subsidiaries and income

taxes 360008 37809 38499 77388 513704
Equity in earnings losses from

unconsolidated subsidiaries 17119 758833 214 741500

Loss from continuing operations before

income taxes 342889 37809 797332 77174 1255204
Income tax benefit from continuing

operations 152073 2529 62576 29344 246522

Loss from continuing operations 190816 35280 734756 47830 1008682
Income from discontinued operations net

of taxes 90270 3086 93356

Net loss income 190816 54990 $731670 47830 915326
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

Year Ended December 31 2006

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Operations Guaranty and Other Total

Dollars in thousands

Revenues

Premiums earned $687993 21474 65 $709532

Net investment income 105893 9803 22098 137794

Net realized investment gains losses 3789 1164 4635 318

Net gain from credit default swaps 7431 7431

Other loss income 69 188 13526 13269

Total revenues 797606 39684 31054 868344

Losses and expenses

Losses and loss adjustment expense
263037 3238 266273

Amortization of deferred policy acquisition

costs 51979 1145 53124

Other underwriting and operating expenses 100569 11626 93753 205948

Interest expense
37928 37930

Total losses and expenses 415587 16009 131679 563275

Income loss before equity in earnings losses

from unconsolidated subsidiaries 382019 23675 100625 305069

Equity in earnings losses from unconsolidated

subsidiaries 20308 107213 212 127309

Income loss from continuing operations before

income taxes 402327 23675 107213 100837 432378

Income tax expense benefit from continuing

operations
112010 9446 10559 29399 102616

Income loss from continuing operations 290317 14229 96654 71438 329762

Income from discontinued operations net of

taxes 89284 605 89889

Net income loss $290317 $103513 97259 71438 $419651
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContjnued

December 31 2008

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Operations Guaranty and Other Total

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and investments at fair value $3184751 $264322 255835 $3704908
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 135082 15295 150377

Reinsurance recoverables 482678 482678
Deferred policy acquisition costs 32317 2474 34791

Property equipment and software net of

accumulated depreciation and amortization 54230 948 76033 131211
Other assets liabilities 262166 14424 70696 26852 320434

Total assets $4151224 $282168 $70696 320311 $4824399

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment

expenses $2624504 84782 $2709286
Unearned premiums 86187 25449 20 111656
Debt 481764 481764
Other liabilities assets 190348 78436 25316 243468

Total liabilities 2901039 188667 456468 3546174
Shareholders equity deficit 1250185 93501 70696 136157 1278225

Total liabilities and shareholders

equity $4151224 $282168 $70696 320311 $4824399
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

December 312007

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance International Financial Corporate Consolidated

Operations Operations Guaranty and Other Total

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and investments at fair value $2155173 327955 $201632 107028 $2791788
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 131225 163661 14914 309800
Reinsurance recoverables 35930 987 36917
Deferred policy acquisition costs 10474 3921 3910 18305

Property equipment and software net of

accumulated depreciation and

amortization 75884 2095 187 79142 157308

Other assets 188018 12174 52918 49657 302767

Assetsdiscontinued operationsheld for

sale 1453555 1453555

Total assets $2596704 $1800687 $422308 250741 $5070440

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and loss adjustment

expenses $1133080 41579 2650 $1177309
Unearned premiums 107200 22983 6709 29 136921

Debt 50000 446593 496593
Other liabilities assets 129246 46652 2892 515 178275

Liabilitiesdiscontinued operationsheld for

sale 568380 568380

Total liabilities 1369526 679594 62251 446107 2557478
Shareholders equity deficit 1227178 1121093 360057 195366 2512962

Total liabilities and shareholders

equity $2596704 $1800687 $422308 250741 $5070440

163



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

NOTE 19 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the third quarter of 2008 PM Australia PM Asia and PM Guaranty were reported as discontinued

operations As result the Company classifies the assets and liabilities of PMI Australia and PM Asia as

discontinued operations for all periods presented The assets and liabilities of PM Guaranty which were

disposed
of other than by sale are classified in the consolidated balance sheet according to their nature In

addition where applicable the notes to the consolidated financial statements have been restated to reflect these

discontinued operations for all periods presented summary of the composition of operating results included in

discontinued operations is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

PM Australia 51114 $80005 $84539

PM Asia 10435 10265 4745

PM Guaranty 24120 3086 605

Income from discontinued operations 37429 $93356 $89889

Loss from sale of discontinued operations net of taxes 78749

Total loss income from discontinued operations $41320 $93356 $89889

Summarized below are the overall operating components for each entity as well as certain asset and liability

information

Sale of PMI AustralkiOn October 22 2008 the Company sold PM Australia to third party As result

of the sale the Company classified the operations and assets and liabilities of PM Australia as discontinued

operations for all periods presented The Company received approximately $746 million in cash including

certain adjustments for pre-completion interest and changes in the value of PMI Australias investment portfolio

and note receivable in the principal amount of approximately $187 million from the sale of PMI Australia The

Company recorded loss on the sale primarily due to the contingent nature of the note which cannot currently be

recognized and selling and other costs including $46.5 million reinsurance premium associated with the

transaction which was partially offset by net realized gain of $124.1 million from realization of accumulated

currency
translation gains in accumulated other comprehensive income
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THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The following table represents PMI Australias results of operations which were recorded as discontinued

operations and loss on the impairment of PMI Australia

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Premiums earned $151018 $167106 $145393

Net investment income 68178 72501 54741

Other loss income 28391 1139 1879

Total revenues 190805 240746 202013

Losses and loss adjustment expenses 73296 77500 36310

Other underwriting and operating expenses 44105 48632 44870

Income before income taxes from discontinued operations 73404 114614 120833

Income tax expense 22290 34609 36294

Income from discontinued operations 51114 80005 84539

Loss from sale of discontinued operations net of taxes 64567

Total loss income from discontinued operations 13453 80005 84539

The following is summary as of December 31 2007 of the assets and liabilities of PMI Australia held for

sale and included under the captions Assets discontinued operations and Liabilities discontinued

operations on the Companys consolidated balance sheet

December 31 2007

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and investments at fair value $1294688

Premiums receivable and other assets 84070

Total assets $1378758

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and LAE 65060

Unearned premiums 452743

Other liabilities 27159

Total liabilities 544962

Sale of PMI AsiaOn December 17 2008 the Company completed the sale of PMI Asia and received

approximately $51.6 million in cash equal to 92.5% of PMI Asias book value as of June 30 2008 The Company

classified the operations assets and liabilities of PMI Asia as discontinued operations for all periods presented

165



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The following table represents PMI Asias results of operations which were recorded as discontinued

operations and the loss from the impairment of PMI Asia

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Total revenues 15147 $13669 $6902

Losses loss adjustment expenses and other underwriting and operating

expenses 3339 1946 1150

Income before income taxes from

discontinued operations 11808 11723 5752

Income tax expense 1373 1458 1007

Income from discontinued operations 10435 $10265 $4745

Loss from sale of discontinued operations net of taxes 14182

Total loss income from discontinued operations 3747 $10265 $4745

The following is summary as of December 31 2007 of the assets and liabilities of PMI Asia held for sale

and included under the captions Assets discontinued operations and Liabilities discontinued operations

on the Companys consolidated balance sheet

December 31 2007

Dollars in thousands

Assets

Cash and investments at fair value $70587

Premiums receivable and other assets 4210

Total assets $74797

Liabilities

Reserve for losses and LAE 230

Unearned premiums 21583

Other liabilities 1605

Total liabilities $23418

Discontinued Operations of PMI GuarantyPMI Guaranty has completed its runoff activities and is

reported as discontinued operations in the Financial Guaranty segment and in the consolidated statement of

operations for all periods presented As of December 31 2008 upon receiving regulatory approval PMI

Guarantys remaining assets and liabilities were merged into U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

166



THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The results of operations of PM Guaranty are as follows for the years ended

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Total revenues 2380 $10488 $2038

Losses and LAE 29856 2649

Other underwriting and operating expenses 11440 6388 1286

Loss income before income taxes from discontinued operations 38916 1451 752

Income tax benefit expense 14796 1635 147

Total loss income from discontinued operations $24120 3086 605

NOTE 20 STATUTORY ACCOUNTING

The Companys domestic insurance subsidiaries prepare statutory-basis financial statements in accordance

with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by their respective states department of insurance which is

comprehensive basis of accounting other than GAAP

The following table presents PMIs statutory net loss income statutory surplus and contingency reserve

liability as of and for the years ended as follows

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

Statutory net loss income 748164 295751 315137

Statutory surplus 585801 581985 619460

Contingency reserve liability $1056223 $2341956 $2738358

Under the insurance laws of the State of Arizona and several other states mortgage insurers are required to

establish special contingency reserve included in total liabilities with annual additions equal to 50% of

premiums earned for that year During 2008 PMI contributed $410.4 million to the reserve This reserve is

required to be maintained for period of 120 months to protect against the effects of adverse economic cycles

After 120 months the reserve is released to unassigned funds In the event an insurers loss ratio in any calendar

year
exceeds 35% however the insurer may withdraw from its contingency reserves an amount equal to the

excess portion of such losses The Company withdrew $1.7 billion from its contingency reserves predominantly

due to actual losses exceeding 35% of the corresponding earned premiums

NOTE 21 CAPITAL SUPPORT AGREEMENTS

PM has capital support agreement with PMI Europe with corresponding guarantee from The PMI

Group under which PMI may be required to make additional capital contributions from time-to-time as

necessary to maintain PM Europes minimum capital requirements PMI also has capital support agreement

whereby it agreed to contribute funds under specified conditions to maintain CMG Mls risk-to-capital ratio at

or below 19.0 to PM obligation under the CMG MI capital support agreement is limited to an aggregate of

$37.7 million As of December 31 2008 CMG MIs risk-to-capital ratio was 16.2 to

PMI also has capital support agreement with PMI Canada Because the Company terminated its Canadian

operations in PMI Canada we believe it is unlikely that there is any remaining material support obligation under

the PMI Canada capital support agreement
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THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

On October 27 1994 Allstate Support Agreements were terminated with respect to policies issued after

October 27 1994 but continue in modified form as so modified the Runoff Support Agreement for policies

written prior to such termination Under the terms of the Runoff Support Agreement Allstate may at its option

either directly pay or cause to be paid claims relating to policies written during the terms of the respective

Allstate Support Agreements if PMI fails to pay such claims or in lieu thereof make contributions directly to

PMI or The PMI Group In the event any amounts are paid or contributed the likelihood of which management

believes is remote Allstate would receive subordinated debt or preferred stock of PMI or The PMI Group in

return No payment obligations have arisen under the Runoff Support Agreement As of December 31 2008 less

than $235 million of risk in force was subject to the Runoff Support Agreement

NOTE 22 QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION UNAUDITED

summary of selected quarterly results follows

2008 First Second Third Fourth Year

Dollars in thousands expect per share data

Continuing operations

Revenues 23 231781 259564 225461 190981 907787

Net loss $305916 $250970 $149309 $180993 887188
Basic EPS 3.77 3.09 1.83 2.22 10.90
Diluted EPS 3.77 3.09 1.83 2.22 10.90

Discontinued operations

Revenues2 84851 71763 38765 12954 208333

Net income 31952 4684 386 407 37429

Basic EPS 0.40 0.06 0.46

Diluted EPS 0.40 0.06 0.46

Loss gain on sale of discontinued operations

Loss gain on sale of PMI Australia and PMI

Asia 80490 1741 78749
Basic EPS 0.98 0.03 0.96

Diluted EPS 0.98 0.03 0.96

Total operations

Revenues 316632 331327 264226 203935 $1116120

Net loss $273964 $246286 $229413 $178845 928508
Basic EPS 3.37 3.03 2.81 2.19 11.40

DilutedEPS 3.37 3.03 2.81 2.19 11.40
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THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

2007 First Second Third Fourth Year

Dollars in thousands expect per share data

Continuing operations

Revenues $236719 $237295 240681 208490 923185

Net income loss 80615 55641 $1 10635 $1034303 $1008682

BasicEPS 0.92 0.65 1.32 12.76 11.92

Diluted EPS 0.92 0.63 1.32 12.76 11.92

Discontinued operations

Revenues 58500 63057 69622 73724 264903

Net income 21418 28192 23862 19884 93356

Basic EPS 0.25 0.32 0.28 0.25 1.11

Diluted EPS 0.24 0.32 0.28 0.25 1.11

Total operations

Revenues $295219 $300352 310303 282214 1188088

Net income loss $102033 83833 86773 $1014419 915326

Basic EPS 1.17 0.97 1.04 12.51 10.81

Diluted EPS 1.16 0.95 1.04 12.51 10.81

Due to the use of weighted average shares outstanding when calculating earnings per share the sum of the

quarterly per share data may not equal the per share data for the year

The revenues do not include equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries

Revenues from continuing operations include interest income on surplus note with PMI Guaranty which is

classified as discontinued operations

NOTE 23 COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following table shows the components of other comprehensive loss income for the years
ended

December 31 2008 and 2007

2008 2007

Dollars in thousands

Unrealized gains on investments

Total change in unrealized gains arising during the year net of tax benefit 136326 61258

Less realized investment losses net of tax benefit 34553 679

Change in unrealized gains arising during the year net of tax benefit of $54581

and $26501 respectively
101773 61937

Defined benefit pension plans

Current year
actuarial loss 24466 1357

Recognition of actuarial loss 10190 301

Current year prior service credit 7706

Recognition of prior service credit 4184 627
Other 1867 2147

Defined benefit pension plans net of tax benefit of $12236 and $5389
respectively

16593 3876

Accretion of cash flow hedges net of tax expense of $214 and $214 respectively 398 398

Foreign currency translation adjustments

Total change in unrealized gains on foreign currency translation 357141 108660

Less realized foreign currency
translation gains 124353

Change in unrealized gains on foreign currency
translation 232788 108660

Other comprehensive loss income $350756 50997
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

The changes in unrealized gains/losses in 2008 were primarily due to widening market spreads principally in

the U.S The changes in foreign currency translation adjustments for 2008 were due primarily to the recognition

of approximately $124.4 million of accumulated currency translation gains in connection with the sale of PMI

Australia and PMI Asia

The following table shows the accumulated balances for each component of accumulated other

comprehensive loss income for the years ended December 31 2008 and 2007

Unrealized Foreign

gains Accretion of Currency

losses on Defined benefit cash flow translation

investments plans hedges gains Total

Dollars in thousands

Balance January 2006 98595 1154 $5748 172387 264080

Current period change 61937 3876 398 108660 50997

Balance December 31 2007 36658 2722 5350 281047 315077
Current period change 101773 16593 398 232788 350756

Balance December 31 2008 65115 $13871 $4952 48259 35679

NOTE 24 EXIT AND DISPOSAL ACTIVITIES

In 2008 the Company undertook initiatives to reduce and manage its
expenses to focus on its core U.S

mortgage insurance business The following table provides reconciliation of exit and disposal expenses

included in other underwriting expenses by operating segment in 2008

U.S

Mortgage
Insurance International Consolidated

Operations Operations Total

Dollars in thousands

Balance at January 2008 299 299

Exit costs incurred

Severance 3127 8566 11693

Fringe benefits 2561 326 2887

Lease termination costs 649 320 969

Legal costs 290 173 463

Other

Total incurred 6632 9385 16017

Exit costs payments

Severance 354 6440 6794
Fringe benefits 3640 3640
Lease termination costs 300 170 470
Other 294 294

Total payments 4588 6610 11198

Balance at December 31 2008 2343 2775 5118

The expenses in the U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations segment are primarily payroll and related expenses

from reduction in force due to both involuntary terminations and the Voluntary Early Retirement Program the

Program in the fourth quarter of 2008 The expenses in the International Operations segment are primarily

due to reductions in force from the closure of PMI Canadas office in Toronto and reconfiguration of PMI

Europe
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSContinued

NOTE 25 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company is actively engaged in discussions with the lenders under its revolving credit facility to amend

the financial covenants and certain events of default under its revolving credit facility Pending negotiation and

execution of an amendment to the credit facility the lenders under the credit facility have agreed to suspend the

financial strength ratings event of default reduce the minimum Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth requirement

from $1.5 billion to $1.2 billion and increase the maximum PMI risk-to-capital ratio requirement to 24.0 to

through April 15 2009 As part of this agreement the Company has agreed not to borrow additional amounts

under the facility or contribute additional capital to its subsidiaries unless and until it is in compliance with these

ratings Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth and risk-to-capital ratio provisions as they were set forth in the credit

facility prior to their suspension The Company cannot be sure that it will complete an amendment to the credit

agreement on terms acceptable to the Company prior to the expiration of this temporary suspension or at all The

Company currently has sufficient liquidity at its holding company to repay
the credit facility in the event it no

longer complies with its terms or in the event of potential cross-default under its senior notes

PMI Europe is required to post collateral for the benefit of the counterparty under the terms of certain credit

default swap and reinsurance transactions it has concluded As of March 15 2009 PMI Europe posted collateral

of $64.2 million on credit default swap transactions and $53.7 million related to U.S sub-prime related

reinsurance transactions
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ITEM 9A CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresBased on their evaluation as of December 31 2008

our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that as of the end of the period

covered by this report our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15e and l5d-15e under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 were effective

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportingManagements report is

contained in Item of this report

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial ReportingThere were no changes in our internal control

over financial reporting that occurred during our most recent fiscal quarter that have materially affected or are

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting
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PART III

ITEM 10 DIRECTORS EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information concerning The PMI Groups directors including audit committee financial experts as

well as certain other information concerning our executive officers as required by this Item is incorporated by

reference from The PM Groups Proxy Statement for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the

captions Nominees For Director of The PM Group Section 16a Beneficial Ownership Reporting

Compliance and Corporate Governance Information regarding Executive Officers of The PM Group is

included in separate item captioned Executive Officers of Registrant in Part of this report which is

incorporated by reference herein

The PM Group has adopted Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers that applies to The PM Groups

principal executive officer principal financial officer and principal accounting officer and controller The Code

of Fthics is available on The PMI Groups website address at http//www.pmi-us.com and is available in print to

any stockholder who requests it The PM Group intends to disclose any amendment to or waiver from

provision of the Code of Ethics by posting such information on its website

Certain other documents relating to The PMI Groups corporate governance including the Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics which is applicable to The PM Groups directors officers and employees the Board of

Directors Guidelines on Significant Corporate Governance ssues and the charters of the Audit Committee

Compensation Committee and Governance and Nominating Committee of The PM Group Board of Directors

are available on The PM Groups website address at http//www.pmi-us.com 2008 we submitted to the New

York Stock Exchange the Annual CEO Certification required pursuant to Section 303A 12A of the NYSEs

Listed Company Manual

ITEM 11 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Groups Proxy Statement

for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions Directors Compensation and Benefits

Executive Compensation and Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

ITEM 12 SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND

RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Groups Proxy Statement

for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial

Owners and Management and Executive CompensationEquity Compensation Plan Information

ITEM 13 CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELA TED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR

INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PM Groups Proxy Statement

for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions Compensation Committee Interlocks and

Insider Participation Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Corporate Governance

ITEM 14 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from The PMI Groups Proxy Statement

for its 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under Ratification of Appointment of ndependent Registered

Public Accounting Firm
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PART IV

ITEM 15 EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements The following financial statements are included in Item

Managements Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal Control Over Financial

Reporting

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 2008 and 2007

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and

2006

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules The financial statement schedules listed below immediately precede

the Index to Exhibits and are filed as part of this Form 10-K All other schedules are omitted because

of the absence of conditions under which they are required or because the required information is

included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto

Schedule II Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Schedule III Supplementary Insurance Information

Schedule IV Reinsurance

Exhibits Exhibits listed in the accompanying Index to Exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the

registrant has duly caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized in the City of Walnut Creek State of California on the 16th day of March 2009

THE PMI GROUP INC

BY Is STEPHEN SMITH

Stephen Smith

Chief Executive Officer
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THE PMI GROUP INC

SCHEDULE 11CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

PARENT COMPANY ONLY

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

In thousands

REVENUES

Losses earnings from wholly-owned subsidiaries Note $839999 $163575 $353179

Investment income 9304 10394 21290

Net realized investment gains losses 91871 29062 4635

Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123595

Other loss income 1206 25

Total revenues 798971 183449 369859

EXPENSES

Underwriting and operating expenses
28633 41360 44856

Net costs to exchange and extinguish long-term debt 2044

Interest expense
40918 33283 37928

Total expenses 69551 74643 84828

Loss income before equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated

subsidiaries and income taxes 868522 258092 285031

Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 51802 741500 127309

Loss income before income tax benefit 920324 999592 412340

Income tax benefit 5998 84266 7311

Loss income from continuing operations net of tax 914326 915326 419651

Loss on sale of discontinued operations net of tax 14182

NET LOSS INCOME $928508 $915326 $419651

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements
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THE PM GROUP INC

SCHEDULE IlCONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

PARENT COMPANY ONLY

As of December 31

2008 2007

Dollars in thousands except per share data

ASSETS

Fixed income securities available-for-sale at fair value

amortized cost of $131493 and $38427 122443 38457

Equity securitiescommon stock 1242

Total investments 122443 39699
Cash and cash equivalents 113484 38732

Investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries 1318396 2502316
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 150377 309800

Other assets 76077 142746

Total assets 1780777 3033293

LIABILITIES

Long-term debt 481764 496593

Other liabilities 20788 23738

Total liabilities 502552 520331

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Preferred stock$0.01 par value 5000000 shares authorized none

issued or outstanding

Common stock$0.01 par value 250000000 shares authorized

119313767 shares issued 81687583 and 81120144 shares

outstanding 1193 1193

Additional paid-in capital 892213 890598

Treasury stock at cost 37626184 and 38193623 shares 1341037 1354601
Retained earnings 1761535 2660695
Accumulated other comprehensive loss income net of deferred taxes 35679 315077

Total shareholders equity 1278225 2512962

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 1780777 3033293

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Companyonly condensed financial statements
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THE PMI GROUP INC

SCHEDULE IlCONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS
PARENT COMPANY ONLY

Year ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousands

NET LOSS INCOME 928508 $915326 $419651

Change in unrealized gains on investments net of deferred tax benefit

expense
of $54581 $26501 and $497 respectively 101773 61937 2840

Net unrealized losses from derivatives designated as cash flow hedges net

of tax
5864

Accretion of cash flow hedges to interest expense
398 398 116

Foreign currency translation adjustment
232788 108660 65400

Pension adjustment including plan amendments net of deferred tax 16593 3876

Other comprehensive loss income net of taxes 350756 50997 56812

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS INCOME $1279264 $864329 $476463

See accompanying supplementary
notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements
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THE PM GROUP INC

SCHEDULE 11CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
PARENT COMPANY ONLY

Year ended December 31

353179
127309

4635

12152

2838
2044

9749
54228

_________ _________ 17391

_________ _________
124003

130390

14184

1782

136624

360000

385993

298768
425338
345000

535000
41728

2838

_________ _________
18045

_________ _________
501592

138949

_________ _________ 279588

________ ________
140639

See accompanying supplementary notes to Parent Company only condensed financial statements

$915 326 $419651

163575

741500

29062

830 2209

16652

4001

53385
2739

24659

48491

2008 2007 2006

Dollars in thousandsCASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss income

$928508
Adjustments to reconcile net loss income to net cash used in operating

activities

Losses earnings from wholly-owned subsidiaries 839999
Equity in losses earnings from unconsolidated subsidiaries 51802
Net realized investment losses

91871
Change in fair value of certain debt instruments 123595
Depreciation and amortization 206
Compensation expense related to stock options and employee stock

purchase plan 8815
Excess tax benefits on the exercise of employee stock options
Net costs to exchange and extinguish long-term debt

Deferred income taxes
32291

Changes in related
party receivables net of payables 47638

Other
26188

_________ _________
Net cash used in operating activities 5669

________ ________
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales and maturities of fixed income securities 1327
Proceeds from sale of equity investment held for sale

Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries net of distributions 278
Investment in subsidiaries 81618
Return of capital 8000
Dividends received from subsidiaries

Purchases of fixed income securities 2336
Purchases of equity securities

Net change in short-term investments
116914

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 74905 144022 486646
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 200000
Net repurchase of senior notes

Repayment and extinguishment of long-term debt net of expenses 45000
Proceeds from issuance of common shares

Purchases of
treasury stock

214996
Proceeds from issuance of treasury stock 31260
Excess tax benefits on the exercise of employee stock options 4001
Dividends paid to shareholders

_________ 17703
_________

_________
197438

_________

101907

________ 140639
________

________ 38732
________

2756

2209

21013

165000

4930

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2777

2451

155326

74752

38732

113484
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THE PMI GROUP INC

SCHEDULE IlCONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

PARENT COMPANY ONLY
SUPPLEMENTARY NOTES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying The PMI Group Inc Parent Company condensed financial statements should be

read in conjunction with Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K The Parent

Companys subsidiaries are presented using the equity method of accounting

Certain items in the prior years financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current years

financial statements presentation

The preparation of the condensed financial statements in conformity with U.S generally accepted

accounting principles GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual

results may differ from those estimates

Investments

The Parent Company classifies its fixed income securities as available-for-sale and as such they are carried

at fair value The amortized cost of fixed income securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and

accretion of discounts to maturity which are included in net investment income net of deferred taxes Changes

in fair value are reported as component of other comprehensive income The Parent Companys investments in

fixed income securities are comprised of corporate bonds and U.S government agency securities

Investments in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Investments in the Parent Companys unconsolidated subsidiaries include both equity investees and other

unconsolidated subsidiaries Investments in equity investees with ownership interests of 20-50% are generally

accounted for using the equity method of accounting and investments of less than 20% ownership interest are

generally accounted for using the cost method of accounting if the Company does not have significant influence

over the entity Limited partnerships with ownership interests greater than 3% but less than 50% are primarily

accounted for using the equity method of accounting The carrying value of the investments in the Parent

Companys unconsolidated subsidiaries also includes the Companys share of net unrealized gains and losses in

the unconsolidated subsidiaries investment portfolios
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Long-Term Debt and Revolving Credit Facility

As of December 31 2008 and 2007 the fair value and carrying value of long-term debt outstanding issued

by The PMI Group was as follows

December 31
December 312008 2007

Principal Amount Fair Value Carrying Value Carrying Value

Dollars in thousands

6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 20161 $250000 $153027 $153027 $250000

6.625% Senior Notes due September 15 2036 150000 77144 77144 150000

Revolving Credit Facility 200000 200000 200000

8.309% Junior Subordinated Debentures due

February 2027 51593 27540 51593 51593

5.568% Senior Notes Due November 15 2008 45000

Total debt $651593 $457711 $481764 $496593

Th fair value and carrying value of the Companys 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes at September 30 2008 include

accrued interest

6.000% and 6.625% Senior NotesIn September 2006 the Company issued $250 million in principal

amount of 6.000% Senior Notes due September 15 2016 and $150 million in principal amount of 6.625% Senior

Notes due September 15 2036 The 6.000% Senior Notes and the 6.625% Senior Notes bear interest at rate of

6.000% and 6.625% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears on March 15 and September 15 of each year

beginning on March 15 2007 The PMI Group may redeem the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes in whole or in

part at any time at the make-whole redemption price The make-whole redemption price will be equal to the

greater of 100% of the principal amount of the 6.000% and 6.625% Senior Notes to be redeemed and the

sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments thereon discounted to the date of redemption on

semi-annual basis assuming 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months at rate equal to the

applicable treasury rate plus 25 basis points for the 6.000% Senior Notes and 35 basis points for the 6.625%

Senior Notes plus in the case of either or any interest accrued but not paid to but excluding the date of

redemption In connection with the issuance of these Senior Notes the Company entered into two interest rate

lock agreements which were designated as cash flow hedges The fair value of the cash flow hedges was settled

for $9.0 million and is amortized into interest expense over the terms of the new senior debt that was issued As

of December 31 2008 the unamortized balance in the other comprehensive income related to these fair value

hedges was approximately $7.6 million pre-tax

Effective January 2008 the COmpany elected to adopt the fair value option presented by SFAS No 159

for the Companys 6.000% Senior Notes and 6.625% Senior Notes SFAS No 159 requires that the difference

between the carrying value before election of the fair value option and the fair value of these instruments be

recorded as an adjustment to beginning retained earnings in the period of adoption See Note 10 Fair Value

Disclosures for further discussion

8.309% Junior Subordinated DebenturesThe Junior Subordinated Debentures bear interest at the rate of

8.309% per annum paid semiannually and mature on February 2027 The Junior Subordinated Debentures are

subordinated to all senior indebtedness of The PMI Group

In considering the initial adoption of the SFAS No 159 the Company determined that the change in fair

value of the 8.309% Junior Subordinated Debentures would not have significant impact on the Companys
consolidated financial results Therefore the Company did not elect to adopt the fair value option for the 8.309%

Junior Subordinated Debentures

5.568% Senior Notes In August 2006 the Company completed the remarketing of approximately $345

million in principal amount of senior notes which matured in November 2008 and are referred to as the 5.568%

Senior Notes As result of the remarketing the annual interest rate on these notes was reset from 3.00%
per
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annum to 5.568% per annum paid quarterly effective from and including August 15 2006 In connection with

the remarketing the Company purchased and cancelled $300.0 million in principal amount of the 5.568% Senior

Notes leaving $45.0 million in principal amount of these notes outstanding after completion of the remarketing

Since the 5.568% Senior Notes were scheduled to mature in 2008 the Company did not elect to adopt the fair

value option for the 5.568% Senior Notes The 5.568% Senior Notes matured and were paid in November 2008

Revolving Credit FacilityThe Company has $250 million revolving credit facility for working capital

capital expenditures and other business purposes The facility includes $50 million letter of credit sub-limit

The revolving credit facility contains certain financial covenants and restrictions including an adjusted

consolidated net worth threshold and risk-to-capital ratio threshold of 20 to There was $200 million

outstanding under the credit facility and one letter of credit for approximately $0.25 million as of December 31

2008

In early 2008 the Company amended its existing revolving credit facility the facility and in May 2008

the Company drew $200 million on the facility The facility includes $50 million letter of credit sub-limit The

facility was reduced to $300 million in the first quarter of 2008 and was further reduced to $250 million on or

about October 22 2008 upon the sale of PMI Australia Pursuant to the terms of the amendment the Companys

ability to borrow under the facility was subject to number of conditions including that the stock of PMI

Mortgage Insurance Co MIC be pledged in favor of the lenders under the facility and noteholders under

certain of the Companys senior notes The amended facility also contains additional restrictions on asset

dispositions and investments While the Company is generally permitted under the amended facility to make

additional investments in MIC and its subsidiaries the Companys ability to invest in its reinsurance subsidiaries

is subject to dollar limitations other than with regard to four of TPG subsidiaries whose capital stock was

pledged to the bank group on or about September 29 2008 In the third quarter of 2008 the Company requested

and received 100% of the lenders consent for the sale of PMI Australia and PMI Asia to third party

Net Realized Investment Gains Losses

Included in the net realized investment gains losses was an $88.0 million impairment of the Parent

Companys investment in FGIC due to continuing deterioration of the credit market and rating agency actions

and $123.6 million gain on the change in fair value of certain of its debt instruments

Dividends from Subsidiaries

During 2008 2007 and 2006 the Parent Company received $0.0 million $165.0 million and $360.0

million respectively of cash dividends

Discontinued Operations

During the third quarter of 2008 the operations of PMI Australia PMI Asia and PMI Guaranty were

reported as discontinued operations As result the assets and liabilities of PMI Australia and PMI Asia have

been presented as discontinued operations for all periods presented in the Companys consolidated financial

statements The assets and liabilities of PMI Guaranty which were disposed of other than by sale are classified in

the consolidated balance sheet according to their nature In addition where applicable the notes to the

consolidated financial statements have been restated to reflect these discontinued operations for all periods

presented

In August 2008 PMI Mortgage Insurance Co entered into definitive agreement to sell its wholly-owned

subsidiary PMI Australia and the Parent Company entered into definitive agreement to sell its wholly-owned

subsidiary PMI Asia The Company recognized an after-tax loss of $64.6 million relating to the sale of PMI

Australia on October 22 2008 and an after-tax loss of $14.2 million on the sale of PMI Asia on December 17

2008 The Company received approximately $51.6 million cash proceeds from the sale of PMI Asia Since these

subsidiaries are reported under the equity method of accounting they are not presented as discontinued

operations
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In 2008 the Parent Company discontinued the operations of its wholly-owned subsidiary PM Guaranty

During the third quarter of 2008 PMI Guaranty paid approximately $100 million of its excess capital and repaid

$50 million surplus note plus $2.2 million of accrued interest to The PMI Group Approximately $144 million

was reinvested in U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations These payments consisted of approximately $137 million

in investment securities plus accrued investment income and $15.3 million in cash and cash equivalents As of

December 31 2008 upon receiving regulatory approval PMI Guarantys remaining assets and liabilities were

merged into U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Subsequent Events

The Parent Company is actively engaged in discussions with the lenders under its revolving credit facility to

amend the financial covenants and certain events of default under its revolving credit facility Pending

negotiation and execution of an amendment to the credit facility the lenders under the credit facility have agreed

to suspend the financial strength ratings event of default reduce the minimum Adjusted Consolidated Net Worth

requirement from $1.5 billion to $1.2 billion and increase the maximum PMI risk-to-capital ratio requirement to

24.0 to through April 15 2009 As part of this agreement the Parent Company has agreed not to borrow

additional amounts under the facility or contribute additional capital to its subsidiaries unless and until it is in

compliance with these ratings Adjusted Parent Consolidated Net Worth and risk-to-capital ratio provisions as

they were set forth in the credit facility prior to their suspension The Parent Company cannot be sure that it will

complete an amendment to the credit agreement on terms acceptable to the Parent Company prior to the

expiration of this temporary suspension or at all The Parent Company currently has sufficient liquidity to repay

the credit facility in the event it no longer complies with its terms or in the event of potential cross-default

under its senior notes
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THE PM GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE IllSUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

As of and for the years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Reserve for

Deferred Losses and Losses and Amortization

Policy Loss Net Net Loss of Deferred Other Equity in

Acquisition Adjustment Unearned Premiums Premiums Investment Adjustment Acquisition Operating losses

Segment Costs Expenses Premiums Written Earned Income Expenses Costs Expenses earnings

Dollars in thousands

2008

U.S.MI $32317 $2624504 86187 $750627 $772173 $115219 $1835720 $15586 $123368 6456

International Operations 2474 84782 25449 18233 13942 12913 63544 2699 39903

Financial Guaranty 57670

Corporate and Other 20 35 44 10245 55312 588

Total $34791 $2709286 $111656 $768895 $786159 $138377 $1899264 $18285 $218583 51802

2007

U.S.MI 10474 1133080 107200 799747 800937 110355 1096093 84214 95557 17119

International Operations 3921 41579 22983 14123 14446 10848 26805 3469 18104

Financial Guaranty 3910 2650 6709 758833

Corporate and Other 29 52 57 11349 79256 214

Total $18305 $1177309 $136921 $813922 $815440 $132552 $1122898 $87683 $192917 $741500

2006

U.S.MI 43523 366182 106445 658576 687993 105893 263037 51979 100569 20308

International Operations 3141 17907 21042 14239 21474 9803 3238 1145 11626

Financial Guaranty 947 1589 107213

Corporate and Other
______ _________

34 56 65 22098 93753 212

Total $47611 384089 $129110 $672871 $709532 $137794 266273 $53124 $205948 127309

Represents U.S Mortgage Insurance Operations

Excludes the results of PMI Australia and PMI Asia due to their classification to discontinued operations in 2008

Excludes the results of PMI Guaranty Co for income statement classification due to its classification to discontinued operations in 2008 The remaining assets and liabilities of PMI

Guaranty continue to be classified as held and used



Premiums Earned

2008

Mortgage Guaranty $964512

2007

Mortgage Guaranty $986591

2006

Mortgage Guaranty $860118

THE PMI GROUP INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE IVREINSURANCE

Years ended December 31 2008 2007 and 2006

Assumed
from Ceded To

Gross Other Other Net

Amount Companies Companies Amount

In thousands except percentages

$12851 $191204 $786159

7657 $178808 $815440

8773 $159359 $709532

Percentage

of Amount
Assumed

to Net

1.63%

0.94%

1.24%
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 to Amendment No

to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i No 33-88542 filed on March 1995

la Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1 to

the registrants quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2002 filed on

August 14 2002 File No 001-13664

lb Certificate Eliminating Reference to Series of Shares of Stock from the Certificate of Incorporation

of The PMI Group Inc filed with the Delaware Secretary of State on January 29 2009

incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.il to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on

January 29 2009 File No 00 1-13664

3.2 The PMI Group Inc Amended and Restated Bylaws effective July 16 2008 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 3.2 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on July 22 2008 File

No 00 1-13664

4.1 Specimen common stock certificate incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 to Amendment No to

the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-l No 33-88542 filed on March 1995

4.2 Junior Subordinated Indenture dated as of February 1997 between The PMI Group Inc and The

Bank of New York Inc as Trustee incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.3 to the registrants

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996 filed on March 31 1997 File

No 001-13664

4.3 Senior Indenture dated as of November 2003 between The PMI Group Inc and The Bank of

New York as trustee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 to the registrants annual report

on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31 2003 filed on March 15 2004 File

No 001-13664

4.3a Form of Senior Note contained in exhibit 4.3

4.4 Supplemental Indenture No dated as of November 2003 between The PMI Group Inc and The

Bank of New York as trustee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.31 to the registrants annual

report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 filed on March 15 2004 File

No 001-13664

4.5 Form of 6.000% Senior Note due 2016 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 filed on November

2006 File No 001-13664

4.6 Form of 6.25% Senior Note due 2036 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 filed on November

2006 File No 001-13664

10.1 The PMI Group Inc Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan Amended September 19 2007

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on

September 25 2007 File No 001-13664

10.la Amendment No effective November 14 2007 to The PMI Group Inc Amended and Restated

Equity Incentive Plan Amended September 19 2007 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.31

to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed on

March 17 2008 File No 001-13664

10 lb Amendment No effective November 20 2008 to The PMI Group Inc Amended and Restated

Equity Incentive Plan Amended September 19 2007

10.2 The PMI Group Inc Directors Deferred Compensation Plan amended and restated as of July 21

1999 incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 to the registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-8 No 333-32190 filed on March 10 2000



Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits

10.2a Amendment No to The PMI Group Inc Directors Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated by

reference to exhibit 0.5A to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on December 20

2004 File No 001-13664

10.3 The PMI Group Inc 2005 Directors Deferred Compensation Plan September 20 2007

Restatement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 to the registrants quarterly report on Form

10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2007 filed on November 2007 File No 00 1-13664

10.3a Amendment No effective February 20 2008 to The PMI Group Inc 2005 Directors Deferred

Compensation Plan September 20 2007 Restatement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3a

to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed on

March 17 2008 File No 00 1-13664

10.3b Amendment No effective November 19 2008 to The PMI Group Inc 2005 Directors Deferred

Compensation Plan September 20 2007 Restatement

10.4 The PMI Group Inc Officer Deferred Compensation Plan effective July 1997 incorporated by

reference to Appendix to the registrants proxy statement filed on April 22 2004 File No 001-

13664

10.4a Amendment No to The PMI Group Inc Officer Deferred Compensation Plan dated December 22

2004 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.21 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K

filed on December 22 2004 File No 00 1-13664

10.4b Amendment No to The PMI Group Inc Officer Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated by

reference to exhibit 4.1 to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-8 filed on

December 2005 File No 333-130103

10.5 The PMI Group Inc 2005 Officer Deferred Compensation Plan September 19 2007 Restatement

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on

September 25 2007 File No 00 1-13664

10.5a Amendment No effective February 20 2008 to The PMI Group Inc 2005 Officer Deferred

Compensation Plan September 19 2007 Restatement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1

to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on February 26 2008 File No 001-13664

10.5b Amendment No effective November 19 2008 to The PMI Group Inc 2005 Officer Deferred

Compensation Plan September 19 2007 Restatement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1

to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008 File No 00 1-13664

10.6 Form of Indemnification Agreement between The PMI Group Inc and certain of its officers and

directors incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants quarterly report on

Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008 filed on August 11 2008 File No 001-13664

10.7 Pre-2008 Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.4 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008 File No 001-

13664

10.8 2008 Form of Change of Control Employment Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.5

to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008 File No 001-13664

l0.8a Form of Amendment to 2008 Change of Control Employment Agreement

10.9 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Employees incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.24 to the

registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on February 23 2005 File No 001-13664

l0.9a Form of Amendment to Stock Option Agreement for Employees incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.5 to the registrants quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2005
filed on August 2005 File No 00 1-13664

10.10 Form of Stock Option Agreement for Directors incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.26 to the

registrants quarterly report on Form l0-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2003 filed on August 14

2003 File No 00 1-13664



Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits

10.11 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.39 to the registrants

current report on Form 8-K filed on May 20 2005 File No 001-13664

10.12 Form of Performance Share Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.37 to the registrants

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 filed on March 15 2004 File

No 001-13664

10.1 3a Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.39 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on October 15 2004 File No 001

13664

10 13b Revised Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Non-Employee Directors effective January 15 2009

10.14 Form of Stock Unit Agreement for Employees incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.35 to the

registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2007 filed on March 17

2008 File No 00 1-13664

10.15 Summary of Compensation Arrangements Applicable to The PM Group Inc Non-Employee

Directors Effective January 2009

10.16 The PM Group Inc Supplemental Employee Retirement Plan Effective April 1995 Amended

and Restated as of September 2007 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4 to the registrants

current report on Form 8-K filed on September 25 2007 File No 001-13664

10.1 6a Amendment No effective November 19 2008 to The PMI Group Inc Supplemental Employee

Retirement Plan Amended and Restated as of September 2007 incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.3 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008 File

No 001-13664

10.17 The PM Group Inc Additional Benefits Plan September 2007 Restatement incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.5 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on September 25

2007 File No 00 1-13664

10 17a Amendment No effective November 19 2008 to The PMI Group Inc Additional Benefits Plan

September 2007 Restatement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants

current report on Form 8-K filed on November 25 2008 File No 001-13664

10.18 The PMI Group Inc Bonus Incentive Plan February 20 2008 Amendment and Restatement

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on

May 20 2008 File No 001-13664

l0.18a Amendment to The PMI Group Inc Bonus Incentive Plan dated February 25 2009 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on March 2009

File No 00 1-13664

10.19 The PMI Group Inc Retirement Plan September 2007 Restatement incorporated by reference to

exhibit 10.7 to the registrants quarterly report on Form lO-Q for the quarter ended September 30

2007 filed on November 2007 File No 001-13664

10 19a Amendment No to The PMI Group Inc Retirement Plan September 2007 Restatement

incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed on

October 27 2008 File No 001-13664

10 19b Amendment No effective November 19 2008 to The PMI Group Inc Retirement Plan

September 2007 Restatement

10.20 The PMI Group Inc Non-employee Director Phantom Stock Plan effective January 15 2009

10.20a Form of Phantom Stock Agreement for Non-Employee Directors

10.21 Form of 1984 Master Policy of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.5 to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i No 33-88542 filed on January 17

1995



Exhibit
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10.22 Form of 1994 Master Policy of PMI Mortgage Insurance Co incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.6 to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i No 33-88542 filed on January 17

1995

10.23 Amended CMG Shareholders Agreement dated as of June 2003 between CUNA Mutual

Investment Corporation and PMI Mortgage Insurance Co incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.8 the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 2003 filed on

March 15 2004 File No 001-13664

10.24 Runoff Support Agreement dated October 28 1994 between Allstate Insurance Company The PMI

Group Inc and PMI Mortgage Insurance Co incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.8 to

Amendment No to the registrants Registration Statement on Form S-i No 33-88542 filed on

March 1995

10.25 Form of Tax Sharing Agreement among The PMI Group Inc The PMI Group Inc.s subsidiaries

The Allstate Corporation Allstate Insurance Company and Sears Roebuck and Co incorporated

by reference to exhibit 10.17 to Amendment No to the registrants Registration Statement on

Form S-i No 33-88542 filed on March 1995

10.26 Fhe Guarantee Agreement dated February 1997 between The PMI Group Inc as Guarantor and

The Bank of New York as Trustee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.29 to the registrants

annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31 1996 filed on March 31 1997 File

No 001-13664

10.27 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement dated as of February 1997 among The PMI Group Inc

as Depositor The Bank of New York as Property Trustee and The Bank of New York

Delaware as Delaware Trustee incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.30 to the registrants

annual report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended December 31 1996 filed on March 31 1997 File

No 001-13664

10.28 Stockholders Agreement dated as of August 2003 among Falcons Acquisition Corp The PMI

Group Inc Blackstone Capital Partners IV L.P Blackstone Capital Partners IV-A L.P and

Blackstone Family Investment Partnership TV-A L.P Cypress Merchant Banking Partners II L.P

Cypress Merchant Banking II C.V Cypress Side-by-Side LLC 55th Street Partners II L.P CIVC/

FGIC Investment Company LLC CIVC Partners Fund III L.P CIVC Partners Fund lilA L.P
and the management investors listed therein and any other management investors who

subsequently become party to the agreement Stockholders Agreement incorporated by

reference to exhibit 99.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on August 2003

File No 00 1-13664

0.28a First Amendment to Stockholders Agreement dated as of December 18 2003 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.26a to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2004 filed on March 11 2005 File No 001-13664

10.28b Second Amendment to Stockholders Agreement dated as of February 24 2004 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.26b to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2004 filed on March 112005 File No 001-13664

i0.28c Third Amendment to Stockholders Agreement dated as of July 14 2Q04 incorporated by reference

to exhibit 0.26c to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31

2004 filed on March 11 2005 File No 00 1-13664

10.28d Fourth Amendment to Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 25 2005 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.26d to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2005 filed on March 14 2006 File No 001-13664

0.28e Fifth Amendment to Stockholders Agreement dated as of January 31 2006 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.26e to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the
year

ended

December 31 2005 filed on March 14 2006 File No 001-13664
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10.29 Equity Commitment Letter dated as of August 2003 signed by The PM Group mc Falcons

Acquisition Corp FGIC Holdings Inc and General Electric Capital Corporation incorporated by

reference to exhibit 99.2 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on August 2003

File No 001-13664

10.30 Form of Note included in Exhibit 4.5

10.31 Form of 6.000% Senior Note due 2016 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 filed on November

2006 File No 001-13664

10.32 Form of 6.25% Senior Note due 2036 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.3 to the registrants

quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30 2006 filed on November

2006 File No 001-13664

10.33 Option Agreement and Contingent Payment Agreement dated August 12 2005 among The PMI

Group Inc Credit Suisse First Boston USA Inc FSA Portfolio Management Inc SPS

Holding Corp Select Portfolio Servicing Inc and Greenrange Partners LLC incorporated by

reference to exhibits 10.1 and 10.2 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on August

16 2005 File No 00 1-13664

lO.33a First Amendment to the Option Agreement and Contingent Payment Agreement dated as of

October 2005 among The PMI Group Inc Credit Suisse First Boston USA Inc FSA

Portfolio Management Inc SPS Holding Corp Select Portfolio Servicing Inc and Greenrange

Partners LLC incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants current report on Form

8-K filed on October 11 2005 File No 00 1-13664

10.34 Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of October 24 2006 among The PM Group Inc as

Borrower Bank of America N.A as Administrative Agent and the Lenders Party thereto

Revolving Credit Agreement incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the registrants

current report on Form 8-K filed on October 30 2006 File No 001-13664

10.34a Amendment No dated as of March 16 2008 to the Revolving Credit Agreement incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.36 to the registrants annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 31 2007 filed on March 17 2008 File No 001-13664

10.34b Amendment No dated as of April 24 2008 to the Revolving Credit Agreement incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.37 to the registrants quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended

June 30 2008 filed on August 11 2008 File No 001-13664

10.34c Amendment No to the Revolving Credit Agreement effective as of March 15 2009

10.35 Shared Collateral Pledge Agreement dated as of April 24 2008 by and between The PMI Group

Inc and U.S Bank National Association as collateral agent incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.38 to the registrants quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008 filed

on August 11 2008 File No 001-13664

10.36 Share Sale Agreement by and among PMI Mortgage Insurance Co QBE Holdings AAP Pty

Limited and QBE Insurance Group Limited dated as of August 14 2008 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed August 15 2008 file

number 001-13664

10.36a Amendment Agreement by and among PMI Mortgage Insurance Co QBE Holdings AAP Pty

Limited and QBE Insurance Group Limited dated as of August 29 2008 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 10.2 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed September 2008

File No 00 1-13664

10.36b Second Amendment Agreement by and among PMI Mortgage Insurance Co QBE Holdings AAP
Pty Limited and QBE Insurance Group Limited dated as of October 22 2008 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 2.3 to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed October 28 2008 File

No 00 1-13664
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Third Amendment Agreement by and among PMI Mortgage Insurance Co QBE Holdings AAP
Pty Limited and QBE Insurance Group Limited dated as of December 17 2008 incorporated by

reference to exhibit 2.2 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008

File No 001-13664

10.37 Share Sale Deed by and among The PMI Group Inc QBE Holdings AAP Pty Limited and QBE
Insurance Group Limited dated as of August 29 2008 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1

to the Companys current report on Form 8-K filed September 2008 File No 001-13664

10.38 Note Deed dated as of October 22 2008 between PMI Mortgage Insurance Co and QBE Insurance

Group Limited incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Companys current report on

Form 8-K filed October 28 2008 File No 001-13664

10.39 Agreement dated as of June 10 2008 by and among PMI Guaranty Co Financial Guaranty

Insurance Company and Assured Guaranty Re LTD incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to

the registrants quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30 2008 filed on

August 11 2008 File No 001-13664

10.40 Share Sale Deed by and among The PMI Group Inc QBE Lenders Mortgage Insurance Limited

and QBE Insurance Group Limited dated as of December 17 2008 incorporated by reference to

exhibit 2.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 File

No 001-13664

10.41 Termination Deed by and among The PMI Group Inc QBE Holdings AAP Pty Limited and QBE
Insurance Group Limited dated as of December 17 2008 incorporated by reference to exhibit

10.1 to the registrants current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 File No 001-

13664

10.42 Amending Deed by and among PMI Mortgage Insurance Co and QBE Insurance Group Limited

dated as of December 17 2008 incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the registrants

current report on Form 8-K filed on December 22 2008 File No 00 1-13664

11.1 Statement re Computation of Net Income Per Share

12.1 Statement re Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Ernst Young LLP

31.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Certificate of Chief Executive Officer

32.2 Certificate of Chief Financial Officer

Management or director contract or compensatory plan or arrangement



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION

Stephen Smith certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The PMI Group Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit

to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of

the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15e and Sd-i 5e and internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-i5f and 15d-15f for the

registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process
summarize and report

financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March i6 2009

Is STEPHEN SMITH

Stephen Smith

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

Donald Lofe Jr certify that

have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of The PM Group Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit

to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this

report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash flows of

the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officers and are responsible for establishing and maintaining

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and l5d-15e and internal

control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15f and 5d- 15f for the

registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and

procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities

particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over

financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosure controls and procedures and presented

in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of

the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter in

the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

registrants internal control over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officers and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation

of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of the

registrants board of directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal

control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have

significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

Date March 16 2009

Is DONALD L01E JR

Donald Lofe Jr

Executive Vice President

and Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 Stephen Smith Chief Executive Officer of The PMI Group Inc

Company hereby certify that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year
ended

December 31 2008 the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all

material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 16 2009 Is STEPHEN SMITH

Stephen Smith

Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S .C Section 1350 and is not being

filed as part of the Report or as separate disclosure document



EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 Donald Lofe Jr Chief Financial Officer of The PM Group Inc

Company hereby certify that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended

December 31 2008 the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents in all

material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

Dated March 16 2009 Is DONALD LOFE JR

Donald Lofe Jr

Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350 and is not being

filed as part of the Report or as separate disclosure document



Shareholder Information

Executive Officers of The PMI Group Inc

Stephen Smith

Chairman of the Board Chief Executive Officer

President and Chief Operating Officer

The PMI Group Inc

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

PMI Mortgage Insurance Co

David Katkov

Executive Vice President and

Chief Business Officer

Donald Lofe Jr

Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer

and Chief Administrative Officer

Joanne Berkowitz

Executive Vice President

Chief Insurance Operations Officer

Lloyd Porter

Executive Vice President Chief Risk Officer

Andrew Cameron

Group Senior Vice President General Counsel

and Secretary

Investor and media inquiries

Our annual report on Form 10-K quarterly

reports on Form 10-0 proxy statement investor

information and media packets may be obtained

at no cost by calling
the Investor Relations

Department at 888.641.4764 Links to our SEC

filings press releases and product and other

information may be found on our web site

www.pmi-us.com

Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics Code of

Ethics for Senior Financial Officers Board Guidelines

on Significant Corporate Governance Issues

Board committee charters and other information

relating to our corporate governance are also

available on our web site www.pmi-us.com or in

print upon request by calling the nvestor Relations

Department at 888.6414764

Quarterly information

Quarterly earnings releases are available on our

web site www.pmi-us.com or by calling
the

Investor Relations Department at 888.641.4764

Stock exchange listing

The common stock of The PMI Group Inc is listed

on the New York Stock Exchange under the trading

symbol PMI

Independent registered public accounting firm

Ernst Young LLP

560 Mission Street

Suite 1600

San Francisco CA 94105

Transfer agent shareholder records

For information regarding registered stock

individual stock records dividend checks

or stock certificates

American Stock Transfer Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

Plaza Level

New York NY 10038

800 937.5449

www.amstock.com

e-mail infoamstock.com

The PMI Group Inc Dividend Reinvestment

and Direct Stock Purchase Plan the Plan is

available for the convenience of our investors

and shareholders and to promote long-term

investment in The PMI Group Inc.s common stock

The Plan is sponsored and administered by the

Companys stock transfer agent American Stock

Transfer Trust Company and offers participants

the ability to reinvest cash dividends and make

periodic supplemental cash payments to purchase

additional shares conveniently and economically

Headquarters

The PMI Group Inc

PMI Plaza

3003 Oak Road

Walnut Creek CA 94597

United States

925.658.7878

1800.288.1970 within U.S

PMI Europe

Grand Mill Quay

Barrow Street

Dublin Ireland

353 1.448.2900

Annual Meeting

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend

the annual meeting of The PMI Group Inc

Thursday May 212009 900 a.m

PMI Plaza

First Floor Conference Center

3003 Oak Road Walnut Creek CA 94597
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